

 
 


 


 


 


CITY OF LOMA LINDA 


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 14, 2023 


7:00PM 
 


 


A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Loma Linda is scheduled in the City Council Chamber, 25541 


Barton Road, Loma Linda, California.  Pursuant to Municipal Code Section 2.08.010, study session or closed 


session items may begin at 5:30 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible.  The public meeting begins at 7:00 p.m. 


Reports and Documents relating to each agenda item are on file in the Office of the City Clerk and are available for 


public inspection during normal business hours.  The Loma Linda Branch Library is also provided an agenda 


packet for your convenience.  The agenda and reports are also located on the City’s Website at www.lomalinda-


ca.gov. 


Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet 


are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office, 25541 Barton Road, Loma Linda, CA during 


normal business hours.  Such documents are also available on the City’s website at www.lomalinda-ca.gov 


subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 


Persons wishing to speak on an agenda item, including any closed session items, are asked to complete an 


information card and present it to the City Clerk prior to consideration of the item.  When the item is to be 


considered, please step forward to the podium, the Chair will recognize you and you may offer your comments.  


The City Council meeting is recorded to assist in the preparation of the Minutes, and you are therefore asked to 


give your name and address prior to offering testimony. 


The Oral Reports/Public Participation portion of the agenda pertains to items NOT on the agenda and is limited to 


30 minutes; 3 minutes allotted for each speaker.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action may be taken by the City 


Council at this time; however, the City Council may refer your comments/concerns to staff or request that the item 


be placed on a future agenda. 


In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 


meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (909) 799-2819.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable 


the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  Later requests will be 


accommodated to the extent feasible. 


A recess may be called at the discretion of the City Council. 


  


Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Every attempt will be made to swiftly address 


each request.  Requests in advance of the meeting will enable us to make reasonable 


arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it.  Individuals 


who need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate 


in this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternative format for the meeting 


materials, should contact the City Clerk at larreola@lomalinda-ca.gov or (909) 799-2819. 


 
 







City Council Agenda 


Page 2 


A. Call To Order


B. Roll Call


C. Closed Session - 6:30pm – Conference with Legal Counsel - Pending litigation pursuant to


Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1), Ditech Financial v. First-Citizens Bank & Trust Company,


City of Loma Linda Housing Authority


D. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Dupper (In keeping with long-standing traditions of


legislative invocations, this City Council meeting may include a brief, non-sectarian invocation.  Such


invocations are not intended to proselytize or advance any one, or to disparage any other, faith or belief.


Neither the City nor the City Council endorses any particular religious belief or form of invocation.)


E. Items To Be Added Or Deleted


F. Oral Reports/Public Participation - Non-Agenda Items (Limited to 30 minutes; 3 minutes allotted


for each speaker) 


G. Conflict of Interest Disclosure - Note agenda item that may require member abstentions due to possible


conflicts of interest 


H. Scheduled and Related Items


1. Public Hearing - Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) project prioritization for Fiscal 
Year 2023 - 2024 [Public Works]


2. Joint meeting of the City Council and Housing Authority regarding presentation of Audit Report for 


Fiscal Year 2021-2022 [Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott/Finance]


3. Public Hearing – Council Bill #R-2023-03 – Adopt Resolution to determine the costs related to the 
Fall 2022 Weed Abatement Program. [Fire]


4. Public Hearing - Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Reporting 
Program pursuant to CEQA for the 1.6 Million Gallon Water Tank project [Public 
Works/Community Development]


5. Public Hearing – Adopt Revised Resolution No. 3160 approving editorial corrections to the 
Resolution relating to the adoption of the 2022 California Fire Code [Fire]


I. Consent Calendar


6. Demands Registers


7. Minutes – December 13, 2022, and January 10, 2023


8. Treasurer’s Report – January 2023


9. Fire Department’s Report – January 2023


10. Award a contract for the replacement of City’s Storage Area Network (SAN) system to CDW-G in 
the amount of $52,489.93 [Information System]


11. Declare surplus property and authorize disposition [Public Works/Information System]


12. Approve a supplemental appropriation of $30,000 from the General Fund Balance and amend the 
Agreement for consultant services between the City of Loma Linda and Romo Planning Group to 
continue on-call contract planning services through the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 [Community 







City Council Agenda 


Page 3 
 


 


 


Development] 
 


13. Amend Agreement for consultant services between the City of Loma Linda and Lilburn Corporation 


relating to the Canyon Ranch Project [Community Development] 
 


14. Approve a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $50,000 from the General Fund Balance 


into Facilities Maintenance, Repairs & Maintenance – Building account for two unanticipated 


incidents requiring major remediation [Public Works] 
 


15. Accept as complete and authorize recordation of Notice of Completion for Construction of 


Sidewalks at Various Locations (CIP 22-110), Contractor:  Ruiz Concrete & Paving, Inc. [Public 


Works]  
 


16. Accept as complete and authorize recordation of Notice of Completion for replacement of acoustic 


tiles within the Civic Center and approve an appropriation of $5,100 from the General Fund Balance 


into the Facilities, Repairs & Maintenance – Building account Contractor: K.D. Acoustics [Public 


Works] 
 


J. Old Business 


 


17. Appointments of Committee and Board members to:  
 


a. Budget Committee  


b. Parks, Recreation and Beautification Committee 


c. Personnel Board 


 


K. New Business 


 


L. Reports of Councilmen (This portion of the agenda provides City Council Members an opportunity to 


provide information relating to other boards/commissions/committees to which City Council Members 


have been appointed). 


 


M. Reports Of Officers (This portion of the agenda provides Staff the opportunity to provide informational 


items that are of general interest as well as information that has been requested by the City Council). 


 


18. Digital Video and Social Media Discussion [Community Development & Fire] 


 


N. Adjournment   
 


POSTING 
  


 I, Lynette Arreola, City Clerk, do hereby certify and declare that on the 9
th
 day of  February, 2023, I caused this 


agenda to be posted at the following three (3) locations, to-wit: 


 


 1. Loma Linda Branch Library, 25581 Barton Road, Loma Linda, California 


 2.  City Council Chambers, 25541 Barton Road, Loma Linda, California 


 3.  U. S. Post Office Annex, Newport Avenue, Loma Linda, California 
 


       
      Lynette Arreola, City Clerk 


      City of Loma Linda, California 







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 1  
  



















CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 2 
  







City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


Phill Dupper, Mayor 
Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 
Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 
John Lenart, Councilman  
Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2022 


TO: City Council & Housing Authority Board 


FROM: Sonia Fabela, Finance Director 


SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Joint Meeting of the City Council and Housing 


Authority regarding presentation of Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2021-


2022 (PowerPoint Presentation) 


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council review and receive for filing. 


Approved/Continued/Denied 


By City Council 


Date  


Attachment :
• Annual Comprehensive Financial Report


 







735 E. Carnegie Dr. Su ite I 00 


San Bernardino . CA 9240B 


909 889 087 1 T 


909 889 536 1 F 


ramscpa. net 


PARTNERS 


Ten-y P Shea. CPA 


Scott W. Manno. CPA. CGMA 


Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST. CGMA 


Bradferd A Welebir. CPA, MBA. CGMA 


Jenny W. Liu, CPA. MST 


B1 enda L. Odle, CPA. MST (Partner Emeritus) 


MANAGERS/ STAFF 


Gardenya Duran, CPA. GMA 


Brianna Schultz. CPA, CGMA 


Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA. MBA 


Evelyn Mo, entin-Barcena. CPA 


Vernrnca Hernandez. CPA 


Laura Arvizu. CPA 


Xinlu Zoe Zhang. CPA, MSA 


John Maldonado, CPA. MSA 


Julia Rod,·iguez Fuentes, CPA. MSA 


Demi Hite. CPA 


Jeffrey McKennan. CPA 


MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Cern fied Public Accountants 


PCPS The A/CPA All,ance 
(or CPA Finns 


Gove111menta/ Audit 
Quality Ce11te1 


California Society o f 
Certified Public Accountants 


Proud Member of 
AlliottGlobalAlliance· 


ROGERS, ANDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. SIN CE 1948 


ST ABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 


 


-1- 


 
 
 
 


REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT  
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 


GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 


Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Honorable City Council 
City of Loma Linda  
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Loma Linda (the City) as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated January 30, 2023. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we 
considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) 
as a basis for designing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on 
a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited 
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might 
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 







 


-2- 


Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 


 
San Bernardino, California 
January 30, 2023 
 
 







735 E. Carnegie Dr. Su ite I 00 


San Bernardino . CA 9240B 


909 889 087 1 T 


909 889 536 1 F 


ramscpa. net 


PARTNERS 


Ten-y P Shea. CPA 


Scott W. Manno. CPA. CGMA 


Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST. CGMA 


Bradferd A Welebir. CPA, MBA. CGMA 


Jenny W. Liu, CPA. MST 


B1 enda L. Odle, CPA. MST (Partner Emeritus) 


MANAGERS/ STAFF 


Gardenya Duran, CPA. GMA 


Brianna Schultz. CPA, CGMA 


Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA. MBA 


Evelyn Mo, entin-Barcena. CPA 


Vernrnca Hernandez. CPA 


Laura Arvizu. CPA 


Xinlu Zoe Zhang. CPA, MSA 


John Maldonado, CPA. MSA 


Julia Rod,·iguez Fuentes, CPA. MSA 


Demi Hite. CPA 


Jeffrey McKennan. CPA 


MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Cern fied Public Accountants 


PCPS The A/CPA All,ance 
(or CPA Finns 


Gove111menta/ Audit 
Quality Ce11te1 


California Society o f 
Certified Public Accountants 


Proud Member of 
AlliottGlobalAlliance· 


ROGERS, ANDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. SIN CE 1948 


ST ABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 


 


-1- 


 
 


INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON  
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES APPLIED TO 


APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT WORKSHEETS 
 


Independent Accountant’s Report  
 
To the Honorable City Council 
City of Loma Linda 
Loma Linda, California 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the 
accompanying Appropriations Limit Worksheet of the City of Loma 
Linda, California (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2022. The 
management of the City is responsible for the accompanying 
Appropriations Limit Worksheet. 
 
The City has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures 
performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of meeting 
the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIII-B of the California 
Constitution. These procedures, which were suggested by the 
League of California Cities and presented in the publication entitled 
Agreed-upon Procedures Applied to the Appropriations Limitation 
Prescribed by Article XIII-B of the California Constitution, were 
performed solely to assist you in meeting the requirements. This 
report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures 
performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this 
report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as 
such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures 
performed are appropriate for their purposes. 
 
The procedures and the associated findings are as follows:  
 


1. We obtained the completed worksheets and compared the 
limit and annual adjustment factors included in those 
worksheets to the limit and annual adjustment factors that 
were adopted by resolution of the City Council. We also 
compared the population and inflation options included in the 
aforementioned documents to those that were selected by a 
recorded vote of the City Council. 


 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our 
procedures. 


 
2. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet, we 


added last year’s limit to total adjustments and agreed the 
resulting amount to this year’s limit. 
 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our 
procedures. 







 


-2- 


3. We agreed the current year information presented in the accompanying Appropriations 
Limit Worksheet to the other documents referenced in number one above. 


 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 


4. We agreed the prior year appropriations limit presented in the accompanying 
Appropriations Limit Worksheet to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the City 
Council during the prior year. 
 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 


 
We were engaged by the City to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct 
an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or 
conclusion, respectively, on accompanying Appropriations Limit Worksheet for the year ended 
June 30, 2022. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would 
have been reported to you. 
 
We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement.  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of 
the City of Loma Linda, California, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties.  However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 
 


 
San Bernardino, California 
January 30, 2023 


 







 


-3- 


CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT COMPUTATION 


2021 – 2022 
 


Change in Per Capita Cost of Living 5.73%


Change in City Population 1.31%


Change in Per Capita Cost of Living converted to a ratio 1.0573


Change in City Population converted to a ratio 1.0131


Calculation of factor for ratio of change (1.0573 x 1.0131) 1.0712


2020-2021 Limit 52,147,839$     


2021-2022 Limit ($52,147,839 x 1.0712) 55,858,191$     


 











Ceramic Tile Mural 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE 
FINANCIAL REPORT 


 
 
 
 


CITY OF LOMA LINDA, CALIFORNIA 
 


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by: 
 


City Manager’s Office 
Finance Department 


 
 
 
 
 


25541 Barton Road, Loma Linda, CA 92354 
Telephone: (909) 799-2840 – Fax: (909) 799-2893 


 
http://www.lomalinda-ca.gov 


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
Table of Contents 
 


 


Page 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
Letter of Transmittal  .............................................................................................................. i 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting  ............................xvi 
Principal Officials  .............................................................................................................. xvii 
Organization Chart  ........................................................................................................... xviii 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report  ........................................................................................... 1 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  ......................................................................... 5 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 
 Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
  Statement of Net Position  .......................................................................................... 18 
  Statement of Activities  ............................................................................................... 19 
 
 Fund Financial Statements: 
 Governmental Fund Financial Statements: 
  Balance Sheet  ........................................................................................................... 22 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the 
   Government-Wide Statement of Net Position  ......................................................... 24 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance  ..................... 25 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 
   Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Government-Wide 
   Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position  .............................................. 27 
 Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: 
  Statement of Net Position  .......................................................................................... 29 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position  .................... 30 
  Statement of Cash Flows  .......................................................................................... 31 
 Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: 
  Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ........................................................................... 34 
  Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position  ........................................................ 35 
 
 Notes to Basic Financial Statements  ........................................................................ 36 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 
 Budget and Budgetary Accounting  ............................................................................... 87 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
   General Fund  ......................................................................................................... 88 
   Loma Linda Housing Authority Fund  ....................................................................... 89 
   Regional Traffic Development Impact Fund  ............................................................ 90 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
Table of Contents 
 


 


Page 
 
 Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios  ............................ 91 
 Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions  ......................................................................... 92 
 Schedule of the Plan's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Asset and  
  Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date  ............................................................. 93 
 Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions  ....................................................................... 94 


 
Supplementary Information: 
 
Major Governmental Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedules: 
 Special Projects Construction Capital Projects Fund  .................................................... 97 
 Park Development Capital Projects Fund  ..................................................................... 98 
Nonmajor Governmental Fund Financial Statements: 
 Combining Balance Sheet  .......................................................................................... 103 
 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  ..... 110 
Nonmajor Governmental Budgetary Comparison Schedules: 
 Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Special Revenue Funds: 
  Traffic Safety  ........................................................................................................... 118 
  Gas Tax  .................................................................................................................. 119 
  CASp CERT & Training  ........................................................................................... 120 
  Measure I  ................................................................................................................ 121 
  Measure I MSART  ................................................................................................... 122 
  Street Lighting District  ............................................................................................. 123 
  Landscape Maintenance District  .............................................................................. 124 
  Air Quality Management District  .............................................................................. 125 
  Public Improvements Per MOU  ............................................................................... 126 
  Community Development Block Grant  ..................................................................... 127 
  Grant Fund  .............................................................................................................. 128 
  Citizens Option for Public Safety  ............................................................................. 129 
  Development Agreement Consideration  .................................................................. 130 
  American Rescue Plan Act ....................................................................................... 131 
 Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Capital Projects Funds: 
  Storm Drain  ............................................................................................................. 132 
  Traffic Impact  .......................................................................................................... 133 
  Fire Facilities  ........................................................................................................... 134 
  General Facilities  ..................................................................................................... 135 
  Federal/State Construction  ...................................................................................... 136 
  Public Meeting Facilities  .......................................................................................... 137 
  Public Library Facilities  ............................................................................................ 138 
  Art in Public Places  ................................................................................................. 139 
  Capital Projects Bond Proceeds  .............................................................................. 140 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
Table of Contents 
 


 


Page 
 
Supplementary Information: 
 Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Debt Service Funds: 
  Loma Linda Financing Authority  .............................................................................. 141 
 All Custodial Funds: 
  Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Custodial Funds  ......................... 143 
  Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Custodial Funds  ...... 144 
 
STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 
 
Net Position by Component .............................................................................................. 147 
Changes in Net Position  ................................................................................................... 149 
Governmental Activities Tax and Assessments Revenues by Source  .............................. 153 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds  ........................................................................... 154 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds  ........................................................ 156 
General Fund Tax Revenues by Source  .......................................................................... 158 
Top 25 Sales Tax Producers  ............................................................................................ 159 
Taxable Sales by Category  .............................................................................................. 161 
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property  ................................... 162 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rate  ....................................................................... 163 
Principal Property Taxpayers  ........................................................................................... 164 
Property Tax Levies and Collections  ................................................................................ 165 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type  ................................................................................. 166 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding  ................................................................... 167 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt  ...................................................... 168 
Computation of Legal Debt Margin  ................................................................................... 169 
Pledged Revenue Coverage  ............................................................................................ 171 
Demographic and Economic Statistics  ............................................................................. 172 
Principal Employers  ......................................................................................................... 173 
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function  ....................................... 174 
Operating Indicators by Function ...................................................................................... 175 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function  ................................................................................. 176 
 
 







    City of Loma Linda 
                 25541 Barton Road, Loma Linda. California 92354-3160 • (909) 799-2800 • FAX (909) 790-2890 


                 Sister Cities Manipur Karnataka, India - Libertadore, San Martin, Argentina  •  www lomalinda-ca.gov 
 


i 
 


 
 
 
January 30, 2023 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of Loma Linda: 
 
It is with great pleasure that we present to you the City of Loma Linda’s audited Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The financial 
statements contained in this report are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) and have been audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards (GAAS) and Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) by an independent certified 
public accountants firm.   
 
The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report includes the financial activity for all funds of the City, 
Housing Authority, Public Financing Authority and Fiduciary Funds. The report is organized into 
three major sections which include the Introductory Section, the Financial Section, and the 
Statistical Section.   
 
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has 
established for this purpose, which include an array of administrative procedures. These controls 
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of 
assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, as well as the reliability of financial 
records for accurate and fair presentation of financial reports. The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that the cost of specific controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived from exercising the controls, and that this evaluation involves estimates and judgments by 
management.  It is believed that the City’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard City 
assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 
 
Rogers, Anderson, Malody and Scott, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have issued unmodified 
(“clean”) opinions on the City of Loma Linda’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2022. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 
 
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 
 


PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 
 
The City of Loma Linda (City), incorporated in September 29, 1970, is located on the south side 
of Interstate 10, east of the 215 Freeway.  Loma Linda is home to the world famous Loma Linda 
University and Medical Center with over 10,899 employees, the one of the largest employer in San 
Bernardino County. Loma Linda (“Beautiful Hill”), originally known as “Mound City”, has a history 
of being a health-conscious community, and in 1993 became the first “smoke free” city in San 
Bernardino County. The Seventh-Day Adventist Church purchased the Loma Linda Resort Hotel 
from a group of businessmen and physicians from Los Angeles hospitals and converted it into the 
Loma Linda Sanitarium in 1905. The Sanitarium eventually became a full service medical facility 
and medical college, the forerunners of the Loma Linda University and Medical Center. 
 







 


ii 
 


Loma Linda covers an area of 7.7 square miles and has a resident population of 25,349, as 
certified by the State Department of Finance, as of June 30, 2022. The City has increased by 454 
residents from the previous year.  Loma Linda’s median income is $56,021, which is 14.8% lower 
than the average for San Bernardino County. 
 


As presented in the ten year population history 
chart, Loma Linda’s population has plateau over 
the past 10 years. The 2020 Census measured 
the population at 24,791 which is a 6.6% 
increase from the 2010 Census population of 
23,261. In comparison, San Bernardino County 
grew by 7.2% between the 2010 and 2020 
Census. The State Department of Finance has 
estimated a growth of 558 to the City’s 
population of its current total of 25,349 as of 
June 30, 2022. 
 
The City is governed under charter by a City 


Council/City Manager plan. The people of Loma Linda elect five Council Members, from which the 
City Council chooses the Mayor and the Mayor pro tempore. The City Council appoints the City 
Manager, who is responsible for the daily operations of all City departments and the Council also 
appoints the City Attorney. 
 
The City’s operating departments are Fire Department, Public Works, Community Development, 
City Clerk, Finance, Information Systems and Administration.  
 
The City of Loma Linda is a full service Municipal Government.  Services provided by the City 
include police (through contract with San Bernardino County Sheriff’s) and fire protection; utilities 
services for water, sewer and refuse (under contract with a private hauler); internet connection 
services; street and park maintenance; storm and waste water drainage maintenance; planning 
and zoning management; general administrative services; a senior center and a library branch 
(staffed by the County of San Bernardino). 
 
Financial administration of the City is the responsibility of the Finance Director/City Treasurer, who 
supervises the City’s fiscal administration, which includes the day-to-day accounting, budgetary 
and reporting compliance, business licensing, utility billing operations and cash management.  
 


THE REPORTING ENTITY 
(Activities included in the report) 


 
The report includes all activities carried out by the City as a legal entity, and also includes the 
activities of the Loma Linda Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency (Successor 
Agency), the Loma Linda Housing Authority (LLHA) and the Public Financing Authority (PFA), for 
which the City Council, acting in the capacity of Board to the Successor Agency and both 
Authorities, is financially accountable as determined under the guidelines of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  
 
 


ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 
 


The City’s fund accounting records are maintained using a modified accrual basis of accounting 
as explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements, following the accounting practices for 
governmental units as mandated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 


0


10,000


20,000


30,000


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


FY Ending June 30th


City of Loma Linda
Population History







 


iii 
 


Basic City operations are accounted for in the City’s General Fund, with other activities accounted 
for in separate funds as required by law or determined by management discretion.  
  
The Government-Wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of 
Activities) follow the accrual basis of accounting. As required by GASB, an accompanying 
summary reconciliation schedule is presented following the Governmental fund financial 
statements.  These reconciliation schedules are presented on pages 24 and 27 in the body of the 
financial statements. 
 
The Finance Director/City Treasurer is charged with the responsibility for the receipt and 
disbursement of all monies and to maintain control over all expenditures to insure that budget 
appropriations are not exceeded. The level of budgetary control, that is, the level at which 
expenditures are not to exceed Council-approved appropriations is established at the department 
level. Adjustments at the object level within the same fund and major categories of expenditures 
are permissible at the department level with the department head and Finance Director 
recommendation and City Manager approval.  Adjustments between funds and additional 
supplemental appropriation funding require City Council approval.  An encumbrance (commitment) 
accounting system is utilized as a technique to enhance budgetary control during the year.  All 
appropriations lapse at year-end and become available for re-appropriation the following year, 
upon recommendation by the City Manager. Furthermore, the Citizen’s Budget Committee plays 
a major role in the budgetary recommendations to the City Council. 
 


SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
 
During fiscal year 2021/2022 the City achieved many accomplishments that may not be evident 
from a review of the financial statements. Some of the more important accomplishments as well 
as on-going projects are summarized below. 
 
Community Development Department 
 


During the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year, the City’s Community Development Department, which 
comprised of Planning, Building and Safety, and Code Enforcement, achieved many 
accomplishments that may not be evident from a review of the financial statements.  
 
Despite the Covid-19 pandemic, the Department processed almost as many permits and 
entitlements as in the previous fiscal year. Applications received by the Building and Safety 
Division were above their pre-pandemic numbers. In 2019, Building staff processed 638 
applications. In 2020, staff processed 726. And in 2021, the Division processed 779. The upward 
trajectory is expected to continue during the 2022 calendar year. Throughout the fiscal year, 
Building staff continued to check plans, issue permits, and conduct inspections.  


 


The Department’s Planning Division, which includes land use and zoning activities, assisted 
residents, interested developers, and businesses both in-person and online to ensure proposed 
uses complied with city codes and the General Plan. The Planning Division had similar growth to 
that of the Building Division. During the pandemic in 2020, they issued 184 planning permits; in 
2021, it was 250. We expect the 2022 permit numbers to be similar or slightly more. Additionally, 
during the fiscal year, the Department brought in close to one million dollars in development impact 
fees. These charges offset the costs for new construction or expansion of public infrastructure and 
services supporting the new development.  


 


Planning staff also completed several long-range planning goals, such as updating the Housing 
and Safety Elements and adopting a new Objective Design Standards ordinance. Some notable 







 


iv 
 


development projects included approving a new four-story Courtyard Marriot Hotel, a 103 
residential condominium project, a 51-lot residential subdivision, a Fitness 19 health facility, and 
approval of a Community Benefiting Improvement to preserve the historic Frink Adobe house. In 
addition, the Division has processed six Preliminary Development Review applications, allowing 
staff to provide feedback to applicants before discretionary review to ensure successful projects 
in Loma Linda. The Planning Division is reviewing an annexation application for 141 acres from 
the City’s sphere of influence. Moving forward, all permitting requests in this new area will be 
processed by the Community Development Department. 
 
Fire Department 
 
Fire resources were successful in containing the majority of all residential structure fires to the 
building/residence of origin.  Fires in commercial occupancies were also contained as small to 
medium sized incidents.  All vegetation fire incidents in the city boundaries were controlled with 
the first alarm response resources.  Rapid response and aggressive fire attack operations have 
not only mitigated the loss of personal property of our residents, but also protected vital property 
and sales tax revenues that the community relies on to fund essential services.  A large portion of 
the department’s responses were for emergency medical incidents or traffic collisions to which the 
department deploys resources with rescue and Advanced Life Support capabilities. While this fire 
season was significantly less destructive than in years past, Fire again participated in numerous 
mutual aid incidents for which the City was reimbursed. 
    
Fire has worked on completing objectives recognized in the five (5) year strategic plan; many of 
the objectives were delayed due to COVID-19 related issues.  
 
Community Risk Reduction (CRR), which includes Fire Prevention, Disaster Preparedness, Code 
Enforcement, and Parking Enforcement, was busy in 2021/2022.   
 
Fire Prevention Division maintained the fire engineering and permitting elements of significant 
commercial developments in the City.  Additional projects and facilities are in various stages of 
engineering or construction and will be welcomed additions to the community. The Division also 
inspected all state mandated occupancies throughout the community.  
 
Disaster Preparedness Division updated the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and continued to 
increase resiliency in the community through equipment purchases and training of City staff.  
 
The Code Enforcement section was very active during the year, too. The team worked in 
partnership with community members to preserve and enhance our community's safety, 
appearance, and economic stability.  
 
Animal licensing compliance continued to increase, animal impounds were maintained at record-
low levels, and rabies vaccination compliance was improved. The City currently utilizes the City of 
San Bernardino for shelter services.  
 
As part of the pandemic response, Code enforcement assisted with meal deliveries to our most 
at-risk members throughout our City. At the beginning of 2022, Code Enforcement and Animal 
Control were officially reassigned from the Community Development Department to the Fire 
Department. 
 
 
 
 
 







 


v 
 


 
Information Systems Department 
 
The city completed phase 2 of its phone system upgrade. This upgrade brought a modern VoIP 
(Voice over Internet Protocol) solution to city staff. Productivity features, longevity, and data 
protection were all goals achieved in this process. This project included an all-encompassing 
replacement of the VoIP system’s hardware and software. These upgrades will last the city for 
years to come. 
 
In the foresight of ever increasing cyber security threats, the city implemented a modern data 
protection solution. This data protection solution allows for more sophisticated data backups that 
integrate better with the current city systems. This data protection solution enables city’s data to 
be replicated both locally and in the cloud, protecting the city against total local data loss. 
  
Loma Linda’s Fire Station 251 and the city’s Emergency Operations Center (EOC) went through 
a remodel which the Information Systems Department provided consulting on. The remodel 
included updating electronic and network configurations, and streamlining the connection to the 
city’s data resources.  
 
The City has completed additional upgrades to the city wide CCTV system providing better security 
coverage that included additional cameras at the city well sites allowing for better security and 
visibility at these crucial locations. 
  
The future is prepared for with the Loma Linda Connected Community Program (LLCCP). The 
LLCCP, originally started in 2004, includes the deployment of an advanced city-wide fiber optic 
network as well as modifications to building regulations to ensure that development will be 
designed to meet the needs of future communication technologies. The city building code requires 
all new commercial and residential developments (or re-models involving greater than 50% of the 
structure) to equip the new structures with a fiber-optics interface and copper cabling throughout. 
In 2007, the LLCCP started expanding into commercial areas via organic growth at existing 
locations. The fiber network is being extended into new home construction with additional 
customers coming online as the network expands. Additional equipment was purchased and 
implemented to cater to an expanding customer base.  
 
As new home construction occurs in the city, the residential LLCCP infrastructure expands with it. 
The City continues to expand services to commercial customers through focused network 
expansion and custom designed services. Fiber infrastructure is also being utilized in the 
monitoring and control of water production, street lights, energy usage, and distributed computing 
throughout the City. 
 
Successor Agency, Oversight Board and Loma Linda Housing Authority:  
 
Successor Agency 
 
On February 1, 2012, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved per the State of California. On 
this date all assets, property contracts, and leases of the former redevelopment agency transferred 
to a Successor Agency.  The City of Loma Linda elected to become the Successor Agency for its 
former redevelopment agency.  The Successor Agency created a Redevelopment Obligation 
Retirement Fund, which continues to make payments on the approved annual Recognized 
Enforceable Obligation Schedules (ROPS), maintain reserves, perform required enforceable 
obligations, enforce all rights for the benefit of taxing agencies and pursue the disposition of 
property based on the approved Long Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP).  The annual 
ROPS for bi-annual operating periods of June – December and January – June must be approved 







 


vi 
 


by the Countywide Oversight Board, and submitted to the Department of Finance (DOF), State 
Controller’s Office (SCO) and County Administration Office (CAO) for final review and approval 
before funds are disbursed to the Successor Agency.  In November 2016, the Successor Agency 
refinanced three outstanding bond issues totaling $33,710,000 into two bond issues (2016 A Tax 
Allocation Refunding Bonds and 2016 B Taxable Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds).  The 
refinancing will yield saving of approximately $7,451,850 over the remaining term of the bonds, 
with final redemption on August 1, 2030.    
 
Countywide Oversight Board 
 
On July 1, 2018, in accordance with Health and Safety Code section 34179(j), the twenty six 
Redevelopment Agencies (RDA) oversight boards in San Bernardino County consolidated into 
one Countywide Oversight Board.  The Countywide Oversight Board is composed of one member 
each appointed by the County Board of Supervisors, City Selection Committee, Independent 
Special District Selection Committee, San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools, 
Chancellor of the California Community Colleges, a public member appointed by the County Board 
of Supervisors and a member of Recognized Employee Organization (Teamsters Local Union No. 
1932).  The Countywide Oversight Board has fiduciary responsibilities to holders of enforceable 
obligations and taxing entities that benefit from property tax distributions, and will continue to have 
a critical role in the RDA dissolution process until all Successor Agencies are formally dissolved. 
 
Loma Linda Housing Authority 
  
As part of the redevelopment agencies dissolution in February of 2012, in accordance with the 
laws applicable to the dissolution of redevelopment agencies, and after review and approval by 
the Oversight Board and the California Department of Finance, the City of Loma Linda designated 
the Loma Linda Housing Authority as the entity to receive the housing assets of the 
Redevelopment Agency.  Housing assets of the Redevelopment Agency that were transferred 
include property assets, land, improvements, contracts, loan agreements, leases, rights to enforce 
agreements and covenants, among other items. 
 
During fiscal year 2021/2022, the Loma Linda Housing Authority operated programs, including 
ongoing monitoring and enforcement of affordability covenants, leases and agreements related to 
housing matters as previously entered into by the Redevelopment Agency and similar contracts 
as entered into by the Loma Linda Housing Authority.  Units that are monitored for ongoing 
affordability include 49 single-family ownership units (26 mortgages held by the Loma Linda 
Housing Authority and 23 down-payment assistance loans) and 238 privately-owned rental units 
(most of which are operated under ground leases made by the Redevelopment Agency, which the 
Loma Linda Housing Authority has assumed).  The Loma Linda Redevelopment Agency actively 
manages the loans and/or the properties.  One home mortgage loan was paid off in June, 2022, 
but the Affordability Covenant remains on the property.  No properties were sold or transferred 
during the 2021/2022 fiscal year.   
 
Pursuant to the Affordable Housing Agreement and its amendments with Mary Erickson 
Community Housing (“MECH”), a non-profit affordable housing developer, MECH continues to 
monitor the affordability covenants for the four single-family homes on Juanita Street.  The 
purchase and rehabilitation of four units on San Mateo Drive are completed and occupied, subject 
to long-term affordability covenants.   
 
Economic Development 
 
The Economic Development Division of our City has worked diligently during the fiscal year on 
business attraction, retention, and revenue generation where possible.  







 


vii 
 


 
Staff continues collaborating with Loma Linda University Health on numerous projects, including 
constructing a 6-foot tall garden wall that will serve as a gateway monument to Loma Linda. This 
attractive piece, along with the lush landscaping and accompanying orchard, will welcome drivers 
and pedestrians to the City and help define the borders between Loma Linda and San Bernardino. 
 
Due to the pandemic-related business closures and to help mitigate the spread of the Covid-19 
virus, a temporary permit was created to allow eating establishments to construct an outdoor dining 
setting that complied with local health regulations. Restaurants and small businesses seem to 
have weathered the pandemic and are returning to normal operations with minimal business 
failures. The City continues to provide an accepting and supportive environment for its business 
community. In addition, there has been an increase in Land Use Permits and Home Occupations 
Permits, evidence of a growing entrepreneurial ecosystem. 
 
Working in tandem with the Community Development Department, Staff prepared various 
programs to help improve the economic well-being and quality of life in Loma Linda. They include 
the Hotel Incentive Program update and a Friendship City relationship (sister city program) with 
the Municipality of Puntarenas in Costa Rica. Both projects provide a tangible benefit for the City, 
incentivizing the business sector to spur economic growth while expanding the City’s network and 
knowledge and its cultural and social awareness. 


 


The City’s 3rd national brand hotel, Candlewood, is almost complete and will be operating by the 
end of the calendar year. A 4th hotel, Courtyard by Marriot, started the grading process. A 30,000-
square-foot surgical eye care center and a 16,600 square-foot medical office building are currently 
under construction. O’Reilly Auto Parts had its grand opening at the beginning of 2022, completing 
the build-out of the Dollar Tree Center. The Medical Center has occupied the new 16-story hospital 
building bringing additional patients and employees to the community. Two large homebuilders, 
KB Home and Lennar, have completed the construction of 279 single-family residences. And 
Highpointe Communities is preparing to grade an additional 177 single-family homes in the City 
and future annexation area. 
 
Additionally, 160 condo units and 213 senior-living apartments are either in the construction or 
pre-construction phase. Through the recently adopted “The Groves Specific Plan,” the City expects 
up to 30 acres of commercial space to be developed along the Redlands Boulevard corridor and 
California Street. These projects provide much-needed retail, services, and housing to Loma Linda 
and its residents. Moreover, they are creating jobs and improving the quality of life in the City. 
 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Projects: 
 
Public Works 
 
During the 2021/2022 fiscal year, the Public Works Department completed or continued with the 
following projects: pavement rehabilitation on Barton Road from Waterman Ave. to Campus St., 
Parkland St. and Orange Grove St.; Waterline and street rehabilitation on Curtis St., Lomas Verdes 
St., Elm St., Cottonwood Rd., Mead St., Mead Ct., Mead Ln., Mead Way., San Juan St., Evans 
St., Rincon St., Canada St., and Stewart St.; Repaired sidewalks and ADA access ramps, as 
needed city-wide; Planted trees in various locations; Installed fiber optic cable at Mt. View Ave. 
and Cooley Dr. to the well sites; installed shade structure at the City Corp Yard; Installed a walking 
track at Bailey Park and lighting at baseball fields; completed various projects for the Art in Public 
Places project; Project plan checking continues on an as-needed basis; Complied with State and 
Federal regulations, including: air quality, storm water, water conservation and solid waste 
diversion. 
 







 


viii 
 


 
LOCAL ECONOMY AND PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE 


 
As presented in the Loma Linda General Plan (2009), Loma Linda is a unique community with 
strong ties to its religious, educational and healing arts roots. The Loma Linda University Medical 
Center (LLUMC), the Jerry L. Pettis Memorial Veterans Medical Center (VA Medical Center) and 
the VA Ambulatory Care Center provide much of the economic base of the community through the 
employment of a highly trained local labor force. The City has actively sought to expand upon this 
economic base with medical support services, research facilities, professional offices and lodging 
accommodations for visitors to the medical centers and community. In addition to increasing 
commercial and industrial opportunities, Loma Linda is in the process of expanding residential 
growth to provide an appropriate range of housing opportunities to accommodate the diverse work 
force needed by the economic base. The vision for the future of Loma Linda is for the City to have 
a balanced economy that meets the needs of the community and is a great place to live and do 
business. The goal is to attract high-tech industries to the City and create a diverse mix of high 
paying job opportunities to maintain the City’s high quality standard of living.   
 
In 2022, the median price of a home in Loma Linda 
was $595,080, an increase of $40,268 or 7.3%, from 
$554,812 in 2021, according to Zillow.com. This is an 
overall increase of 30.2% to the median price since 
peaking at $457,200, in 2006.  After several years of 
fluctuations in home values due to uncertain economic 
conditions, Loma Linda has seen a steady increase in 
home prices since 2016 thru 2022. The City of Loma 
Linda is expected to continue attracting skilled and 
educated residents that can be provided with local jobs 
as well as access to surrounding job markets via 
Internet technology. The LLCCP has established 
building requirements to enhance technological access as part of each new development project, 
providing the technological infrastructure for local residents to stay “connected” from home. 
 


The Sales Tax History chart is a ten year 
historical presentation of the City’s sales tax 
revenue through fiscal year ending June 30, 
2022. In 2022, the City received $7,951,156 
in sales tax revenues which is somewhat 
comparable to previous years’ sales tax 
revenues before the COVID-19 pandemic. 
This is an increase of 116% or $4,277,568 
from $3,673,588 in fiscal year 2021. In fiscal 
year 2020, the California Department of Tax 
and Free Administration advanced the City 
approximately $3,300,000, as such, the 


revenues were accrued to that year whereby creating a significant increase from fiscal year 2021 
to 2022. 
 
The City of Loma Linda continues to rely heavily on retail sales to fund its general government 
services.  In order to improve the availability of retail shopping facilities and attract more shoppers 
to buy locally, the City is continuing to expand its sales tax base through economic development 
like recent commercial projects that have been added to the community and additional commercial 
development projects planned over the next few years. 
 


 $-


 $2,000,000


 $4,000,000


 $6,000,000


 $8,000,000


 $10,000,000


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


FY Ending June 30th


City of Loma Linda
Sales Tax History


$0


$200,000


$400,000


$600,000


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


FY Ending June 30th


City of Loma Linda
Median Housing Prices







 


ix 
 


Property taxes are collected by the City and the 
Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, 
with the bulk of the property tax collected by the 
Agency. The chart on the right is a 10-year history 
of the City’s General Fund property tax revenues 
through fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. As 
shown here, General Fund property taxes have 
steadily increased in fiscal years 2013 through 
2015 following the great recession.  In 2016, net 
property taxes were less due to a reduced amount 
of Residual Balances ($387,400 less) received 
through the RDA Successor Agency ROPS 
disbursement process.  On June 30, 2022, property 
tax revenues were reported at $2,483,539, a net increase of $347,721 or 16.3% from fiscal year 
2021 primarily due to the fluctuation of residual receipts after the repayment of a large obligation 
by the Successor Agency. Property tax revenue is reported in the attached Statistical table on 
pages 158-162.    
 
Median housing prices are just one factor in citywide assessed values.  Tax-exempt properties 
continue to be a significant factor in the overall assessed values for the City and the former 
Redevelopment Agency, now the Successor Agency, in Loma Linda.  As of June 30, 2022, the 
San Bernardino County’s Assessor reported an increase in city wide assessed property values of 
9.76%, with Loma Linda showing an 8.48% increase.     
 
Overall property tax revenues are showing signs of growth as valuations increase and increase in 
demand for housing within the City is addressed.  The sales of existing homes has started to slow 
down and it’s evident in the 13.6% decrease in property transfer tax from $145,433 in 2021 to 
$125,626 in 2022. In the recent years, with a high demand and low inventory the value of existing 
homes has increased.  In order to address increased demands, the City has approved several 
housing projects that are currently under construction and is reviewing several other projects being 
proposed for the available undeveloped land within the City’s former merged redevelopment 
project areas.  As a taxing entity, the City will receive pass-through taxes and residual balance 
revenues from the Successor Agency as property values increase and vacant land gets 
developed. 
 
In fiscal year 2004/2005, as part of the Governor’s 
Budget/Constitutional Protection package, a 
Vehicle License Fee (VLF) swap was approved. 
What the swap boils down to is an exchange of 
the current VLF backfill from the State’s general 
fund for an equivalent amount of property tax 
revenues in fiscal year 2004/2005.  Any future 
growth in VLF revenue would be calculated in 
proportion to the growth in gross assessed 
valuation, including the then merged 
Redevelopment Agency valuation.  As presented 
in the ten year history chart, VLF had been 
increasing steadily since fiscal year 2012/2013.  In 
fiscal year 2021/2022, the City collected $2,745,301 in VLF revenue, an increase of $241,081 or 
9.6% due to an increase in property values within the City. 


 -
 500,000


 1,000,000


 1,500,000
 2,000,000
 2,500,000
 3,000,000


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
FY Ending June 30th


City of Loma Linda
Property Tax History


General Fund


City of Loma Linda 
Vehicle License Fee (VLF)


 Revenue History


$0


$1,000,000


$2,000,000


$3,000,000


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


FY Ending June  30th







 


x 
 


 
ACTUAL OPERATING RESULTS – GENERAL FUND 


 
The following discussion summarizes the 
annual operating results of the City’s General 
Fund, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
Further details are presented in the individual 
financial statements attached to this transmittal 
letter.  
 
The chart on the left illustrates the ten year 
history of total revenues, expenditures and net 
change in fund balance for the General Fund 
through June 30, 2022. The Net Change in 
Fund Balance figure in the chart includes 
operating revenues, operating expenditures, 


transfers to and from other funds and gain on sale of capital assets.  
 


 
ANNUAL OPERATING RESULTS – ENTERPRISE FUNDS 


 
The City accounts for its Water, Sewer and LLCCP operations on an “enterprise” basis, meaning 
that the activity is treated more like a commercial business, separate and apart from general City 
operations. In fiscal year 2021/2022, Enterprise Fund operating revenues for Water, Sewer and 
LLCCP combined, totaled $13,591,160, a decrease of 1.8% over fiscal year 2020/2021, while 
operating expenses decreased by $3,352,480, or about 26.6%, over the same period. The 
decrease in operating expenses is largely due to a favorable pension-related accounting 
adjustment resulting from a 21.3% investment return experienced by CalPERS at June 30, 2021.  
 


Water Operations 
 
For Water Operations specifically, the Water 
fund operating revenues exceeded operating 
expenses by $2,612,397 this year. Last year 
the Water fund showed an operating surplus 
of $98,244 for the year. As previously 
mentioned, expenses decreased from prior 
year due to a favorable pension-related 
accounting adjustment resulting from a 21.3% 
investment return experienced by CalPERS at 
June 30, 2021. Note that the chart to the right 
does not include any “non-operating” 
revenues or expenses, such as gain on 
disposal of assets, interest revenue of 
$(17,237), transfers in of $1,298,108, interest 
expense of $138,689 and transfer out of $53,397. Interest revenue was negative due to a non-
cash accounting adjustment reflecting the decrease in fair value of investments. Interest expense 
in the Water Fund has decreased to $138,689 from $142,785 in 2021 which constitutes a 2.9% 
decrease due to interest amortizing on a lower principal balance. More information on the 2016 
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds can be found on page 57 of the notes.  
 
In an effort to reduce operational cost and increase water conservation, the City has completed a 
multi-year City-wide meter replacement project that will reduce the loss of revenue and make 


 $(5)


 $-


 $5


 $10


 $15


 $20


 $25


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


FY Ending June 30th


City of Loma Linda
Water Operations Fund History


(in millions)
Revenue


Expense


Net change
in net
position


-$10
-$5
$0
$5


$10
$15
$20
$25
$30
$35


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


City of Loma Linda
10-Year General Fund History


(in millions)


Revenues


Expenditures


Net Change in
Fund Balance


FY Ending June 30th







 


xi 
 


monitoring water usage more efficient.  Additionally, the City conducted an updated five year rate 
study to address the ongoing operating needs of the water and sewer systems.  New water rates 
were implemented in March of 2019 and will increase each January until 2024.  


 
Sewer Operations 


 
For the operating period ending 
June 30, 2022, the Sewer Fund 
ended the year with an operating 
change in net position of 
$1,639,397.  Sewer revenues 
decreased slightly by $35,583, or 
0.6%, and operating expenses 
decreased by $917,471 or 127.1%. 
Similar to the Water Fund, 
expenses for the sewer fund 
decreased by a significant amount 
due to a favorable pension-related 
accounting adjustment resulting 
from a 21.3% investment return 
experienced by CalPERS at June 
30, 2021.  The chart to the left 
shows the ten-year financial 
operating history of the Sewer 


Enterprise Fund. Note that this chart does not include “non-operating” revenues or expenses (i.e., 
interest revenue or interest expenses, etc.) or contributions and transfers.  Interest revenue is 
negative $22,941 due to a non-cash accounting adjustment reflecting the decrease in fair value of 
investments.  Increased treatment expenses related to the contractual services agreement with 
the City of San Bernardino were off-set by rate increases for treatment services provided.  Because 
the Sewer Fund has no bond outstanding debt, interest expense is minimal. As previously 
mentioned, in conjunction with the water rates, the City had conducted an updated five year rate 
study to address the ongoing operating needs of sewer system.  New sewer rates were 
implemented March of 2019, and will increase each January until 2024.  The increases were 
deemed necessary in order to eliminate annual operating losses, repay cash loans and build an 
emergency reserve fund.     
 


Loma Linda Connected Communities Program 
(LLCCP) 


 
In fiscal year 2003/2004, a new Enterprise fund was set up for the purpose of establishing 
requirements for standardized residential and commercial telecommunications cabling systems.  
This new system provides some Loma Linda residents and businesses the opportunity to have 
voice, data, multimedia, home automation 
systems, environmental control, security, 
audio, television, sensors, alarms, and 
intercom services. Fiscal Year 2021/2022 
was the eighteenth full year of operations.  
For the operating period ending June 30, 
2022, LLCCP ended the year with operating 
revenues of $326,196 compared to 
$342,360 in 2021/2022. Operating 
expenses of $272,813 are $163,901 or 
37.5% less than expenses for fiscal year 


($1)


$0


$1


$2


$3


$4


$5


$6


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


FY Ending June 30th


City of Loma Linda
Sewer Enterprise History


(in millions)


Revenue


Expense


Operating
change in net
position


-$400,000
-$200,000


$0
$200,000
$400,000
$600,000
$800,000


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


 Revenues


 Expenditures


Operating
Change in
Net Position


FY  Ending June 30th


City of Loma Linda
Loma Linda Connected Communities Program 


Fund







 


xii 
 


2020/2021. Expenses for the  LLCCP fund decreased by a significant amount due to a favorable 
pension-related accounting adjustment resulting from a 21.3% investment return experienced by 
CalPERS at June 30, 2021. This pension adjustment contributed to the operating surplus in net 
position of $53,383 for the LLCCP fund.   Additionally, net non-operating expenses, interest 
revenue and interest expense, is higher as interest on outstanding loans to construct the Fiber 
Optic Network, continues to go unpaid and adds to the outstanding loan balance. The chart to the 
right shows the ten-year financial operating history of the Loma Linda Connected Communities 
Program Fund.  Note that this chart does not include “non-operating” revenues or expenses (i.e., 
interest revenue or interest expenses, etc.) and transfers. 
 


PENSION FUNDING STATUS 
 


The City provides its full-time and certain part-time employees’ retirement and disability benefits 
through four defined benefit pension plans; Classic Miscellaneous, Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act (PEPRA) Miscellaneous, Classic Safety and PEPRA Safety Fire groups.  The plans 
are all part of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  The City makes 
required employer contributions to the plans based on the amounts determined by CalPERS 
actuaries.  All City employees pay their required employee contribution based on the employees’ 
group/individual retirement plan formulas.  For this year, the City made $3,090,643 in employer 
pension costs and contributions to PERS.  The notes to the financial statements are based on the 
measurement date of the last actuarial valuation which is June 30, 2021, therefore payments made 
to reduce the UAL are reclassified to Deferred Outflows of Resources in the government-wide 
statements.  In fiscal year 2021/2022, the “City’s” share of retirement costs changed for 
Miscellaneous employees from 11.031% to 10.880%, for Miscellaneous PEPRA from 7.732% to 
7.590%, for Safety plan from 21.746% to 21.790% and for Safety PEPRA from 13.044% to 
13.130%.  The reason for the changes in the City’s (employer) share of retirement costs is due to 
changes in pool asset values, and differences between projected rate of returns and actual returns 
on pooled assets.   
 
The City is reporting a net pension asset in the amount of $2,454,170 primarily due to CalPERS’ 
investment return of 21.3% in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 combined with the City’s 
additional payments towards the unfunded liability in previous years. CalPERS’ investment return 
for the subsequent year was a negative 6.1% which is expected to increase the City’s proportion 
of the collective net pension liability.   
 
At the December 21, 2016, meeting the CalPERS Board of Administration approved lowering the 
CalPERS discount rate of assumption, the long-term rate of return, from 7.50 percent to 7.00 
percent over the following three years.  Lowering the discount rate has resulted in plans seeing 
increases in both the normal costs and the unfunded actuarial liabilities. Also the PEPRA members 
have seen their contribution rate increase.  This assumption change has increased public agency 
employer contribution costs in fiscal year 2021/2022.  Please see Note 8 and 9 of the notes for 
further information, including a subsequent event disclosure related to action taken by CalPERS 
in November 2021 to lower the discount rate to 6.8% that will be reflected in valuation reports for 
the June 30, 2022 measurement date. 
 


DEBT ADMINISTRATION   
 
As of June 30, 2022, the City and the Successor Agency had bond debt outstanding in the amount 
of $27,445,000.  In 2016/2017, the Successor Agency issued the 2016 Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds A in the amount of $5,760,000 and the 2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds series B in 
the amount of $27,950,000.  At June 30, 2022, the balance of each bond respectively is 
$3,715,000 and $19,240,000.  Also in 2016/2017, the City issued the 2016 Water Revenue 
Refunding bonds in the amount of $5,615,000; combined with the 1978 Water bonds (general 







 


xiii 
 


obligation) of $10,000. The City had a bond debt balance of $4,490,000 at June 30, 2022. 
Additional information regarding long-term liabilities is presented in Note 6 for the City and Note 
16 for the Successor Agency.  Non-City obligations are discussed in Note 7 of the financial 
statements which are not a legal obligation of the City and therefore not included here. 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDIT 
 


An independent audit of the City’s records was performed for the year ended June 30, 2022 by 
the certified public accounting firm of Rogers, Anderson, Malody and Scott, LLP. The auditor’s 
report on the basic financial statements (government-wide financial statements and the fund 
financial statements), the notes to the basic financial statements and supplementary information 
is included in the Financial Section of the ACFR.   
 
In general, the auditors concluded that the basic financial statements and supplementary 
information referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
City of Loma Linda, the Loma Linda Housing Authority, and the Successor Agency to the Loma 
Linda Redevelopment Agency, as of June 30, 2022, and the results of its operations and cash 
flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The professionalism and knowledge exhibited 
by Rogers, Anderson, Malody and Scott, LLP during the audit is appreciated. 
 


AWARD 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Loma Linda for its 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This 
was the sixteenth consecutive year the City of Loma Linda has achieved this prestigious award.  
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish as easily readable 
and efficiently organized ACFR.  This report must satisfy both the generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
annual comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
 
  







xiv 


ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 


The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated 
services of the entire staff of the Finance Department and other City Departments that provided 
data for preparation of the Statistical section of the Report.  We would like to express our 
appreciation to members of all departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation of 
this report. 


We would like to extend our appreciation to the Mayor, City Council, and each City Department for 
their cooperation and support in conducting the fiscal operations of the City. 


Respectfully submitted, 


___________________ ___________________ 


T. Jarb Thaipejr Sonia Fabela 
City Manager Finance Director/Treasurer 







Government Finance Officers Association


Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence


in Financial 
Reporting


Presented to


City of Loma Linda
California


For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report


For the Fiscal Year Ended


June 30, 2021


Executive Director/CEO


xvi







This page intentionally left blank 







-xvii-


CITY OF LOMA LINDA 


PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS 


ELECTED OFFICIALS 


Phill Dupper 
Mayor 


     Ron Dailey  Rhodes Rigsby 
Mayor pro tempore Councilmember 


  John Lenart  Bhavin Jindal 
 Councilmember Councilmember 


APPOINTED OFFICIALS 


Jarb Thaipejr 
City Manager/Public Works Director 


Diane E. Robbins 
City Attorney 


Lynette Arrela  .................................................................................................... City Clerk 


Sonia Fabela  ............................................................................. Finance Director/Treasurer 


Daniel Harker ....................................................................................................... Fire Chief 







This page intentionally left blank 







xviii







This page intentionally left blank 







735 E. Carnegie Dr. Su ite I 00 


San Bernardino . CA 9240B 


909 889 087 1 T 


909 889 536 1 F 


ramscpa. net 


PARTNERS 


Ten-y P Shea. CPA 


Scott W. Manno. CPA. CGMA 


Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST. CGMA 


Bradferd A Welebir. CPA, MBA. CGMA 


Jenny W. Liu, CPA. MST 


B1 enda L. Odle, CPA. MST (Partner Emeritus) 


MANAGERS/ STAFF 


Gardenya Duran, CPA. GMA 


Brianna Schultz. CPA, CGMA 


Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA. MBA 


Evelyn Mo, entin-Barcena. CPA 


Vernrnca Hernandez. CPA 


Laura Arvizu. CPA 


Xinlu Zoe Zhang. CPA, MSA 


John Maldonado, CPA. MSA 


Julia Rod,·iguez Fuentes, CPA. MSA 


Demi Hite. CPA 


Jeffrey McKennan. CPA 


MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Cern fied Public Accountants 


PCPS The A/CPA All,ance 
(or CPA Finns 


Gove111menta/ Audit 
Quality Ce11te1 


California Society o f 
Certified Public Accountants 


Proud Member of 
AlliottGlobalAlliance· 


ROGERS, ANDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. SIN CE 1948 


ST ABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 


 


-1- 


 
Independent Auditor’s Report 


 
 


To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
of the City of Loma Linda 
Loma Linda, California 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions  
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Loma Linda, 
California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 
30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
The City’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  







 


-2- 


In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in the year ended June 30, 2022, the City 
adopted new accounting guidance under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  
 


 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.  


 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 


 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 


 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 


 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 


 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control–related matters that we identified during the audit.  







 


-3- 


Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
required supplementary information, such as management’s discussion and analysis and those 
schedules as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.  
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information as 
listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Information Included in the Annual Report 
 


Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do not 
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance 
thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other 
information and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material 
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.  
 
 







 


-4- 


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 30, 2023 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 
 


 
San Bernardino, California 
January 30, 2023 
 
 







This page intentionally left blank 







-5-


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


Our discussion and analysis of the City of Loma Linda’s financial performance provides an overview of 
the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  Please read it in conjunction with 
the accompanying transmittal letter and the accompanying basic financial statements. 


FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 


 In the Government-Wide – Statement of Net Position: The City’s assets and deferred outflows of
resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $156,654,822 (net
position); of this amount $124,864,660 is from governmental activities and $31,790,162 is from
business-type activities, with $26,633,948 positive and $5,324,916 in negative unrestricted net
position, respectively.


 In the Government-Wide – Statement of Activities: The City’s net position increased 12.42% or
$17,306,180 from the $139,348,642 at the beginning of the year (as restated), to $156,654,822 at
the end of the year. The increase is the net result of positive changes of $13,854,269 in
governmental activities and $3,451,911 in business-type activities.


 In the Government-Wide – Statement of Activities: During the current year, Governmental
activities program revenues decreased by $378,551; due to a net decrease in charges for
services of $4,373,093 offset by an increase of combined operating/capital contributions and
grants of $3,994,542. The decrease in charges for services is primarily due to the collection of
developer impact fees related to the Loma Linda University hospital expansion that occurred in
2021. Revenues from developer impact fees fluctuate depending on the size and timing of
development projects. The increase in combined operating/capital contributions is mainly
attributable to the receipt of the first of two grant allocations from the American Rescue Plan Act
of 2021 (ARPA) in the amount of $2,928,307.  Business-type program revenues decreased by a
net of $194,479 primarily in the Water acquisition fund due to the decrease in water development
impact fees related to development projects.


 In the Governmental Fund – Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance: During the year, the General Fund reported a positive net change in fund balance of
$4,407,420, due to the $457,087 revenues over expenditures combined with other financing
sources of $3,950,333. Of the total other financing sources, $2,928,307 relates to the receipt of
the first of two grant allocations of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) grant allocation
as mentioned in the previous bullet point.


 The City implemented GASB Statement No. 87 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, which
requires government entities to account for agreements to which it is a lessor and lessee by
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that were previously
classified as operating lease and recognized as inflows or outflows of resources based on the
contract. Compliance with GASB 87 added $3,197,571 in lease receivable and $3,111,710 in
deferred inflows for leases where the City is in a lessor capacity and $149,947 of lease liability for
equipment leases.


 The City’s net pension liability improved from a $6,992,959 liability position to an asset position in
the amount of $2,454,170, which was a $9,447,129 or 135% improvement compared to the prior
fiscal year. The primary contributing factor to the elimination in the City’s net pension liability was
the 21.3% investment return by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 (measurement date) in contrast with the CalPERS’
discount rate (at the time) of 7.15%. The City’s additional payments towards the unfunded
accrued liability in previous years contributed to this favorable change as well.  However, the
favorable results will be short-lived, as CalPERS’ investment return for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022 was a negative 6.1%, which will then increase the net pension liability in the annual
comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The elimination of the net
pension liability and the amortization of deferred outflows/inflows (pension adjustments) were the







 


-6- 


primary factors in the reduction of governmental activities expenses by $8,565,549 from 
$28,346,743 in 2021 to $19,781,194 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
 


 In the Required Supplementary Information – Budgetary Comparison Schedule:  For the General 
Fund, the actual revenues available for appropriation were more than the final budget by 
$1,564,214 while actual expenditures were $1,836,773 less than the final budget. Actual other 
financing sources, net, were $340,433 more than the final budget, resulting in a positive 
$3,741,420 net change in budgetary variance and an actual increase in fund balance of 
$4,407,420. 


 
 In the 2021/2022 Adopted Budget – the City Council and management annually make great 


efforts to adopt a balanced budget that preserves General Fund - fund balance.  This year City 
Council adopted a General Fund budget which is projected to have a positive change in net 
position of $821,700.  Overall, the general fund maintains a solid financial position with committed 
funds of $2,000,000 (emergency contingency) and assigned funds of $1,250,000 (capital 
equipment replacement).  In the adopted budget for fiscal year 2021/2022, committed fund 
balance represent 7.78% of the General Fund annual budget.    


 
USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 
 
The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Loma Linda’s basic 
financial statements.  The basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.   
 
The government-wide statements provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and 
present a longer-term view of the City’s finances.  These statements consist of the statement of net 
position and statement of activities.   
 
The fund financial statements, which consist of the governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary 
funds, report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing 
information about the City’s most significant (major) funds. The governmental fund statements also tell 
how City services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. The 
proprietary funds statements use the same accounting method as the business-type activities, but provide 
more detail of the activities. The fiduciary fund statements provide financial information about activities for 
which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. 
 
Reporting the City as a Whole 
 
The Government-Wide Financial Statements  
 
One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off 
or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The statement of net position and the statement of 
activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer 
this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the City’s net position and changes in it. The reader can think of the City’s 
net position - the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources 
and liabilities - as one way to measure the City’s financial health. Over time, increases or decreases in 
the City’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
However, to assess the overall health of the City the reader will need to consider other non-financial 
factors, such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s roads and other 
infrastructure. 
 
 
 







 


-7- 


The statement of net position and the statement of activities present information about the following: 
 
 Governmental activities - All of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental activities, 


including general government, community development, public safety and public works. General 
revenues, including property taxes, motor vehicle in lieu, sales taxes, and franchise fees, finance 64% 
of these activities. 
 


 Business-type activities – All Proprietary Funds (enterprise funds), water acquisition, water enterprise, 
sewer capital, and Loma Linda connected communities program, which receive funding through 
charges for services and developer contributions. 


 
 Component units - The City’s governmental activities include the Public Financing Authority (PFA) 


and the Loma Linda Housing Authority (LLHA). 
 
Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City 
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State Law and by bond covenants. However, 
the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular 
purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other 
money. The City’s three kinds of funds – governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - use different 
accounting approaches. 
 
Governmental funds - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, 
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted into cash. The 
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government 
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether 
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s 
programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
statement of net position and the statement of activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation 
schedule accompanying the fund financial statements. 
 
The City of Loma Linda maintains thirty-two individual governmental funds.  Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general fund, Loma Linda Housing Authority, regional 
traffic development impact fund, special projects construction fund, and the park development fund; which 
are considered to be major funds.  The remaining twenty-seven nonmajor funds are combined and 
presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column.  Individual fund detail for the nonmajor funds is 
presented in the combining statements located on pages 100-116 of this report.    
 
Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for certain services it provides, these services are 
generally reported in proprietary funds. There are two types of proprietary funds: enterprise fund 
(business-type activities) and internal service funds (internal allocation of costs).  Proprietary funds are 
reported on the full accrual basis of accounting, which is the same method that all activities are reported 
in the statement of net position and the statement of activities. 
 
The City of Loma Linda maintains four enterprise funds to account for Water (two funds), Sewer and the 
LLCCP activities.  The four funds are considered to be major funds and as such detail activity is 
presented in the statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, 
and statement of cash flows on pages 28-32.  
 







 


-8- 


Fiduciary Funds - The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain amounts held in custodial funds on 
behalf of developers, property owners, and others. The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate 
statement of fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from 
the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. 
The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended 
purposes.  The statement of fiduciary net position can be found on page 34. 
 
Fiduciary Fund - Private Purpose Trust Fund - The City acting as Successor Agency to the Former 
Loma Linda Redevelopment Agency (Successor Agency) is the trustee, or fiduciary, for amounts held on 
behalf of bond holders, enforceable obligations, and taxing entities. The City’s fiduciary activities are 
reported in separate statement of private purpose trust fund net position and changes in net position. We 
exclude these activities from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these 
assets to finance its operations. The City acting as the Successor Agency is responsible for ensuring that 
the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.  The statement of private 
purpose trust fund net position can be found on page 34. 
 
Notes to the financial statements – Additional information that is crucial to a full understanding of the 
figures provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements is provided in the notes to the 
financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 36-85 of this report. 
 
Required supplementary information - The budget and budgetary accounting and postemployment 
benefit plans information can be found on pages 87- 94 of this report. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the City’s 
governmental and business-type activities reported in the government-wide statements. 







 


-9- 


Net Position 
 
Table 1 below shows a condensed Statement of Net Position comparison for the fiscal years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021.    
 


2021 2021
2022 As Restated 2022 2021 2022 As Restated


74,819,374$        67,730,145$        13,889,206$        13,533,688$        88,708,580$        81,263,833$        
54,668,183          52,880,007          41,027,321          41,097,922          95,695,504          93,977,929          


129,487,557        120,610,152        54,916,527          54,631,610          184,404,084        175,241,762        


Deferred Outflow of Resources


Pension & OPEB 5,591,642            5,182,240            3,382,539            1,957,739            8,974,181            7,139,979            


922,545               6,464,065            23,619,363          24,975,408          24,541,908          31,439,473          
3,607,586            4,710,337            1,184,466            1,884,600            4,792,052            6,594,937            


4,530,131            11,174,402          24,803,829          26,860,008          29,333,960          38,034,410          


Deferred Inflow of Resources


Pension, OPEB & Leases 5,684,408            3,607,599            1,705,075            1,391,090            7,389,483            4,998,689            


Net Invested in Capital Assets 54,585,683          52,880,007          36,429,645          36,344,853          91,015,328          89,224,860          
Restricted 43,645,029          44,234,062          685,433               682,253               44,330,462          44,916,315          
Unrestricted 26,633,948          13,896,322          (5,324,916)           (8,688,855)           21,309,032          5,207,467            


124,864,660$      111,010,391$      31,790,162$        28,338,251$        156,654,822$      139,348,642$      


     Total Assets


Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities


     Total Liabilities


Net Position:


     Total Net Position


Table 1
City of Loma Linda's Net Position


Current and other assets
Capital assets


    Business-Type Activities                           Total                               Governmental Activities   


The net position of government-wide activities increased by $17,306,180 or 12.42% from $139,348,642 in 
2021 to $156,654,822 in 2022.  The City implemented GASB 87 effective July 1, 2021.  GASB 87 
requires that previously categorized operating leases be recorded in the financial statements and 
recognized as inflows or outflows of resources based on the contract. Additional information can be found 
on Note 1 of the financial statements.  
 
For governmental activities, the increase of $13,854,269 in net position is the result of a significant 
increase in total assets of $8,877,405 offset by a decrease in total liabilities of $6,644,271 contributing a 
gain in net position. That positive impact on net position was offset by an increase in lease-related, 
pension & OPEB deferred inflows of $2,076,809, and an increase in pension & OPEB deferred outflows 
of $409,402, for a net negative effect of $1,667,407. The remaining increase of $400,000 was due to a 
restatement to include a prior years’ loan to developer. For the business type activities, the growth in total 
net position of 12.18% or $3,451,911 is attributable to an increase in total assets combined with a 
decrease in total liabilities for a positive change of $2,341,096, as well as an increase in pension & OPEB 
deferred outflows of $1,424,800, offset with an increase in lease-related, pension & OPEB deferred 
inflows of $313,985. Further detail on prior year comparisons is provided in Table 2.  







 


-10- 


As shown in Table 2, the change in net position is a positive $13,854,269 for governmental activities and 
$3,451,911 for business-type activities, with a combined total increase in net position of $17,306,180 for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.  
 


2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021


10,724,088$     15,097,181$     13,142,936$     13,337,415$      23,867,024$        28,434,596$      
3,913,570         1,611,907         -                   -                     3,913,570            1,611,907          
2,213,685         520,806            -                   -                     2,213,685            520,806             


13,640,075       8,700,202         -                   -                     13,640,075          8,700,202          
2,745,301         2,504,220         -                   -                     2,745,301            2,504,220          


204,757            658,011            (64,894)            62,642               139,863               720,653             
26,036              253,692            517,022           505,369             543,058               759,061             


33,467,512       29,346,019       13,595,064       13,905,426        47,062,576          43,251,445        


2,068,926         2,432,363         -                   -                     2,068,926            2,432,363          
10,634,051       15,816,365       -                   -                     10,634,051          15,816,365        
2,264,274         3,405,290         -                   -                     2,264,274            3,405,290          
4,811,300         6,691,119         -                   -                     4,811,300            6,691,119          


2,643                1,606                -                   -                     2,643                   1,606                


-                    -                    271,277           34,407               271,277               34,407              
-                    -                    4,974,785         7,451,276          4,974,785            7,451,276          
-                    -                    3,894,446         4,848,037          3,894,446            4,848,037          


-                    -                    834,694           998,596             834,694               998,596             


19,781,194       28,346,743       9,975,202         13,332,316        29,756,396          41,679,059        


    Changes in Net Position


13,686,318       999,276            3,619,862         573,110             17,306,180          1,572,386          


Transfers 167,951            (83,538)             (167,951)          83,538               -                           -                        


13,854,269       915,738            3,451,911         656,648             17,306,180          1,572,386          


Net Position at Beginning of Year, as restated 111,010,391     110,094,653     28,338,251       27,681,603        139,348,642        137,776,256      


Net Position at End of Year 124,864,660$   111,010,391$   31,790,162$     28,338,251$      156,654,822$      139,348,642$    


Table 2


Program Revenues:
  Charges for services


     Governmental Activities       Business-Type Activities     


City of Loma Linda's Changes in Net Position


                      Total                          


  Taxes


     Total Revenues


  Capital grants and contributions
General Revenues:


    Interest on long-term debt


  Other


    Community development


     Change in Net Position


     before Transfers


    Water


    Public works


    LL Connected Communities


     Total Expenses


  Operating grants and contributions


  Motor Vehicle in-lieu, unrestricted
  Investment Revenue


    Water acquisition
  Business-Type Activities:


    Sewer


Expenses:
  Governmental Activities:
    General government
    Public safety


 
Total revenues for governmental activities shows an increase of $4,121,493 from 2021 to 2022. This 
increase was comprised of a net decrease in governmental activity program revenue of $378,551 and an 
increase in the governmental activity general revenue of $4,500,044. The decrease in governmental 
activity program revenue includes 1) a decrease in charges for services of $4,373,093, 2) increase in 
operating grants and contributions of $2,301,663, and 3) an increase in capital grants and contributions of 
$1,692,879. The decrease in charges for services was primarily due to the collection of developer impact 
fees related to the Loma Linda University hospital expansion that occurred in 2021. The increase in 
operating grants and contributions was due to the receipt of the first of two grant allocations from the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) in the amount of $2,928,307. ARPA was designed to provide 
assistance to individuals, businesses and state and local governments to assist in the economic recovery 
from the COVID-19 pandemic. The qualified use of these funds includes public safety, infrastructure, and 
restoration of services to pre-pandemic levels.  







 


-11- 


The City has used the funds to offset expenditures related to public safety. The increase in capital grants 
and contributions was due to the receipt of Measure I funding for the California Street widening project. 
 
The increase in governmental activity general revenue includes an increase in taxes of $4,939,873, an 
increase in Motor Vehicle in Lieu/Intergovernmental of $241,081, a decrease in investment revenue of 
$453,254, and a decrease in other general revenues of $227,656. The increase in governmental activity 
general taxes was attributed to the increases in: 1) sales tax of $4,277,568, 2) property tax of $347,735,  
3) franchise tax of $286,089, 4) business license tax of $40,287, and 5) other taxes of $1,607; offset by a 
decrease in transient occupancy tax of $13,413. The increase in sales tax is mainly due to the amount in 
2021 excludes $3,361,279 that was inadvertently advanced by the California Department of Tax and Free 
Administration in 2020 and therefore it was fully accrued to 2020. The decrease in investment revenue is 
primarily due to a negative fair market value adjustment to the City’s investment in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) as required by generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
Total revenue for business-type activities has a decrease of $310,362 from fiscal year 2021. This 
decrease was due to a decrease in business type activity program revenue of $194,479 and a decrease 
in business-type activity general revenue of $115,883. The decrease in business type activity program 
revenues were primarily due to the decreases in water and sewer development fees received during the 
year offset by increases in water and sewer charge revenues.  The major decrease in business-type 
activity general revenues was due to a negative fair market value adjustment of the City’s investment in 
the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) as required by generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
The governmental activity program expenses had a net decrease of $8,565,549 compared to the prior 
year. As discussed earlier, this reduction in governmental activity program expenses was primarily due to 
the recognition of pension revenue due to the  elimination of the net pension liability and amortization of 
deferred inflows/outflows related to pension as a result of the high investment return of 21.3% 
experienced by the CalPERS system as of June 30, 2021. The total pension cost accounting adjustment 
to functional expenses was $8,583,132 with impact to functional categories as follows: $5,419,395 
decrease in public safety expense, $1,177,205 decrease in general government expense, $882,903 
decrease in community development expense and $1,103,629 decrease in public works expense.  The 
business type activities experienced a decrease in expenses of $3,357,114 which was due to the 
favorable accounting adjustments to pension costs as well as previously discussed.   
 
In comparison to fiscal year 2021, the overall change in net position from operations for governmental 
activities was an increase of $13,854,269 and business-type activities increased by $3,451,911 resulting 
in an overall City net position increase of $17,306,180. 
 







 


-12- 


Government Activities 
 
Table 3 presents the total cost (expenses) of each of the City’s major public services in general 
government, public safety, community development, public works, and interest expense. Also included is 
each program’s net cost (total cost less program revenues generated by the activities).  The net cost 
shows the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions.   
 


2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Functions:
  General government 2,068,926$     2,432,363$         (363,437)$        (855,396)$       (877,326)$       21,930$          
  Public safety 10,634,051     15,816,365         (5,182,314)       3,077,823       11,724,249     (8,646,426)      
  Community development 2,264,274       3,405,290           (1,141,016)       802,235          1,460,799       (658,564)         
  Public works 4,811,300       6,691,119           (1,879,819)       (97,454)           (1,192,479)      1,095,025       
  Interest on long-term debt 2,643              1,606                 1,037               2,643              1,606              1,037              


     Total Governmental Activities 19,781,194$   28,346,743$       (8,565,549)$     2,929,851$     11,116,849$   (8,186,998)$    


  Total Cost      Net Cost   


Net Cost of Governmental Activities
City of Loma Linda


Table 3


 
In looking at table 3, you will note the major changes both in total cost and net cost. In 2022, total costs 
decreased by $8,565,549 as discussed in the previous section.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
At year-end, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $58,454,664, a net 
increase of $3,444,305 in fund balance; included in this amount are increases in fund balance for General 
Fund of $4,407,420, an increase in the Housing Authority of $104,422, an increase in the Special Projects 
Construction Fund of $50,637, an increase in the Regional Traffic Development Impact Fund of $196,660, 
a decrease in the Park Fund of $179,856, and a decrease in the Non Major Governmental Funds of 
$1,134,978.  
 
The General Fund had a net increase in fund balance of $4,407,420, resulting from revenues exceeding 
net expenditures by $457,087, netted with total other financing sources of $3,950,333.  During the fiscal 
year, tax revenues increased by $1,583,144 due to increases in: sales tax revenue net of abatements by 
$822,608; property tax revenue by $328,164, business license tax by $146,304 and franchise fees by 
$126,273. Charges for services increased by $811,171 primarily due to an arrearage in billing for the 
amendment of law enforcement services contract with Loma Linda University Health increasing officer 
hours from 18 to 24 hours per day which became effective July 1, 2020. General Fund expenditures 
increased by $3,142,136 compared to prior year. Of this increase, $1,000,000 is due to the additional 
contribution to the PERS unfunded liabilities in fiscal year 2022 while no additional payment was made in 
2021. The remaining difference is due to the increase in overtime for Fire & Rescue service in the amount 
of $673,896, of which the portion served on a Strike Team were reimbursed through Mutual Aid 
reimbursements, increase in Public Safety of Sheriff service contract and general services of $370,000, 
increase in salaries and benefits for cost-of-living adjustments in the amount of  $395,490, increase in 
repairs and maintenance of capital facilities and equipment in the amount  of  $254,958, and $337,067 
increase in capital expenditures.  Increase in the Regional Traffic Development Impact Fund was 
attributed to the collection of Development Impact fees.  The decrease in Non Major General Funds is 
primarily due to the transfers out from the ARPA Fund for the ARPA grant revenues to the General Fund. 
 
In total the Proprietary Funds reported an increase in net position of $3,451,911, with the Water 
Enterprise and the Sewer Capital Funds showing a positive change and the Water Acquisition and 
Connected Communities Funds reporting a negative net change.  The Water Enterprise ended with a 
positive change in net position of $3,769,980.  







 


-13- 


This was due to operating revenue exceeding operating expenses by $2,612,397 offset by net non-
operating expenses in the amount of $87,128 and transfers in for capital contributions of $1,244,711. 
These transfers out of capital assets has an offsetting decrease in net position of $1,341,954 for the 
Water Acquisition Fund. The favorable change in the net position of the Water Fund is primarily due to a 
significant pension adjustment as a result of the high investment return of 21.3% experienced by the 
CalPERS system as of June 30, 2021 as previously discussed.  Excluding the pension adjustment, water 
operating revenue exceeded operating expenses by $371,486. The Sewer Fund ended the year with a 
positive change in net position of $1,534,240, current revenues of $5,532,750 are in excess of 
$3,893,353 in operating expenses. Similar to the explanation for Water Enterprise, the Sewer fund 
experienced a favorable pension adjustment. Excluding the pension adjustment, sewer operating revenue 
exceeded operating expenses by $790,073; rate increases have been adopted and ongoing efforts 
continue to be made to reduce overall expenditures for operations. The Loma Linda Connected 
Communities Fund reported a negative change in fund balance of $510,355 which reflects the ongoing 
operational gap between charges for services (revenues), and operating expenses and interest 
expenses. Efforts to reduce operational expenses have been implemented, but annual depreciation 
expense and non-operational expenses (interest on loans) continue to exceed revenues adding to the 
negative net position.    
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The actual revenues of the General Fund at year-end were $457,087 more than the actual expenses. The 
positive budget-to-actual variance of $1,836,773 in appropriations was mainly due to the City not making 
the additional $1,000,000 budgeted contribution towards the PERS unfunded liability. Due to the current 
favorable funded status of the City’s pension, the City did not deem it necessary to pay the additional 
contribution for 2022. The remainder budget-to-actual positive variance of $836,773 is due to the 
conservative spending city-wide with saving in personnel cost, professional and contractual services, and 
repairs and maintenance. Of the unspent budget, actual revenues were $1,564,214 more than anticipated 
compared to the final budget due mainly to Sales Tax coming in higher than expected.  Other revenues 
that came in higher than budgeted include charges for services, refuse pass thru fees, and refunds and 
reimbursements but were offset by shortfalls in use of money and property due to a negative fair value 
adjustment of the City’s LAIF investments (shown as a negative revenue) and a decrease in projected 
overhead. Favorable budget amendments and supplemental appropriations were made during the year to 
diminish budget overruns and to increase appropriations for unanticipated expenditures after adoption of 
the original budget. The original revenue budget was increased by $385,800.  While the expenditure 
appropriations budget was increased in total by $3,520,000, the major increases were for PERS 
unfunded liability of $2,000,000, and overtime for fire services provided while on Strike Team. 
 
Although, the final adopted budget projected a $666,000 positive change in fund balance; favorable 
results in revenues of $1,564,214 due to higher franchise fees, transient occupancy taxes, and sales 
taxes; favorable results in expenditures of $1,836,773 due to budgeted additional payment to the 
unfunded pension liability not being sent as the City’s position had become momentarily fully funded as 
well as savings in expenditures throughout all departments; and favorable results in other financing uses 
of $340,433 due to sale of equipment and increased transfers in from Gas Tax, resulted in the combined 
favorable results of $3,741,420, as the actual positive net change in fund balance was $4,407,420 for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.   







 


-14- 


CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 


2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021


Asset Type:
  Land 14,651,396$     14,651,396$     1,387,764$       1,387,764$       16,039,160$     16,039,160$      
  Construction in progress 3,095,955         1,251,396         208,735            183,777            3,304,690         1,435,173          
  Structures, machinery & equipment 11,081,867       10,932,752       6,435,896         7,020,748         17,517,763       17,953,500        
  Infrastructure 25,759,152       26,044,463       32,929,500       32,505,633       58,688,652       58,550,096        


  Intangible assets 79,813              -                    65,426              -                    145,239            -                         


     Total 54,668,183$     52,880,007$     41,027,321$     41,097,922$     95,695,504$     93,977,929$      


     Governmental Activities       Business-Type Activities                           Total                          


Table 4


Capital Assets at Year End
Net of Depreciation and Amortization


City of Loma Linda


 
 
At the end of fiscal year 2022, the City had $95,695,504 invested in a broad range of capital assets, a 
total increase of $1,717,575 (See Table 4 above). Governmental activities include fire and public works 
equipment, buildings, land, park facilities, and roads.  Business-type activities include the fiber optic 
network, sewer transmission system and a water production and distribution system.  The total increase 
in the City of Loma Linda investment in capital assets for fiscal year 2022 was 1.83% (a 3.38% increase 
in governmental activities and 0.17% decrease in business-type activities).  For fiscal year 2022, Net 
increases are the result of new additions in greater amounts then deletions and disposals.  The major 
capital assets added for governmental activities and business-type activities are highlighted in 
explanation of Table 5.   
 


2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Asset Type:
  Land -$                 -$                  -$               -$               $                  -    $                    - 


  Construction in progress 2,198,295         85,557              147,982          84,353           2,346,277        169,910           
  Structures, machinery and equipment 1,369,090         2,554,798         31,551            134,713         1,400,641        2,689,511        
  Infrastructure 567,446           44,208              1,597,320       2,342,747      2,164,766        2,386,955        
  Intangible assets 96,789             -                   77,159            -                173,948           -                   


     Total Additions 4,231,620         2,684,563         1,854,012       2,561,813               6,085,632          5,246,376 


Less: Decreases, depreciation and amortization (2,443,444)       (1,942,087)        (1,924,613)      (2,009,212)     (4,368,057)       (3,951,299)       


     Capital Asset Increase/(Decrease) 1,788,176$       742,476$          (70,601)$         552,601$       1,717,575$      1,295,077$      


     GovernmentalActivities                         Total                          


Table 5


Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets/Infrastructure


    Business-Type Activities     


City of Loma Linda


 
 


As shown in Table 5, above, capital assets current year activity increased $1,788,176 (net of depreciation 
and amortization) for governmental activities and decreased $70,601 (net of depreciation and 
amortization) for business-type activities for a total increase of $1,717,575. In the governmental activities 
the increase in capital assets can be attributed to the completion of the Fire Station 251 remodel, 
construction of a walking track at Bailey Park, installation of baseball field lights at Ball Park, installation of 
various art sculptures throughout the City and various improvements.  The increase in business-type 
activities can be attributed to a fiber optic installation and infrastructure projects throughout the City. 
Additional information regarding capital assets activities can be found in Notes 1i and 5 of the financial 
statements. 







 


-15- 


Long-Term Debt 
     
In June 2012, GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) issued Statement No. 68, requiring 
public employers that participate in a defined benefit pension plan administered as a trust or equivalent 
arrangement to record the net pension liability (if any), pension expense, and deferred outflows/deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions in their financial statements as part of their financial position.  
These amounts are presented in the statement of net position on page 18, with detailed information in 
Note 8 to the financial statements.  As of June 30, 2022, the City does not have a net pension liability 
compared to previous years but had a net pension asset of $2,454,170. 
 
Governmental Activities - Governmental Activities - The City governmental funds have $922,545 in 
outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2022; with the majority related to compensated absences 
liability.  Tables 6 below and Note 8 to the financial statements offer a more detailed view of 
governmental long-term debt. 
 
 


2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021


1978 Water Bonds (General Obligation) -$                -$                10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          
2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 4,480,000       4,710,000       4,480,000       4,710,000       
Compensated absences 706,726           751,510          278,414          309,415          985,140          1,060,925       
Insurance Retrospective Deposit -                      38,215            -                      13,028            -                      51,243            
Lease payable 82,500             -                      67,447            -                      149,947          -                      
OPEB liability 133,319           206,062          109,079          168,598          242,398          374,660          
Net Pension liability -                      5,468,278       -                      1,524,681       -                      6,992,959       
Add: Unamortized bond premium -                      -                      40,229            43,069            40,229            43,069            


     Total 922,545$         6,464,065$     4,985,169$     6,778,791$     5,907,714$     13,242,856$   


     Governmental Activities       Business-Type Activities                           Total                          


Table 6


Long-Term Debt at Year End
City of Loma Linda


 
Business-type Activities - The enterprise funds have $4,985,169 in outstanding long-term debt as of 
June 30, 2022.  The water enterprise fund has bonded debt of $4,490,000 consisting of the 2016 Water 
Revenue Refunding Bonds originally issued for $5,615,000 with the first payment made on July 1, 2017; 
and the 1978 Water Bonds (General Obligation) with a current outstanding balance of $10,000.  Both 
bond issues are paid with water operating revenues. In the enterprise funds, OPEB liability total 
$109,079.  Additional detailed information for business-type long-term debt is shown in Note 6 to the 
financial statements. 


 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 
 
The Center for Economic Forecasting does not foresee any major change in the path of the Inland Empire 
economy over the next 12 months and expects business activity to rise between 2% and 3%. Inflation will 
continue, but so will overall economic growth, albeit at a slower pace. Unemployment rates have 
improved over the fiscal year starting from 8.0% at the beginning of the fiscal year and decreasing to 
4.0% by June 2022; this rate is comparable to pre-pandemic levels.  The real estate market has started to 
cool down due to the rising interest rates. Sale of existing single-family homes in the Inland Empire were 
down 9.3% for the first half of 2022. Despite the drop in sales, prices increased 17.9% over the same 
period in 2021. The median home price in Loma Linda was $595,080 as of June 2022. This amount was 
7.3% more than the $554,812 median home price in June 2021.  
  







 


-16- 


Prior to the pandemic, Loma Linda had been experiencing the impacts of economic growth.  Over the last 
years, the City has seen new development activity increases and additional projects are being proposed 
in the coming year.  With three major medical facilities within the community, Loma Linda University 
Medical Center, the Veteran’s Administration (VA) Hospital, and the VA Ambulatory Care Center, the City 
continues to see a need for temporary and permanent housing for patients receiving medical treatment 
and employees working at these institutions.  In 2021, the City saw the completion of its third major hotel 
and the fourth hotel started the grading process in 2022.  The new 16-story Loma Linda University 
Medical Hospital was completed and there are other housing and commercial development projects at 
various stages of development/construction currently under way.  During the last couple of years Loma 
Linda has been able to restore some of the operational cost cutting efforts implemented during the 
recession, such as filling vacant positions and giving pay and benefit increases to employees, as well as 
addressing some deferred capital outlay purchases as market availability allows.  Despite the economic 
challenges, the City for fiscal year 2021/2022 maintained economic growth and employment remained 
stable. Consumer spending shifted to ecommerce, property valuations increased and property sales 
continued, and ultimately leading to steady flows in City revenues (sales tax, property tax, franchise fees, 
transient occupancy tax, and business license) as reflected in the governmental activities tax and 
assessment revenues by source table in the statistical section. The challenges facing the City with the 
recent growth will be balancing the resources available to meet the increasing demands on city services 
(fire, police and general community services), the ongoing maintenance of new and existing infrastructure 
(parks, landscaping, streets, and utility services),  rising pension liabilities and contractual service costs 
that are outside the control of the City. Work continues with staff and designated committees to address 
the demands for services by implementing new policies, and working on economic development project 
proposals that will maintain solid economic growth for the community while preserving the necessary level 
of services. Although the City has seen growth in revenues, it continues to operate at a lean conservative 
capacity. 
 
On May 24, 2022, the City Council adopted the City of Loma Linda Operating and Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023. The General 
Fund operating budget totals $24,349,300 and is funded by operating revenue of $22,451,400 transfers in 
and other financing sources of $3,814,600, proceeds from loan repayment of $125,000, leaving an 
addition to fund balance of $2,041,700.  The fund balance in the General Fund is expected to increase to 
$13,777,241 with $10,527,241 in unassigned and $3,250,000 designated (committed or assigned) as 
budgetary reserves. The total City operating budget amounts to $60,119,900, with total estimated 
resources available for budget purposes of $50,451,700, for fiscal year 2022/2023. The approved CIP 
budget for fiscal year 2022/2023 totals $13,995,000 with a five-year CIP investment plan estimated at 
$36,091,000. 
 
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors 
with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it 
receives. For any questions about this report or additional financial information, please contact the City 
Manager and/or Finance Director/Treasurer of the City of Loma Linda, located at 25541 Barton Road, 
Loma Linda, CA 92354, (909) 799-2840, or visit their website at www.lomalinda-ca.gov. 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 







 


-17- 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2022  


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-18- 


Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total


ASSETS
Cash and investments 40,941,459$     8,723,576$      49,665,035$    
Receivables:


Accounts 847,059            1,653,035        2,500,094        
Taxes 2,436,504         -                   2,436,504        
Interest 80,396              16,493             96,889             
Lease 3,120,549         77,022             3,197,571        
Contracts and loans 17,617,049       -                   17,617,049      


Internal balances 132,718            (132,718)          -                   
Due from other governments 2,199,147         76,995             2,276,142        
Inventories 30,427              232,661           263,088           
Prepaid items 9,058                10,088             19,146             
Loan receivable from the Successor Agency 3,187,693         1,774,071        4,961,764        
Land held for resale 2,535,695         -                   2,535,695        
Restricted assets:


Cash and investments with fiscal agents -                    685,433           685,433           
Net pension asset 1,681,620         772,550           2,454,170        
Capital assets:


Intangible assets, net of amortization 79,813              65,426             145,239           
Non-depreciable 17,747,351       1,596,499        19,343,850      
Depreciable, net 36,841,019       39,365,396      76,206,415      


Total capital assets 54,668,183       41,027,321      95,695,504      
Total assets 129,487,557     54,916,527      184,404,084    


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items 5,569,657         3,364,551        8,934,208        
OPEB related items 21,985              17,988             39,973             


Total deferred outflows of resources 5,591,642         3,382,539        8,974,181        


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,990,807         781,905           2,772,712        
Interest payable -                    70,281             70,281             
Accrued liabilities 283,648            72,220             355,868           
Due to other governments 1,875                -                   1,875               
Due to other Agency 505,370            -                   505,370           
Deposits payable 396,726            260,060           656,786           
Unearned revenue 429,160            -                   429,160           
Long-term liabilities - due within one year 299,956            347,771           647,727           
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:


Advances from the Loma Linda Successor Agency -                    18,634,194      18,634,194      
Due in more than one year 489,270            4,528,319        5,017,589        
Net OPEB liability 133,319            109,079           242,398           


Total liabilities 4,530,131         24,803,829      29,333,960      


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items 2,500,619         1,510,589        4,011,208        
OPEB related items 146,611            119,954           266,565           
Lease 3,037,178         74,532             3,111,710        


Total deferred inflows of resources 5,684,408         1,705,075        7,389,483        


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 54,585,683       36,429,645      91,015,328      
Restricted for:


Public works projects 22,989,517       -                   22,989,517      
Public safety 1,591,101         -                   1,591,101        
Community development 17,937,130       -                   17,937,130      
General government 1,074,698         -                   1,074,698        
Debt service 52,583              685,433           738,016           


Unrestricted (deficit) 26,633,948       (5,324,916)       21,309,032      
Total Net Position 124,864,660$   31,790,162$    156,654,822$  


Primary Government







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Activities 
For the year ended June 30, 2022  


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-19- 


Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions


Expenses Services and Grants and Grants Total
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:


General government 2,068,926$      2,924,322$    -$                  -$                  2,924,322$        
Public safety 10,634,051      4,423,248      3,132,980          -                    7,556,228          
Community development 2,264,274        1,310,861      151,178             -                    1,462,039          
Public works 4,811,300        2,065,657      629,412             2,213,685          4,908,754          
Interest on long-term debt 2,643               -                 -                    -                    -                    


Total governmental activities 19,781,194      10,724,088    3,913,570          2,213,685          16,851,343        


Business-type activities:
Water acquisition 271,277           283,721         -                    -                    283,721             


Water enterprise 4,974,785        7,001,145      -                    -                    7,001,145          
Sewer capital 3,894,446        5,531,874      -                    -                    5,531,874          
Loma Linda Connected Communities 834,694           326,196         -                    -                    326,196             


Total business-type activities 9,975,202        13,142,936    -                    -                    13,142,936        


Total primary government 29,756,396$    23,867,024$  3,913,570$        2,213,685$        29,994,279$      


General revenues:
Taxes:


Property tax, levied for general purpose
Sales tax
Franchise tax
Transient occupancy tax
Business license tax
Other taxes


Motor Vehicle in-lieu, unrestricted
Investment revenue
Loss on sale of assets
Miscellaneous


Transfers in (out)
Total general revenues and transfers


Change in net position


Net position, beginning of year, as restated


Net position, end of year


Functions/Programs


Program Revenues


 
 
 


 
 
 







 
 


  


 


-20- 


Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total


855,396$                   -$                          855,396$           
(3,077,823)                -                            (3,077,823)         


(802,235)                   -                            (802,235)            
97,454                       -                            97,454               
(2,643)                       -                            (2,643)                


(2,929,851)                -                            (2,929,851)         


-                            12,444                      12,444               


-                            2,026,360                 2,026,360          


-                            1,637,428                 1,637,428          
-                            (508,498)                   (508,498)            
-                            3,167,734                 3,167,734          


(2,929,851)                3,167,734                 237,883             


3,390,738                  -                            3,390,738          
7,951,156                  -                            7,951,156          
1,346,875                  -                            1,346,875          


608,867                     -                            608,867             
328,797                     -                            328,797             
13,642                       -                            13,642               


2,745,301                  -                            2,745,301          
204,757                     (64,894)                     139,863             
(27,923)                     -                            (27,923)              
53,959                       517,022                    570,981             


167,951                     (167,951)                   -                     
16,784,120                284,177                    17,068,297        


13,854,269                3,451,911                 17,306,180        


111,010,391              28,338,251               139,348,642      


124,864,660$            31,790,162$             156,654,822$    


Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government


 
 


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 







 


-21- 


Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
 
General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Loma Linda Housing Authority – Special Revenue Fund accounts for low/mod housing 
activities and is funded through re-payments of existing housing loans. 
 
Regional Traffic Development Grant – Special Revenue Fund accounts for the portion of 
Transportation Projects identified by the San Bernardino County Transportation Association 
(SBCTA) formerly SANBAG (San Bernardino Associated Governments) that will serve the 
regional area. SBCTA came up with an allocation of Loma Linda’s share. 
 
Special Projects Construction – Capital Projects Fund accounts for special or extraordinary 
projects, activities and allocations that might be recommended by staff and determined needed 
by the City Council. 
 
Park Development – Capital Projects Fund accounts for developer fees collected and 
expended for future park development and acquisition. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2022  
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-22- 


Loma Linda Regional Traffic
General Housing Authority Development Impact


ASSETS
Cash and investments 15,553,105$                 1,221,342$                       11,482,387$                     
Receivables:


Accounts 809,546                        34,692                              -                                    
Taxes 2,289,594                     -                                    -                                    
Interest 29,165                          4,944                                21,031                              
Contract and loans 9,660                            17,586,791                       -                                    
Lease 3,120,549                     -                                    -                                    


Internal balances 124,738 -                                    -                                    
Due from other funds 172,685                        -                                    -                                    
Due from other governments 193,185                        -                                    -                                    
Inventories 30,427                          -                                    -                                    
Prepaid items 8,537                            314                                   -                                    
Land held for resale -                                2,535,695                         -                                    
Advances to other funds -                                -                                    -                                    
Loan receivable from Successor Agency -                                -                                    -                                    


Total assets 22,341,191$                 21,383,778$                     11,503,418$                     


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and 
Fund Balances
Liabilities:


Accounts payable 748,440$                      10,475$                            -$                                  
Accrued liabilities 282,037                        -                                    -                                    
Due to other funds -                                -                                    -                                    
Due to other governments 1,875                            -                                    -                                    
Due to other Agency 505,370 -                                    -                                    
Deposits payable 366,217                        30,509                              -                                    
Unearned revenue 1,766                            -                                    -                                    
Advances from other funds -                                -                                    -                                    


Total liabilities 1,905,705                     40,984                              -                                    


Deferred inflows of resources:
Leases 3,037,178                     -                                    -                                    
Unavailable revenue 386,039 3,903,462                         -                                    


Total Deferred inflows of resources 3,423,217 3,903,462 -                                    


Fund balances (deficit):
Non spendable:


Inventories 30,427                          -                                    -                                    
Prepaid items 8,537                            -                                    -                                    


Restricted for:
Cultural and recreational -                                -                                    -                                    
State mandated -                                -                                    -                                    
Public safety -                                -                                    -                                    
Street improvements -                                -                                    11,503,418                       
Storm drains -                                -                                    -                                    
Municipal facilities -                                -                                    -                                    
Air quality management -                                -                                    -                                    
Debt service -                                -                                    -                                    
Low/mod housing programs -                                17,439,332                       -                                    


Committed for: 
Emergency contingency 2,000,000 -                                    -                                    


Assigned for:
Refuse services 210,124 -                                    -                                    
Fire equipment replacement 470,908                        -                                    -                                    
Sewer loan 124,738                        -                                    -                                    
Capital equipment replacement 1,250,000 -                                    -                                    


Unassigned 12,917,535                   -                                    -                                    
Total fund balances (deficit) 17,012,269                   17,439,332                       11,503,418                       


Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Fund Balances 22,341,191$                 21,383,778$                     11,503,418$                     


Special Revenue Funds


 







 
 
 
   


 


-23- 


Nonmajor Total
Special Projects Park Governmental Governmental


Construction Development Funds Funds


2,446,213$                   895,216$                      9,343,196$                   40,941,459$                 


-                                -                                2,821                            847,059                        
-                                -                                146,910                        2,436,504                     


5,574                            1,607                            18,075                          80,396                          
-                                -                                20,598                          17,617,049                   
-                                -                                -                                3,120,549                     
-                                -                                -                                124,738                        


598,489                        -                                129                               771,303                        
-                                -                                2,005,962                     2,199,147                     
-                                -                                -                                30,427                          
-                                -                                207                               9,058                            
-                                -                                -                                2,535,695                     


2,804,500                     -                                -                                2,804,500                     
3,187,693                     -                                -                                3,187,693                     
9,042,469$                   896,823$                      11,537,898$                 76,705,577$                 


5,311$                          9,300$                          1,217,281$                   1,990,807$                   
-                                -                                1,611                            283,648                        
-                                -                                763,323                        763,323                        
-                                -                                -                                1,875                            
-                                -                                -                                505,370                        
-                                -                                -                                396,726                        
-                                -                                427,394                        429,160                        
-                                2,804,500                     -                                2,804,500                     


5,311                            2,813,800                     2,409,609                     7,175,409                     


-                                -                                -                                3,037,178                     
3,187,693                     -                                561,132                        8,038,326                     
3,187,693 -                                561,132 11,075,504


-                                -                                -                                30,427                          
-                                -                                -                                8,537                            


-                                -                                282,110                        282,110                        
-                                -                                30,542                          30,542                          
-                                -                                1,591,101                     1,591,101                     


5,849,465                     -                                4,504,349                     21,857,232                   
-                                -                                1,132,285                     1,132,285                     
-                                -                                1,062,504                     1,062,504                     
-                                -                                12,194                          12,194                          
-                                -                                52,583                          52,583                          
-                                -                                215,688                        17,655,020                   
-                                -                                
-                                -                                -                                2,000,000                     
-                                -                                -                                
-                                -                                -                                210,124                        
-                                -                                -                                470,908                        
-                                -                                -                                124,738                        
-                                -                                -                                1,250,000                     
-                                (1,916,977)                    (316,199)                       10,684,359                   


5,849,465                     (1,916,977)                    8,567,157                     58,454,664                   


9,042,469$                   896,823$                      11,537,898$                 76,705,577$                 


Capital Projects Funds


 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-24- 


Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 58,454,664$         


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of Net Position are 
different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources.
Therefore, they are not reported in the governmental funds. 54,588,370           


79,813                  


1,681,620             


Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they
are not reported in the governmental funds:


Compensated absences (706,726)               
Net OPEB liability (133,319)               
Lease liability (82,500)                 


Pension and OPEB related deferred outflows and inflows of resources in
governmental activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds.
 


Deferred outflows of resources - pension and OPEB related items 5,591,642             
Deferred inflows of resources - pension and OPEB related items (2,647,230)            


Revenues are recorded as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds because
they do not meet the revenue recognition criteria. However, they are classified as
revenues in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 8,038,326             


Net Position of Governmental Activities 124,864,660$       


Net pension asset is not a current financial resource, therefore is not recorded in the 
governmental funds.


Intangible asset net of amortization have not been included as financial resources in 
governmental fund activity.


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-25- 


Housing Regional Traffic
General Authority Development Impact


REVENUES
Taxes 12,255,309$                 -$                              -$                                  
Licenses and permits 674,337                        -                                -                                    
Intergovernmental 2,792,000                     -                                -                                    
Charges for services 4,663,882                     1,438                            -                                    
Use of money and property 317,009                        126,541                        (103,911)                           
Fines and forfeitures 7,938                            -                                -                                    
Miscellaneous 3,618,539                     22,400                          -                                    
Developer fees -                                -                                300,571                            


Total revenues 24,329,014                   150,379                        196,660                            


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government 3,093,201                     -                                -                                    
Public safety 15,388,379                   -                                -                                    
Community development 1,974,967                     45,783                          -                                    
Public works 2,988,083                     -                                -                                    


Capital outlay 410,991                        910                               -                                    
Debt service:


Principal retirement 13,760                          147                               -                                    
Interest and fiscal charges 2,546                            27                                 -                                    


Total expenditures 23,871,927                   46,867                          -                                    


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 457,087                        103,512                        196,660                            


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from disposal of assets 125,024                        -                                -                                    
Transfers in 3,851,791 -                                -                                    
Transfers out (120,000)                       -                                -                                    
Lease acquisition 93,518                          910                               -                                    


Total other financing sources (uses) 3,950,333                     910                               -                                    


Net change in fund balances 4,407,420                     104,422                        196,660                            


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year, as restated 12,604,849 17,334,910                   11,306,758                       


End of year 17,012,269$                 17,439,332$                 11,503,418$                     


Special Revenue Funds


 
 







 
 
 


 


 


-26- 


Nonmajor Total 
Special Projects Park Governmental Governmental


Construction Development Funds Funds


-$                              -$                              1,379,696$                   13,635,005$                 
-                                -                                -                                674,337                        
-                                -                                5,651,940                     8,443,940                     
-                                -                                36,019                          4,701,339                     


1,045,628                     (7,921)                           (79,772)                         1,297,574                     
-                                -                                69,852                          77,790                          
-                                -                                18                                 3,640,957                     
-                                405,340                        289,705                        995,616                        


1,045,628                     397,419                        7,347,458                     33,466,558                   


-                                -                                314                               3,093,515                     
-                                -                                41,358                          15,429,737                   
-                                96,216                          707,305                        2,824,271                     


162,323                        -                                562,937                        3,713,343                     
866,099                        481,059                        3,575,160                     5,334,219                     


-                                -                                382                               14,289                          
-                                -                                70                                 2,643                            


1,028,422                     577,275                        4,887,526                     30,412,017                   


17,206                          (179,856)                       2,459,932                     3,054,541                     


-                                -                                -                                125,024                        
33,431                          -                                120,000                        4,005,222                     


-                                -                                (3,717,271)                    (3,837,271)                    
-                                -                                2,361                            96,789                          


33,431                          -                                (3,594,910)                    389,764                        


50,637                          (179,856)                       (1,134,978)                    3,444,305                     


5,798,828                     (1,737,121)                    9,702,135                     55,010,359                   


5,849,465$                   (1,916,977)$                  8,567,157$                   58,454,664$                 


Capital Projects Funds


 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-27- 


Net change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds 3,444,305$       


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities were different because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Government-Wide Statement of Activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. 


Capital outlay, capitalized 3,684,306$       
Lease acquisitions 96,789              
Loss on disposal of capital asset not fully depreciated (152,947)           
Amortization Expenses (16,976)             
Depreciation expense (1,919,785)        1,691,387         


Governmental funds report revenues and expenditures primarily pertaining to long-term
liabilities, which are not reported in the statement of activities. At the government-wide
level, these activities are reported in the statement of net position. This is the net
expenditure reported in the governmental funds, which is not reported in the statement
of activities.


Pension related net adjustments 8,583,132         
OPEB related net adjustments 9,280                
Lease payments 14,289              
JPIA insurance rolling retro increase 38,215              8,644,916         


Long-term compensated absences is reported in the Government-Wide Statement of
Activities, but it does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, long-
term compensated absences is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental
funds. The reconciling amount is the change in long-term compensated absences from
the prior year. 44,784              


Certain revenues are recorded as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds
because they do not meet the revenue recognition criteria of availability. However, they
are included as revenue in the Governmental-Wide Statement of Activities. 28,877              


Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 13,854,269$     


 
 







 


-28- 


Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
 
 
Water Acquisition Fund accounts for developer fees collected to pay for the expansion of the 
water system and for debt service on qualifying projects. 
 
Water Enterprise Fund is used to account for water production, distribution and meters. 
 
Sewer Capital Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's sewer, storm 
drain and catch basin systems. 
 
Loma Linda Connected Communities Fund provides Loma Linda residents and businesses 
with the opportunities for voice, data, video, multimedia, home automation systems, 
environmental control, security, audio, television, sensors, alarms and intercom services. The 
program establishes the standardized requirements for residential and commercial 
telecommunications cabling systems. The initial intent is to connect new development to the 
system, but the long-term goal is to eventually retrofit and extend these services to the entire 
community. 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-29- 


Loma Linda
Water Water Sewer Connected


Acquisition Enterprise Capital Communities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:


Cash and cash equivalents 3,477,740$       2,614,253$       2,428,492$       203,091$          8,723,576$       
Receivables:


Accounts -                    841,020            768,790            43,225              1,653,035         
Interest 6,569                5,282                4,261                381                   16,493              
Lease -                    77,022              -                    -                    77,022              


Inventories -                    232,087            574                   -                    232,661            
Due from other funds -                    96,646              -                    203                   96,849              
Due from other governments -                    40,146              36,849              -                    76,995              
Prepaid items -                    8,831                1,257                -                    10,088              


Total current assets 3,484,309         3,915,287         3,240,223         246,900            10,886,719       


Noncurrent assets:
Advances to other funds -                    1,152,395         -                    -                    1,152,395         
Loan receivable from Successor Agency 1,774,071         -                    -                    -                    1,774,071         
Restricted assets:


Cash and investments with fiscal agents -                    685,433            -                    -                    685,433            
Net pension asset -                    536,055            204,962            31,533              772,550            
Capital assets:


Intangible assets, net of amortization -                    41,756 23,670 -                    65,426              
Non-depreciable -                    1,592,699         3,800                -                    1,596,499         
Depreciable, net -                    32,412,996       2,952,561         3,999,839         39,365,396       


Total capital assets -                    34,047,451       2,980,031         3,999,839         41,027,321       
Total noncurrent assets 1,774,071         36,421,334       3,184,993         4,031,372         45,411,770       


Total assets 5,258,380         40,336,621       6,425,216         4,278,272         56,298,489       


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items -                    2,334,586         892,636            137,329            3,364,551         
OPEB related items -                    10,793              5,217                1,978                17,988              


Total deferred outflows of resources -                    2,345,379         897,853            139,307            3,382,539         


LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:


Accounts payable 15,237              182,755            568,132            15,781              781,905            
Interest payable - Bonds -                    70,208              73                     -                    70,281              
Accrued liabilities -                    53,977              17,411              832                   72,220              
Deposits payable -                    72,721              174,719            12,620              260,060            
Due to other funds -                    1,450                102,929            450                   104,829            
Long-term debt - due within one year -                    321,456            25,455              860                   347,771            


Total current liabilities 15,237              702,567            888,719            30,543              1,637,066         


Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds -                    -                    1,152,395         -                    1,152,395         
Advances from Loma Linda Successor Agency -                    -                    -                    18,634,194       18,634,194       
Internal balances (Note 4) -                    -                    124,738            -                    124,738            
Long-term debt - due in more than one year -                    4,452,727         73,042              2,550                4,528,319         
Net OPEB liability -                    65,447              31,633              11,999              109,079            


Total noncurrent liabilities -                    4,518,174         1,381,808         18,648,743       24,548,725       
Total liabilities 15,237              5,220,741         2,270,527         18,679,286       26,185,791       


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items -                    1,048,163         400,768            61,658              1,510,589         
OPEB related items -                    71,972              34,787              13,195              119,954            
Lease -                    74,532 -                    -                    74,532              


Total deferred inflows of resources -                    1,194,667         435,555            74,853              1,705,075         


NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets -                    29,474,136       2,955,670         3,999,839         36,429,645       
Restricted for debt service -                    685,433            -                    -                    685,433            
Unrestricted 5,243,143         6,107,023         1,661,317         (18,336,399)      (5,324,916)        


Total net position (deficit) 5,243,143$       36,266,592$     4,616,987$       (14,336,560)$    31,790,162$     


Enterprise Funds


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-30- 


Loma Linda
Water Water Sewer Connected


Acquisition Enterprise Capital Communities Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 283,721$          7,001,145$       5,531,874$       326,196$          13,142,936$     
Miscellaneous -                    447,348            876                   -                    448,224            


Total operating revenues 283,721            7,448,493         5,532,750         326,196            13,591,160       


OPERATING EXPENSES
Treatment -                    -                    3,914,457         -                    3,914,457         
Cost of sales and services 271,277            3,496,061         -                    271,681            4,039,019         
Administration and general -                    2,079,646         659,462            13,867              2,752,975         
Pension adjustment -                    (2,240,911)        (849,324)           (144,266)           (3,234,501)        
Depreciation and amortization -                    1,501,300         168,758            131,531            1,801,589         


Total operating expenses 271,277            4,836,096         3,893,353         272,813            9,273,539         


Operating change in net position 12,444              2,612,397         1,639,397         53,383              4,317,621         


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue (22,859)             (17,237)             (22,941)             (1,857)               (64,894)             
Interest expense -                    (138,689)           (1,093)               (561,881)           (701,663)           
Lease income -                    68,798              -                    -                    68,798              


Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) (22,859)             (87,128)             (24,034)             (563,738)           (697,759)           


Change in net position (deficit) before 
transfers (10,415)             2,525,269         1,615,363         (510,355)           3,619,862         


TRANSFERS
Transfer in -                    1,298,108         -                    -                    1,298,108         
Transfer out (1,331,539)        (53,397)             (81,123)             -                    (1,466,059)        


Total transfers (1,331,539)        1,244,711         (81,123)             -                    (167,951)           


Change in net position (1,341,954)        3,769,980         1,534,240         (510,355)           3,451,911         


NET POSITION (DEFICIT)


Beginning of year 6,585,097         32,496,612       3,082,747         (13,826,205)      28,338,251       


End of year 5,243,143$       36,266,592$     4,616,987$       (14,336,560)$    31,790,162$     


Enterprise Funds


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-31- 


Loma Linda
Water Water Sewer Connected


Acquisition Enterprise Capital Communities Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Cash received from customers and users 283,721$             7,371,954$          5,433,026$          320,058$             13,408,759$        
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (943,212)              (3,521,118)           (3,904,232)           (278,645)              (8,647,207)           
Cash payments to employees for services -                       (2,305,684)           (753,426)              (29,470)                (3,088,580)           


Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities (659,491)              1,545,152            775,368               11,943                 1,672,972            


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds (repayment) of due to/from other funds -                       (153,980)              102,934               (2,719)                  (53,765)                
Proceeds from (payments to) other governmental entities -                       (16,131)                (14,185)                1,428                   (28,888)                
Transfers in -                       1,298,108            -                       -                       1,298,108            
Transfers out (1,331,539)           (53,397)                (81,123)                -                       (1,466,059)           


Net cash provided (used) by
noncapital financing activities (1,331,539)           1,074,600            7,626                   (1,291)                  (250,604)              


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets -                       (1,650,030)           (3,800)                  -                       (1,653,830)           
Proceeds from loan receivable 567,065               -                       -                       -                       567,065               
Lease payments -                       (6,637)                  (3,074)                  -                       (9,711)                  
Lease receipts -                       66,308                 -                       -                       66,308                 
Payments on long-term debt -                       (238,524)              (3,702)                  (802)                     (243,028)              
Interest paid on long-term debt -                       (144,134)              (1,020)                  -                       (145,154)              


Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities 567,065               (1,973,017)           (11,596)                (802)                     (1,418,350)           


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 18,352                 13,744                 5,018                   473                      37,587                 
Change in fair market value of investments (44,271)                (34,389)                (30,914)                (2,585)                  (112,159)              


Net cash used by investing activities (25,919)                (20,645)                (25,896)                (2,112)                  (74,572)                


Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents (1,449,884)           626,090               745,502               7,738                   (70,554)                


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 4,927,624            2,673,596            1,682,990            195,353               9,479,563            


End of year 3,477,740$          3,299,686$          2,428,492$          203,091$             9,409,009$          


Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 3,477,740$          2,614,253$          2,428,492$          203,091$             8,723,576$          
Cash and investments with fiscal agents -                       685,433               -                       -                       685,433               


Total cash and investments 3,477,740$          3,299,686$          2,428,492$          203,091$             9,409,009$          


Enterprise Funds


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Cash Flows, continued 
Proprietary Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-32- 


Loma Linda
Water Water Sewer Connected


Acquisition Enterprise Capital Communities Total
RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN OPERATING NET POSITION


TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITES
Operating change in net position 12,444$               2,612,397$          1,639,397$          53,383$               4,317,621$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating change in net position


to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization -                       1,501,300            168,758               131,531               1,801,589            
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable -                       (74,630)                (99,724)                (6,138)                  (180,492)              
(Increase) decrease in inventories -                       9,657                   -                       -                       9,657                   
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items -                       (3,445)                  (1,257)                  -                       (4,702)                  
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources -


pension and OPEB related -                       (987,654)              (378,267)              (58,879)                (1,424,800)           
(Increase) decrease in net pension asset -                       (536,055)              (204,962)              (31,533)                (772,550)              
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (671,935)              (45,046)                11,482                 (6,246)                  (711,745)              
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities -                       1,844                   1,098                   51                        2,993                   
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable -                       13,777                 -                       (718)                     13,059                 
Increase (decrease) in due unearned revenue -                       (1,909)                  -                       -                       (1,909)                  
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability -                       (35,712)                (17,260)                (6,547)                  (59,519)                
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences -                       (11,723)                (4,460)                  (14,819)                (31,002)                
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability -                       (1,057,942)           (404,507)              (62,232)                (1,524,681)           
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources -


pension and OPEB related -                       160,293               65,070                 14,090                 239,453               


Total adjustments (671,935)              (1,067,245)           (864,029)              (41,440)                (2,644,649)           


Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (659,491)$            1,545,152$          775,368$             11,943$               1,672,972$          


NONCASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease acquisition -$                     49,723$               27,435$               -$                     77,158$               


Enterprise Funds


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 







 


-33- 


 
Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements 


 
The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. 
 
Custodial Funds - The Custodial Funds are used to report resources held by the City in a 
purely custodial capacity, which involves only the receipt, temporary investment and remittance 
of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations or other governments. 
 
Private Purpose Trust Fund - The Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to report resources of 
other trust arrangements in which principal and income benefit individuals, private 
organizations, or other governments. The Private Purpose Trust Fund reflects the activities of 
the Successor Agency to the former Loma Linda Redevelopment Agency. 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-34- 


Private Purpose
Custodial Funds Trust Fund


ASSETS
Cash and investments 101,803$                3,858,635$             
Receivables:


Interest -                          4,187                      
Contract and loans -                          79,862                    


Prepaid items -                          135,957                  
Due from other governments -                          328                         
Advances to the City of Loma Linda -                          18,634,194             
Restricted assets:


Cash and investments with fiscal agents -                          27                           
Total assets 101,803                  22,713,190             


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 344                         16,885                    
Interest payable -                          311,383                  
Due to other governments -                          200,820                  
Deposits payable 74,470                    28,686                    
2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds -                          22,942,827             
Loan payable to the City of Loma Linda -                          4,961,764               


Total liabilities 74,814                    28,462,365             


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Gain on debt refunding -                          19,236


NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Restricted for other organizations 26,989                    -                          
Net position (deficit) held in trust -                          (5,768,411)              


Total net position (deficit) 26,989$                  (5,768,411)$            


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds  
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-35- 


Private Purpose 
Custodial Funds Trust Fund


ADDITIONS
Property taxes -$                        4,872,960$             
Use of money and property -                          518,280                  
Miscellaneous 11,635                    -                          


Total additions 11,635                    5,391,240               


DEDUCTIONS
General and administrative -                          244,539                  
Miscellaneous 3,247                      -                          
Debt service:


Interest and fiscal charges -                          785,553                  


Total deductions 3,247                      1,030,092               


Change in net position 8,388                   4,361,148            


NET POSITION (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year 18,601                    (10,129,559)            
End of year 26,989$                  (5,768,411)$            


 
 







 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-36- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The basic financial statements of the City of Loma Linda, California (the City) have been 
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The City of Loma Linda, California (the City), was incorporated on September 29, 1970 under 
the laws of the State of California. The City became a chartered City in 1981. It is governed by 
an elected five-member City Council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP), the accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units. 
GAAP, defines component units as legally separate entities that meet any one of the following 
tests: 
 


 The City appoints the voting majority of the board of the component unit and: 
o is able to impose its will on the component unit and/or 
o is in a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the component unit. 


 The component unit is fiscally dependent upon the City. 
 The financial statements of the City would be misleading if data from the component unit 


were omitted. 
 
Component units are entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable, in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The City is considered to be 
financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of that 
organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization, or (2) 
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific 
financial burdens on the City. The City is also considered to be financially accountable if an 
organization is fiscally dependent (i.e., it is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates or 
charges, or issue bonded debt without approval from the City). In certain cases, other 
organizations are included as component units if the nature and significance of their relationship 
with the City are such that their exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in 
substance, part of the City's operations, and data from these units are combined with data of the 
primary government.  


Based on the criteria above, the City has two component units, both of which are blended 
component units. These component units are described as follows: 
 


Loma Linda Public Financing Authority - The Loma Linda Public Financing Authority 
(Authority) was established on September 10, 2002 pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with 
Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code in 
order to jointly exercise powers of the Agency and the City and to establish a vehicle to 
reduce local borrowing costs and promote greater use of existing and new financial 
instruments. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-37- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
A. Reporting Entity, Continued 
 


Loma Linda Housing Authority - The City of Loma Linda Housing Authority (the Housing 
Authority) was established by the City Council on January 10, 2012, and is responsible for 
the administration of providing affordable housing in the City. The Housing Authority is 
governed by a five-member Board of Directors which consists of members of the City 
Council. The Housing Authority is considered a blended component unit due to the financial 
benefit or burden relationship the Housing Authority shares with the City as its financial 
transactions are reported in a Special Revenue Fund. 


 
Since the City Council serves as the governing board for these component units, all of the City's 
component units are considered to be blended component units. Blended component units, 
although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the City's operations and so data 
from these units are reported with the interfund data of the primary government. These 
component units do not issue separate component unit financial statements. 
 
B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. City resources are allocated to and accounted for in 
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a 
Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of Governmental and Business-
Type Activities for the City accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the City are not 
included in these statements. 
 
The Government-Wide Financial Statements are presented on an “economic resources” 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets 
and liabilities, including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets, and long-term liabilities, 
are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities 
presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the liability is incurred. The types of transactions reported as program revenues for the 
City are reported in three categories: 1) charges for services, 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. 
 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-38- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements, continued 
 
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GAAP in regards to interfund activities, 
payables and receivables including the corresponding deferred revenues. All internal balances 
in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except those representing balances 
between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as 
internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of 
Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated. However, transactions 
between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated.  
 


 Due to and from other funds 
 Advances to and from other funds 
 Transfers in and out 


 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted-net position and 
unrestricted-net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a 
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be 
applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted-net position to have been depleted before 
unrestricted-net position is applied. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for all major governmental funds and 
nonmajor funds aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain 
the differences in net position as presented in these statements to the net position presented in 
the Government-Wide financial statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the 
qualifications for major fund reporting.  
 
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current 
assets and current liabilities are included on the Balance Sheets. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance presents increases (revenues and other financing 
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current position. Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in 
which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current 
period.







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-39- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements, continued 
 
Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual 
(generally 60 days after year-end, except sales tax which is considered available if collected 
within 90 days) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been 
treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, taxpayer-assessed tax revenues 
(transient occupancy taxes, franchise taxes, etc.), certain grant revenues and earnings on 
investments. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund 
liability is incurred. 
 
Unearned revenues arise when the government receives resources before it has a legal claim to 
them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In 
subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the government 
has a legal claim to the resources, the unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet 
and revenue is recognized. 
 
Reconciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements 
are provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of generally accepted 
accounting principles. 
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a flow 
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. 
It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any 
of the unrestricted components of fund balance. Furthermore, when the components of 
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is 
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for 
each major proprietary fund. 
 
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the 
liability is incurred. In these funds, receivables have been recorded as revenue and provisions 
have been made for uncollectible amounts. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-40- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements, continued 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. The City's 
Fiduciary Funds represent: 
 
Custodial Funds – are custodial in nature and are accounted for using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
  
Private Purpose Trust Fund – report resources of all other trust arrangements in which principal 
and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Private purpose 
trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. This fund is used to report the assets, liabilities, and activities of the City of 
Loma Linda Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency. 
 
Major Funds 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 


The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Loma Linda Housing Authority is responsible for the administration of providing 
affordable housing in the City.  
 
Regional Traffic Development Special Revenue Fund accounts for the portion of 
Transportation Projects identified by the San Bernardino County Transportation Authority 
(SBCTA) former SANBAG (San Bernardino Associated Governments) that will serve the 
regional area. 
 
The Special Projects Construction Capital Projects Fund accounts for special or 
extraordinary projects, activities and allocations that might be recommended by staff and 
determined needed by the City Council. 
 
The Park Development Capital Projects Fund accounts for developer fees collected and 
expended for future park development and acquisition. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-41- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 
 
Major Funds, continued 


 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 


The Water Acquisition Fund accounts for developer fees collected to pay for the expansion 
of the water system and for debt service on qualifying projects. 
 
The Water Enterprise Fund is used to account for water production, distribution and meters. 
 
The Sewer Capital Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s sewer, 
storm drain and catch basin systems. 


  
The Loma Linda Connected Communities Fund provides Loma Linda residents and 
businesses with the opportunities for voice, data, video, multimedia, home automation 
systems, environmental control, security, audio, television, sensors, alarms and intercom 
services. The program establishes the standardized requirements for residential and 
commercial telecommunications cabling systems. The initial intent is to connect new 
development to the system, but the long-term goal is to eventually retrofit and extend these 
services to the entire community. 
 


Additionally, the City reports the following fiduciary funds: 
 


Custodial Funds – These funds are used to report resources held by the City in a purely 
custodial capacity, which involves only the receipt, temporary investment and remittance of 
fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations or other governments. 
 
Private Purpose Trust Fund – This fund is used to account for the assets, liabilities, and 
activities of the Successor Agency to the former City of Loma Linda Redevelopment 
Agency. 
 
Fiduciary Funds are not included in the City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements. 


 
C. Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Position 
 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position 
is available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net position first. 
 
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 
The City pools its available cash for investment purposes. The City’s cash and cash equivalents 
are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are 
combined with investments and displayed as Cash and Investments. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-42- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued 
 
All cash and investments of proprietary funds are held in the City’s investment pool. Therefore, 
all cash and investments in the proprietary funds are considered cash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose of the statement of cash flows as these cash pools have the general characteristics 
of a demand deposit account. In accordance with GAAP, highly liquid market investments with 
maturities of one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other 
investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is used as fair value for those securities for which 
market quotations are readily available. 
 
The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which has invested a portion of the pool funds in structured 
notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith 
and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these 
structured notes and asset-backed securities are subject to market risk as to change in interest 
rates. 
 
In accordance with GAAP, certain disclosure requirements, if applicable, for Deposits and 
Investment Risks are specified in the following areas: 
 


 Interest Rate Risk 
 Credit Risk 


o Overall 
o Custodial Credit Risk 
o Concentrations of Credit Risk 


 Foreign Currency Risk 
 
In addition, other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits 
and investments, highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end and other disclosures. 
 
E. Receivables 
 
All receivables, leases, contracts, loans and accounts are shown net of an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. In the proprietary funds, the City accrues for unbilled water and sewer 
services at year-end. 
 
F. Interfund Transactions 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of 
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances”. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-43- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
F. Interfund Transactions, Continued 
 
Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenue, expenditures or expenses, 
as appropriate. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/ 
expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as 
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund. All other interfund transactions, except interfund 
services provided and used, are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanent 
transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are 
reported as transfers. 
 
G. Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 
All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories in the 
General Fund consist of expendable supplies held for consumption, whereas in the Enterprise 
Funds it represents water supplies in the water utility. Inventory costs are recorded as 
expenditures when used. 
 
The General Fund inventory is accounted for on the consumption method and is equally offset 
by a reservation of fund balance in the fund-level statements, which indicates that it does not 
constitute “available spendable resources”. 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of 
prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 
 
H. Restricted Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents 
 
Certain restricted cash and investments are held by fiscal agents for the redemption of bonded 
debt and for acquisition and construction of capital projects. 
 
I.  Capital Assets 
 
Government-Wide Financial statements - capital assets, which include land, structures and 
improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, 
and similar items), and construction in progress are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activity columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are 
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are valued at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Contributed and donated capital 
assets are valued at acquisition value on the date of acquisition. 
 
For infrastructure systems, the City elected to use the “Basic Approach” as defined by generally 
accepted accounting principles for infrastructure reporting. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-44- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
I.  Capital Assets, Continued 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the 
construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
 
Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows: 
 


Type of asset Years


Structures and improvements 15-50


Machinery and equipment 5-20


Infrastructure 20-50  
 


Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements do not present capital assets. 
Consequently, capital assets are presented as reconciling items in the Reconciliation of the 
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. 
 
Intangible right to use assets arising from lease agreements are recorded at the amount of the 
initial measurement of the lease liabilities plus any initial direct costs that are ancillary charges 
necessary to place the lease asset into service. 
 
Intangible right to use assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of 
the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. 
 
J.  Interest Payable 
 
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, interest payable on long-term debt is recognized 
as the liability is incurred for all fund types. 
 
K.  Unearned Revenues 
 
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, unearned revenue is recognized for transactions 
for which revenue has not yet been earned. Typical transactions recorded as unearned 
revenues in the Government-Wide Financial Statements are prepaid charges for services. 
 
L.  Compensated Absences 
 
Vacation pay is payable to employees at the time a vacation is taken or upon termination of 
employment. Normally an employee cannot accrue more than 26 to 46 days depending on 
length of employment. 
  







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-45- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
L. Compensated Absences, Continued 
 
Sick leave is payable when an employee is unable to work because of illness. Upon termination 
an employee will be paid one-third of unused sick leave up to 344 hours for miscellaneous 
employees and 516 hours for safety employees. Sick leave hours earned above the maximum 
are paid out on a one-for-one basis. 
 
All vacation and one-third of sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements and Proprietary Funds. 
 
M.  Long-Term Debt 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements - Long-term debt and other financial obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds payable are reported 
net of the applicable premium or discount.  
 
Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements do not present long-term debt. As 
such, long-term debt is shown as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the Governmental 
Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. 
 
Governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources. 
Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on 
debt issuance are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements use the same principles as those used in the 
Government-Wide Financial Statements. 
 
N.  Pension Plans 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within 
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used. 
 


Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2020 
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2021 
Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-46- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
O.  Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
For purposes of measuring net OPEB liability/asset, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the 
fiduciary net position of the City’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB 
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit 
payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to 
liability and asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following 
timeframes are used: 
 


Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2021 
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2021 
Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 


 
For OPEB-related liability, the general fund normally liquidates 55 percent and the remaining 45 
percent is liquidated by the Proprietary funds. 
 
P.  Net Position 
 
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, Net Position are classified in the following 
categories: 
 


Net Investment in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets. 
 
Restricted Net Position – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position – This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition 
of “net invested in capital assets” or “restricted net position”. 


 
Q. Fund Balance 
 
In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balances are classified in the following 
categories: 
 


Nonspendable – Items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such 
as prepaid items and inventories, items that are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact, such as principal of an endowment or revolving loan funds. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-47- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 


Q. Fund Balance, Continued 
 


Restricted – Restricted fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources subject 
to externally enforceable legal restrictions. This includes externally imposed restrictions by 
creditors, such as through debt covenants, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of 
other governments, as well as restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 


 
Committed – Committed fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources that 
can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of 
the City Council. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless 
the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
that it employed to previously commit those amounts. If the Council action that limits the use 
of the funds was separate from the action that initially created the revenues that form the 
basis for the fund balance, then the resultant fund balance is considered to be committed, 
not restricted. The City Council considers a resolution to constitute a formal action of the 
City Council for the purposes of establishing committed fund balance. 
 
Assigned – Assigned fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources reflecting 
the government’s intended use of resources. Assignment of resources can be done by the 
highest level of decision making or by a committee or official designated for that purpose. 
The City Council has established a resolution that authorized the City Manager for that 
purpose. 


 
Unassigned – This category is for any balances that have no restrictions placed upon them. 
The General Fund is the only fund that could report a positive unassigned fund balance 
amount. In other governmental funds, it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned 
fund balance. However, in governmental funds other than the general fund, if expenditures 
incurred for a specific purpose exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund 
balance in that fund. 


 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which all restricted, committed, assigned and 
unassigned fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply in the following order, 
except for instances wherein an ordinance specifies the fund balance: 
 


 Restricted 
 Committed 
 Assigned 
 Unassigned 


 
A City Council Action is the formal action required by the Government to establish and modify or 
rescind a fund balance commitment.  
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-48- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
R.  Property Taxes 
 
Property tax revenue is recognized on the modified accrual basis, that is, in the fiscal year for 
which the taxes have been levied providing they become available. Available means due and 
receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or expected to be 
collected soon enough thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of the 
current period. The County of San Bernardino collects property taxes for the City. Tax liens 
attach annually as of 12:01 A.M. on the first day in January preceding the fiscal year for which 
the taxes levied. Taxes are levied on both real and personal property, as it exists on that date. 
The tax levy covers the fiscal period July 1 to June 30. All secured personal property taxes and 
one-half of the taxes on real property are due November 1; the second installment is due 
February 1. All taxes are delinquent if unpaid on December 10 and April 10, respectively. 
Unsecured personal property taxes become due on the first of March each year and are 
delinquent, if unpaid, on August 31. 
 
S.  Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP generally accepted in 
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
T. Leases 
 
The City is a lessor for certain leases as detailed in Note 3. The City recognizes a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources in the financial statements. The same recognition 
principle is used in the Government-Wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements. 
 
At the commencement of the lease, the City initially measures the lease receivable at the 
present value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. In subsequent 
periods, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received. 
The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease 
receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. 
Subsequently, the deferred inflows of resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the 
lease term.  
 
Key estimates and judgments include how the City determines the discount rate it uses to 
discount the expected lease receipts to present value, lease term and lease receipts.  
 


 The City uses the estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases 
when an explicit rate is not provided in the lease agreement.  
 


 The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease plus periods covered by 
the City and lessee’s option to extend the lease if the City is reasonably certain based on 
all relevant factors that the City and lessee will exercise that option.  
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-49- 


Note 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
T. Leases, Continued 
 
The City monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its leases, 
and will remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes 
occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable. 
 
U. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncement 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The 
objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users 
by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement 
increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of 
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases 
and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under 
this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of 
resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ 
leasing activities. 
 
Note 2:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The City maintains a cash and investment pool, which includes cash balances and authorized 
investments of all funds. This pooled cash is invested by the City Treasurer to enhance interest 
earnings. The City has the following cash and investments at June 30, 2022: 
 


Governmental Business-Type Custodial Private Purpose
Activities Activities Funds Trust Fund Totals


Cash and investments 40,941,459$    8,723,576$      101,803$         3,858,635$      53,625,473$    
Restricted cash and investments -                  685,433           -                  27                    685,460           


Total cash and investments 40,941,459$    9,409,009$      101,803$         3,858,662$      54,310,933$    


Fiduciary Funds StatementsGovernment-Wide Statements


 
The City’s cash and investments at June 30, 2022 in more detail were as follows: 
 


Cash and cash equivalents
Petty cash 1,350$              
Demand deposits 1,364,622         


Total cash and cash equivalents 1,365,972         


Investments 
Local Agency Investment Fund 52,259,501       


Total cash and investments 53,625,473       


Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents 685,460            


Total cash and investments 54,310,933$     


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-50- 


Note 2:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued 
 
A.  Deposits 
 
The California Government Code (Code) requires California banks and savings and loan 
associations to secure the City’s cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code 
states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest 
in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash deposits is 
considered to be held in the City's name. 
 
The fair value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City's cash deposits. 
California law also allows institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed 
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the City’s total cash deposits. The City may waive 
collateral requirements for cash deposits, which are fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. The City, however, has not waived the collateralization 
requirements. 
 
B. Investments 
 
Under the provisions of the City’s investment policy, and in accordance with the Code, the 
following investments were authorized: 
 


 Securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies 
 Certificates of Deposits (or Time Deposits) 
 State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
 Other investments that are approved through the State of California Government Code 


 
As of June 30, 2022, the City was a voluntary participant and had $52,259,501 invested in LAIF. 
The City has complied with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investments Pools.  
  
The City’s investments with LAIF at June 30, 2022 included 1.88% of the pooled funds invested 
in structured notes and asset-backed securities. This is a decrease of 0.43% from the prior year. 
These investments included the following: 
 


Structured Notes: debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow 
characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one 
or more indices and/or have embedded forwards or options. 
 
Asset-Backed Securities: generally mortgage-backed securities that entitle their 
purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal 
and interest repayments from a pool of mortgages (for example, Collateralized Mortgage 
Obligations) or credit card receivables. 


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-51- 


Note 2:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued 
 
B. Investments, Continued 
 
LAIF is overseen by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five 
members, in accordance with State statute. 
 
C.  Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
Investment of debt proceeds held by a bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt 
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the Code or the City’s investment policy. 
 
D.  Risk Disclosures 
 
Interest Rate Risk – The City’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The 
City has elected to invest all in LAIF which has a maturity of less than one year. 
 


External Pool: Less than 1 Year
State of California - Local Agency 
Investment Fund 52,259,501$                        


Invested Maturities in Years


 
Credit Risk – As of June 30, 2022, the City’s investments in external investment pools are 
unrated. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of a deposit financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or 
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. For 
an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. 
 
The City’s investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the provision for 
deposits stated in Note 2A. City’s bank participates in the FDIC‘s temporary Transaction 
Account Guarantee Program which provides unlimited coverage. Of the City and Successor 
Agency’s investments, $685,460 of securities was held by the counterparty’s trust department, 
the trustee for the bonds, not in the name of the City as of June 30, 2022. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the 
amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the Code. Although the 
City’s policy allows other forms of investments, per City Council direction, the City currently only 
invests in LAIF. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-52- 


Note 2:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued 
 
E. Fair Value Measurements 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the 
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy consists of three broad 
levels: Level 1 inputs consist of quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in 
active markets that a government can access at the measurement date, Level 2 inputs that are 
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and Level 3 inputs have the 
lowest priority and consist of unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. For the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2022, the City of Loma Linda did not maintain any investments subject to the 
fair value hierarchy.  
 
Note 3: RECEIVABLES 
 
A.  Leases 
 
Facility Lease 
 
In June 2008, the City entered into a four-year agreement with the San Bernardino County 
Library (County) to lease facilities in the civic center complex to house the local branch library. 
The original four-year agreement has been extended several times. The current agreement 
expires December 2023 with an option to extend the agreement for an additional three years 
through December 2026. The County is required to make monthly payments ranging from 
$7,506 to $7,692. The lease has a discount rate of 1.0 percent. As of June 30, 2022, the lease 
receivable is $411,459 and deferred inflows of resources are $407,056. The City recognized 
$90,457 of lease revenue during the fiscal year. 
 
Cell Site Leases 
 
The City has entered into seven cell site leases with lease terms ranging from 2 to 21 years 
through May 2042. The lessees are required to make monthly payments ranging from $2,400 to 
$6,000, with discount rates ranging from 2.0 percent to 4.0 percent. The lease agreements have 
up to four extension options, each for five-year terms. As of June 30, 2022, the lease receivable 
is $2,786,112 and deferred inflows of resources are $2,704,654. The City recognized $225,828 
of lease revenue during the fiscal year. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 2022, the City has amended two of the seven cell site lease 
agreements to include up to 7 additional extension options, each for five-year terms, that could 
extend the lease term through March 2065. The City will remeasure the lease receivable and 
deferred inflow of resources for these agreements in Fiscal Year 2023. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-53- 


Note 3: RECEIVABLES, Continued 
 
B. Contracts and Notes Receivable 
 
Contracts and loans receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 


Balance Balance
June 30, 2021 Restatement Additions Deletions June 30, 2022


Big Bear Valley Water Stock 1,075$                 -$                    -$                     -$                     1,075$                 
LL Chamber of Commerce Loan 8,584                   -                      -                       -                       8,584                   
Deferred Housing Plan 14,556                 -                      -                       (7,542)                  7,014                   
Developers Loans 13,131,586          400,000              360,080               -                       13,891,666          
First Time Homebuyers 3,965,456            -                      -                       (256,746)              3,708,710            
Total 17,121,257$        400,000$            360,080$             (264,288)$            17,617,049$        


Note 4:    INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
A.  Fund Financial Statements 
 
Due To/Due From Other Funds - At June 30, 2022, the City had the following due to/from 
other funds: 
 


Loma Linda
Nonmajor Sewer Connected Water


Due From Other Funds Governmental Funds Capital Communities Enterprise Total
Governmental Funds:


General Fund 164,834$                 6,080$            321$               1,450$            172,685$        
Special Projects Construction 598,489                   -                  -                  -                  598,489          
Nonmajor Governmental Funds -                           -                  129                 -                  129                 


Enterprise Funds:
Water Enterprise -                           96,646            -                  -                  96,646            
Loma Linda Connected Communities -                           203                 -                  -                  203                 


Total 763,323$                 102,929$        450$               1,450$            868,152$        


Due to Other Funds
Proprietary FundsGovernmental 


Funds


 
The due from in the General Fund is made up of $33,039 from the Community Development 
Block Grant Fund and $130,923 from the Grant Fund to cover grant related expenditures that 
have not yet been reimbursed by the granting agencies. The due from the Water Enterprise 
fund, Sewer Capital fund and Loma Linda Connected Communities is for an end of the year 
insurance adjustment. 
 
Loan to Sewer Fund - At June 30, 2022, the Sewer Fund had a loan from the General Fund in 
the amount of $124,738. This loan was fully paid off as of August 31, 2022. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-54- 


Note 4:  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, Continued 
 
A. Fund Financial Statements, Continued 
 
Advances To/From Other Funds - At June 30, 2022, the City had the following advances 
to/from other funds: 
 


Governmental Funds


Park Sewer 
Advances To Other Funds Development Capital Total
Governmental Funds:


Special Projects Construction 2,804,500$                  -$                     2,804,500$  
Enterprise Funds:


Water Enterprise -                               1,152,395            1,152,395    
Total 2,804,500$                  1,152,395$          3,956,895$  


Enterprise Funds
Advances From Other Funds


 
Advances from the Water Enterprise fund to the Sewer Capital Fund in the amount of 
$1,152,395 was to help cover negative cash. In the governmental funds, the advance to the 
Park Development fund from the Special Projects Construction fund were to assist with the 
acquisition of the open space property in the City’s South Hills. 
 
Transfers – For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City had the following transfers in and out: 
 


Fund receiving transfers Fund making transfers Amount


General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,717,271$      
Sewer Capital 81,123             
Water Enterprise 53,397             


Special Projects Construction Water Acquisition 33,431             


Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 120,000           


Water Enterprise Water Acquisition 1,298,108        


Total transfers 5,303,330$      


 
Certain nonmajor governmental funds made payments in the amount of $3,717,271 to the 
General Fund for street maintenance and to cover costs, of this amount, $2,928,307 was from 
ARPA funding to cover public safety costs. The General Fund transferred $120,000 to a non-
major fund to assist with Landscape Maintenance fund. Transfers of $1,298,108 to Water 
Enterprise from Water Acquisition were noncash transfers of capital assets. The remaining 
transfers shown above were for the purchases of capital assets. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-55- 


Note 5:   CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The following is a summary of capital assets for the governmental activities: 
 


Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Deletions Balance


Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:


Land 14,651,396$    -$                 -$                 -$                 14,651,396$    
Construction in progress 1,251,396        2,198,295        (340,836)          (12,900)            3,095,955        
   Total capital assets, not being depreciated 15,902,792      2,198,295        (340,836)          (12,900)            17,747,351      


Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 24,269,036      1,146,991        -                   -                   25,416,027      
Machinery and equipment 9,781,922        222,099           -                   (382,640)          9,621,381        
Infrastructure 54,528,041      567,446           -                   55,095,487      
   Total capital assets, being depreciated 88,578,999      1,936,536        -                   (382,640)          90,132,895      


Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Structures and improvements (17,171,404)     (583,287)          -                   -                   (17,754,691)     
Machinery and equipment (5,946,802)       (483,741)          -                   229,693           (6,200,850)       
Infrastructure (28,483,578)     (852,757)          -                   -                   (29,336,335)     
   Total accumulated depreciation (51,601,784)     (1,919,785)       -                   229,693           (53,291,876)     


Total capital assets, being depreciated net 36,977,215      16,751             -                   (152,947)          36,841,019      


Intangible assets, being amortized:
Intangible right to use asset -                   96,789             -                   96,789             
Accumulated amortization -                   (16,976)            -                   (16,976)            


Intangible assets, net of amortization: -                   79,813             -                   -                   79,813             


Governmental activities capital assets, net 52,880,007$    2,294,859$      (340,836)$        (165,847)$        54,668,183$    


Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions of the primary government's governmental activities as follows:


Governmental activities: Depreciation Amortization Total
General government 156,500$         3,788$             160,288$         
Public safety 397,521           3,784               401,305           
Community development 315,382           4,749               320,131           
Public works 1,050,382        4,655               1,055,037        


Total 1,919,785$      16,976$           1,936,761$      


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-56- 


Note 5:   CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued 
 
The following is a summary of capital assets for the business-type activities: 
 


Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance


Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:


Land and improvements 1,387,764$      -$                 -$                 1,387,764$      
Construction in progress 183,777           147,982           (123,024)          208,735           


Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,571,541        147,982           (123,024)          1,596,499        


Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 26,968,959      -                   -                   26,968,959      
Machinery and equipment 6,581,946        31,551             -                   6,613,497        
Infrastructure 43,788,732      1,597,320        -                   45,386,052      


Total capital assets, being depreciated 77,339,637      1,628,871        -                   78,968,508      


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (21,155,727)     (432,992)          -                   (21,588,719)     
Machinery and equipment (5,374,430)       (183,411)          -                   (5,557,841)       
Infrastructure (11,283,099)     (1,173,453)       -                   (12,456,552)     


Total accumulated depreciation (37,813,256)     (1,789,856)       -                   (39,603,112)     


Total capital assets, being depreciated net 39,526,381      (160,985)          -                   39,365,396      


Intangible assets, being amortized:
Intangible right to use asset -                   77,159             -                   77,159             
Accumulated amortization -                   (11,733)            -                   (11,733)            


Intangible assets, net of amortization: -                   65,426             -                   65,426             


Business-type activities capital assets, net 41,097,922$    52,423$           (123,024)$        41,027,321$    


Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions of the primary government's business-type activities as follows:


Business-type activities: Depreciation Amortization Total
Water Enterprise 1,497,534$      3,766$             1,501,300$      
Sewer Capital 160,791           7,967               168,758           
Loma Linda Connected Communities 131,531           -                   131,531           


Total 1,789,856$      11,733$           1,801,589$      


 
Note 6:   LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022: 
 


Beginning Ending Due within 
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year


Insurance Retrospective Deposit 38,215$         -$               (38,215)$        -$              -$              
Compensated absences 751,510         802,596         (847,380)        706,726         282,369         
Lease liability -                 96,789           (14,289)          82,500           17,587           


Total governmental activities 789,725$       899,385$       (899,884)$      789,226$       299,956$       


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-57- 


Note 6:   LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, Continued 
 


Beginning Ending Due within 
Business-type activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year


Revenue Bonds:
1978 Water Bonds (General Obligation) 10,000$         -$               -$               10,000$         10,000$         
2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds - 
Direct Borrowing 4,710,000      -                 (230,000)        4,480,000      235,000         


Unamortized bond premium 43,069           -                 (2,840)            40,229           2,840             
Insurance Retrospective Deposit 13,028           -                 (13,028)          -                -                
Compensated absences 309,415         269,406         (300,407)        278,414         85,987           
Lease liability -                 77,158           (9,711)            67,447           13,944           


Total business-type activities 5,085,512$    346,564$       (555,986)$      4,876,090$    347,771$       


 
A. Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt 
 
For the governmental activities, compensated absences, the OPEB liability and the net pension 
asset (if any) are generally liquidated primarily by the General Fund, with a small portion by the 
Street Lighting District and Land Maintenance District. 
 
JPIA Retrospective Deposit 
 
Since its inception, the California JPIA, “Authority”, has operated under a retrospective funding 
model for its liability and workers’ compensation programs. Historically, members have paid for 
retrospective deposit adjustments and received retrospective refunds in annual rolling 
installments of up to eight years in duration. A change to the funding model was adopted in 
2010 that fully implemented during fiscal year 2013-14 coverage period. The unpaid portion of 
all retrospective adjustments on coverage periods up to and including fiscal year 2009-10 have 
been consolidated into a single aggregate retrospective balance and temporarily deferred from 
payment. Payments resumed beginning July 1, 2014 for the Liability program and July 1, 2015 
for the Workers’ Compensation program. The final payment on this liability was made during 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
The City’s liability for vested and unpaid compensated absences in the governmental activities 
has been accrued and amounted to $706,726. This amount is made up of accrued vacation, 
one third sick pay plus any amount over the maximum sick hours accrued, and any comp time 
earned. Compensated absences are primarily liquidated by the General Fund. For further 
explanation see Note 1. 
 
Lease Liabilities 
 
The City has entered into two agreements to lease certain office equipment. The leases have 
been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their 
inception.  
 
The first agreement to lease City-wide printers and copy machines was effective as of July 1, 
2021. The lease requires 63 monthly payments of $2,334. The lease liability is measured at a 
discount rate of 3.5%. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $83,653. As of 
June 30, 2022, the value of the lease liability is $70,126 and the net book value of the right to 
use asset is $67,719. The right to use asset is disclosed in Note 5. Capital Assets. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-58- 


Note 6:   LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, Continued 
 
A. Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt Continued 
 
The second agreement to lease a wide format printer was effective as of February 1, 2022. The 
lease requires 63 monthly payments of $698. The lease liability is measured at a discount rate 
of 3.8%. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $13,136. As of June 30, 2022, 
the value of the lease liability is $12,374 and the net book value of the right to use asset is 
$12,094. The right to use asset is disclosed in Note 5. Capital Assets. 
 
As of June 30, 2022, the City had a total outstanding lease liability of $82,500 and right to use 
asset of $79,813, net of amortization. 
 
Estimated future lease liability requirements are as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total


2023 17,587$         2,618$           20,205$         
2024 17,966           1,993             19,959           
2025 18,623           1,333             19,956           
2026 19,299           656                19,955           
2027 9,025             89                  9,114             
Total 82,500$         6,689$           89,189$         


Governmental Lease liability


 
B.  Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt 
 
1978 Water Bonds (General Obligation) – Original Issue $1,000,000 
 
On February 14, 1978, the City issued $1,000,000 of 1978 Water Bonds (General Obligation). 
The purpose of the bonds was to finance water system improvements. 
 
The bonds matured from April 1, 1979 to April 1, 2003 in varying amounts. The bonds accrued 
interest at rates between 4.80% and 6.75%. Interest on the bonds was payable semiannually on 
each April 1 and October 1. Principal was payable in annual installments commencing April 1, 
1979. The revenues of the Water Fund were being used to pay the annual debt service 
requirements of the bonds. The bonds matured in fiscal year 2003; however, at June 30, 2010, 
not all bonds have been presented for payment. The amount outstanding as of June 30, 2022 
was $10,000. Interest no longer accrues on these bonds. 
 
2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds – Original Issue $5,615,000 – Direct Borrowing 
 
On September 14, 2016, the City issued $5,615,000 in Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 
for the purpose of refunding the 1995 Variable Rate Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, of which 
$5,075,000 was outstanding, and to fund a reserve fund and pay issuance costs for the 2016 
bonds. The bonds mature annually each July 1, 2017 through 2036 in amounts ranging from 
$215,000 to $365,000. The bonds bear variable interest rates ranging from 2.000% to 3.750% 
and are payable semi-annually each January 1 and July 1, commencing July 1, 2017. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-59- 


Note 6:   LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued 
 
B.  Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt (continued) 
 
All net revenues of the Water Enterprise fund has been irrevocably pledged to secure the 
payment of the principal of and interest, and the premium, if any, on the 2016 Bonds in 
accordance with their terms and provision of the Indenture, and the revenues may not be used 
for any other purpose while the 2016 Bonds remain outstanding. In the event of default specified 
in the Indenture occurs and is continuing, the Trustee may, upon being indemnified to its 
reasonable satisfaction thereof, upon notice in writing to the City, declare the principal of all of 
the 2016 Bonds then outstanding, and the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable 
immediately. Nothing in the Indenture permits or requires the Trustee to accelerate payments 
due under the Indenture of the City is not in default of its obligation thereunder. 
 
The annual requirements to amortize the 2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds outstanding at 
June 30, 2022 were as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total


2023 235,000$       140,143$       375,143$       
2024 245,000         131,350         376,350         
2025 255,000         122,163         377,163         
2026 260,000         112,600         372,600         
2027 270,000         102,850         372,850         


2028-2032 1,490,000      384,013         1,874,013      
2033-2037 1,725,000      158,250         1,883,250      


Total 4,480,000$    1,151,369$    5,631,369$    


2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds


 
JPIA Retrospective Deposit 
 
Since its inception, the California JPIA, “Authority”, has operated under a retrospective funding 
model for its liability and workers’ compensation programs. Historically, members have paid for 
retrospective deposit adjustments and received retrospective refunds in annual rolling 
installments of up to eight years in duration. A change to the funding model was adopted in 
2010 that fully implemented during fiscal year 2013-14 coverage period. The unpaid portion of 
all retrospective adjustments on coverage periods up to and including fiscal year 2009-10 have 
been consolidated into a single aggregate retrospective balance and temporarily deferred from 
payment. Payments resumed beginning July 1, 2014 for the Liability program and July 1, 2015 
for the Workers’ Compensation program. The final payment on this liability was made during 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
 
Compensated absences 
 
In proprietary funds, the liability for vested and unpaid compensated absences is reported in the 
fund as the benefits are vested and earned. The compensated absences accrued in the 
proprietary funds amounted to $278,414 at June 30, 2022. This amount is made up of accrued 
vacation, one third sick pay plus any amount over the maximum sick hours accrued, and any 
comp time earned. For further explanation see Note 1. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-60- 


Note 6:   LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued 
 
B.  Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt (continued) 
 
Lease Liabilities 
 
The City has entered into two agreements to lease certain office equipment. The leases have 
been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their 
inception.  
 
The first agreement to lease City-wide printers and copy machines was effective as of July 1, 
2021. The lease requires 63 monthly payments of $2,334. The lease liability is measured at a 
discount rate of 3.5%. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $50,489. As of 
June 30, 2022, the value of the lease liability $42,325 and the net book value of the right to use 
asset is $40,873. The right to use asset is disclosed in Note 5. Capital Assets. 
 
The second agreement to lease a wide format printer was effective as of February 1, 2022. The 
lease requires 63 monthly payments of $698. The lease liability is measured at a discount rate 
of 3.8%. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $26,670. As of June 30, 2022, 
the value of the lease liability $25,122 and the net book value of the right to use asset is 
$24,553. The right to use asset is disclosed in Note 5. Capital Assets. 
 
As of June 30, 2022, the City had a total outstanding lease liability of $67,447 and right to use 
asset of $65,426, net of amortization. 
 
Estimated future lease liability requirements are as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total


2023 13,944$         2,142$           16,086$         
2024 14,699           1,630             16,329           
2025 15,237           1,091             16,328           
2026 15,790           536                16,326           
2027 7,777             73                  7,850             
Total 67,447$         5,472$           72,919$         


Business-Type Lease liability


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-61- 


Note 7:   NON-CITY OBLIGATIONS 
 
The following bond issues are not reflected as City long-term debt because these debts are 
solely payable from and secured by specific revenue sources not related to the City as 
described in the official statements of the respective issues. Neither the faith and credit nor the 
taxing power of the City, the Agency, the State of California or any political subdivision thereof, 
is pledged for payment of these bonds. The City is acting only as an agent. 
 


Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds Original Outstanding at
Poplar Street Apartments Amount June 30, 2022


Series 2008 A 9,000,000$            990,000$                 


Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds Original Outstanding at
Loma Linda Commons Project Amount June 30, 2022


Series 2009 A 13,275,000$          6,207,572.85$         


 
Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description 
 
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public 
Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered by 
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS.) The Plan consists of individual 
rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool 
(all other.) Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and 
miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not 
separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor more than 
one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The City sponsors four rate plans (two 
miscellaneous and two safety). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State 
statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full 
description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits 
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members 
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All 
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5 years of service. The death benefit is 
one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional 
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments for each plan are applied as 
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-62- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan, Continued 
 
The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law 
(PERL), the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), and the 
regulations, procedures and policies adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The 
Plan’s authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by the PERL and PEPRA and 
may be amended by the California state legislature and in some cases require approval by the 
CalPERS Board. 
 
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect during the year ended June 30, 2022 are 
summarized as follows: 
 


Hire date
Prior to


January 1, 2013
On or after


January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.0 % @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-67 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.4% to 2.4% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employer contribution rates 10.88% 7.59%


Hire date
Prior to


January 1, 2013
On or after


January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 3 % @ 55 2.7 % @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 50-57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.4% to 3.0% 2.0% to 2.7%
Required employer contribution rates 21.79% 13.13%


Miscellaneous


Safety


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-63- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan, Continued 
 
Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total 
plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. For 
public agency cost-sharing plans covered by either the Miscellaneous or Safety risk pools, the 
Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the 
Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, 
and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Employer 
contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer 
to satisfy contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan 
member contribution requirements are classified as plan member contributions. Employer 
Contributions to the Plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, were $3,090,643. The actual 
employer payments of $1,659,841 made to CalPERS by the City during the measurement 
period ended June 30, 2021, differed from the City’s proportionate share of the employer’s 
contributions of $3,451,582 by ($1,791,741), which is being amortized over the expected 
average remaining service lifetime in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Plan. 
 
B. Net Pension Asset 
 
The City’s net pension asset for the Plan is measured as the total pension asset, less the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension asset of the Plan is measured as of 
June 30, 2021, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to 
June 30, 2021 using standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and 
methods used to determine the net pension asset is as follows. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-64- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
B. Net Pension Asset, Continued 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Asset 
 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary 
increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at 
CalPERS’ website at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
Valuation Date June 30, 2020
Measurement Date June 30, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of GASB 68
Asset Valuation Method Fair Value of Assets
Actuarial Assumptions:


Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service


Mortality Rate Table (1) Derived using CALPERS' membership data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase The lesser of contract COLA or 2.50% until purchasing power 


protection allowance floor on purchasing power applies, 2.50% 
thereafter


(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based on


the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality


rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of


Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial


Assumptions report from December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website. 


 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-65- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
B. Net Pension Asset, Continued 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. 
Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns 
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a 
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, 
the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set 
by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present 
value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term 
returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated 
above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 
 
The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows: 
 


Asset Class1 


Assumed 
Asset 


Allocation


Real Return 


Years 1 - 102


Real Return 


Years 11+3


Public equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets - 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%


2 An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period
3 An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period


1 In the System's ACFR, fixed income is included in global debt securities; liquidity is
included in short-term investments; inflation assets are included in both global equity
securities and global debt securities.


 
 


Change of Assumptions 
 
There were no change of assumptions for measurement date June 30, 2021.  







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-66- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
B. Net Pension Asset, Continued 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 7.15%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from 
plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
On July 12, 2021, CalPERS reported a preliminary 21.3% net return on investments for fiscal 
year 2020-21. Based on the thresholds specified in CalPERS Funding Risk Mitigation policy, the 
excess return of 14.3% prescribes a reduction in investment volatility that corresponds to a 
reduction in the discount rate used for funding purposes of 0.20%, from 7.00% to 6.80%. Since 
CalPERS was in the final stages of the four-year Asset Liability Management (ALM) cycle, the 
board elected to defer any changes to the asset allocation until the ALM process concluded, 
and the board could make its final decision on the asset allocation in November 2021. 
 
On November 17, 2021, the board adopted a new strategic asset allocation. The new asset 
allocation along with the new capital market assumptions, economic assumptions and 
administrative expense assumption support a discount rate of 6.80% (net of investment 
expense but without a reduction for administrative expense) for financial reporting purposes. 
This includes a reduction in the price inflation assumption from 2.50% to 2.30% as 
recommended in the November 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial 
Assumptions. This study also recommended modifications to retirement rates, termination rates, 
mortality rates and rates of salary increases that were adopted by the board. These new 
assumptions will be reflected in the GASB 68 accounting valuation reports for the June 30, 
2022, measurement date. 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Information about the pension plan’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, and fiduciary net position are presented in CalPERS’ audited financial 
statements, which are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website, at 
www.calpers.ca.gov. The plan’s fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the 
plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis used by the pension plan, 
which is the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
plan. Investments are reported at fair value. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-67- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset 
 
The following table shows the Plan’s proportionate share of the net pension asset over the 
measurement period. 
 


Plan Total Pension 
Liability


(a)


Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position


(b)


Plan Net Pension 
Liability (Asset)
(c) = (a) - (b)


Balance at: 6/30/2020 (VD) 69,745,363$           62,752,404$     6,992,959$            
Balance at: 6/30/2021 (MD) 72,129,684             74,583,854       (2,454,170)             
Net changes during 2020-21 2,384,321$             11,831,450$     (9,447,129)$           


Increase (Decrease)


 
Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD). 
 
The City’s proportion of the net pension asset was determined by CalPERS using the output 
from the Actuarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided in the CalPERS 
Public Agency Cost-Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a publicly available report 
that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.  


 
The City’s proportionate share of the net pension asset for the total Plan as of June 30, 2020 
and 2021 was as follows: 
 


Proportionate Share - June 30, 2020 0.064271%
Proportionate Share - June 30, 2021 (0.045378%)
Change - Increase (Decrease) (0.109649%)


 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset to Changes in the 


Discount Rate  
 
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension asset for the Plan as of 
the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the 
net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point 
lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 
 


Discount Rate - 1%
(6.15%)


Current Discount
Rate (7.15%)


Discount Rate + 1%
(8.15%)


7,161,671$              (2,454,170)$        (10,377,805)$               


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-68- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset, Continued 
 
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension asset and fiduciary net 
position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 
 
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss 
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. 
 
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 
 


Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 
 


5 year straight-line amortization 


All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the expected average 
remaining service lives (EARSL) of all members that 
are provided with benefits (active, inactive and retired) 
as of the beginning of the measurement period 


 
The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total 
future service years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the 
Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (PERF C). 
 
The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2021 is 3.7 years, which 
was obtained by dividing the total service years of 561,622 (the sum of remaining service 
lifetimes of the active employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, 
and retired) in PERF C. Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal 
to 0. Total future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event 
other than receiving a cash refund. 
 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 


to Pensions 
 
As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2020), the City’s net pension asset was 
$6,992,959. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2021 (the measurement date), the 
City recognized a pension revenue of $9,026,988.  







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-69- 


Note 8:    EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 
 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 


to Pensions, Continued  
 
As of June 30, 2022, the City has deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions as follows: 


Deferred Outflows 
of Resources


Deferred Inflows 
of Resources


Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience -$                    


Differences Between Projected and Actual
Investment Earnings


Differences between Employer's Contributions
and Proportionate Share of Contributions


Change in Employer's Proportion 1,593,977            2,376,992           
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent 


to the Measurement Date
8,934,208$          4,011,208$         


326,729$            


3,090,643            -                      


1,898,620            -                      


2,350,968            1,307,487           


 
These amounts above are net of outflows and inflow recognized in the 2020-21 measurement 
period expense. Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $3,090,643 reported 
with deferred outflows of resources will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension asset in 
the upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 
 


Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30:


Deferred 
Outflows/(Inflows) 


of Resources
2023 443,932$             
2024 381,737               
2025 482,613               
2026 524,075               
2027 -                      


Thereafter -                      


 
E. Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2022, the City reported a payable of $2,618 for the outstanding amount of 
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2022.  







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-70- 


Note 9:   OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
Plan Description – The City provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) an agent multiple 
employee plan, for all of its employee groups through the CalPERS’s California Employers’ 
Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) trust fund. The plan that covers all general and public safety 
retirees, spouses and eligible dependents. The Plan provides medical insurance benefits to 
eligible retirees and their spouses and dependents. The benefit provisions and all other 
requirements meet the definition of an other post-employment benefit plan (OPEB Plan) 
 
Employees covered – As of June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation (measurement date 6/30/2021), 
the following current and former employees were covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB 
Plan. 
 


Active employees                         86 


Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits                      16 


Total                       102 


 
Contributions – The contribution requirements are established and amended by the City. The 
required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. Net OPEB 
liability is expected to be liquidated by the General Fund and all the enterprise funds in the 
future periods.  
 
Net OPEB Liability 
 
The City’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total OPEB liability 
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 
2021, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-71- 


Note 9:   OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued 
 
Net OPEB Liability, Continued 
 


Discount Rate 6.75%
Inflation 2.50% per year


Salary Increases 2.75% per year


Investment Rate of Return 6.75% per year


Mortality Rate (1)
2017 CalPERS Active Mortality for Miscellaneous and Schools 
Employees; 
2017 CalPERS Mortality for Active Safety Employees


Pre-Retirement Turnover Healthcare Trend Rate (2)
2017 CalPERS Rates for Miscellaneous Employees;
2017 CalPERS Rates for Sworn Fire Employees


Actuarial Assumptions:


(1) The mortality assumptions are based on the 2017 CalPERS Active Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees table created by
CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies mortality for participating agencies and establishes mortality tables that are modified
versions of commonly used tables. This table incorporates mortality projection as deemed appropriate based on CalPERS
analysis.
(2) The turnover assumptions are based on the 2017 CalPERS Rates for Sworn Fire Employees table created by CalPERS. 


CalPERS periodically studies the experience for participating agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate for each 


pool.


 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a 
building–block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 


Asset Class
Target 


Allocation


Real Return 


Years 1-101


Real Return 


Years 1-102


Global Equities 59% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 25% 1.10% 2.62%
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 5% 3.20% 5.00%
Real Estate Investment Trusts 8% 0.25% 1.46%
Commodities 3% 1.50% 2.87%
Total 100%


1 An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period
2 An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period  







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-72- 


Note 9:     OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75% percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the City contributions will be made 
at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the 
OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB 
payments for current active and inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
Changes in the OPEB Liability 
 
The changes in the net OPEB Liability for the OPEB Plan are as follows: 
 


Total OPEB 
Liability (a)


Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position (b)


Net OPEB 
Liability/(Asset) 


(c)= (a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2021
(Valuation Date June 30, 2021) 889,701$         515,041$          374,660$                


Changes recognized for the measurement period:
Service cost 24,173             -                    24,173                    
Interest 61,981             141,595            (79,614)                   
Benefit payments (32,698)           (32,698)             -                          
Administrative expenses -                  (194)                  194                         
Employer contributions to trust -                  32,698              (32,698)                   
Experience (gains)/losses (88,498)           -                    (88,498)                   
Changes in assumptions 44,181             -                    44,181                    


Net Changes 9,139               141,401            (132,262)                 


Balance at June 30, 2022
(Measurement Date June 30, 2021) 898,840$         656,442$          242,398$                


Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for 
measurement period ended June 30, 2021: 
 


Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate  1% Increase


5.75% 6.75% 7.75%


Net OPEB Liability 377,026$           242,398$           132,397$            
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-73- 


Note 9:     OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using health care 
cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the 
current rate, for the measurement period ended June 30, 2021: 
 


Current
1% Decrease Healthcare Cost Trend Rates  1% Increase


Net OPEB Liability 115,797$              242,398$                               401,563$            
 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are 
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB 
expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as 
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized 
in future OPEB expense. 
 


Net difference between projected and 5 years
actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments


All other amounts Expected average remaining service
lifetime (EARSL)  


 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense of $15,823. As of 
June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 
 


Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows


of Resources of Resources
Changes of assumptions 39,973$               -$                    
Differences between expected
   and actual experience -                      193,578               
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
   OPEB plan investments -                      72,987                 
Total 39,973$               266,565$             


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-74- 


Note 9:     OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB, Continued 
 
The amount recognized in the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows: 
 


Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30:


Deferred 
Outflows/(Inflows) of 


Resources
2023 (34,480)$                    
2024 (33,653)                      
2025 (34,646)                      
2026 (38,076)                      
2027 (16,967)                      


Thereafter: (68,770)                       
 


Note 10:  LIABILITY, PROPERTY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION  
 
A.  Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement 
 
The City of Loma Linda is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. 
 
The City of Loma Linda is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(Authority). The Authority is composed of 116 California public entities and is organized under a 
joint powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of 
the Authority is to arrange and administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to 
purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for group purchased insurance for 
property and other lines of coverage. The California JPIA began covering claims of its members 
in 1978. Each member government has an elected official as its representative on the Board of 
Directors. The Board operates through a nine-member Executive Committee. 
 
B.  Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority 
 
Each member pays an annual contribution at the beginning of the coverage period. A 
retrospective adjustment is then conducted annually thereafter, for coverage years 2012-13 and 
prior. Coverage years 2013-14 and forward are not subject to routine annual retrospective 
adjustment. The total funding requirement for primary self-insurance programs is based on an 
actuarial analysis. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on payroll and claims 
history, relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-75- 


Note 10:  LIABILITY, PROPERTY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION, 
   Continued 
 
B.  Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority, Continued 
 
Primary Liability Program 
 
Claims are pooled separately between police and general government exposures. (1) The 
payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable 
credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll 
and the weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred 
costs up to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total 
incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from 
$100,000 to $500,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total 
incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs from $500,000 to $50 million, are 
distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers. 
 
The overall coverage limit for each member, including all layers of coverage, is $50 million per 
occurrence. Subsidence losses have a sub-limit of $50 million per occurrence. The coverage 
structure includes retained risk that is pooled among members, reinsurance, and excess 
insurance. More detailed information about the various layers of coverage is available on the 
following website: https://cjpia.org/coverage/risk-sharing-pools/.  
 
Primary Workers’ Compensation 
 
Claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and fire) and general government 
exposures. (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other 
members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the 
weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer 
of losses includes incurred costs up to $75,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a 
percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses 
includes incurred costs from $75,000 to $200,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a 
percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs from 
$200,000 to statutory limits are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the 
first and second loss layers. 
 
For 2021-22, the Authority’s pooled retention is $1 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to 
statutory limits under California Workers’ Compensation Law. Employer’s Liability losses are 
pooled among members to $1 million. Coverage from $1 million to $5 million is purchased as 
part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer’s Liability losses from $5 million to $10 million are 
pooled among members. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-76- 


Note 10:  LIABILITY, PROPERTY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION,  
   Continued 
 
C.  Purchased Insurance 
 
Pollution Legal Liability Insurance 
 
The City of Loma Linda participates in the pollution legal liability insurance program which is 
available through the Authority. The policy covers sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled 
property, streets, and storm drains owned by the City of Loma Linda. Coverage is on a claims-
made basis. There is a $250,000 deductible. The Authority has an aggregate limit of $20 million. 
 
Property Insurance 
 
The City of Loma Linda participates in the all-risk property protection program of the Authority. 
This insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. City of Loma Linda 
property is currently insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the City 
of Loma Linda to the Authority. City of Loma Linda property currently has all-risk property 
insurance protection in the amount of $59,979,216. There is a $10,000 deductible per 
occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle insurance which has a $2,500 deductible. 
 
Crime Insurance 
 
The City of Loma Linda purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with 
a $2,500 deductible. The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority. 
 
Special Event Tenant User Liability Insurance 
  
The City of Loma Linda further protects against liability damages by requiring tenant users of 
certain property to purchase low-cost tenant user liability insurance for certain activities on City-
owned property.  The insurance premium is paid by the tenant user and is paid to the City of 
Loma Linda according to a schedule.  The City of Loma Linda then pays for the insurance.  The 
insurance is facilitated by the Authority. 
 
D.  Adequacy of Protection 
 
During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced 
settlements or judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There were also no 
significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage in 2021-22. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-77- 


Note 11:     JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS 
 
A.  San Bernardino International Airport Authority 
 
The City is a member of the San Bernardino International Airport Authority (SBIAA), a joint 
powers authority of the County of San Bernardino and the Cities of Colton, Highland, Loma 
Linda and San Bernardino. The SBIAA was formed May 12, 1992 for the purpose of acquiring, 
operating, maintaining, repairing and administering the aviation related portions of the former 
Norton Air Base as a public airport. 
 
The governing board consists of two elected officials from the City of San Bernardino and one 
elected official from each of the County of San Bernardino and the Cities of Colton, Highland 
and Loma Linda. Each member has one vote. 
 
The City has no significant equity interest in the San Bernardino International Airport Authority, 
and accordingly neither assets nor liabilities have been recorded in the City’s basic financial 
statements. 
 
A copy of the financial statements of the San Bernardino International Airport Authority can be 
obtained by contacting the SBIAA directly at 1601 E. Third Street, Suite 100, San Bernardino, 
California 92408, (909) 382-4100. 
 
B.  Inland Valley Development Agency 
 
The City is a member of the Inland Valley Development Agency (IVDA), a joint powers authority 
of three cities and the County of San Bernardino.  
 
The member agencies have the following number of board members: 
 


City of San Bernardino  3 
County of San Bernardino  2 
City of Colton    2 
City of Loma Linda   2 
 


Each board member has one vote. 
 
The IVDA was formed for the purpose of acquiring, owning, maintaining, leasing and operating 
the Norton Air Force Base property, and for the purpose of reusing and redeveloping the Norton 
Air Force Base, the adjacent property and the other properties in proximity thereto. As of 
June 30, 2022, the City has no significant equity interest in the IVDA, and accordingly neither 
assets nor liabilities have been recorded in the City’s basic financial statements. 
 
A copy of the financial statements of the IVDA can be obtained by contacting the IVDA directly 
at 1601 E. Third Street, Suite 100, San Bernardino, California, 92408. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-78- 


Note 12:  JOINT VENTURES 
 
A.  CONFIRE Joint Powers Authority 
 
The City is a member of the CONFIRE Joint Powers Authority, a regional fire agency of the 
Cities of Redlands, Colton, Rialto, Rancho Cucamonga, Loma Linda, Victorville and the Apple 
Valley Fire Protection District, Chino Valley and the San Bernardino County Fire District. The 
CONFIRE JPA was formed August 20, 1990 for the purpose of providing hardware, software, 
services and other items necessary and appropriate for the establishment, operation, and 
maintenance of a joint centralized public safety communications system and a cooperative 
program of fire related functions for the mutual benefit of the members of the CONFIRE JPA, to 
provide such services on a contract basis to other governmental units, and to provide a forum 
for discussion, study, development, and implementation of recommendations of mutual interest 
regarding public safety communications and related matters within member agencies. 
  
The activities of the CONFIRE JPA are financed by a cost-sharing formula, which requires 
prorating among the participating members based on the demand percentage on the system by 
the members to be determined by the CONFIRE JPA Board of Director’s Administrative 
Committee and approved by their Board of Directors. In fiscal year 2022, the City of Loma 
Linda’s contribution totaled $294,574. The City has no other significant equity interest in 
CONFIRE JPA, and accordingly neither assets nor liabilities of CONFIRE JPA have been 
recorded in the City’s basic financial statements. 
 
A copy of the financial statements of the CONFIRE JPA can be obtained by contacting the 
authority directly at 1743 W. Miro Way, Rialto, CA 92376-8630, (909) 356-2375. 
 
Note 13: DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 
 
At June 30, 2022, the following governmental funds had deficit fund balances: 
 


Fund Type Deficit  
Major funds:


Park Development Capital Projects (1,916,977)$       


Nonmajor governmental funds:
Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue (33,209)              
Grant Fund Special Revenue (141,514)            
Citizens Option for Public Safety Fund Special Revenue (5,244)                
Federal/State Construction Capital Projects (136,232)            


Funds


 
 


Park Development – The Park Development has an accumulated deficit balance of $1,916,977 
as a result from the purchase of open space property in the City’s south Hills with advances 
from other funds. 
 
Community Development Block Grants – The Community Development Block Grant fund has a 
deficit of $33,209 which resulted from grant reimbursement not received prior to the end of the 
year, therefore declaring it unavailable revenue. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-79- 


Note 13: DEFICIT FUND BALANCES, Continued 
 
Grant Fund – The Grant fund has a deficit balance of $141,514 which resulted from grant 
reimbursements not received prior to the end of the year, therefore declaring it unavailable 
revenue. 
 
Citizens Option for Public Safety Fund – The Citizens Option for Public Safety Fund fund has a 
deficit balance of $5,244 which resulted from the negative fair value adjustment of the fund’s 
investments. 
 
Federal/State Construction – The Federal/State Construction fund has a deficit balance of 
$136,232 which resulted from grant reimbursements not received prior to the end of the year, 
therefore declaring it unavailable revenue. 
 
Note 14:     ENCUMBRANCES 
 
Encumbrances are estimations of costs related to unperformed contracts for goods and 
services. These commitments are recorded for budgetary control purposes in the General, 
Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service funds. They represent the estimated 
amount of the expenditure ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in process at year-end 
are completed. They do not constitute expenditures or estimated liabilities for the current year. 
Encumbrances outstanding as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 
 


General Fund 242,445$                      


Special Projects Construction 53,240                          


Water Acquisition 94,121                          


Water Enterprise 44,865                          
Non-major governmental funds 1,695,192                     


Significant Encumbrances as of June 30, 2022


 
 
Note 15:  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Commitments 
 
The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal 
course of conducting City business. City management believes, based upon consultation with 
the City Attorney, that these cases, in the aggregate, are not expected to result in a material 
adverse financial impact on the City. Additionally, City management believes that the City’s 
insurance programs are sufficient to cover any potential losses should an unfavorable outcome 
materialize. As of June 30, 2022, in the opinion of City management, there were no additional 
outstanding matters that would have a significant effect on the financial position of the funds of 
the City. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-80- 


Note 15:  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, Continued 
 
Federal and State Grant Programs 
 
The City participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs are audited by the 
City’s independent accountants in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and 
applicable State requirements. No cost disallowance is expected as a result of these audits; 
however, these programs are subject to further examination by the grantors. Expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time; however, 
the City management expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
Note 16:  SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 
On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X26 (Bill) that 
provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action 
impacted the reporting entity of the City of Loma Linda that previously had reported a 
redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit. The 
Bill provided that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the City or another unit of 
local government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until they are 
distributed to other units of state and local government. On January 10, 2012 the City Council of 
the City of Loma Linda elected to become the Successor Agency for the former Redevelopment 
Agency (RDA) in accordance with the Bill as part of City Resolution No. 2722. The activities of 
the Successor Agency are reported under a Private Purpose Trust Fund on the Fiduciary Funds 
Financial Statements of the City. 
 
Successor agencies are only allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the 
estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment 
agency until all enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full 
and all assets have been liquidated. 
 
The bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of any 
transfers of assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after 
January 1, 2011. If the public body that received such transfers is not contractually committed to 
a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those assets, the State Controller is required 
to order the available assets to be transferred to the public body designated as the successor 
agency by the Bill. Management believed, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations 
of the former RDA due to the City were valid enforceable obligations payable by the successor 
agency trust under the requirements of the Bill. The City’s position on this issue was not a 
position of settled law and there was considerable legal uncertainty regarding this issue. In July 
of 2015, the City and the State reached a settlement agreement that recognized the action on 
May 8, 2012, of the Oversight Board for the Successor Agency to the Loma Linda 
Redevelopment Agency approving the re-entry of the 2011 Loan Agreement with certain 
modifications, including a reduction in the interest rate, revised payment schedule, and 15-year 
term. 
 
In 2016, the Successor Agency received approval of its Long Range Property Management 
Plan, and upon reaching a settlement agreement with the State was issued a Finding of 
Completion. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-81- 


Note 16:  SUCCESSOR AGENCY, Continued 
 
Successor Agency Long-Term Debt 
 
The bonded debt of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2022 is as follows: 
 
2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series A & B – Original Issue $33,710,000-Direct 
Borrowing 
 
On November 10, 2016, the City issued $33,710,000 in Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 
A and B, for the purpose of refunding the 2003 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2005 A & B 
Taxable Tax Allocation Bonds and 2008 Taxable Housing Tax Allocation Bonds. The bonds 
mature annually each August 1, 2017 through 2030 in amounts ranging from $350,000 to 
$470,000. The bonds bear variable interest rates ranging from 1.500% to 5.000% and are 
payable semi-annually each February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1, 2017. 
 
The current refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net 
carrying amount of the old debt of $31,996. The difference is reported in the accompanying 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position as a deferred gain on refunding and is being amortized as a 
component of interest expense through August 1, 2030, using the straight line method of 
amortization. The City in effect reduced its aggregate debt service cash flow by $7,451,843 over 
the next 20 years. This resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present values of 
the debt service payments on the old debt and new debt) of $6,159,460. 
 
The 2016 Bonds, and any additional Parity Debt, will be payable from Pledged Tax Revenues of 
the Successor Agency, and the pledge of Pledged Tax Revenues to the payment of the 
principal of and interest on the 2016 Bonds will, as applicable, be on a basis subordinate to 
payments required under Tax Sharing Agreements the payment for which have not been 
subordinated to the Bonds and the senior Statutory Pass-Through Amounts. If an event of 
default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee, may and, if requested in writing by the 
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding the Trustee 
shall declare the principal of the Bonds, together with the accrued interest thereon, to be due 
and payable immediately. Upon declaration of acceleration by Trustee, all sums in the funds 
and accounts established and held by the Trustee shall be applied in the following order: first to 
the payment of the fees, cost and expenses associated with the declaration of such event and 
second to the payment of the whole amount then owing and unpaid upon the Bonds for principal 
and interest. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-82- 


Note 16:  SUCCESSOR AGENCY, Continued 
 
Successor Agency Long-Term Debt, Continued 
 
The annual requirements for the 2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series A and B 
outstanding at June 30, 2022 were as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total


2023 435,000$       156,300$       591,300$       
2024 455,000         138,500         593,500         
2025 470,000         120,000         590,000         
2026 350,000         103,600         453,600         
2027 365,000         89,300           454,300         


2028-2031 1,640,000      169,000         1,809,000      
Total 3,715,000$    776,700$       4,491,700$    


2016 Successor Agency - Series A


 


Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total


2023 1,890,000$    559,875$       2,449,875$    
2024 1,930,000      513,306         2,443,306      
2025 1,985,000      463,128         2,448,128      
2026 2,180,000      407,100         2,587,100      
2027 2,240,000      346,326         2,586,326      


2028-2031 9,015,000      610,839         9,625,839      
Total 19,240,000$  2,900,574$    22,140,574$  


2016 Successor Agency - Series B


 
Loan Payable to the City of Loma Linda – Direct Borrowing 
 
On March 8, 2011, the City of Loma Linda (the City) entered into a cooperation agreement with 
the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Loma Linda (RDA), which set forth certain pre-existing 
indebtedness of the RDA to the City and provided a repayment schedule for such debts (“2011 
Loan Agreement”). Between March and June 2011, the RDA remitted to the City payments 
totaling $2,273,000 pursuant to the 2011 Loan Agreement. 
 
On May 8, 2012, the Oversight Board for the Successor Agency of the RDA approved the 
reentry of a modified version of the 2011 Loan Agreement. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-83- 


Note 16:  SUCCESSOR AGENCY, Continued 
 
Loan Payable to the City of Loma Linda – Direct Borrowing, continued 
 
On January 15, 2013, the Successor Agency submitted to the California Department of Finance 
(Finance) the Other Funds and Accounts Due Diligence Review (OFA DDR). Finance 
determined that the $2,273,000 loan repayment was not made pursuant to an enforceable 
obligation and determined the funds were available to be returned to the taxing entities. On 
July 31, 2013, the City legally challenged Finance’s determination. 
 
On July 31, 2015, the City of Loma Linda and the State of California signed a settlement 
agreement. The agreement recognized the 2011 re-entered agreement with an outstanding 
balance of $21,175,012, as of June 1, 2012, and accrued interest as enforcement obligations 
within the meaning of the Dissolution Law. Under the terms of the agreement, Finance shall 
recognize payments under the re-entered agreement including repayment of past due balances 
of $5,759,804, as of July 31, 2015, and approve payments via the ROPS process. Additionally, 
the settlement agreement addressed the $2,273,000 loan repayment previously deemed 
unauthorized by both Finance and the State Controller’s Office (SCO). Finance agreed to issue 
a revised OFA DDR determination letter reducing the OFA balance available for distribution to 
affected taxing entities by the loan repayment amount and the SCO agreed to issue a revised 
Asset Transfer Review Report authorizing the City to retain the loan repayment. 
 
In August 2015, the Successor Agency, upon reaching a settlement agreement with the State, 
was issued a finding of completion. By December of the same year, the Successor Agency and 
the State’s Department of Finance approved the Long Range Property Management Plan. On 
September 12, 2017, the Oversight Board and City Council approved the sale of a property 
listed in the Long Range Property Management Plan. The property was sold in December 2020. 
There are no additional properties. 
 
The following is a summary of the bonded debt activity of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 
2022: 
 


Beginning Ending Due within 


TAX ALLOCATION BONDS Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year
2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series A 4,140,000$      -$                (425,000)$       3,715,000$       435,000$       
2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series B 21,085,000      -                  (1,845,000)      19,240,000       1,890,000      


Unamortized bond premium 434,234           -                  (46,113)           388,121            46,113           
Unamortized bond discount (447,854)          -                  47,560             (400,294)           (47,560)          


Loan payable to the City of Loma Linda - direct borrowings 6,582,322        -                  (1,620,558)      4,961,764         1,639,148      
Total 31,793,702$    -$                (3,889,111)$    27,904,591$     3,962,701$    


 
The following amount was reported as deferred inflow of resources: 
 


Beginning Ending Due within 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year


Deferred inflows of resources:
Unamortized gain on refunding 21,521$           -                  (2,285)$           19,236$            -$               


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-84- 


Note 17:  TAX ABATEMENTS 
 
The City of Loma Linda (City) entered into an agreement with Loma Linda University Adventist 
Health Sciences Center dba Loma Linda University Health, hereinafter called “Medical Center”. 
On June 21, 2016 the City approved Precise Plan of Design No. 15-128 for the construction of a 
new hospital building, with conditions of approval requiring that the Medical Center enter into a 
staffing support agreement to mitigate the additional needs for police and fire services created 
by the construction of the new hospital; and whereas, the Medical Center requires law 
enforcement and fire suppression services on an ongoing basis to encourage a safe 
environment for employees, patients and visitors. The City has the ability to provide such law 
enforcement services required by the Medical Center through the City’s contract with the San 
Bernardino County Sheriff’s Department and the City has the ability to provide such fire 
suppression services as required by the Medical Center through the City’s Fire Department. 
 
This agreement is binding and in effect upon full execution and delivery by the City and Medical 
Center. The initial term of this agreement was for a five-year term commencing July 1, 2016 
“Commencement Date” for law enforcement services, and January 1, 2017 for fire suppression 
services. Both agreements for law enforcement services and fire suppression services were 
amended effective as of July 1, 2020, under similar terms and conditions as the original 
agreements. 
 
The City’s obligation is to provide the Medical Center with law enforcement services, including 
enhanced staffing through the City’s contract with the San Bernardino County Sheriff’s 
Department and provide the Medical Center with fire suppression services through the Loma 
Linda Fire Department, by enhancing current Fire Department staffing as reasonably 
appropriate to provide necessary fire suppression services. The City shall be responsible for all 
necessary equipment purchases. 
 
The Medical Center’s obligation is to support the law enforcement services in the City by paying 
a mitigation fee equal to the amount actually charged to the City by the San Bernardino County 
Sheriff’s Department for such services. The mitigation fee shall be payable to the City on the 
first day of each month. Any changes in related expenses outlined in agreement will be billed 
quarterly. 
 
The City shall credit the Medical Center for the mitigation fee to the extent the increase in the 
City’s portion of sales taxes generated by the Loma Linda Mercantile for the prior fiscal year 
exceeds $850,000, but not to exceed the actual cost incurred by the City for the agreed upon 
services. Such credits may be adjusted for any changes to the allocation of sales taxes. 
 
As of June 30, 2022, the City has accrued a liability due to the Medical Center in the amount of 
$505,370, for the excess sales tax, which is shown as Due to other Agency on the General 
Fund. 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-85- 


Note 18:  NET POSITION 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
 
Net position for governmental activities and business-type activities is classified as 1) net 
investments in capital assets, 2) restricted, or 3) unrestricted. Net position that was classified as 
net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2022, was determined as follows: 


Governmental 
Activities


Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 54,668,183$  
Less: lease liability (82,500)          


Net investment in capital assets 54,585,683$  


 


Loma Linda Total
Water Sewer Connected Enterprise


Enterprise Capital Communities Funds


Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 34,047,451$ 2,980,031$ 3,999,839$  41,027,321$ 


Less capital related debt balance:
Outstanding principal balance of 2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bond (4,480,000)    -              -                   (4,480,000)    
Outstnding principal balance of 1978 Water Bonds (General Obligation) (10,000)         (10,000)         
Outstanding unamortized bond premium balance (40,229)         -              -                   (40,229)         
Lease liability (43,086)         (24,361)       -                   (67,447)         


Net investment in capital assets 29,474,136$ 2,955,670$ 3,999,839$  36,429,645$ 


Business-type Activities


 
 
Note 19:  PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT 
 
Beginning fund balance and net position has been restated to properly record a notes 
receivable from a developer as follows: 
 


Governmental Funds
Housing Authority


Fund balance, beginning of year, as previously reported 16,934,910$           
Prior period restatement 400,000                  
Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated 17,334,910$           


Governmental Activities


Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported 110,610,391$         
Prior period restatement 400,000                  
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 111,010,391$         


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 







 


-86- 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-87- 


1. BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
A.  General Budget Policies 
 
The City Council approves each year’s budget submitted by the City Manager prior to the 
beginning of the new fiscal year. Public hearings are conducted prior to its adoption by the 
Council. Supplemental appropriations, where required during the period, are also approved by 
the Council. Intradepartmental budget changes are approved by the City Manager. In most 
cases, expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the department level. At fiscal year-end, 
all operating budget appropriations lapse. 
 
B.  Basis of Accounting 
 
Budgets for governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgets were legally adopted for all governmental funds with the 
exception of the Traffic Congestion Relief Grant Fund, Asset Forfeiture Fund and the Water 
Bond Redemption Fund.  
 
C.  Budgets 
 
Excess of expenditures over appropriations are as follows: 
 


Fund Appropriated Expended Excess
General Fund:
General government - city council 174,300$             181,978$             (7,678)$                
Community development - parks 1,083,600            1,118,027            (34,427)                
Public works - refuse 1,100,700            1,357,360            (256,660)              
Nonmajor Funds:
CASp CERT & Training -                       534                      (534)                     
Measure I 423,000               424,222               (1,222)                  
Landscape Maintenance District 534,685               558,891               (24,206)                
Traffic Impact 151,300               167,344               (16,044)                
Federal/State Construction 192,600               192,620               (20)                       
Loma Linda Financing Authority 300                      314                      (14)                       


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-88- 


1. BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING, Continued 
 
C.  Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
 
The following is the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund. 
 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Taxes 9,169,300$     11,215,300$   12,255,309$  1,040,009$    
Licenses and permits 442,100          644,700          674,337         29,637           
Intergovernmental 5,520,100       2,794,000       2,792,000      (2,000)            
Charges for services 3,849,100       4,037,900       4,663,882      625,982         
Use of money and property 444,000          404,000          317,009         (86,991)          
Fines and forfeitures 5,000              5,000              7,938             2,938             
Miscellaneous 2,949,400       3,663,900       3,618,539      (45,361)          


Total revenues 22,379,000     22,764,800     24,329,014    1,564,214      


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government
City council 166,000 174,300 181,978 (7,678)            
City clerk 255,800 230,000 195,210 34,790           
City manager 381,300 398,800 355,661 43,139           
Finance 557,400 582,300 517,918 64,382           
Information system 212,000 173,655 161,721 11,934           
Senior Center 94,300 94,500 40,078 54,422           
General government 625,700 2,681,800 1,640,635 1,041,165      


Public safety
Parking control 235,400 240,600 221,941 18,659           
Fire prevention 349,500 360,500 323,463 37,037           
Fire and rescue services 7,088,400 8,143,400 8,064,358 79,042           
Disaster preparedness 360,400 259,500 240,003 19,497           
Police 6,440,800 6,541,400 6,538,614 2,786             


Community development
Planning 430,100 380,350 282,758 97,592           
Planning - building and safety 325,900 307,900 274,237 33,663           
Code enforcement 280,200 309,200 299,945 9,255             
Parks 1,050,900 1,083,600 1,118,027 (34,427)          


Public works
Traffic safety 192,400 216,000 191,380 24,620           
Engineering 320,900 362,700 277,491 85,209           
Street maintenance 716,700 855,700 751,731 103,969         
Facilities maintenance 380,100 416,100 384,481 31,619           
Refuse 1,092,800 1,100,700 1,357,360 (256,660)        
Recycling 25,400 39,500 26,113 13,387           
Vehicle maintenance -                  400 (473)               873                


Capital outlay 606,300          755,795          410,991         344,804         
Debt service:


Principal retirement -                  -                  13,760           (13,760)          
Interest and fiscal charges -                  -                  2,546             (2,546)            


Total expenditures 22,188,700     25,708,700     23,871,927    1,836,773      


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 190,300          (2,943,900)      457,087         3,400,987      


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from disposal of assets -                  -                  125,024         125,024         
Transfers in 751,400          3,729,900       3,851,791      121,891         
Transfers out (120,000)         (120,000)         (120,000)        -                 
Lease acquisition -                  -                  93,518           93,518           


Total other financing sources (uses) 631,400          3,609,900       3,950,333      340,433         


Net change in fund balance 821,700          666,000          4,407,420      3,741,420      


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 12,604,849     12,604,849     12,604,849    -                 


End of year 13,426,549$   13,270,849$   17,012,269$  3,741,420$    


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-89- 


1. BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING, Continued 
 
C.  Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Continued 
 
The following is the budgetary comparison schedule for the Loma Linda Housing Authority 
Fund. 
 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Charges for services 1,400$           1,400$           1,438$           38$                
Use of money and property 178,000         169,600         126,541         (43,059)          
Miscellaneous 500                2,000             22,400           20,400           


Total revenues 179,900         173,000         150,379         (22,621)          


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Community development 115,626         116,326         45,783           70,543           
Capital outlay 50,500           50,500           910                49,590           
Debt service:


Principal retirement 147                147                147                -                 
Interest and fiscal charges 27                  27                  27                  -                 


Total expenditures 166,300         167,000         46,867           120,133         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 13,600           6,000             103,512         97,512           


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Lease acquisition -                 -                 910                910                


Total other financing sources (uses) -                 -                 910                910                


Net change in fund balance 13,600           6,000             104,422         98,422           


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year, as restated 17,334,910    17,334,910    17,334,910    -                 


End of year 17,348,510$  17,340,910$  17,439,332$  98,422$         


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-90- 


1. BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING, Continued 
 
C.  Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Continued 
 
The following is the budgetary comparison schedule for the Regional Traffic Development 
Impact Fund. 
 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 50,000$         25,000$         (103,911)$      (128,911)$      
Developer fees 788,600         767,600         300,571         (467,029)        


Total revenues 838,600         792,600         196,660         (595,940)        


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 838,600         792,600         196,660         (595,940)        


Net change in fund balance 838,600         792,600         196,660         (595,940)        


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 11,306,758    11,306,758    11,306,758    -                 


End of year 12,145,358$  12,099,358$  11,503,418$  (595,940)$      


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-91- 


2. SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS – LAST TEN YEARS* 
 


Measurement Period 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost 18,964$             19,486$             20,022$             23,526$             24,173$             
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 56,269               59,253               62,267               58,442               61,981               
Changes in assumptions -                     -                     (23,320)              -                     44,181               
Experience gains/(losses) -                     -                     (104,915)            (30,790)              (88,498)              
Benefit payments (31,110)              (35,165)              (13,410)              -                     (32,698)              
Net change in Total OPEB Liability 44,123               43,574               (59,356)              51,178               9,139                 
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 810,182             854,305             897,879             838,523             889,701             
Total OPEB Liability - ending (a) 854,305             897,879             838,523             889,701             898,840             


Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions as benefits payments 120,160             35,165               23,320               -                     -                     
Investment income 29,955               24,458               28,324               16,215               141,595             
Investment gains/losses -                     4,140                 (4,955)                -                     -                     
Actual benefit payments from employer (31,110)              (35,165)              (23,320)              -                     (32,698)              
Administrative expense (156)                   (651)                   (81)                     (223)                   (194)                   
Employer contributions to trust -                     -                     54,000               44,095               32,698               
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 118,849             27,947               77,288               60,087               141,401             
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning 230,870             349,719             377,666             454,954             515,041             
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending (b) 349,719             377,666             454,954             515,041             656,442             


Net OPEB Liability - ending (a) - (b) 504,586$           520,213$           383,569$           374,660$           242,398$           


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 40.94% 42.06% 54.26% 57.89% 73.03%


Covered-employee payroll 5,508,005$        5,953,235$        6,292,694$        6,511,763$        6,551,541$        


Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.16% 8.74% 6.10% 5.75% 3.70%


Notes to schedule:


*Fiscal Year 2017-18 was the first year of implementation.


*Historical information is required only for measurement period for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years' information will be displayed 
up to 10 years as information becomes available.


Contributions are fixed and not based on a measure of pay, therefore covered-employee payroll is used in this schedule.







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-92- 


3. SCHEDULE OF OPEB PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS – LAST TEN YEARS* 
 


Fiscal Year


Statutorily 
required 


contributions


Contributions in 
relation to the 


statutorily 
required 


contributions


Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess)


Covered-
employee 


payroll


Contributions as 
a percentage of 


covered-
employee payroll


2017-18 -$                   -$                   -$                   5,953,235$        0.00%
2018-19 30,680               (54,000)              (23,320)              6,292,694          0.86%
2019-20 29,700               (44,095)              (14,395)              6,511,763          0.68%
2020-21 32,698               -                     32,698               6,551,541          0.00%
2021-22 30,024               (31,000)              (976)                   6,698,125          0.46%


Notes to schedule:


Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:


Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Inflation 2.5% per annum
Salary Increases


Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of OPEB plan investments expense, including inflation.


Retirement Age Retirement rates developed in the 2017 CalPERS Experiences Study.


Mortality


*Fiscal Year 2017-18 was the first year of implementation.


Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, one year prior to the end of the
fiscal year in which contributions are reported. Contributions are fixed and not based on a measure of pay, therefore
covered-employee payroll is used in this schedule.


2.75% per year, since benefits are not related to pay, this is used only to 
allocate the cost of benefits between service years


Mortality assumptions are based on the 2017 CalPERS Active Mortality for 
Miscellaneous and Safety Employees tables created by CalPERS.


*Historically information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years'
information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-93- 


4. SCHEDULE OF THE PLAN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE PLAN'S NET PENSION 
      ASSET AND RELATED RATIOS AS OF THE MEASUREMENT DATE  
    LAST 10 YEARS* 
 


Employer's 
Proportionate Pension's Plans 


Employer's Share of the Fiduciary Net
Employer's Proportion Collective Net Position as a 


Proportion of Share of the Pension Percentage of
the Collective Collective Net Liability (Asset) the Total
Net Pension Pension as a Percentage Pension


Liability (Asset)1 Liability (Asset) Covered Payroll of Covered Payroll Liability (Asset)


6/30/2014 0.17451% 10,859,039$    5,271,125$      206.01% 78.28%
6/30/2015 0.16141% 11,079,145      5,387,220        205.66% 78.45%
6/30/2016 0.16353% 14,150,367      5,502,314        257.17% 73.82%
6/30/2017 0.16386% 16,250,803      5,572,009        291.65% 72.89%
6/30/2018 0.16703% 16,095,049      6,017,238        267.48% 74.82%
6/30/2019 0.08302% 8,506,850        6,356,698        133.82% 87.62%
6/30/2020 0.06427% 6,992,959        6,562,966        106.55% 89.97%
6/30/2021 -0.45378% (2,454,170)       6,602,744        -37.17% 103.40%


Measurement 
Date


1 Proportion of the collective net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes


* Measurement date 6/30/2014 (fiscal year 2015) was the first year of implementation.


both the Miscellaneous and Safety Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool.


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-94- 


5. SCHEDULE OF PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS  
      LAST 10 YEARS* 
 


Contribution in
Relation to the Contributions as


Actuarially actuarially Contribution a Percentage of
Determined Determined Deficiency Covered


Contributions Contributions (Excess) Covered Payroll Payroll


2014-15 1,047,183$      (1,047,183)$     -$                 5,387,220$            18.22%
2015-16 1,232,549        (1,232,549)       -                   5,502,314              22.88%
2016-17 1,374,037        (1,374,037)       -                   5,572,009              24.97%
2017-18 1,526,424        (1,526,424)       -                   6,017,238              25.37%
2018-19 1,779,590        (10,279,590)     (8,500,000)       6,356,698              28.00%
2019-20 1,711,873        (4,556,920)       (2,845,047)       6,562,966              26.08%
2020-21 1,659,841        (1,659,841)       -                   6,602,744              25.14%
2021-22 1,790,643        (3,090,643)       (1,300,000)       6,762,128              26.48%


* Measurement date 6/30/2014 (fiscal year 2015) was the first year of implementation.


Notes to Schedule:


Fiscal Year


Changes in Benefit Terms: There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public Agency
Pool. Additionally, the figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from Golden
Handshakes that occurred after the June 30, 2020 valuation date, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material
to the Public Agency Pool.


Changes in Assumptions: There were no assumption changes for 2021. For 2020, the Plan adopted a new


amortization policy effective with the 2019 actuarial valuation. The new amortization policy shortens the period over


which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 30 years to 20 years with the payments computed as a level


dollar amount. In addition, the new policy does not utilize a five-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases


attributable to assumption changes and non-investment gains/losses. The new policy also does not utilize a five-year


ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These changes apply only to new UAL bases established on or after June


30, 2019. There were no changes in assumptions in 2019. In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were


changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017.


There were no changes in the discount rate in 2019. In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.65


percent to 7.15 percent. In 2016, there were no changes in the discount rate. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an


adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction


for pension plan administrative expense). In 2014, amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate.  
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 


 







 


-95- 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 







 


-96- 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BUDGETARY 
COMPARISON SCHEDULES 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Special Projects Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Major Governmental Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-97- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 1,094,700$    1,072,400$    1,045,628$    (26,772)$        


Total revenues 1,094,700      1,072,400      1,045,628      (26,772)          


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public works 200,300         200,300         162,323         37,977           
Capital outlay 1,027,300      1,049,300      866,099         183,201         


Total expenditures 1,227,600      1,249,600      1,028,422      221,178         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (132,900)        (177,200)        17,206           194,406         


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                 -                 33,431           33,431           


Total other financing sources (uses) -                 -                 33,431           33,431           


Net change in fund balance (132,900)        (177,200)        50,637           227,837         


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 5,798,828      5,798,828      5,798,828      -                 


End of year 5,665,928$    5,621,628$    5,849,465$    227,837$       


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Park Development Capital Projects Fund 
Major Governmental Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-98- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 10,000$         2,500$           (7,921)$          (10,421)$        
Developer fees 2,123,600      1,929,500      405,340         (1,524,160)     


Total revenues 2,133,600      1,932,000      397,419         (1,534,581)     


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Community development 122,600         126,600         96,216           30,384           
Capital outlay 604,200         710,200         481,059         229,141         


Total expenditures 726,800         836,800         577,275         259,525         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,406,800      1,095,200      (179,856)        (1,275,056)     


Net change in fund balance 1,406,800      1,095,200      (179,856)        (1,275,056)     


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year (1,737,121)     (1,737,121)     (1,737,121)     -                 


End of year (330,321)$      (641,921)$      (1,916,977)$   (1,275,056)$   


Budgeted Amounts


 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 







 


-99- 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL  
FUNDS  


COMBINING SCHEDULES 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 







 


-100- 


Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 
Special Revenue Funds 
 
The Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted for expenditures related to specific purposes. 
 
Traffic Safety Fund – This fund is to account for monies received from parking control violation 
fines. 
 
Gas Tax Fund – This fund is to account for monies received and expended from the state and 
county gas allocation. 
 
CASp CERT & Training – This fund is used to collect and track a set fee included in each 
business license to be used for increased certified access specialist (CASp) training and 
certification within the City and to facilitate compliance with construction-related accessibility 
requirements. The fee was established by the state in the California Government Code 4467. 
 
Measure I Fund – This fund is to account for monies received from the County of one-half of 
one percent of retail transactions and use tax. 
 
Measure I MSART Fund – This fund is to track projects that fall under the Measure I Valley 
Major Arterial Street Program – Arterial Sub-Program. The funding is distributed by San 
Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA) when they do a Capital Project Needs 
Analysis (CPNA) and it is to be used on major street and arterial projects identified in the five 
year plan and that will serve the regional area. 
 
Street Lighting District Fund – This fund is to account for monies received from property 
assessments restricted to fund district street lighting activities. 
 
Landscape Maintenance District Fund – This fund is to account for monies received from 
property assessments restricted to fund district landscaping activities. 
 
Air Quality Management District Fund – This fund is to account for monies received from 
AB2766 license fees. 
 
Public Improvement Per MOU Fund – This fund is to manage the Stewart Street Pedestrian 
Bridge project. The funding will be received from Loma Linda University. 
 
Asset Forfeiture Fund – This fund is to account for assets seized by law enforcement. 


*Note: this fund had no legally adopted budget in FY 2021-2022. 
 
Community Development Block Grant Fund – This fund is to account for Federal grants 
received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and expended in community 
development. 
 
Grant Fund – This fund is to account for miscellaneous grants provided by Federal, State and 
County agencies such as the Code Enforcement Grant Program to purchase capital items 
related to Code Enforcement and California Healthy Cities to promote health and physical 
activity for Loma Linda residents. 







 


-101- 


Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 
Special Revenue Funds, Continued 
 
Citizens Option for Public Safety Fund – This fund is to account for AB3229 Public Safety 
Grant revenue received from the State and expended for front-line law enforcement. 
 
Traffic Congestion Relief Grant Fund – This fund is to account for allocation from the state for 
street or road maintenance or reconstruction. The City is required to maintain existing 
commitment of general funds for street or roadwork in order to remain eligible for allocation of 
the specified funds.  


*Note: this fund had no legally adopted budget in FY 2021-2022. 
 
Development Agreement Consideration Fund – This fund is to account for the monies 
received from developers to produce, improve, or preserve affordable housing within 
Redevelopment Project Areas that meet the needs to those whose income is 80% of the county 
median or below. 
 
American Rescue Plan Act Fund – This fund provides relief to the City for the negative 
impacts caused from the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
Capital Projects Funds 
 
The Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities by the City except for those financed by Proprietary 
Funds. The Capital Projects Funds account for the following projects: 
 
Storm Drain Fund – This fund is to account for developer fees collected and expended for 
improving and expanding the storm drain system city-wide. 
 
Traffic Impact Fund – This fund is to account for developer fees collected and expended for 
major traffic control devices necessitated by development. 
 
Fire Facilities Fund – This fund is to account for developer fees collected and expended for 
major fire facilities and equipment necessitated by development. 
 
General Facilities Fund – This fund is to account for developer fees collected and expended 
for major general facilities necessitated by development. 
 
Federal/State Construction Fund – This fund is to account for miscellaneous grants provided 
by Federal, State and County agencies and expended for various street, park and recreation 
purposes. 
 
Public Meeting Facilities Fund – This fund is to account for developer fees collected and 
expended for public meeting facilities as necessitated by development. 
 
Public Library Facilities Fund – This fund is to account for developer fees collected and 
expended for public library facilities as necessitated by development. 







 


-102- 


Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 


Capital Projects Funds, Continued 
 
Art in Public Places Fund – This fund is to account for developer fees collected and expended 
for art in public places as necessitated by development. 
 
Capital Projects Bond Proceeds Fund – This fund is used to track proceeds from bonds 
originally issued by the former Redevelopment agency and transferred to the City upon 
dissolution and after approval was received by the state Department of Finance for the 
construction of public works projects originally identified in the bond issuance. 
 
Debt Service Funds 
 
The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources and the payment of general 
long-term debt principal and interest of the City's related entities in the following funds: 
 
Water Bond Redemption Fund – This fund is to account for the contribution from the Water 
Operations Fund and Water Acquisition Fund for the payment of principal and interest on Water 
Enterprise general obligation bonds issued to complete water system capital projects. 


*Note: this fund had no legally adopted budget in FY 2021-2022 
 
Loma Linda Financing Authority Fund – This fund is used to jointly exercise powers of the 
City and Redevelopment Agency and to establish a vehicle to reduce local borrowing costs and 
promote greater use of existing and new financial instruments. 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2022 


 


-103- 


Traffic Gas CASp Cert &
Safety Tax Training Measure I


ASSETS
Cash and investments -$                      66,971$                 30,329$                 501,227$               
Receivables:


Accounts 2,608                     -                        213                        -                        
Taxes -                        135,822                 -                        -                        
Interest -                        -                        -                        812                        
Contract and loans -                        -                        -                        -                        


Due from other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        
Due from other governments 5,403                     -                        -                        172,261                 
Prepaid items -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total assets 8,011$                   202,793$               30,542$                 674,300$               


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:


Accounts payable -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
Accrued liabilities -                        -                        -                        -                        
Due to other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        
Unearned revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total liabilities -                        -                        -                        -                        


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue -                        -                        -                        57,610                   


FUND BALANCE:
Restricted for:


Cultural and recreational -                        -                        -                        -                        
State mandated -                        -                        30,542                   -                        
Public safety -                        -                        -                        -                        
Street improvements 8,011                     202,793                 -                        616,690                 
Storm drains -                        -                        -                        -                        
Municipal facilities -                        -                        -                        -                        
Air quality management -                        -                        -                        -                        
Debt service -                        -                        -                        -                        
Low mod housing programs -                        -                        -                        -                        


Unassigned -                        -                        -                        -                        
Total fund balances (deficit) 8,011                     202,793                 30,542                   616,690                 


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balance 8,011$                   202,793$               30,542$                 674,300$               


Special Revenue Funds







 
 
 


(Continued) 


 


-104- 


Street Landscape Air Quality
Measure I Lighting Maintenance Management
MSART District District District


-$                      155,904$               78,308$                 15,218$                 


-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        5,646                     5,442                     -                        
-                        324                        229                        23                          
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        57                          72                          -                        


1,347,232              -                        -                        8,188                     
-                        108                        99                          -                        


1,347,232$            162,039$               84,150$                 23,429$                 


678,228$               18,876$                 28,011$                 3,047$                   
-                        266                        1,345                     -                        


422,051                 -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        


1,100,279              19,142                   29,356                   3,047                     


112,633 -                        -                        8,188                     


-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        


134,320                 142,897                 54,794                   -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        12,194                   
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        


134,320                 142,897                 54,794                   12,194                   


1,347,232$            162,039$               84,150$                 23,429$                 


Special Revenue Funds


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2022 


 


-105- 


Public Community
Improvement Asset Development Grant


Per MOU Forfeiture Block Grant Fund
ASSETS


Cash and investments 64,224$                 2$                          -$                      -$                      
Receivables:


Accounts -                        -                        -                        -                        
Taxes -                        -                        -                        -                        
Interest 118                        -                        -                        -                        
Contract and loans -                        -                        -                        -                        


Due from other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        
Due from other governments -                        -                        122,712                 157,546                 
Prepaid items -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total assets 64,342$                 2$                          122,712$               157,546$               


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:


Accounts payable -$                      -$                      50,140$                 498$                      
Accrued liabilities -                        -                        -                        -                        
Due to other funds -                        -                        73,246                   130,923                 
Unearned revenue -                        -                        -                        10,093                   


Total liabilities -                        -                        123,386                 141,514                 


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue -                        -                        32,535                   157,546                 


FUND BALANCE:
Restricted for:


Cultural and recreational -                        -                        -                        -                        
State mandated -                        -                        -                        -                        
Public safety -                        2                            -                        -                        
Street improvements 64,342                   -                        -                        -                        
Storm drains -                        -                        -                        -                        
Municipal facilities -                        -                        -                        -                        
Air quality management -                        -                        -                        -                        
Debt service -                        -                        -                        -                        
Low mod housing programs -                        -                        -                        -                        


Unassigned -                        -                        (33,209)                 (141,514)               
Total fund balances (deficit) 64,342                   2                            (33,209)                 (141,514)               


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balance 64,342$                 2$                          122,712$               157,546$               


Special Revenue Funds







 
 
 


(Continued) 


 


-106- 


Citizens Option Traffic Development American Total
for Public Congestion Agreement Rescue  Special


Safety Fund Relief Grant Consideration Plan Act Revenue Funds


411,986$               1,720$                   194,731$               -$                      1,520,620$            


-                        -                        -                        -                        2,821                     
-                        -                        -                        -                        146,910                 
942                        3                            359                        -                        2,810                     
-                        -                        20,598                   -                        20,598                   
-                        -                        -                        -                        129                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        1,813,342              
-                        -                        -                        -                        207                        


412,928$               1,723$                   215,688$               -$                      3,507,437$            


-$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      778,800$               
-                        -                        -                        -                        1,611                     
871                        -                        -                        -                        627,091                 


417,301                 -                        -                        -                        427,394                 
418,172                 -                        -                        -                        1,834,896              


-                        -                        -                        -                        368,512                 


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        30,542                   
-                        -                        -                        -                        2                            
-                        1,723                     -                        -                        1,225,570              
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        12,194                   
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        215,688                 -                        215,688                 


(5,244)                   -                        -                        -                        (179,967)               
(5,244)                   1,723                     215,688                 -                        1,304,029              


412,928$               1,723$                   215,688$               -$                      3,507,437$            


Special Revenue Funds


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2022 


 


-107- 


Storm Traffic Fire General
Drain Impact Facilities Facilities


ASSETS
Cash and investments 1,130,217$            2,588,908$            1,588,190$            366,968$               
Receivables:


Accounts -                        -                        -                        -                        
Taxes -                        -                        -                        -                        
Interest 2,068                     5,429                     2,909                     693                        
Contract and loans -                        -                        -                        -                        


Due from other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        
Due from other governments -                        -                        -                        -                        
Prepaid items -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total assets 1,132,285$            2,594,337$            1,591,099$            367,661$               


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:


Accounts payable -$                      430,113$               -$                      6,641$                   
Accrued liabilities -                        -                        -                        -                        
Due to other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        
Unearned revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total liabilities -                        430,113                 -                        6,641                     


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        


FUND BALANCE:
Restricted for:


Cultural and recreational -                        -                        -                        -                        
State mandated -                        -                        -                        -                        
Public safety -                        -                        1,591,099              -                        
Street improvements -                        2,164,224              -                        -                        
Storm drains 1,132,285              -                        -                        -                        
Municipal facilities -                        -                        -                        361,020                 
Air quality management -                        -                        -                        -                        
Debt service -                        -                        -                        -                        
Low mod housing programs -                        -                        -                        -                        


Unassigned -                        -                        -                        -                        
Total fund balances (deficit) 1,132,285              2,164,224              1,591,099              361,020                 


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balance 1,132,285$            2,594,337$            1,591,099$            367,661$               


Capital Projects Funds


 
 







 
 
 


(Continued) 


 


-108- 


Total
Public Public Art in Capital Capital


Federal/State Meeting Library Public Project Bond Projects
Construction Facilities Facilities Places Proceeds Funds


-$                      700,207$               30,917$                 252,370$               1,112,289$                   7,770,066$            


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        
-                        1,277                     58                          492                        2,266                            15,192                   
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        


192,620                 -                        -                        -                        -                                192,620                 
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        


192,620$               701,484$               30,975$                 252,862$               1,114,555$                   7,977,878$            


-$                      -$                      -$                      1,727$                   -$                              438,481$               
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        


136,232                 -                        -                        -                        -                                136,232                 
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        


136,232                 -                        -                        1,727                     -                                574,713                 


192,620                 -                        -                        -                        -                                192,620                 


-                        -                        30,975                   251,135                 -                                282,110                 
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                1,591,099              
-                        -                        -                        -                        1,114,555                     3,278,779              
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                1,132,285              
-                        701,484                 -                        -                        -                                1,062,504              
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                                -                        


(136,232)               -                        -                        -                        -                                (136,232)               
(136,232)               701,484                 30,975                   251,135                 1,114,555                     7,210,545              


192,620$               701,484$               30,975$                 252,862$               1,114,555$                   7,977,878$            


Capital Projects Funds







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2022 


 


-109- 


Total Total
Water Bond Loma Linda Debt Nonmajor
Redemption Financing Service Governmental


Fund Authority Funds Funds
ASSETS


Cash and investments 12,756$                        39,754$                 52,510$                 9,343,196$            
Receivables:


Accounts -                                -                        -                        2,821                     
Taxes -                                -                        -                        146,910                 
Interest -                                73                          73                          18,075                   
Contract and loans -                                -                        -                        20,598                   


Due from other funds -                                -                        -                        129                        
Due from other governments -                                -                        -                        2,005,962              
Prepaid items -                                -                        -                        207                        


Total assets 12,756$                        39,827$                 52,583$                 11,537,898$          


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:


Accounts payable -$                              -$                      -$                      1,217,281$            
Accrued liabilities -                                -                        -                        1,611                     
Due to other funds -                                -                        -                        763,323                 
Unearned revenue -                                -                        -                        427,394                 


Total liabilities -                                -                        -                        2,409,609              


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue -                                -                        -                        561,132                 


FUND BALANCE:
Restricted for:


Cultural and recreational -                                -                        -                        282,110                 
State mandated -                                -                        -                        30,542                   
Public safety -                                -                        -                        1,591,101              
Street improvements -                                -                        -                        4,504,349              
Storm drains -                                -                        -                        1,132,285              
Municipal facilities -                                -                        -                        1,062,504              
Air quality management -                                -                        -                        12,194                   
Debt service 12,756                          39,827                   52,583                   52,583                   
Low mod housing programs -                                -                        -                        215,688                 


Unassigned -                                -                        -                        (316,199)               
Total fund balances (deficit) 12,756                          39,827                   52,583                   8,567,157              


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balance 12,756$                        39,827$                 52,583$                 11,537,898$          


Debt Service Funds


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-110- 


Traffic Gas CASp CERT &
Safety Tax Training Measure I


REVENUES
Taxes -$                      -$                      -$                      598,123$               
Intergovernmental -                        1,139,702              -                        -                        
Charges for services -                        -                        6,526                     -                        
Use of money and property -                        -                        -                        (4,919)                   
Fines and forfeitures 69,852                   -                        -                        -                        
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        
Developer fees -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total revenues 69,852                   1,139,702              6,526                     593,204                 


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government -                        -                        -                        -                        
Public safety -                        -                        -                        -                        
Community development -                        -                        534                        -                        
Public works -                        -                        -                        -                        


Capital outlay -                        490,259                 -                        424,222                 
Debt service:


Principal retirement -                        -                        -                        -                        
Interest and fiscal charges -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total expenditures -                        490,259                 534                        424,222                 


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 69,852                   649,443                 5,992                     168,982                 


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        
Transfers out (69,529)                 (615,533)               -                        -                        
Lease acquisition -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total other financing sources (uses) (69,529)                 (615,533)               -                        -                        


Net change in fund balances 323                        33,910                   5,992                     168,982                 


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)


Beginning of year 7,688                     168,883                 24,550                   447,708                 
End of year 8,011$                   202,793$               30,542$                 616,690$               


Special Revenue Funds


 







 
 
 


(Continued) 


 


-111- 


Street Landscape Air Quality
Measure I Lighting Maintenance Management
MSART District District District


-$                      361,154$               420,419$               -$                      
1,234,599              -                        -                        23,685                   


-                        -                        -                        -                        
344                        (1,475)                   (610)                      (138)                      
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        9                            9                            -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        


1,234,943              359,688                 419,818                 23,547                   


-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        38,598                   
-                        -                        558,891                 -                        
-                        351,034                 -                        -                        


1,282,806              1,234                     1,127                     -                        


-                        200                        182                        -                        
-                        37                          33                          -                        


1,282,806              352,505                 560,233                 38,598                   


(47,863)                 7,183                     (140,415)               (15,051)                 


-                        -                        120,000 -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        1,234                     1,127                     -                        
-                        1,234                     121,127                 -                        


(47,863)                 8,417                     (19,288)                 (15,051)                 


182,183                 134,480                 74,082                   27,245                   
134,320$               142,897$               54,794$                 12,194$                 


Special Revenue Funds


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-112- 


Public Community 
Improvement Asset Development Grant


Per MOU Forfeiture Block Grant Fund
REVENUES


Taxes -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
Intergovernmental -                        -                        148,396                 36,940                   
Charges for services -                        -                        -                        -                        
Use of money and property (579)                      -                        8                            -                        
Fines and forfeitures -                        -                        -                        -                        
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        
Developer fees -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total revenues (579)                      -                        148,404                 36,940                   


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government -                        -                        -                        -                        
Public safety -                        -                        -                        -                        
Community development -                        -                        18,328                   129,552                 
Public works -                        -                        -                        -                        


Capital outlay -                        -                        96,206                   -                        
Debt service:


Principal retirement -                        -                        -                        -                        
Interest and fiscal charges -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total expenditures -                        -                        114,534                 129,552                 


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (579)                      -                        33,870                   (92,612)                 


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        
Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        
Lease acquisition -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        


Net change in fund balances (579)                      -                        33,870                   (92,612)                 


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)


Beginning of year 64,921                   2                            (67,079)                 (48,902)                 
End of year 64,342$                 2$                          (33,209)$               (141,514)$             


Special Revenue Funds







 
 
 


(Continued) 


 


-113- 


Citizens Option Traffic Development American Total
for Public Congestion Agreement Rescue  Special


Safety Fund Relief Fund Consideration Plan Act Revenue Funds


-$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      1,379,696$            
104,848                 -                        -                        2,928,307              5,616,477              


-                        -                        -                        -                        6,526                     
(3,439)                   (16)                        (869)                      -                        (11,693)                 


-                        -                        -                        -                        69,852                   
-                        -                        -                        -                        18                          
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        


101,409                 (16)                        (869)                      2,928,307              7,060,876              


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
2,760                     -                        -                        -                        41,358                   


-                        -                        -                        -                        707,305                 
-                        -                        -                        -                        351,034                 
-                        -                        -                        -                        2,295,854              


-                        -                        -                        -                        382                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        70                          


2,760                     -                        -                        -                        3,396,003              


98,649                   (16)                        (869)                      2,928,307              3,664,873              


-                        -                        -                        -                        120,000                 
(103,902)               -                        -                        (2,928,307)            (3,717,271)            


-                        -                        -                        -                        2,361                     
(103,902)               -                        -                        (2,928,307)            (3,594,910)            


(5,253)                   (16)                        (869)                      -                        69,963                   


9                            1,739                     216,557                 -                        1,234,066              
(5,244)$                 1,723$                   215,688$               -$                      1,304,029$            


Special Revenue Funds


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-114- 


Storm Traffic Fire General
Drain Impact Facilities Facilities


REVENUES
Taxes -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
Intergovernmental -                        -                        -                        -                        
Charges for services 29,493                   -                        -                        -                        
Use of money and property (10,234)                 (21,704)                 (14,376)                 (3,277)                   
Fines and forfeitures -                        -                        -                        -                        
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        
Developer fees -                        147,463                 33,192                   23,322                   


Total revenues 19,259                   125,759                 18,816                   20,045                   


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government -                        -                        -                        -                        
Public safety -                        -                        -                        -                        
Community development -                        -                        -                        -                        
Public works -                        167,344                 -                        4,584                     


Capital outlay -                        858,174                 -                        23,511                   
Debt service:


Principal retirement -                        -                        -                        -                        
Interest and fiscal charges -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total expenditures -                        1,025,518              -                        28,095                   


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 19,259                   (899,759)               18,816                   (8,050)                   


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        
Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        
Lease acquisition -                        -                        -                        -                        


Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        


Net change in fund balances 19,259                   (899,759)               18,816                   (8,050)                   


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)


Beginning of year 1,113,026              3,063,983              1,572,283              369,070                 
End of year 1,132,285$            2,164,224$            1,591,099$            361,020$               


Capital Projects Funds







 
 
 


(Continued) 


 


-115- 


Total
Public Public Art in Capital Capital 


Federal/State Meeting Library Public Project Bond Projects
Construction Facilities Facilities Places Proceeds Funds


-$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                            -$                      
-                        -                        -                        -                        35,463                        35,463                   
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              29,493                   
27                          (6,387)                   (278)                      (2,157)                   (9,334)                         (67,720)                 


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        54,311                   -                        31,417                   -                              289,705                 
27                          47,924                   (278)                      29,260                   26,129                        286,941                 


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        12,039                   27,936                        211,903                 


192,620                 -                        -                        61,738                   143,263                      1,279,306              


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        


192,620                 -                        -                        73,777                   171,199                      1,491,209              


(192,593)               47,924                   (278)                      (44,517)                 (145,070)                     (1,204,268)            


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                              -                        


(192,593)               47,924                   (278)                      (44,517)                 (145,070)                     (1,204,268)            


56,361                   653,560                 31,253                   295,652                 1,259,625                   8,414,813              
(136,232)$             701,484$               30,975$                 251,135$               1,114,555$                 7,210,545$            


Capital Projects Funds


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-116- 


Total Total
Water Bond Loma Linda Debt Nonmajor
Redemption Financing Service Governmental


Fund Authority Funds Funds
REVENUES


Taxes -$                      -$                      -$                      1,379,696$            
Intergovernmental -                        -                        -                        5,651,940              
Charges for services -                        -                        -                        36,019                   
Use of money and property -                        (359)                      (359)                      (79,772)                 
Fines and forfeitures -                        -                        -                        69,852                   
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        18                          
Developer fees -                        -                        -                        289,705                 


Total revenues -                        (359)                      (359)                      7,347,458              


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government -                        314                        314                        314                        
Public safety -                        -                        -                        41,358                   
Community development -                        -                        -                        707,305                 
Public works -                        -                        -                        562,937                 


Capital outlay -                        -                        -                        3,575,160              
Debt service:


Principal retirement -                        -                        -                        382                        
Interest and fiscal charges -                        -                        -                        70                          


Total expenditures -                        314                        314                        4,887,526              


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                        (673)                      (673)                      2,459,932              


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                        -                        -                        120,000                 
Transfers out -                        -                        -                        (3,717,271)            
Lease acquisition -                        -                        -                        2,361                     


Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        (3,594,910)            


Net change in fund balances -                        (673)                      (673)                      (1,134,978)            


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)


Beginning of year 12,756                   40,500                   53,256                   9,702,135              
End of year 12,756$                 39,827$                 52,583$                 8,567,157$            


Debt Service Funds


 
 







 


-117- 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL BUDGETARY 
COMPARISON SCHEDULES 


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Traffic Safety 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-118- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures 40,000$         40,000$         69,852$         29,852$         


Total revenues 40,000           40,000           69,852           29,852           


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 40,000           40,000           69,852           29,852           


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (40,000)          (40,000)          (69,529)          (29,529)          


Total other financing sources (uses) (40,000)          (40,000)          (69,529)          (29,529)          


Net change in fund balance -                 -                 323                323                


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 7,688             7,688             7,688             -                 


End of year 7,688$           7,688$           8,011$           323$              


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Gas Tax 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-119- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,078,400$    1,172,900$    1,139,702$    (33,198)$        


Total revenues 1,078,400      1,172,900      1,139,702      (33,198)          


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 355,000         494,900         490,259         4,641             


Total expenditures 355,000         494,900         490,259         4,641             


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 723,400         678,000         649,443         (28,557)          


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (613,500)        (663,700)        (615,533)        48,167           


Total other financing sources (uses) (613,500)        (663,700)        (615,533)        48,167           


Net change in fund balance 109,900         14,300           33,910           19,610           


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 168,883         168,883         168,883         -                 


End of year 278,783$       183,183$       202,793$       19,610$         


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
CASp CERT & Training 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-120- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Charges for services 2,000$           6,000$           6,526$           526$              


Total revenues 2,000             6,000             6,526             526                


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Community development -                 -                 534                (534)               


Total expenditures -                 -                 534                (534)               


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 2,000             6,000             5,992             (8)                   


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out -                 (600)               -                 600                


Total other financing sources (uses) -                 (600)               -                 600                


Net change in fund balance 2,000             5,400             5,992             592                


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 6,043             6,043             24,550           18,507           


End of year 8,043$           11,443$         30,542$         19,099$         


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Measure I  
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-121- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Taxes 423,000$       484,300$       598,123$       113,823$       
Use of money and property 1,000             1,000             (4,919)            (5,919)            


Total revenues 424,000         485,300         593,204         107,904         


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 423,000         423,000         424,222         (1,222)            


Total expenditures 423,000         423,000         424,222         (1,222)            


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,000             62,300           168,982         106,682         


Net change in fund balance 1,000             62,300           168,982         106,682         


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 447,708         447,708         447,708         -                 


End of year 448,708$       510,008$       616,690$       106,682$       


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Measure I MSART 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-122- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,224,000$    1,224,000$    1,234,599$    10,599$         
Use of money and property 1,000             400                344                (56)                 


Total revenues 1,225,000      1,224,400      1,234,943      10,543           


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 1,224,500      2,274,080      1,282,806      991,274         


Total expenditures 1,224,500      2,274,080      1,282,806      991,274         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 500                (1,049,680)     (47,863)          1,001,817      


Net change in fund balance 500                (1,049,680)     (47,863)          1,001,817      


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 182,183         182,183         182,183         -                 


End of year 182,683$       (867,497)$      134,320$       1,001,817$    


Budgeted Amounts







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Street Lighting District 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-123- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Taxes 353,000$       316,000$       361,154$       45,154$         
Use of money and property 1,000             200                (1,475)            (1,675)            
Miscellaneous -                 -                 9                    9                    


Total revenues 354,000         316,200         359,688         43,488           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public works 352,763         353,363         351,034         2,329             
Capital outlay 500                500                1,234             (734)               
Debt service:


Principal retirement 200                200                200                -                 
Interest and fiscal charges 37                  37                  37                  -                 


Total expenditures 353,500         354,100         352,505         1,595             


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 500                (37,900)          7,183             45,083           


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Lease acquisition -                 -                 1,234             1,234             


Total other financing sources (uses) -                 -                 1,234             1,234             


Net change in fund balance 500                (37,900)          8,417             46,317           


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 134,480         134,480         134,480         -                 


End of year 134,980$       96,580$         142,897$       46,317$         


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Landscape Maintenance District 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-124- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Taxes 404,000$       374,000$       420,419$       46,419$         
Use of money and property 200                200                (610)               (810)               
Miscellaneous -                 -                 9                    9                    


Total revenues 404,200         374,200         419,818         45,618           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Community development 520,085         534,685         558,891         (24,206)          
Capital outlay 500                500                1,127             (627)               
Debt service:


Principal retirement 182                182                182                -                 
Interest and fiscal charges 33                  33                  33                  -                 


Total expenditures 520,800         535,400         560,233         (24,833)          


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (116,600)        (161,200)        (140,415)        20,785           


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 120,000         120,000         120,000         -                 
Lease acquisition -                 -                 1,127             1,127             


Total other financing sources (uses) 120,000         120,000         121,127         1,127             


Net change in fund balance 3,400             (41,200)          (19,288)          21,912           


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 74,082           74,082           74,082           -                 


End of year 77,482$         32,882$         54,794$         21,912$         


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Air Quality Management District 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-125- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental 30,000$         30,000$         23,685$         (6,315)$          
Use of money and property 100                100                (138)               (238)               


Total revenues 30,100           30,100           23,547           (6,553)            


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety 52,500           56,300           38,598           17,702           


Total expenditures 52,500           56,300           38,598           17,702           


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (22,400)          (26,200)          (15,051)          11,149           


Net change in fund balance (22,400)          (26,200)          (15,051)          11,149           


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 27,245           27,245           27,245           -                 


End of year 4,845$           1,045$           12,194$         11,149$         


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Public Improvements Per MOU 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-126- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 500$              200$              (579)$             (779)$             


Total revenues 500                200                (579)               (779)               


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 500                200                (579)               (779)               


Net change in fund balance 500                200                (579)               (779)               


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 64,921           64,921           64,921           -                 


End of year 65,421$         65,121$         64,342$         (779)$             


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Community Development Block Grant 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-127- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental 140,000$       328,400$       148,396$       (180,004)$      
Use of money and property -                 -                 8                    8                    


Total revenues 140,000         328,400         148,404         (179,996)        


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Community development 20,000           208,400         18,328           190,072         
Capital outlay 120,000         120,000         96,206           23,794           


Total expenditures 140,000         328,400         114,534         213,866         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                 -                 33,870           33,870           


Net change in fund balance -                 -                 33,870           33,870           


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year (67,079)          (67,079)          (67,079)          -                 


End of year (67,079)$        (67,079)$        (33,209)$        33,870$         


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Grant Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-128- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental 257,500$       257,500$       36,940$         (220,560)$      


Total revenues 257,500         257,500         36,940           (220,560)        


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Community development 257,500         257,500         129,552         127,948         


Total expenditures 257,500         257,500         129,552         127,948         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                 -                 (92,612)          (92,612)          


Net change in fund balance -                 -                 (92,612)          (92,612)          


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year (48,902)          (48,902)          (48,902)          -                 


End of year (48,902)$        (48,902)$        (141,514)$      (92,612)$        


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Citizens Option for Public Safety 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-129- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental 108,900$       108,900$       104,848$       (4,052)$          
Use of money and property 5,000             1,000             (3,439)            (4,439)            


Total revenues 113,900         109,900         101,409         (8,491)            


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety 4,600             7,600             2,760             4,840             


Total expenditures 4,600             7,600             2,760             4,840             


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 109,300         102,300         98,649           (3,651)            


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (104,300)        (104,300)        (103,902)        398                


Total other financing sources (uses) (104,300)        (104,300)        (103,902)        398                


Net change in fund balance 5,000             (2,000)            (5,253)            (3,253)            


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 9                    9                    9                    -                 


End of year 5,009$           (1,991)$          (5,244)$          (3,253)$          


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Development Agreement Consideration 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-130- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 2,100$           1,500$           (869)$             (2,369)$          


Total revenues 2,100             1,500             (869)               (2,369)            


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 2,100             1,500             (869)               (2,369)            


Net change in fund balance 2,100             1,500             (869)               (2,369)            


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 216,557         216,557         216,557         -                 


End of year 218,657$       218,057$       215,688$       (2,369)$          


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
American Rescue Plan Act 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-131- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental -$               2,928,300$    2,928,307$    7$                  


Total revenues -                 2,928,300      2,928,307      7                    


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                 2,928,300      2,928,307      7                    


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out -                 (2,928,300)     (2,928,307)     (7)                   


Total other financing sources (uses) -                 (2,928,300)     (2,928,307)     (7)                   


Net change in fund balance -                 -                 -                 -                 


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year -                 -                 -                 -                 


End of year -$               -$               -$               -$               


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Storm Drain 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-132- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Charges for services 97,500$         92,100$         29,493$         (62,607)$        
Use of money and property 8,000             2,500             (10,234)          (12,734)          


Total revenues 105,500         94,600           19,259           (75,341)          


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 105,500         94,600           19,259           (75,341)          


Net change in fund balance 105,500         94,600           19,259           (75,341)          


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 1,113,026      1,113,026      1,113,026      -                 


End of year 1,218,526$    1,207,626$    1,132,285$    (75,341)$        


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Traffic Impact 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-133- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 15,000$         7,000$           (21,704)$        (28,704)$        
Developer fees 324,300         318,200         147,463         (170,737)        


Total revenues 339,300         325,200         125,759         (199,441)        


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public works 151,300         151,300         167,344         (16,044)          
Capital outlay 776,000         1,441,420      858,174         583,246         


Total expenditures 927,300         1,592,720      1,025,518      567,202         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (588,000)        (1,267,520)     (899,759)        367,761         


Net change in fund balance (588,000)        (1,267,520)     (899,759)        367,761         


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 3,063,983      3,063,983      3,063,983      -                 


End of year 2,475,983$    1,796,463$    2,164,224$    367,761$       


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Fire Facilities 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-134- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 8,000$           3,500$           (14,376)$        (17,876)$        
Developer fees 56,600           60,400           33,192           (27,208)          


Total revenues 64,600           63,900           18,816           (45,084)          


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 64,600           63,900           18,816           (45,084)          


Net change in fund balance 64,600           63,900           18,816           (45,084)          


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 1,572,283      1,572,283      1,572,283      -                 


End of year 1,636,883$    1,636,183$    1,591,099$    (45,084)$        


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Facilities  
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-135- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 2,000$           800$              (3,277)$          (4,077)$          
Developer fees 111,800         104,300         23,322           (80,978)          


Total revenues 113,800         105,100         20,045           (85,055)          


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public works 15,600           15,600           4,584             11,016           
Capital outlay 80,000           93,700           23,511           70,189           


Total expenditures 95,600           109,300         28,095           81,205           


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 18,200           (4,200)            (8,050)            (3,850)            


Net change in fund balance 18,200           (4,200)            (8,050)            (3,850)            


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 369,070         369,070         369,070         -                 


End of year 387,270$       364,870$       361,020$       (3,850)$          


Budgeted Amounts


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Federal/State Construction 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-136- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental 192,600$       192,600$       -$               (192,600)$      
Use of money and property -                 -                 27                  27                  


Total revenues 192,600         192,600         27                  (192,573)        


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 192,600         192,600         192,620         (20)                 


Total expenditures 192,600         192,600         192,620         (20)                 


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                 -                 (192,593)        (192,593)        


Net change in fund balance -                 -                 (192,593)        (192,593)        


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 56,361           56,361           56,361           -                 


End of year 56,361$         56,361$         (136,232)$      (192,593)$      


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Public Meeting Facilities 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-137- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 4,000$           1,500$           (6,387)$          (7,887)$          


Developer fees 263,200         245,900         54,311           (191,589)        


Total revenues 267,200         247,400         47,924           (199,476)        


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 267,200         247,400         47,924           (199,476)        


Net change in fund balance 267,200         247,400         47,924           (199,476)        


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 653,560         653,560         653,560         -                 


End of year 920,760$       900,960$       701,484$       (199,476)$      


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Public Library Facilities 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-138- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 200$              100$              (278)$             (378)$             


Total revenues 200                100                (278)               (378)               


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 200                100                (278)               (378)               


Net change in fund balance 200                100                (278)               (378)               


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 31,253           31,253           31,253           -                 


End of year 31,453$         31,353$         30,975$         (378)$             


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Art in Public Places 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-139- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 2,000$           700$              (2,157)$          (2,857)$          
Developer fees 33,800           110,800         31,417           (79,383)          


Total revenues 35,800           111,500         29,260           (82,240)          


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public works 19,500           19,500           12,039           7,461             
Capital outlay 100,000         100,000         61,738           38,262           


Total expenditures 119,500         119,500         73,777           45,723           


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (83,700)          (8,000)            (44,517)          (36,517)          


Net change in fund balance (83,700)          (8,000)            (44,517)          (36,517)          


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 295,652         295,652         295,652         -                 


End of year 211,952$       287,652$       251,135$       (36,517)$        


Budgeted Amounts


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Capital Projects Bond Proceeds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-140- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Intergovernmental -$               -$               35,463$         35,463$         
Use of money and property 16,000           3,000             (9,334)            (12,334)          


Total revenues 16,000           3,000             26,129           23,129           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public works 48,900           48,900           27,936           20,964           
Capital outlay 251,000         251,000         143,263         107,737         


Total expenditures 299,900         299,900         171,199         128,701         


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (283,900)        (296,900)        (145,070)        151,830         


Net change in fund balance (283,900)        (296,900)        (145,070)        151,830         


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 1,259,625      1,259,625      1,259,625      -                 


End of year 975,725$       962,725$       1,114,555$    151,830$       


Budgeted Amounts


 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Loma Linda Financing Authority 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-141- 


Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


REVENUES
Use of money and property 200$              100$              (359)$             (459)$             


Total revenues 200                100                (359)               (459)               


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government 300                300                314                (14)                 


Total expenditures 300                300                314                (14)                 


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (100)               (200)               (673)               (473)               


Net change in fund balance (100)               (200)               (673)               (473)               


FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year 40,500           40,500           40,500           -                 


End of year 40,400$         40,300$         39,827$         (473)$             


Budgeted Amounts


 







 


-142- 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
CUSTODIAL FUNDS COMBINING SCHEDULE 


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Custodial Funds 
June 30, 2022 


 


-143- 


Custodial Funds include Association Fire Equipment Fund and Customer Deposits Fund. 
 


Association Fire 
Equipment Customer Deposits


Total Custodial 
Funds


ASSETS
Cash and investments 27,333$                  74,470$                  101,803$                


Total assets 27,333                    74,470                    101,803                  


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 344 -                          344                         
Deposits payable -                          74,470 74,470                    


Total liabilities 344                         74,470                    74,814                    


NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Restricted for other organizations 26,989$                  -$                        26,989$                  







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Custodial Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 


 


-144- 


Association Fire 
Equipment Customer Deposits


Total Custodial 
Funds


ADDITIONS
Miscellaneous 11,635$                  -$                        11,635$                  


Total additions 11,635                    -                          11,635                    


DEDUCTIONS


Miscellaneous 3,247 -                          3,247                      


Total deductions 3,247                      -                          3,247                      


Change in net position 8,388                   -                       8,388                   


NET POSITION (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year 18,601                    -                          18,601                    
End of year 26,989$                  -$                        26,989$                  


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 
 


-145- 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


STATISTICAL SECTION 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 


 







 


-146- 


Contents Page


Financial Trends 145            


Revenue Capacity 151            


Debt Capacity 164            


Demographic and Economic Information 170            


Operating Information 173            


These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services 
the City provides and the activities it performs.


STATISTICAL SECTION


This part of the City of Loma Linda's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's overall financial 
health.


These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.


These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax.


These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of 
the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional 
debt in the future.


These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.


 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Net Position by Component 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 


 


-147- 


Fiscal Year 2013 2014 2015 2016


Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets 49,923,947$     53,642,388$     55,885,140$     54,701,694$     


Restricted 29,617,713       29,305,083       27,181,403       41,158,883       


Unrestricted 814,941            2,258,815         (6,245,613)        10,216,095       


Total governmental activities net position 80,356,601$     85,206,286$     76,820,930$     106,076,672$   


Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets 39,756,680$     38,186,940$     37,347,912$     36,315,946$     


Restricted 40,839              40,839              40,840              41,054              


Unrestricted (9,127,686)        (9,816,996)        (13,846,636)      (6,145,456)        


Total business-type activities net position 30,669,833$     28,410,783$     23,542,116$     30,211,544$     


Primary government
Net investment in capital assets 89,680,627$     91,829,328$     93,233,052$     91,017,640$     


Restricted 29,658,552       29,345,922       27,222,243       41,199,937       


Unrestricted (8,312,745)        (7,558,181)        (20,092,249)      4,070,639         


Total primary government net position 111,026,434$   113,617,069$   100,363,046$   136,288,216$   


Source:  City of Loma Linda Finance Department


 
 
 







 
 
 
   


 


-148- 


2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


54,669,551$      53,645,346$      53,363,136$      52,098,547$      52,880,007$      54,585,683$      


34,485,340        40,009,123        40,255,257        41,042,155        43,777,701        43,645,029        


15,833,197        11,961,248        13,949,530        16,553,951        13,952,683        26,633,948        


104,988,088$    105,615,717$    107,567,923$    109,694,653$    110,610,391$    124,864,660$    


35,575,964$      35,053,848$      35,191,938$      35,564,416$      36,344,853$      36,429,645$      


760,313             684,561             396,401             681,788             682,253             685,433             


(7,140,329)        (7,304,285)        (8,176,541)        (8,564,601)        (8,688,855)        (5,324,916)        


29,195,948$      28,434,124$      27,411,798$      27,681,603$      28,338,251$      31,790,162$      


90,245,515$      88,699,194$      88,555,074$      87,662,963$      89,224,860$      91,015,328$      


35,245,653        40,693,684        40,651,658        41,723,943        44,459,954        44,330,462        


8,692,868          4,656,963          5,772,989          7,989,350          5,263,828          21,309,032        


134,184,036$    134,049,841$    134,979,721$    137,376,256$    138,948,642$    156,654,822$    


 
 


 
 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 


 


-149- 


Fiscal Year 2013 2014 2015 2016


Expenses


Governmental activities:


General government 1,770,611$         1,818,573$         3,387,169$         3,671,993$         


Public safety 8,747,342           8,430,753           8,772,658           9,304,542           


Community development 1,944,724           1,948,836           2,278,470           1,841,405           


Public works 4,488,436           5,451,342           3,948,235           4,676,124           


Interest on long-term debt 246,905              180,289              128,956              (12,257)               


Total governmental activities expenses 17,198,018         17,829,793         18,515,488         19,481,807         


Business-type activities:


Water acquisition 152,932              -                          32,458                47,594                


Water enterprise 6,113,936           6,414,771           6,529,987           5,697,329           


Sewer capital 4,420,067           4,135,446           4,128,121           4,100,045           


Loma Linda Connected Communities 981,448              923,887              1,183,177           1,118,342           


Total business-type activities expenses 11,668,383         11,474,104         11,873,743         10,963,310         


Total primary government expenses 28,866,401$       29,303,897$       30,389,231$       30,445,117$       


Program Revenues


Governmental activities:


Charges for services:


General Government 2,265,114$         2,017,576$         2,230,122$         1,914,239$         


Public Safety 601,899              566,346              576,908              982,772              


Community development 1,538,226           2,598,727           1,247,138           7,689,602           


Public works 1,728,971           1,729,660           1,523,530           1,329,226           


Operating contributions and grants 244,822              238,064              227,592              675,510              


Capital contributions and grants 1,633,410           5,425,257           1,276,451           1,321,811           
8,012,442           12,575,630         7,081,741           13,913,160         


Business-type activities:


Charges for services:


Water acquisition 132,044              60,113                249,351              506,018              


Water enterprise 4,734,114           4,813,653           4,970,004           4,570,660           


Sewer capital 3,592,431           3,457,741           3,843,936           3,853,476           


Loma Linda Connected Communities 287,944              414,429              399,978              362,285              


Capital Grants and Contributions 18,249,598         -                          -                          -                          


26,996,131         8,745,936           9,463,269           9,292,439           


Total primary government revenues 35,008,573$       21,321,566$       16,545,010$       23,205,599$       


Net (expense)/revenue


Governmental activities (9,185,576)$        (5,254,163)$        (11,433,747)$      (5,568,647)$        


Business-type activities 15,327,748         (2,728,168)          (2,410,474)          (1,670,871)          
6,142,172$         (7,982,331)$        (13,844,221)$      (7,239,518)$        


Total governmental activities program revenues


Total business-type activities program revenues


Total primary government net (expense)/revenue


 
Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department 
 







 
 
 
  


 


-150- 


2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


4,183,558$         3,446,226$         6,425,416$         4,655,547$         2,432,363$         2,068,926$         


11,026,804         12,531,692         13,454,286         13,132,883         15,816,365         10,634,051         


2,390,338           2,530,022           2,309,000           3,646,694           3,405,290           2,264,274           


4,411,533           6,231,901           7,202,335           7,191,106           6,691,119           4,811,300           


6,053                  -                      7,778                  3,148                  1,606                  2,643                  


22,018,286         24,739,841         29,398,815         28,629,378         28,346,743         19,781,194         


231,003              142,488              651,998              163,718              34,407                271,277              


5,956,326           6,581,432           7,334,056           7,321,257           7,451,276           4,974,785           


4,237,844           4,484,711           4,655,471           4,780,642           4,848,037           3,894,446           


1,056,877           1,082,358           981,077              1,075,479           998,596              834,694              


11,482,050         12,290,989         13,622,602         13,341,096         13,332,316         9,975,202           


33,500,336$       37,030,830$       43,021,417$       41,970,474$       41,679,059$       29,756,396$       


2,411,391$         2,601,912$         3,237,396$         2,947,216$         3,309,689$         2,924,322$         


2,072,189           2,542,110           2,701,403           2,326,787           3,572,136           4,423,248           


703,820              1,311,497           3,102,051           3,465,549           7,298,611           1,310,861           


1,318,224           1,561,965           1,820,291           1,782,676           3,049,457           2,065,657           


918,093              772,551              2,552,498           664,307              -                      3,913,570           


349,723              151,081              1,308,805           1,510,791           -                      2,213,685           
7,773,440           8,941,116           14,722,444         12,697,326         17,229,893         16,851,343         


124,489              392,278              643,278              1,141,226           521,151              283,721              


4,910,137           5,620,078           5,745,814           6,076,134           6,908,052           7,001,145           


4,187,465           4,675,647           5,021,365           5,327,464           5,565,852           5,531,874           


389,793              317,575              326,992              359,079              342,360              326,196              


-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          


9,611,884           11,005,578         11,737,449         12,903,903         13,337,415         13,142,936         


17,385,324$       19,946,694$       26,459,893$       25,601,229$       30,567,308$       29,994,279$       


(14,244,846)$      (15,798,725)$      (14,676,371)$      (15,932,052)$      (11,116,850)$      (2,929,851)$        


(1,870,166)          (1,285,411)          (1,885,153)          (437,193)             5,099                  3,167,734           
(16,115,012)$      (17,084,136)$      (16,561,524)$      (16,369,245)$      (11,111,751)$      237,883$            


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) (Continued) 


 


-151- 


Fiscal Year 2013 2014 2015 2016


General Revenues and Other Changes in


Net Position


Government activities:


Taxes


Property taxes 2,205,347$         2,391,993$         2,424,066$         2,119,528$         


Sales taxes 3,864,216           3,733,160           5,721,938           7,575,743           


Franchise tax 778,424              811,238              848,712              852,859              


Other taxes 734,611              871,103              831,258              1,065,353           


Motor vehicle in lieu, unrestricted 1,661,319           1,688,439           -                          -                          


Intergovernmental -                          213,852              2,205,319           1,258,590           


Transfers -                          -                          -                          -                          


Total taxes and transfers 9,243,917           9,709,785           12,031,293         12,872,073         


Investment income 208,226              227,033              503,598              610,671              


Capital contribution -                          89,413                -                          -                          


Miscellaneous 60,069                139,192              36,389                26,759                


Gain (Loss) on sale of capital assets -                          -                          -                          -                          


Gain (Loss) on land held for resale -                          -                          -                          -                          


Total governmental activities 9,512,212           10,165,423         12,571,280         13,509,503         


Business-type activities:


Investment income 11,789                8,608                  7,932                  128,012              


Capital contribution -                          (89,413)               -                          -                          


Miscellaneous 578,584              589,923              650,590              680,341              


Transfers -                          -                          -                          -                          


Gain (Loss) on sale of capital assets -                          -                          -                          -                          


Total business-type activities 590,373              509,118              658,522              808,353              


Total primary government 10,102,585$       10,674,541$       13,229,802$       14,317,856$       


Extraordinary Item


Governmental activities -$                        -$                        -$                        21,314,886$       


Business-type activities -                          -                          -                          7,531,946           


Total primary government -$                        -$                        -$                        28,846,832$       


Change in Net Position


Governmental activities 326,636$            4,911,260$         1,137,533$         29,255,742$       


Business-type activities 15,918,121         (2,219,050)          (1,751,952)          6,669,428           


Total primary government 16,244,757$       2,692,210$         (614,419)$           35,925,170$       


 
Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department 







 
 
 
  


 


-152- 


2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


2,193,323$         2,489,895$         2,787,070$         3,086,116$         3,043,003$         3,390,738$         


6,692,095           8,692,611           7,700,848           9,008,051           3,673,588           7,951,156           


886,502              960,660              961,693              990,531              1,060,786           1,346,875           


1,116,979           882,677              1,003,817           850,823              922,825              951,306              


-                          -                          2,293,699           2,433,722           2,504,220           2,745,301           


1,987,145           2,197,430           -                          -                          -                          -                          


(290,619)             (84,916)               4,799                  9,305                  (83,538)               167,951              


12,585,425         15,138,357         14,751,926         16,378,548         11,120,884         16,553,327         


487,762              970,488              1,290,647           1,472,804           (388,070)             204,757              


-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          


8,523                  210,983              555,160              196,705              1,274,064           53,959                


74,552                426,863              30,844                10,725                25,710                (27,923)               


-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          


13,156,262         16,746,691         16,628,577         18,058,782         12,032,588         16,784,120         


86,522                167,515              271,702              208,279              62,642                (64,894)               


-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          


477,429              458,106              595,149              508,024              501,164              517,022              


290,619              84,916                (4,799)                 (9,305)                 83,538                (167,951)             


20,062                775                     -                          4,205                  -                          


854,570              730,599              862,827              706,998              651,549              284,177              


14,010,832$       17,477,290$       17,491,404$       18,765,780$       12,684,137$       17,068,297$       


-$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        


-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          


-$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        


(1,088,584)$        947,966$            1,952,206$         2,126,730$         915,738$            13,854,269$       


(1,015,596)          (554,812)             (1,022,326)          269,805              656,648              3,451,911           


(2,104,180)$        393,154$            929,880$            2,396,535$         1,572,386$         17,306,180$       


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 


 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Governmental Activities Tax and Assessments Revenues by Source 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 


 


-153- 


Fiscal Property Sales & Use Franchise     Transfer  Transient  Business     Misc.


Year Taxes   Tax Fees     Tax Tax License    Taxes Assessments Total


2013 1,420,706$       4,203,905$       778,424$       42,622$         33,676$       349,911$       11,335$      742,019$          7,582,598$         


2014 3,294,218         4,083,824         811,238         40,926           39,262         368,358         25,236        735,329            9,398,391           


2015 3,432,704         6,097,691         848,712         47,546           49,442         390,291         25,449        732,770            11,624,605         


2016 3,155,172         7,967,387         852,859         98,258           271,443       385,533         26,316        732,970            13,489,938         


2017 3,390,512         7,105,414         886,501         39,340           347,981       345,257         21,463        739,575            12,876,043         


2018 3,866,981         7,969,204         960,660         70,346           464,980       406,853         23,755        737,087            14,499,866         


2019 1,978,818         8,389,129         961,693         65,828           670,867       321,975         2,293,698   * 753,400            15,435,408         


2020 2,224,740         5,681,899         990,532         112,203         530,943       308,457         2,433,722   * 760,596            13,043,092         


2021 2,135,818         7,034,866         1,060,786      145,433         622,280       235,034         2,504,220   * 773,788            14,512,225         


2022 2,483,539         7,893,545         1,346,875      125,626         608,867       381,338         13,642        781,573            13,635,005         


Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds.


Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department.


* Includes Vehicle License Fee-In Excess and VLF Property Tax in Lieu. Vehicle License Fee-In Excess was reclassified as intergovernmental revenue beginning in fiscal 
year 2022.


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 


 


-154- 


Fiscal year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
General Fund


Non Spendable:


Inventories 22,630$             22,934$             18,966$             12,299$            10,933$            


Prepaid items 1,319                 764                    8,569                 619,657            19,063              
Restricted for:


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
35,743               -                        -                        -                        -                        


General government 2,232                 15,768               18,872               -                        -                        


Committted for:


Emergency contingency 3,500,000          3,500,000          3,500,000          5,500,000         5,500,000         


Assigned for:


Refuse services 87,941               91,540               95,832               97,690              91,540              


Fire equipment replacement 78,102               88,812               270,040             104,144            88,812              


Sewer loan -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    


Capital equipment replacement 1,250,000          1,250,000          1,250,000          1,250,000         1,250,000         
Unfunded liabilities -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    


Unassigned 5,071,179          5,836,876          6,827,235          5,868,335         5,836,876         


Total general fund 10,049,146$      10,806,694$      11,989,514$      13,452,125$     12,797,224$     


All other governmental funds


Non Spendable:


Prepaid items 20$                    -$                  40,672$             1,259$              1,036$              


Restricted for:


Cultural and recreational 284,673             304,711             332,436             345,310            370,928            


State mandated -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    


Public safety 369,068             442,199             452,514             672,745            701,990            


Street improvements 5,561,625          5,156,456          4,295,300          15,919,327       14,596,849       


Storm drains 749,230             757,919             771,018             792,052            801,366            


Municipal facilities 336,519             271,092             195,306             204,971            133,774            


Air quality management 73,431               80,988               86,456               63,454              47,451              


Debt service 1,207,017          1,205,057          137,614             136,148            137,112            


Low/mod hosing programs 17,856,279        17,956,592        17,810,779        17,933,640       17,695,044       


Unassigned (4,693,591)        (5,475,010)        (6,363,912)        (2,635,280)        (2,935,592)        


Total all other governmental funds 21,744,271$      20,700,004$      17,758,183$      33,433,626$     31,549,958$     


 Public Safety
State Mandated


 
Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department 
 







 
 
 
  


 


-155- 


2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


14,944$            9,298$              20,290$            18,268$            30,427$            


3,261                1,577                2,816                1,763                8,537                


5,848                6,399                -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        


-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        


5,500,000         2,000,000         2,000,000         2,000,000         2,000,000         


99,033              103,035            135,495            167,204            210,124            


224,776            272,593            282,099            365,170            470,908            


-                    -                    422,673            424,303            124,738            


1,250,000         1,250,000         1,250,000         1,250,000         1,250,000         
2,000,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    


6,664,717         7,720,336         5,970,489         8,378,141         12,917,535       


15,762,579$     11,363,238$     10,083,862$     12,604,849$     17,012,269$     


20$                   -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  


375,309            447,552            362,529            326,905            282,110            


-                    -                    18,952              24,550              30,542              


735,937            818,020            1,046,468         1,572,294         1,591,101         


19,814,982       19,684,580       20,182,145       22,567,239       21,857,232       


847,125            797,517            900,539            1,113,026         1,132,285         


165,984            378,816            767,588            1,022,630         1,062,504         


27,763              25,952              32,944              27,245              12,194              


139,030            142,206            144,929            53,256              52,583              


17,903,020       17,960,614       17,605,013       17,151,467       17,655,020       


(3,534,374)        (2,186,552)        (2,754,783)        (1,853,102)        (2,233,176)        


36,474,796$     38,068,705$     38,306,324$     42,005,510$     41,442,395$     


 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 


 


-156- 


Fiscal Year 2013 2014 2015 2016
Revenues


Taxes 7,582,598$      9,398,391$      11,624,605$    13,489,938$    
Licenses and permits 318,636           532,046           629,954           478,522           
Intergovernmental revenues 2,539,554        900,263           961,314           1,516,208        
Charges for services 1,653,891        1,921,614        1,789,325        1,848,851        
Use of money and property 624,686           468,283           451,109           508,805           
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 179,157           166,014           154,642           142,437           
Miscellaneous 3,479,196        6,976,393        2,811,345        2,625,326        
Developer fees 1,127,775        814,556           518,956           7,092,505        


Total Revenues 17,505,493      21,177,560      18,941,250      27,702,592      


Expenditures
General government 1,010,432        1,269,463        2,816,532        3,057,584        
Public safety 8,333,007        8,372,894        8,494,523        9,522,944        
Community development 1,635,429        1,834,266        1,997,868        1,725,470        
Public works 2,225,653        2,338,243        2,235,090        2,789,413        
Capital outlay 3,137,662        6,668,468        3,024,351        1,033,346        
Debt service


Principal retirement 883,220           914,378           1,905,590        31,853             
Interest and fiscal charges 207,619           164,563           132,266           28,855             


Total Expenditures 17,433,022      21,562,275      20,606,220      18,189,465      


Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 72,471             (384,715)         (1,664,970)      9,513,127        


Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Lease proceeds -                  -                  -                  -                  
Gain on disposal of assets 19,160             97,996             20,000             56,415             
Loss of disposal of assets -                  -                  (114,031)         -                  
Transfers in 2,366,876        2,438,425        2,218,439        829,833           
Transfers out (2,366,876)      (2,438,425)      (2,218,439)      (829,833)         


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 19,160             97,996             (94,031)           56,415             


Net Change in Fund Balances Before Extraordinary Item 91,631             (286,719)         (1,759,001)      9,569,542        
 Extraordinary Item* -                  -                  -                  7,568,512        
 Net Change in Fund Balances 91,631$           (286,719)$       (1,759,001)$    17,138,054$    


Debt Service as a percentage of
non-capital expenditures 7.1% 6.4% 11.4% 0.4%


 
*Extraordinary item did not apply to prior years. 
Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department 







 
 
 
  


 


-157- 


2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


12,876,043$       14,499,866$       15,435,408$       13,043,092$       14,512,225$       13,635,005$       
398,756              463,878              495,979              858,993              639,968              674,337              
994,225              888,521              3,669,009           1,632,833           2,644,460           8,443,940           


3,153,168           3,563,490           4,053,022           4,006,691           4,067,319           4,701,339           
757,656              2,820,221           2,412,446           2,322,671           1,744,388           1,297,574           
129,123              115,205              472,114              79,897                58,347                77,790                


2,353,757           2,848,072           3,681,395           2,869,489           3,903,673           3,640,957           
188,523              735,690              2,182,962           2,476,701           6,288,823           995,616              


20,851,251         25,934,943         32,402,335         27,290,367         33,859,203         33,466,558         


3,831,946           2,870,793           6,595,193           3,778,105           2,289,017           3,093,515           
11,005,886         12,153,050         17,476,968         13,294,924         14,090,224         15,429,737         


2,279,446           2,372,587           2,411,105           3,173,643           3,032,467           2,824,271           
2,659,712           2,821,934           3,233,008           3,386,611           3,700,043           3,713,343           
2,606,365           3,410,812           5,486,524           4,678,287           4,428,866           5,334,219           


33,165                34,532                35,955                37,436                38,979                14,289                
7,419                  6,053                  4,630                  3,148                  1,606                  2,643                  


22,423,939         23,669,761         35,243,383         28,352,154         27,581,202         30,412,017         


(1,572,688)          2,265,182           (2,841,048)          (1,061,787)          6,278,001           3,054,541           


-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      96,789                
74,552                567,549              30,844                10,725                25,710                125,024              


-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
834,210              743,146              771,153              771,715              1,106,744           4,005,222           


(1,124,829)          (828,062)             (766,354)             (762,410)             (1,190,282)          (3,837,271)          
(216,067)             482,633              35,643                20,030                (57,828)               389,764              


(1,788,755)          2,747,815           (2,805,405)          (1,041,757)          6,220,173           3,444,305           
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      


(1,788,755)$        2,747,815$         (2,805,405)$        (1,041,757)$        6,220,173$         3,444,305$         


0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 0.1%


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
General Fund Tax Revenues by Source 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 


 


-158- 


Fiscal Sales & Use Property Franchise  Transfer Transient Business Misc.
Year Tax Taxes Fees Tax Tax License Taxes Total


2013 3,864,216$       1,420,706$        778,424$        42,622$          33,676$       349,911$          11,335$        6,500,890$       


2014 3,733,160         3,294,217          811,238          40,926            39,262         368,358            25,236          8,312,397         


2015 5,721,938         3,432,704          848,712          47,546            49,442         390,291            25,450          10,516,083       


2016 7,575,743         3,155,172          852,858          98,258            271,443       385,533            26,316          12,365,323       


2017 6,692,094         3,390,512          886,501          39,340            347,981       345,257            21,463          11,723,148       


2018 7,283,292         3,866,981          960,660          70,346            464,980       406,853            23,755          13,076,867       


2019 7,972,459         1,978,818          961,693          65,828            670,867       321,975            2,293,698     * 14,265,338       


2020 5,192,468         2,224,740          990,532          112,203          530,943       308,457            2,433,722     * 11,793,065       


2021 6,472,814         2,135,818          1,060,786       145,433          622,280       235,034            2,504,220     * 13,176,385       


2022 7,295,422         2,483,539          1,346,875       125,626          608,867       381,338            13,642          12,255,309       


Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department


* Amount includes Motor vehicle in-lieu revenue. Motor vehicle in-lieu revenue was reclassified as intergovernmental revenues beginning in fiscal year 2022.


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Top 25 Sales Tax Producers 
As of June 30, 2022 


 


-159- 


Business Name Business Category


ABI Document Support Services Business Services
ACH Supply Plumbing/Electrical Supplies
Anixter Electrical Equipment
Arco AM PM Service Stations
Bear Oil Union 76 Service Stations
Chevron Service Stations
Clarks Nutritional Center Food Store Non-Grocery
Hirsch Pipe & Supply Plumbing/Electrical Supplies
Honda Lease Trust Auto Lease
Hyundai Inland Empire New Motor Vehicle Dealers
Hyundai Lease Titling Trust Auto Lease
Loma Linda Hospital Medical/Biotech
Loma Linda Mercantile Medical/Biotech
Loma Linda Optical Department Government/Social Org.
Loma Linda University Medical Center Medical/Biotech
Macquarie Equipment Finance LLC Business Services
Mansfield Oil Petroleum Prod/Equipment
McDonalds
Mountain View Shell Service Stations
Quaid Harley Davidson Boats/Motorcycles
Spreen Honda New Motor Vehicle Dealers
Spreen Mazda New Motor Vehicle Dealers
Stater Bros Grocery Stores
Tactical Night Vision Medical/Biotech
Walmart Neighborhood Market Grocery Stores


Percent of Fiscal Year Total Paid By Top 25 Accounts=93.98%


Sources: State Board of Equalization, California Department of Taxes and Fees 
Administration, State Controller's Office, The HDL Companies


For Fiscal year 2021-22


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Top 25 Sales Tax Producers 
As of June 30, 2022 (Continued) 


 


-160- 


Business Name Business Category


Anixter Electrical Equipment
Arco AM PM Services Stations
Arco AM PM Services Stations
Bakers Burgers Quick Services Restaurants
Bear Oil Union 76 Services Stations
Carls Jr Quick Services Restaurants
Chervon Services Stations
Clarks Nutritional Center Food Stores Non-Grocery
Del Taco Quick Services Restaurants
Farmers Boys Fast-Casual Restaurants
Hometown Buffet Casual Dining 
Honda Lease Trust Auto Lease
Hyundai Inland Empire
Hyundai Lease Tilting Trust Auto Lease
KD Sales Plumbing Supplies Plumbing/Electrical Supplies
Loma Linda Foundation Government/Social Org.
Loma Linda Mercantile Medical/Biotech
Loma Linda Optical Department Government/Social Org.
Loma Linda Bookstore Stationary/Book stores
Loma Linda University Medical Center Medical/Biotech
Party Rentals Specialty Stores
Quaid Harley Davidson Boats/Motorcycles
Rite Aid Drug Store
Spreen Honda New Motor Vehicle Dealers
Stater Bros Grocery Stores


Percent of Fiscal Year Total Paid By Top 25 Accounts=94.84%


Sources: State Board of Equalization, California Department of Taxes and Fees 
Administration, State Controller's Office, The HDL Companies


For Fiscal Year 2012-13


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Taxable Sales by Category 
Last Ten Calendar Years (in thousands of dollars) 
As of June 30, 2022 


 


-161- 


2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021


Food Stores 11,969$   12,244$   14,974$   17,040$   17,761$   18,016$   17,835$   17,672$   20,833$   19,919$      
Eating and Drinking Places 19,454     21,575     23,684     27,887     27,559     29,054     28,868     29,513     24,916     30,278        
Auto Dealers and Supplies 101,046   97,189     101,129   112,499   122,391   132,069   135,623   123,557   112,882   130,380      
Other Retail Stores 65,793     65,540     68,307     72,844     68,605     71,709     76,991     73,048     59,736     78,615        
All Other Outlets 190,592   177,631   354,140   400,130   394,144   433,870   611,789   678,554   596,536   769,285      


Total 388,854$ 374,179$ 562,234$ 630,400$ 630,460$ 684,718$ 871,106$ 922,344$ 814,903$ 1,028,477$ 


Sources: State Board of Equalization, California Department of Taxes and Fees Administration, 
State Controller's Office, The HDL Companies


Note: Due to confidentiality issues, the names of the ten largest revenue payers are not available.
The categories presented are intended to provide alternative information regarding the sources 
of the City's revenue. Data for calendar year 2022 not yet available.


 
 
 


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-162- 


Calendar Estimated Total Assessed


Year Actual Less: Total Direct Value as a


Ended Residential Commercial Personal Taxable Tax Exempt Assessed Tax Percentage of


December 31 Property Property Property Value Real Property Value Rate Actual Value


2013 2,195,002,151$       271,001,950$   216,780,215$      2,682,784,316$    1,096,986,069$    1,585,798,247$     0.5192 100%


2014 2,064,942,248         276,960,178     222,628,537        2,564,530,963      950,702,460         1,613,828,503       0.1179 100%


2015 2,252,005,169         285,082,390     214,346,968        2,751,434,527      1,031,386,807      1,720,047,720       0.11792 100%


2016 2,284,323,332         301,381,457     201,361,852        2,787,066,641      992,101,567         1,794,965,074       0.11792 100%


2017 2,524,081,086         315,569,495     185,755,818        3,025,406,399      1,125,518,308      1,899,888,091       0.11792 100%


2018 2,508,932,634         472,423,651     175,451,570        3,156,807,855      1,045,584,674      2,111,223,181       0.11792 100%


2019 2,589,707,118         532,970,508     179,267,027        3,301,944,653      1,089,669,098      2,212,275,555       0.11805 100%


2020 3,425,695,384         562,919,839     165,495,439        4,154,110,662      1,813,629,588      2,340,481,074       0.11805 100%


2021 3,287,130,835         575,033,799     160,597,887        4,022,762,521      1,595,301,621      2,427,460,900       0.11804 100%


2022 3,443,419,657         539,261,065     165,130,534        4,147,811,256      1,514,541,585      2,633,269,671       0.11599 100%


Real Property


Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
(Rate per $100 of Taxable Value) 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-163- 


San Bernardino Total Total
Fiscal Basic Colton Redlands Community Tax Direct
Year Levy Unified Unified College Water Rate Rate 2


2013 1.0000 0.14880 0.06410 0.04590 0.16250 1.42130 0.51917


2014 1.0000 0.11870 0.06290 0.04190 0.16250 1.38600 0.11793


2015 1.0000 0.09730 0.05940 0.03930 0.16250 1.35850 0.11792


2016 1.0000 0.11690 0.05670 0.04030 0.16250 1.37640 0.11792


2017 1.0000 0.14540 0.05240 0.03500 0.16250 1.39530 0.11792


2018 1.0000 0.09390 0.04940 0.03760 0.15250 1.33340 0.11792


2019 1.0000 0.11160 0.03240 0.04070 0.15250 1.33720 0.11805


2020 1.0000 0.10160 0.03390 0.05620 0.14250 1.33420 0.11805


2021 1.0000 0.10310 0.03600 0.06510 0.14250 1.34670 0.11804


2022 1.0000 0.10810 0.06620 0.05340 0.13000 1.35770 0.11599


Sources:  HdL Coren & Cone, San Bernardino County Assessor combined tax rolls.


1


2 Total Direct Rate is the weighted average of all individual direct rates.


Schools


Note: In 1978 California voters passed Proposition 13 which sets the property tax rate at a 1.00% fixed
amount. This 1.00% is shared by all taxing agencies for which the subject property resides within. In
addition to the 1.00% fixed amount, property owners shared by all taxing agencies for which the subject
property resides within. In addition to the 1.00% fixed amount, property owners are charged taxes as a
percentage of assessed property values for the payment of any voter approved bonds.


RDA rate is based on the largest RDA tax rate area and includes only the rate(s) from indebtedness 
adopted prior to 1989 per California State Statute. RDA Direct and Overlapping rates are applied only to 
the incremental property values. The approval of ABX1 26 eliminated Redevelopment from the State of 
California for fiscal year 2012/2013 and years thereafter.


 
 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Principal Property Taxpayers 
As of June 30, 2022 


 


-164- 


Percentage of Percentage of


   Assessed Total Taxable    Assessed Total Taxable


Taxpayer   Valuation Rank Assessed Value   Valuation Rank Assessed Value


Wi Loma Linda LLC 139,165,098$     1 5.44%


Loma Linda University/Medical Center1 43,312,341 2 1.69% 25,692,320$       3 1.67%


Timber Hills Associates LP 58,973,136         3 2.30% 41,500,000         1 2.70%


Sierra Vista Apartments SPE 37,130,730         4 1.45%


Loma Linda Heritage Associates 30,613,378         5 1.20% 26,381,673         4 2%


Oasis Townhomes LLC 28,392,578         6 1.11% 24,467,853         5 1.59%


WOHL Westport LLC 21,496,417         7 0.84%


Chancellor Properties LLC2 20,467,152         8 0.80%


DRC Industrial CBC 19,938,845         9 0.78%


Blossom Grove California LLC 14,889,446         10 0.58%


General American Life Insurance Company 36,646,547         2 2.39%


Granite Lakes Apartments LP 20,000,000         6 1.30%


Spreen Investment Company II 9,067,265           10 0.59%


NHI-Reit of Clifornia LP 11,565,994         7 0.75%


Monterey Pines LLC 10,316,486         8 0.67%


Loma of California Health Center LLC 9,966,435           9 0.65%


414,379,121$     16.1900% 215,604,573$     14.03%


Note: The amounts shown above includes assessed value data for both the City and the Redevelopment Agency.


1  Loma Linda University is a learning institution; therefore, a large portion of their property is exempt.
2 Pending Appeals on Parcels


Source: The HdL Companies, San Bernardino County Assessor Combined Tax Rolls.


2022 2013


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten (10) Calendar Years 


 


-165- 


Fiscal Year Total Tax Current Percent of Collections


Ended Levy for Tax Current Taxes in Subsequent Percentage


June 30 Fiscal Year Collections Collected Years Amount of Levy


2013 989,037$       944,831$        95.5% 43,406$           988,237$           99.9%


2014 1,015,851 987,067 97.2% 54,072             1,041,138          102.5%


2015 1,038,813 1,012,206 97.4% 37,627             1,049,833          101.1%


2016 1,082,685 1,054,765 97.4% 23,844             1,078,609          99.6%


2017 1,139,995      1,114,742       97.8% 34,711             1,149,453          100.8%


2018 1,176,099      1,155,795       98.3% 29,809             1,185,604          100.8%


2019 1,244,859      1,218,949       97.9% 8,227               1,227,176          98.6%


2020 1,274,242 1,246,785 97.8% -                  1,246,785          97.8%


2021 1,241,788 1,301,268 104.8% -                  1,301,268          104.8%


2022 1,371,196 1,353,754 98.7% -                  1,353,754          98.7%


Source: San Bernardino County Auditor-Controller Property Tax Division


Note:


In FY 2012, penalties started to be excluded from amounts collected in subsequent years.
Collection in subsequent years may include delinquent tax payments from multiple prior years which 
are not identified separately by the County of San Bernardino. Limitations exist within the County's tax 
system which impede the ability to identify prior tax year delinquent payments by assessment year.


Collected within the


Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date


 
   
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt By Type 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-166- 


Tax General Total Percentage 


Fiscal Lease Loans Allocation Revenue Obligation Lease Water Primary of Personal Per 


Year Liability Payable Bonds Bonds Bonds Liability Bonds Government Income Capita1


2013 271,894$      -$        -$                  2,728,360$    10,000$         -$            6,255,000$      9,265,254$        1.28% 395           


2014 242,515        -          -                    1,879,100      10,000           -              5,885,000        8,016,615          1.10% 339           


2015 211,922        -          -                    2,052             10,000           -              5,490,000        5,713,974          0.80% 241           


2016 180,072        -          -                    -                 10,000           -              5,075,000        5,265,072          0.71% 214           


2017 146,907        -          -                    -                 10,000           -              5,669,428        5,826,335          0.81% 238           


2018 112,375        -          -                    -                 10,000           -              5,421,588        5,543,963          0.80% 232           


2019 76,420          -          -                    -                 10,000           -              5,203,748        5,290,168          0.76% 217           


2020 38,984          -          -                    -                 10,000           -              4,980,908        5,029,892          1% 205           


2021 -                -          -                    -                 10,000           -              4,753,069        4,763,069          1% 191           


2022 82,500          -          -                    -                 10,000           67,447         4,520,229        4,680,176          1% 179           


Details regarding the government's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.


1 See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population.


Source:  City of Loma Linda Finance Department


As a result of the disolution of the redevelopment agency in 2012, the outstanding $39,885,000 indebtedness of the former 
redevelopment agency was transferred to the successor agency and refinanced November, 2016.


Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities


Note:


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding  
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-167- 


Less: amounts Percentage of


General Available in Debt Estimated 


Fiscal Obligation Service Actual Taxable Per


Year Bonds Fund Total Value of Property1 Capita2


2013 10,000$             -$                          10,000$             0.000% 43%


2014 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 42%


2015 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 42%


2016 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 41%


2017 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 41%


2018 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 42%


2019 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 41%


2020 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 41%


2021 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 41%


2022 10,000               -                            10,000               0.000% 39%


Note:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.


2 Population data can be found in the schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics.


Source:  City of Loma Linda Finance Department


1 See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
for the property value data.


 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
As of June 30, 2022 


 


-168- 


2021-2022 Assessed Valuation  2,633,269,398$     


  Total Debt Percent


DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: 6/30/22  Applicable (1) Debt 6/30/22


 San Bernardino Valley Joint Community College District 730,017,126$      3.093% 22,579,430$                


 Colton Joint Unified School District 189,142,661 0.745% 1,409,113


 Colton Joint Unified School District Community Facilities District No.2 3,345,000 26.425% 883,916


 Redlands Unified School District 59,303,512 12.548% 7,441,405


    TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 32,313,864$                


DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT:


 San Bernardino County General Fund Liability 188,035,000$      0.989% 1,859,666$                  


 San Bernardino Country Pension Liability 119,835,000 0.989% 1,185,168


 San Bernardino County Flood Control District General Fund Liability 44,780,000 0.989% 442,874


 Colton Joint Unified School District Certificates of Participation -                      0.000% -                              


 Redlands Unified School District Certificates of Participation -                      0.000% -                              


 City of Loma Linda Lease Liability -                      0.000% -                              


    TOTAL  GROSS DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT 3,487,708$                  


    OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT: 243,425,000$      3.815-100% 31,365,931$                


    TOTAL DIRECT DEBT -                              


    TOTAL OVERLAPPING OBLIGATION DEBT 67,167,503                  


   COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 67,167,503$                


Ratios to 2021-22 Assessed Valuation:


   Total Overlapping Debt (excluding tax increment)…….………………………………….1.23%


   Total Direct Debt…………….…………………………………………………………………..…….0.00%


   Combined Total Debt (excluding tax increment)…………………………………………………………………2.55%


Ratios to Redevelopment Incremental Valuation ($1,515,805,080):


   Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt…………………………………….. 2.07%


(1)   The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the city is estimated using taxable assessed property value.  Applicable percentages were estimated by 
determining the portion of the overlapping district's assessed value that is within the boundaries of the city divided by the district's total taxable assessed value.


 (2)  Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations. Qualified Zone Academy 
Bonds are included based on principal due at maturity. 


 
Source: California Municipal Statistics and City of Loma Linda Finance Department 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-169- 


2013 2014 2015 2016 2017


Debt Limit 60,098,744$          61,135,079$          65,100,609$      67,899,250$          71,833,863$              


Total net debt applicable to limit 89,011,770            87,512,815            84,255,561        80,940,806            79,042,798                


Legal debt margin (28,913,026)$        (26,377,736)$        (19,154,952)$     (13,041,556)$        (7,208,935)$               


Total net debt applicable to the limit
              as a percentage of debt limit 148.11% 143.15% 129.42% 119.21% 110.04%


 Source: California Municipal Statistics, San Bernardino County  Auditor-Controller Property Tax Division              


Note: 
California Government Code, Section 43605 sets the debt limit at 15%. The code section was enacted when 
assessed values were based on 25% of full market value. This has since changed to 100% of full market value. 
Thus, the limit shown is 3.75% (one-fourth the limit of 15%).


        


 
 







 
 


 


 


-170- 


2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


79,766,211$         83,537,933$        88,334,356$         91,585,287$             99,308,410$             


76,408,050           70,956,788          75,904,018           71,068,061               67,167,503               


3,358,161$           12,581,145$        12,430,338$         20,517,226$             32,140,907$             


95.79% 84.94% 85.93% 77.60% 67.64%


Net Assessed Value 2,633,269,398$        
Plus Exempt Property 14,954,866               
Total Assessed Value 2,648,224,264$        


Debt Limit:  3.75 percent of Total 
Assessed Value 99,308,410$             


Less: Debt applicable to Limitation:
Total net debt applicable to limitation 67,167,503               


Legal Debt Margin 32,140,907$             


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Pledged Revenue Coverage 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-171- 


Operating Net Revenue


Fiscal Gross Expenses Available for Debt Service


Year Revenues Less Depreciation Debt Service Requirements Coverage


2013 5,295,335$ 4,638,354$             656,981$       361,610$         182%


2014 5,398,735   4,636,285               762,450         377,350           202%


2015 5,577,533   5,106,716               470,817         399,439           118%


2016 5,174,327   4,292,900               881,427         423,447           208%


2017 5,375,596   4,383,707               991,889         -                       ** 0% **


2018 6,184,047   5,018,743               1,165,304      376,856           ** 309% **


2019 6,335,700   5,756,149               579,551         375,493           154% **


2020 6,632,982   5,709,549               923,433         376,194           245% **


2021 7,422,603   5,811,082               1,611,521      375,969           429% **


2022 7,517,291   3,334,796               4,182,495      375,625           1113% **


Note: 


**Bond was refinanced in FY 2017, no principal payment due until 7/1/2017


Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department


Water Revenue Bonds


Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.   
Operating expenses do not include interest or depreciation.


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-172- 


Per Loma Linda Redlands


Capita Academy Bryn Mawr Mission School Unemployment


Fiscal Personal Personal (Private) Elementary Elementary District Rate


Year Population 1 Income 2 Income 3 Enrollment 4 Enrollment 5 Enrollment 5 Enrollment 5 (percentage) 6


2013 23,476       721,065,000$   30,715$   1,312              730              509              21,379          5.8


2014 23,614       728,563,000     30,853     1,242              666              550              21,233          5.0


2015 23,751       717,247,000     30,406     1,255              681              538              21,326          4.6


2016 24,649       738,747,000     29,970     1,289              658              561              21,264          3.7


2017 24,528       721,317,000     29,407     1,246              691              551              21,395          3.2


2018 23,946       690,762,000     28,162     1,247              665              561              21,261          2.9


2019 24,335       698,833,000     28,717     1,246              675              579              21,240          2.4


2020 24,535       680,521,000     27,736     1,239              684              550              21,062          2.4


2021 24,895       684,049,000     27,477     1,272              636              581              20,352          7.1


2022 25,349       740,821,000     29,224     1,294              612              560              20,162          8.0


Sources: 1 State of California, Department of Finance
2 As of FY 2016 Data provided by HdL Companies 
3 Per Capita personal income is calculated by dividing personal income by population
4 Loma Linda Academy's registrar's office (except in 2011 the City used www.trulia.com)
5 California Department of Education
6 California Employment Development Department







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Principal Employers 
Current Fiscal Year 


 


-173- 


Percentage Percentage


of total City of total City


Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment


Loma Linda University Medical Center 6,146 1 28.36% 7,549 1 44.11%


Jerry L. Pettis VA Med. Ctr. 3,588 2 16.56% 2,268 3 13.25%


Loma Linda University 2,639 3 12.18% 3,562 2 20.80%


University Health Care 1,403 4 6.47% 1,338 4 7.82%


Total 13,776 63.57% 14,717 85.98%


Veterans Affairs Personnel Department


Total number of jobs within City limits provided by Employment Development Department,


Labor Market Information Division


Source: City of Loma Linda Finance Department


2022 2013


 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function  
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-174- 


2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


Function


General government 29.5 30.5 31.5 32.5 33 34.5 35.5 34.5 36.5 39


Public safety


* Sheriff


Officers 12.77 12.77 12.77 15.26 19.02 19.36 19.36 19.36 19.36 20.74


Civilians 5.03 5.03 5.03 5.81 7.1 7.1 7.1 7.2 7.2 7.6


Fire


Firefighters and officers 23 23 23 26 26 24 28 28 28 27


Civilians 4 5 5 5 5 4 4 3 3 5


Highways and streets


Maintenance 4 4 4 4 4 3 6 5 5 3


LL Connected Communities 3.5 3.5 2.5 2 2 2 2 2 2 2


Sewer 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2


Water 11 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 9


Total: 94.8 97.8 96.8 103.57 109.12 107 115 112.06 114.06 115.34


* Sheriff services are contracted through the County of San Bernardino Sheriff's Dept.


Source: City of Loma Linda Human Resources


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Operating Indicators by Function  
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-175- 


2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


Function


Sheriff


Calls for service 20,846 21,673 22,759 42,044 27,588  26,662  26,580  28,845  29,274  26,768  


Citations issued by Deputies 1,653   5,988   1,034   1,161   2,373    2,068    1,061    1,548    760       1,257    


Physical arrests 790      730      669      828      863       729       878       638       641       536       


Fire


Total number of calls answered 3,213   3,797   4,005   4,404   5,343    4,996    4,654    4,371    4,576    5,276    


% of calls for medical aid 63        65        64        57        54         60         60         61         62         58         


Highways and streets


Street resurfacing (miles) 5.1       2.0       1.2       3.7       1.6        6.1        3.7        4.9        2.5        9.0        


Potholes repaired 11        7          18        15        21         59         19         30         25         19         


Water


New connections 3          1          -       8          5           23         43         52         90         47         


Water main breaks 10        21        8          14        10         19         6           23         6           9           


Average daily consumption 13.73   13.75   13.00   11.10   11.18    12.70    11.81    11.87    13.78    13.24    


     (acre foot)


Wastewater


Average daily sewage treatment 4.1 4.0 4.0 3.5 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0


     (million gallons)


Note: Sheriff services are contracted through the County of San Bernardino Sheriff's Dept.


Potholes repaired are reported in tons prior to 2009.


Sewer treatment is contracted through the City of San Bernardino


Sources: City of Loma Linda Public Works and Fire Departments, and San Bernardino 


Sheriff's Department


 
 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA 
Capital Assets Statistics by Function  
Last Ten (10) Fiscal Years 


 


-176- 


2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


Function


Public safety


 * Sheriff


Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1


Patrol Units 10.5 11.77 11.77 11.77 11.00    11.00    11.00    11.00      11.00      12.00      


Fire Stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2


Vehicles 17 16 15 15 17 17 15 16 18 17


Highways and streets


Streets (miles) 64.64 64.64 64.64 64.64 65.00    65.70    66.23    68.86      70.71      70.10      


Streetlights 1,470 1,472 1,483 1,024 1,532    1,551    1,607    1,758      1,821      1,833      


Culture and recreation


Parks 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13


Park acreage 90.33 90.33 90.33 90.3 90.33 90.33 90.33 90.33 90.33 90.33


Tennis courts 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4


Senior center 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1


Water


Water mains (miles) 77.00   77.00   77.00   77.20   111.45  112.98  112.98  118.37    92.74      92.74      


Fire hydrants 964      997      917      939      950       991       995       1,002      1,048      1,080      


Maximum daily capacity 11,305 12,220 12,220 13,800 13,200  13,320  13,320  13,200    13,200    12,955    


     (gallons per minute)


Sewer


Sanitary sewers (miles) 67.50   67.50   67.50   61.30   65.00    66.43    66.43    70.33      70.33      74.80      


Storm sewers (miles)** 15.08   15.45   15.61   15.61   15.61    16.47    17.11    17.16      17.16      17.90      


 * Sheriff services are contracted through the County of San Bernardino Sheriff's Dept.


** Data for fiscal years 2013-2021 were updated to reflect more recent information.


Sources:  City of Loma Linda Public Works and Fire Departments, San Bernardino 


       County Sheriff's Department  
 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 
 











Newport Avenue Landscaping Project 







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 3 
  



























CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 4  
  















 


 


Vicinity Map/Project Site Area 
 


 







  CITY OF Loma Linda 
 FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM 


 AND INITIAL STUDY  


 
 
1. Project Title: 1.6 Million Gallon (MG) Water Storage Tank 
 
2. Lead Agency Name and Address:  
 City of Loma Linda 
 Community Development Department 
 25541 Barton Road 
 Loma Linda, CA 92354  
 
3. Contact Person and Phone Number:   
 Lorena Matarrita 
 Community Development Director 
 (909) 799-2830 
 
4. Project Location: The Project Site is located east of Mountain View Avenue and south 


of Beaumont Avenue on three Assessor’s Parcel Numbers being 0293-052-17, -18, and 
-21 (see Figures 1 and 2). Parcel 0293-052-21 will be used mainly for the access road, 
pipeline, and transmission line and is 10.26 acres of which 1.11 acres will be disturbed. 
Parcel 0293-052-21 will be the location of the new 1.6 MG water tank; the parcel is 
25.14 acres and approximately 1.72 acres will be disturbed. Parcel 0293-052-17 is the 
proposed location of the end of the drain line connecting to an existing basin on-site; the 
parcel is 7.16 acres and approximately 0.02 acres will be disturbed. Approximately 
2.85 acres of the 42.56-acre Project Site will be disturbed. 


 
 The Project Site is approximately 1,295 feet east of an existing 3.2 MG reservoir and 


830 feet southeast of an existing 8.0 MG tank; both located in Pressure Zone 2. The 
Project Site is currently vacant and is owned by the City of Loma Linda. Two Southern 
California Edison electrical transmission towers are adjacent to the east. Access to the 
Project Site for regular maintenance would be from Beaumont Avenue. 
 


5. Project Sponsor’s Name and Address: 
 City of Loma Linda 
 Public Works Department 
 25541 Barton Road 
 Loma Linda, CA 92354 
     
6. General Plan Designation: Open Space (OS) 


 
7. Zoning: Single-Residential (R1) 


 
8. Project Description: 
 


The Proposed Project is a new 1.6 million gallon (MG) water storage tank to be located 
on a hillside in the southern portion of Loma Linda east of Mountain View Avenue. It will 
be located on property south of Beaumont Avenue and within the City’s Pressure 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 2 
 


Zone 2A. The water storage tank will be approximately 100 feet in diameter and 
approximately 35 feet in height, welded steel reservoir to be built on grade on the south 
side of a slope in the South Hills reducing its visibility. The Proposed Project also 
includes a construction road to be developed from Beaumont Avenue to the tank site. 
The road will also be trenched to lay a new pipeline to deliver water from the tank to the 
existing pipeline in Beaumont Avenue, and eventually paved for maintenance access. 
Additional pipe from the construction road in Beaumont Avenue to the current water 
system terminus will also be constructed. A 100 square-foot concrete pad will be 
constructed adjacent to the water tank to allow for a back-up generator in the event of 
power failure. Lastly, the Project includes a spillway (drain line) from the tank site to the 
existing catch basin just west of the tank site (see Figure 3 Site Plan). 


 
Electrical service is required from Southern California Edison (SCE) for security lighting 
and to serve the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, which 
allows for monitoring water levels and opening and closing valves remotely. The 
electrical wire will be in conduit1 and placed underground along the access road. 
Construction of the Project is estimated to take one-year.  
  
The City’s current water system includes four above-ground steel water storage tanks 
and two in-ground, pre-stressed concrete reservoirs with a combined storage capacity of 
14 MG. The Proposed Project will therefore increase the City’s storage capacity by 
approximately 11 percent. The four reservoirs provide storage for the City’s five 
difference pressure zones. The Proposed Project will expand storage in the southerly 
pressure zone known as 2A. Pressure is constantly regulated by six pressure reducing 
stations. Booster pumps transfer water from the City’s six groundwater production wells 
to storage reservoirs and between pressure zones. The water supply for the City is 
entirely groundwater pumped from the underlying Bunker Hill Basin. The source of water 
for the storage reservoir will be the Zone 2A sources; Mt. View #3, Mt. View #5, Mt. View 
#6, and Richardson #5 Wells. 
 
 


9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:  
 


The Project Site is located in an undeveloped area in the foothills of the City. Residential 
developments occur on the north side of Beaumont Avenue while the foothills south of 
Beaumont Avenue are relatively undeveloped. Southern California Edison (SCE) 
transmission lines pass through the area and two electrical towers are locate east within 
a quarter mile of the Project Site. Several dirt access roads/hiking paths are found 
throughout the general area. 


 


                                                 
1 Conduits are used to provide extra protection for electrical wires. Conduit protects both humans and the electrical wiring to prevent 


wires from pulling loose and creating shock hazards. It's important to use conduit even for buried wires to prevent damage to wiring 
from digging and moisture. 







REGIONAL LOCATION


LILBURN
C O R P O R A T I O N


FIGURE 1


Source: Brian F. Smith & Associates, Inc.; January, 2022.


PROJECT SITE


1.6 MG Water Tank
City of  Loma Linda, California


Page 3







LILBURN
C O R P O R A T I O N


Source: Lilburn Corp., March, 2022.
Feet


2000
PROJECT VICINITY


FIGURE 2


1.6 MG Water Tank
City of  Loma Linda, California


PROJECT LOCATION


Beaumont Ave.


M
ountain V


iew
 A


ve.


Canyon Rd.


Page 4







LILBURN
C O R P O R A T I O N


SITE PLAN


FIGURE  3


1.6 MG Water Tank
City of  Loma Linda, California


Page 5







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 6 


Surrounding land uses include vacant land to the south and east, Hulda Crooks Park 
and Pressure Zone 2 water tanks are located approximately 1,400 feet to northwest. The 
nearest residence is approximately 800 feet to the north (north side of Beaumont 
Avenue). The Loma Linda Large Dog Park and Loma Linda Small Dog Park are located 
within the western and northern portion, respectively of the Project Site (APN 293-052-
21). Existing land use designation and zoning for the surrounding properties are 
presented in Table 1 below: 


Table 1 
Surrounding Land Uses, Designations and Zoning 


Location Existing 
Land Use 


Land Use Designation Zoning 


Project 
Site 


Vacant land 
Dog Parks 


Open Space (OS) Open Space (OS) 


North Residential Low Density Residential (R1) Low Density Residential (R1) 


South Vacant land Hillside Conservation (HR-C) Hillside Conservation (HR-C) 


East Vacant land Rural Estates (HR-RE) 
Hillside Conservation (HR-C) 


Rural Estates (HR-RE) 
Hillside Conservation (HR-C) 


West Park Open Space (OS) 
Hillside Conservation (HR-C) 


Open Space (OS) 
Hillside Conservation (HR-C) 


The Project Site has a General Plan land use designation and zoning of Open Space 
(OS). Public infrastructure projects are an allowable use within all City General Plan land 
use designation. 


10. Other public agencies whose approval is required:
Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region - National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System Permit


11. Related Technical Reports (incorporated by reference): The technical studies/reports
referenced herein and listed in the References section at the end of this Initial Study
were used to analyze the Project. All reports are available for review at the City of Loma
Linda Community Development Department.







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 7 
 


 
12. Evaluation Format: This Initial Study was prepared in compliance with the California 


Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. The format of the study is presented as 
follows. The project is evaluated based upon its effect on 21 major categories of 
environmental factors. Each factor is reviewed by responding to a series of questions 
regarding the impact of the project on each element of the overall factor. The Initial 
Study Checklist provides a formatted analysis that provides a determination of the effect 
of the project on the factor and its elements. The effect of the project is categorized into 
one of the following four categories of possible determinations: 


 
Potentially Significant 
Impact 


Less than Significant  
with Mitigation 


Less than Significant No Impact 


 


 
Substantiation is then provided to justify each determination. One of the four following 
conclusions is then provided as a summary of the analysis for each of the major environmental 
factors.  
 


1. Therefore, no impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are 
required. 


2. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 


3. Possible significant adverse impacts have been identified or anticipated and the following 
mitigation measures are required as a condition of project approval to reduce these impacts 
to a level below significant. The required mitigation measures are: (List mitigation 
measures). 


4. Significant adverse impacts have been identified or anticipated. An Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) is required to evaluate these impacts, which are: (List the impacts requiring 
analysis within the EIR). 


 
To ensure that the mitigation measures identified in the negative declaration are implemented, 
the public agency shall adopt a program for monitoring or reporting on the measures it has 
imposed to mitigate or avoid significant environmental effects. In accordance with CEQA 
Section 15097 Mitigation Monitoring or Report, mitigation measures required as part of this 
Initial Study shall be made a part of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. 
 
 


 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 8 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 
 
The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at 
least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the 
following pages. 
 


 Aesthetics  Agriculture and Forestry  Air Quality 


  Resources 


 Biological Resources  Cultural Resources  Energy 


 Geology / Soils   Greenhouse Gas Emissions  Hazards & Hazardous  


    Materials 


 Hydrology / Water Quality  Land Use / Planning   Mineral Resources 


 Noise  Population / Housing   Public Services 


 Recreation  Transportation  Tribal Cultural Resources 


 Utilities / Service Systems  Wildfire  Mandatory Findings of 


    Significance 


 


DETERMINATION  


On the basis of this initial evaluation: 


( )  I find that the Proposed Project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the 
environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 


() I find that although the Proposed Project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the 
project have been made by, or agreed to, by the project proponent. A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 


( ) I find that the Proposed Project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 


( )  I find that the Proposed Project MAY have a "Potentially Significant Impact" or 
"Potentially Significant Unless Mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one 
effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable 
legal standard and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier 
analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is 
required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 


( )  I find that although the Proposed Project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, because all potentially significant effects 1) have been analyzed adequately 
in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and 2) 
have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the 
Proposed Project, nothing further is required. 


Signature:   Date:    
Community Development Director  







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 9 
 


 EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS:  
 
1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are 


adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses 
following each question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced 
information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one 
involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be 
explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the 
project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific 
screening analysis). 


 
2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-


site, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well 
as operational impacts. 


 
3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the 


checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than 
significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is 
appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one 
or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is 
required. 


 
4) "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the 


incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant 
Impact" to a "Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation 
measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level 
(mitigation measures from "Earlier Analyses," as described in (5) below, may be cross-
referenced). 


 
5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA 


process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. 
Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following: 
 
a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 
 
b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were 


within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to 
applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation 
measures based on the earlier analysis. 


 
c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures 


Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from 
the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the 
project. 


 
6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information 


sources for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a 
previously prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to 
the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 


 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 10 
 


7) Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used 
or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 


 
8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, 


lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to 
a project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 


 
9) The explanation of each issue should identify: 


 
a) the significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 
 
b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 11 
 


EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
 


Issues: 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


I. AESTHETICS. Except as provided in Public Resources 
Code Section 21099, would the project: 


    


a) Have a substantial effect on a scenic vista? ( ) ( ) () ( ) 


b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but 
not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic 
buildings within a State Scenic Highway? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or 
quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? 
(Public views are those that are experienced from 
publicly accessible vantage point), If the project is in an 
urbanized area, would the project conflict with 
applicable zoning and other regulations governing 
scenic quality? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which 
would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the 
area? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


 Impact Discussion:  


a, c) Less than Significant Impact. The Project Site is currently vacant and consists of 
mostly sloped terrain. The Project Site does not contain any notable geological features 
and does not occur near a designated State Scenic Highway. Southwest of the Project 
Site is the Hillside Conservation Area. The area designated as “Hillside Conservation” on 
the Land Use Element Map is an important conservation area for the City and is 
characterized by natural, scenic hillsides, rough terrain and limited services constituting 
the highest ridgelines visible from the City. The proposed 1.6 MG water tank and related 
improvements are a permitted use within the Open Space District.  


 
As stated in the City of Loma Linda’s Municipal Code, Section 17.44.040 Development 
Standards, which sets forth standards for development within the Open Space District, 
no maximum height standards, except as approved by the Conditional Use Permit, 
exist.2 The water storage tank will be approximately 35 feet high and approximately 
100 feet in diameter, made of welded steel and built on grade within a southside slope in 
the South Hills. As shown in the detailed cut slope on Figure 3 Site Plan and in Photo 1, 
the proposed placement of the tank would reduce its visibility from Beaumont Avenue 
and residences to the north of the Project Site. The 1.6 MG water tank would be 
constructed on the south slope of a hill with a ridgeline elevation of 1,505 feet. The tank 
would be constructed within a cut slope at a finished elevation of 1,480 feet, and would 
extend approximately 10 feet above the ridgeline (1,480 feet plus 35-foot high water tank 
minus 1,505 foot ridgeline). However, due to topography and placement of the tank, only  


                                                 
2 http://qcode.us/codes/lomalinda/ . Table 2-8. 



http://qcode.us/codes/lomalinda/





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 12 
 


Photo 1: From a dirt road just north of Canyon Road, looking at the location of the1.6 MG water tank to be 
placed on the back side of hill.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Photo 2: Looking south from Beaumont Avenue toward the Project Site and the proposed location 
of the access road. 


Location of access road. 


Location of water tank is on the south side of a 


hill (not visible from Beaumont Avenue). 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 13 
 


a few feet would be visible from Beaumont Avenue. The access road would be visible 
from Beaumont Avenue. However, since there are existing transmission lines (i.e., 
Edison corridor) as seen in Photo 2, impacts to the existing visible environment are 
considered less than significant. Therefore, implementation of the Proposed Project 
would not disrupt views of the hillside or any other scenic vista identified by the City. 
Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 


 
b) No Impact. The Project Site is not within or near a State designated or eligible Scenic 


Highway as identified by the Department of Transportation’s State Scenic Highway 
Program. The nearest Scenic Highway is Route 38 that begins approximately 4.5 miles 
northeast of the Project Site. No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 


 
d)  Less than Significant Impact. Construction and operation of the 1.6 MG water tank 


would not require the use of nighttime lighting. The water tank would be painted a 
neutral color to aid in blending with the surrounding environment and is not anticipated to 
result in any new glare. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 II. AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTRY RESOURCES. In 
determining whether impacts to agricultural resources 
are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may 
refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and 
Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the 
California Dept. of Conservation as an optional model to 
use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In 
determining whether impacts to forest resources, 
including timberland, are significant environmental 
effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled 
by the California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, 
including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and 
the Forest Legacy Assessment Project; and forest 
carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest 
Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources 
Board. Would the project: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), 
as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of 
the California Resources Agency, to non-
agricultural use? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 14 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, 
or a Williamson Act contract? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland 
(as defined by Public Resources code section 
4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by Government Code 
section 51104(g))? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of 
forest land to non-forest use? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


e) Involve other changes in the existing environment 
which, due to their location or nature, could result 
in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use 
or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


 


Impact Discussion: 


a) No Impact. The Project Site occurs in an area identified by the California Department of 
Conservation’s Interactive Important Farmland Finder as “Grazing Land.” 3 Grazing Land 
is defined as land on which the existing vegetation is suited to the grazing of livestock. 
Grazing Land is not defined as prime farmland, unique farmland, or farmland of 
statewide importance. Therefore, no impacts are identified or anticipated and no 
mitigation measures are required. 


 


b) No Impact. The Project Site does not occur within or near land with a Williamson Act 
contract or agricultural use as shown on the United States Department of Agriculture 
Interactive Agricultural Resources Map.4 Therefore, no impacts are identified or 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required.  


 


c) No Impact. Forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), 
timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production would not be impacted by the Proposed Project as no rezoning 
from timberland to a non-timberland designation would result. Therefore, no impacts are 
identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
d) No Impact. No portion of the Project Site occurs within forest land, and the proposed 


expansion would not result in the loss of forest land or convert forest land to a non-forest 
use. No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required.  


 
e) No Impact. Under the existing City of Loma Linda General Plan, there are no 


agricultural land use designations, although agriculture is an existing use in some areas 


                                                 
3 https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/. Accessed 2/28/22. 
4 https://www.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=fcb9bc427d2a4c5a981f97547a0e3688. Accessed 
2/28/22. 



https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/

https://www.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=fcb9bc427d2a4c5a981f97547a0e3688





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 15 
 


of the City. There are no forest lands within the City. The Proposed Project would not 
result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use. No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are 
required.  


 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 III. AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria 
established by the applicable air quality management 
district or air pollution control district may be relied upon 
to make the following determinations. Would the project: 


    


a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 
applicable air quality plan? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an 
applicable Federal or State ambient air quality 
standard? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading 
to odors) adversely affecting a substantial 
number of people? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


Impact Discussion: 


 
a) Less than Significant Impact. The Project Site occurs within the South Coast Air Basin 


(SCAB). The South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) has jurisdiction over 
air quality issues and regulations within the SCAB. The Air Quality Management Plan 
(AQMP) for the basin establishes a program of rules and regulations administered by 
SCAQMD to obtain attainment of the State and federal air quality standards. The most 
recent AQMP (AQMP 2016) was adopted by the SCAQMD on March 3, 2017. The 2016 
AQMP incorporates the latest scientific and technological information and planning 
assumptions, including transportation control measures developed by the Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) from the 2016 Regional Transportation 
Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy, and updated emission inventory methodologies 
for various source categories. 


 
 The Project Site is a permitted use within the Open Space land use/zoning designation. 


Therefore, the emissions associated with the Proposed Project have already been 
accounted for in the AQMP and approval of the Proposed Project would not conflict with the 
AQMP. 


  
b) Less than Significant Impact. The Project would result in construction emissions and 


negligible operational emissions limited to maintenance vehicle trips. Construction of the 
proposed Project would require earthmoving, and other activities such as removal of 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 16 
 


vegetation. The Project’s construction activities were screened for emission generation 
using SCAQMD “Air Quality Handbook” guidelines and Emission Factors for On-Road 
Heavy-Heavy Duty Diesel Trucks (2022). These tables are used to generate emissions 
estimates for development projects. The criteria pollutants screened for included: 
reactive organic gases (ROG), nitrous oxides (NOx), carbon monoxide (CO), and 
particulates (PM10 and PM2.5). Two of these, ROG and NOx, are ozone precursors.  
 
Project construction emissions are considered short-term, temporary emissions and were 
calculated based on the estimated construction parameters listed below. The resulting 
emission levels as compared to SCAQMD thresholds are shown in Table 2 and Table 3.  
 
Road-Pipeline Installation Typical daily equipment: 
 


 1 Backhoe  


 1 Excavator  


 2 Other Construction Equipment  


 1 Other Material Handling Equipment  


 Paver 


 Paving Equipment 
 


Water Tank Installation Typical daily equipment: 
 


 1 Dozer  


 1 Backhoe  


 1 Roller  


 1 Crane 


 1 Forklift 


  2 Other Construction Equipment  
 


Table 2 
Road-Pipeline Installation  
Construction Emissions 


(Pounds per Day) 


Source ROG NOX CO PM10 PM2.5 


Backhoe  0.5 3.1 3.5 0.1 0.1 


Excavator  0.5 2.5 4.1 0.1 0.1 


Other Construction Equipment  0.8 4.5 5.6 0.2 0.2 


Other Material Handling Equipment  0.7 4.1 3.5 0.2 0.2 


Paver 0.7 3.8 3.9 0.2 0.2 


Paving Equipment 0.5 3.3 3.2 0.2 0.2 


Totals (lbs/day) 3.7 21.3 21.3 1.0 1.0 


SCAQMD Threshold 75 100 550 150 55 


Significant No No No No No 
  Source: SCAQMD Off-Road Mobile Source Emissions Factors (2022) 


 
 
 


 
 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 17 
 


Table 3 
Water Tank Installation  


Construction Emissions 
(Pounds per Day) 


Source ROG NOX CO PM10 PM2.5 


Dozer  1.5 10.9 5.9 0.4 0.4 


Backhoe 0.5 3.1 3.5 0.1 0.1 


Roller  0.4 2.6 3.0 0.1 0.1 


Crane 0.6 4.4 3.1 0.2 0.2 


Forklift  0.2 1.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 


Other Construction Equipment (i.e., 
architectural coating) 


0.8 4.5 5.6 0.2 0.2 


Totals (lbs/day) 4.1 26.4 22.8 1.1 1.1 


SCAQMD Threshold 75 100 550 150 55 


Significant No No No No No 
     Source: SCAQMD Off-Road Mobile Source Emissions Factors (2022) 


 
As shown in Table 2 and Table 3, Project emissions would not exceed SCAQMD 
thresholds. Therefore, no adverse significant impacts are identified or anticipated and no 
mitigation measures are warranted.  
 
Although the Proposed Project does not exceed SCAQMD thresholds during 
construction activities, the City would comply with all applicable SCAQMD rules and 
regulations as the SCAB is in non-attainment status for ozone and suspended 
particulates (PM10). The Project shall comply with Rules 402 nuisance and 403 fugitive 
dust that require the implementation of Best Available Control Measures (BACM) for 
each fugitive dust source; and the AQMP, which identifies Best Available Control 
Technologies (BACT) for area sources and point sources, respectively. The BACMs and 
BACTs as established by the SCAQMD would include, but not be limited to the following: 
 
1. The Project Proponent shall ensure that any portion of the site to be graded shall be 


pre-watered prior to the onset of grading activities. 
 


(a) The Project Proponent shall ensure that watering of the site or other soil 
stabilization method shall be employed on an on-going basis after the initiation 
of any grading activity on the site. Portions of the site that are actively being 
graded shall be watered regularly (two times daily) to ensure that a crust is 
formed on the ground surface and shall be watered at the end of each workday. 
 


(b) The Project Proponent shall ensure that all disturbed areas are treated to 
prevent erosion until the site is constructed upon. 
 


(c) The Project Proponent shall ensure that landscaped areas are installed as soon 
as possible to reduce the potential for wind erosion. 
 


(d) The Project Proponent shall ensure that all grading activities are suspended 
during first and second stage ozone episodes or when winds exceed 25 miles 
per hour. 
 
 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 18 
 


Exhaust emissions from construction vehicles and equipment and fugitive dust 
generated by equipment traveling over exposed surfaces would increase NOX and PM10 
levels in the area. Although the proposed project does not exceed SCAQMD thresholds 
during construction, the applicant will be required to implement the following conditions 
as required by SCAQMD: 
 


1. To reduce emissions, all equipment used in earthwork must be tuned and 
maintained to the manufacturer’s specification to maximize efficient burning of 
vehicle fuel. 
 


2. The project proponent shall ensure that construction personnel are informed of ride 
sharing and transit opportunities. 
 


3. The operator shall maintain and effectively utilize and schedule on-site equipment 
in order to minimize exhaust emissions from truck idling. 
 


4. The operator shall comply with all existing and future CARB and SCAQMD 
regulations related to diesel-fueled trucks, which may include among others: 
(1) meeting more stringent emission standards; (2) retrofitting existing engines with 
particulate traps; (3) use of low sulfur fuel; and (4) use of alternative fuels or 
equipment. 


 
Implementation of the Proposed Project would not exceed the SCAQMD significance 
thresholds for construction activities. Although there would be emissions from vehicles 
and equipment during construction, the emissions would be temporary, of short duration, 
and below the established thresholds. In addition, Project emissions of particulate matter 
would be reduced by implementing BACMs as outlined in SCAQMD dust control Rules 
402 - Nuisance and 403 - Fugitive Dust. As no measurable operational emissions will be 
generated, the Proposed Project would not generate long-term emissions of criteria 
pollutants that would exceed thresholds; therefore operation of the Proposed Project 
would not cause a cumulatively considerable increase in criteria pollutants. A less than 
significant impact is identified, and no mitigation measures are required.  


 
c) Less than Significant Impact. SCAQMD has developed a methodology to assess the 


localized impacts of emissions from a Proposed Project as outlined within the Final 
Localized Significance Threshold (LST) Methodology report; completed in June 2003 
and revised in July 2008. The use of LSTs is voluntary, to be implemented at the 
discretion of local public agencies acting as a lead agency pursuant to CEQA. According 
to SCAQMD LST methodology, LSTs would apply if the Proposed Project includes 
stationary sources or attracts mobile sources (such as heavy-duty trucks) that may 
spend long periods queuing and idling at the site, such as industrial warehouse/transfer 
facilities. The Proposed Project does not involve any such sources and therefore, no 
long-term localized significant threshold analysis is warranted. No significant adverse 
impacts are identified or are anticipated, and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
d) Less than Significant Impact. Potential odor sources associated with the Proposed 


Project may result from construction activities including equipment exhaust and painting. 
Operational odor would not be significant and would be limited to maintenance vehicles. 
Standard construction requirements (i.e., reduced idling, mufflers) would minimize odor 
impacts resulting from construction activity. It should be noted that any construction odor 
emissions generated would be temporary, short-term, and intermittent in nature and 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 19 
 


would cease upon completion of the respective phase of construction activity. The 
Proposed Project would also be required to comply with SCAQMD Rule 402 to prevent 
occurrences of public nuisances. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified 
or are anticipated, and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 


a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly 
or through habitat modifications, on any species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional plans, policies, 
or regulations, or by the California Department of 
Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


b) Have a substantial adverse effect on riparian 
habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations or by the California Department of 
Fish and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or 
federally protected wetlands (including, but not 
limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological 
interruption, or other means? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any 
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or 
migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of 
native wildlife nursery sites? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
conservation Plan, or other approved local, 
regional, or State habitat conservation plan? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


Impact Discussion:  


 
a) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. A Biological Resources 


Assessment (BRA) dated March 11, 2022 was prepared for the Project Site by ELMT 
Consulting. The BRA included a field investigation conducted on January 6, 2022, to 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 20 
 


document baseline conditions and assess the potential for special-status5 plant and 
wildlife species to occur within the Project Site that could pose a constraint to 
implementation of the Proposed Project. Special attention was given to the suitability of 
the Project Site to support special-status plant and wildlife species identified by the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife’s (CDFW) California Natural Diversity 
Database (CNDDB), and other electronic databases as potentially occurring in the 
general vicinity of the Project Site.  


 Prior to conducting the field investigation, a literature review and records search was 
conducted for special-status biological resources potentially occurring on or within the 
vicinity of the Project Site. Previously recorded occurrences of special-status plant and 
wildlife species and their proximity to the Project Site were determined through a query 
of the CDFW’s QuickView Tool in the Biogeographic Information and Observation 
System (BIOS), CNDDB Rarefind 5, the California Native Plant Society’s (CNPS) 
Electronic Inventory of Rare and Endangered Vascular Plants of California, Calflora 
Database, compendia of special-status species published by CDFW, and the United 
States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) species listings. 


 The literature review provided a baseline from which to inventory the biological 
resources potentially occurring within the Project Site. The CNDDB database was used, 
in conjunction with ArcGIS software, to locate the nearest recorded occurrences of 
special-status species and determine the distance from the Project Site. 


Common plant species observed during the field investigation were identified by visual 
characteristics and morphology in the field and recorded in a field notebook. Unusual 
and less-familiar plants were photographed in the field and identified in the laboratory 
using taxonomic guides. Wildlife species detected during the field investigation by sight, 
calls, tracks, scat, or other sign were recorded during surveys in a field notebook.  


 Findings 


 The survey area supports two vegetation communities: Riversidean sage scrub (RSS) 
and non-native grassland (NNG). In addition, the site supports two land cover types that 
would be described as disturbed and developed. The tank site and spillway primarily 
support non-native grasses, while the proposed access road to the Project Site follows 
an existing dirt access road that is void of vegetation. Habitat on either side of the dirt 
road will be removed during development of the construction access road and is 
described as heavily disturbed Riversidean Sage Scrub (RSS).  


Riversidean Sage Scrub – Habitat along the access road to the tank site that will 
traverse up the north facing slope north of the tank site, supports a Riversidean sage 
scrub plant community. This plant community is dominated by California sagebrush 
(Artemisia californica) and supports recovering stands of white sage (Saliva apiana), 
brittle bush (Encelia farinsosa), and elderberry (Sambucus nigra). Other common plant 
species observed in the community include: cryptantha (Cryptantha sp.), deerweed 
(Acmispon glaber), rod wirelettuce (Stephanomeria virgata), wirelettuce (Stephanomeria 
pauciflora), California buckwheat (Eriogonum fasciculatum), chia (Salvia columbariae), 


                                                 
5  As used in this report, “special-status” refers to plant and wildlife species that are federally and State listed, proposed, or 


candidates; plant species that have been designated with a California Native Plant Society Rare Plant Rank; wildlife species 


that are designated by the CDFW as fully protected, species of special concern, or watch list species; and specially protected 


natural vegetation communities as designated by the CDFW. 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 21 
 


Tucker oak (Quercus john-tuckeri), mulefat (Baccharis salicifolia), shismus (Schismus 
sp.), and western ragweed (Ambrosia psilostachya). 


 
Non-Native Grassland - The tank site itself support a non-native grassland plant 
community. This plant community is dominated by non-native grasses including wild oat 
(Avena fatua) and red brome (Bromus madritensis ssp. rubens) and supports mainly 
weedy/early successional species. Other common plant species that were observed in 
the non-native grassland vegetation community include: Mediterranean mustard 
(Hirschfeldia incana), tocalote (Centaurea melitensis), prickly lettuce (Lactuca serriola), 
telegraph weed (Heterotheca grandiflora), tree tobacco (Nicotiana glauca), elderberry, 
chamise, wire lettuce species, cryptantha, and schismus. 


 
Wildlife 
 
Plant communities provide foraging habitat, nesting/denning sites, and shelter from 
adverse weather or predation. The Project Site provides limited habitat for wildlife 
species except those adapted to a high degree of anthropogenic disturbances and 
development. The plant communities on the Project Site have the potential to support a 
number of reptilian species known to occur in the area. Reptilian species detected during 
the field investigation include: Great Basin fence lizard (Sceloporus occidentalis 
longipes), and western side-blotched lizard (Uta stansburiana elegans). Other common 
reptile species that have the potential to occur on the project site include southern 
alligator lizard (Elgaria multicarinata), California kingsnake (Lampropeltis californiae), 
southern Pacific rattlesnake (Crotalus oreganus helleri)and gopher snake (Pituophis 
catenifer).  
 
The Project Site provides suitable foraging and nesting habitat for a variety of avian 
species. Avian species detected during the field investigation include: lesser goldfinch 
(Carduelis psaltria), California quail (Callipepla gambelii), California thrasher (Toxostoma 
redivivum), California towhee (Melozone crissalis), American crow (Corvus 
brachyrhynchos), common raven (Corvus corax), red-tailed hawk (Buteo jamaicensis), 
house finch (Haemorhous mexicanus), Bewick’s wren (Thryomanes bewickii), Anna’s 
hummingbird (Calypte anna), bushtit (Psaltriparus minimus), Cassin’s kingbird (Tyrannus 
vociferans), American kestrel (Falco sparverius), mourning dove (Zenaida macroura), 
turkey vulture (Cathartes aura), and northern mockingbird (Mimus polyglottos).  
 
The survey area provides suitable foraging and cover habitat for a variety of mammalian 
species known to occur within the region. The only mammalian species detected during 
the field investigation was coyote (Canis lastrans). Common mammalian species that 
could potentially occur on-site include: cottontail (Sylvilagus audubonii), ground squirrel 
(Otospermophilus beecheyi), racoon (Procyon lotor), gopher (Thomomys bottae).  
 
Nesting Birds 
 
No active nests or birds displaying nesting behavior were observed during the field 
survey, which was conducted outside of breeding season. The Project Site has the 
potential to provide nesting habitat for year-round and seasonal avian residents, as well 
as migrating songbirds that could occur in the area that are adapted to urban 
environments.  
 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 22 
 


Nesting birds are protected pursuant to the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA), and the 
California Fish and Game Code (Sections 3503, 3503.5, 3511 and 3513) prohibit the 
take, possession, or destruction of birds, their nests or eggs). Therefore, to ensure 
potential impacts are reduced to nesting birds, the following mitigation measure shall be 
implemented: 
 
Mitigation Measure BIO-1: 
 
If construction occurs between February 1st and August 31st, a pre-construction 
clearance survey for nesting birds shall be conducted by a qualified biologist 
within three (3) days of the start of any vegetation removal or ground disturbing 
activities. In general, impacts to all bird species (common and special status) can 
be avoided by conducting work outside of the nesting season (generally March 
15th to September 15th) and conducting worker awareness training.  


 
b, c) No Impact. Aerial photography was reviewed prior to conducting a field investigation in 


order to locate and inspect any potential natural drainage features, ponded areas, or 
water bodies that may fall under the jurisdiction of the United States Army Corps of 
Engineers (Corps), Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), or CDFW. In 
general, surface drainage features indicated as blue-line streams on USGS maps that 
are observed or expected to exhibit evidence of flow are considered potential 
riparian/riverine habitat and are also subject to state and federal regulatory jurisdiction. 
Jurisdictional waters information was reviewed through examining historical aerial 
photographs to gain an understanding of the impact of land use on natural drainage 
patterns in the area. The USFWS National Wetland Inventory (NWI) and Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) Water Program “My Waters” data layers were also reviewed to 
determine whether any hydrologic features and wetland areas have been documented 
on or within the vicinity of the Project Site.  


 
No discernible drainage courses, inundated areas, or wetland features/obligate plant 
species that would be considered jurisdictional by the Corps, RWQCB, or CDFW were 
observed within the Project Site. The proposed spillway will connect into an existing 
catch basin southwest of the proposed tank site. The catch basin only receives local 
storm flows from the undeveloped area to the south, and the majority of the storm water 
percolates into the ground. During large/uncommon storm events, the catch basin can 
overflow and convey waters to the north, where they are conveyed via a concrete lined 
channel that ends approximately 0.15 mile to the north of the catch basin. As a result, 
the catch basin is not expected to fall under the regulatory authority of the Corps, 
RWQCB, or CDFW and regulatory approvals are not expected to be required. No 
impacts have been identified or are anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 
 


d) No Impact. Habitat linkages provide connections between larger habitat areas that are 
separated by development. Wildlife corridors are similar to linkages but provide specific 
opportunities for animals to disperse or migrate between areas. A corridor can be 
defined as a linear landscape feature of sufficient width to allow animal movement 
between two comparatively undisturbed habitat fragments. Adequate cover is essential 
for a corridor to function as a wildlife movement area. It is possible for a habitat corridor 
to be adequate for one species yet still inadequate for others. Wildlife corridors are 
features that allow for the dispersal, seasonal migration, breeding, and foraging of a 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 23 
 


variety of wildlife species. Additionally, open space can provide a buffer against both 
anthropogenic disturbance and natural fluctuations in resources. 


 
The Project Site is located on the north facing slopes immediately south of the southern 
boundary of residential development on the north side of Beaumont Avenue. Partially 
developed area and undeveloped land occurs to east, west and south of the site. The 
tank site is within the northern portion of the foothills and does not extend into the interior 
of the foothills. Further, there are no riparian corridors or creeks within the Project area. 
Due to its proximity to Beaumont Avenue and existing residential development, the 
Project Site does not contribute to or function as a major wildlife movement corridor or 
linkage. As such, implementation of the Proposed Project is not expected to have a 
significant impact to wildlife movement opportunities or prevent local wildlife movement 
through the area. Therefore, no impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 
 


e) No Impact. The Project would not conflict with any local policies or ordinances for the 
preservation of trees as no trees would be removed to allow for the Project. Therefore, 
no impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
f) No Impact. The Project would not conflict with an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, 


Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or State habitat 
conservation plan as the Project would not occur on land designated for such use. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 V. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 


a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource pursuant to 
§ 15064.5? 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archeological resource 
pursuant to § 15064.5? 


( ) () ( ) ( ) 


c) Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of formal cemeteries? 


( ) () ( ) ( ) 


Impact Discussion:  


a, b) Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. A Cultural Resources Study, 
dated January 14, 2022, was completed by Brian F. Smith and Associates, Inc. (BFSA) 
for the Project Site and is available for review at the City of Loma Linda Community 
Development Department and is summarized herein.  


 
In compliance with the CEQA and the City of Loma Linda, the report included a field 
survey and a standard archaeological record search through the California State 
University, Fullerton, South Central Coastal Information Center (SCCIC). This research 
included a review of previously completed projects within one-mile of the Project Site; a 
review of the recorded cultural resources within one-mile of the Project Site; a review of 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 24 
 


listings for the National Register of Historic Places, the California Register of Historical 
Resources, California Landmarks, and California Points of Historical Interest. Historic 
maps were also reviewed. In addition, the Native American Heritage Commission was 
contacted to inquire of any the presence/absence of sacred or religious sites in the 
vicinity of the Project Site. Letters were also sent to Native American representatives 
identified by the Commission, requesting information on any issues, concerns, or 
resources they may be aware of and requested written responses. As of the date of the 
report, no responses have been received. City staff contacted Native American 
representatives identified as having interest in projects via email on January 27, 2022. 
Each entity was informed of the Proposed Project and asked to comment or request 
consultation. A discussion of the consultation process related to Tribal Cultural 
Resources is provided in Section XVIII of this Initial Study. 


  
The archaeological records search conducted at SCCIC included a 0.5-mile radius 
search. As shown in Table 4, the results indicate six cultural resources are located within 
a 0.5-mile radius of the Proposed Project, one of which (SBR-29,458H) is recorded on 
the subject property. 
 


Table 4 
Cultural Resources Within One-Half Mile of the Project 


 
Site Number 


 
Site Type 


SBR-6352H Historic Craftsman Citrus Ranch 


P-36-012492 Historic single-family residence 


P-33-022389/P-36-026050 Portion of the historic 
Devers-Vista 220kV Transmission Line 


SBR-17,226H Portion of the historic 
Mira Loma-Vista 220kV Transmission Line 


SBR-17,243H Historic refuse scatter 


SBR-29,458H Historic irrigation complex remains 


 
 


The records search results also indicate that 17 cultural resource studies have been 
conducted within 0.5 miles of the Project Site, five of which (Smith 1975; Hatheway 
1988; McLean et al. 2013; DeCarlo and Winslow 2015; Perez and Fink 2016) overlap 
the Project Site. The EBI Consulting cultural resource survey recorded Site 
SBR-29,458H within the subject property as “the remains of an irrigation complex dating 
to the early 20th century (probably the 1920s based on archival aerial imagery and its 
likely association with CA-SBR-6352 [historic citrus ranch]). The only intact feature that 
was observed was an irrigation box constructed of brick and concrete” (Perez and Fink 
2016). The site was evaluated as part of that study as not meeting any National Register 
of Historic Places (NRHP) eligibility criteria due to no longer being intact and unable to 
offer any “data potential” (Perez and Fink 2016). 
 
In addition to the SCCIC records search, the following historic sources were reviewed: 


 


 The NRHP Index 


 The Office of Historic Preservation (OHP), Archaeological Determinations of 
Eligibility 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 25 
 


 The OHP, Built Environment Resources Directory 


 Historic USGS maps 


 Historic aerial photographs (1938, 1959, 1966, 1968, 1978, 1980, 1994, 2002, 
2005, 2009, and 2010) 


 
These sources did not indicate the presence of any additional archaeological resources 
within the Project Site. According to the aerial photographs, the lower elevated area of 
the site was developed as a citrus grove from at least the late 1930s through the 1970s 
which correlates with the data presented by Perez and Fink (2016). 


 
Results of the Field Survey 


 
An archaeological survey for the Project Site was conducted on January 6, 2022 and 
included an intensive reconnaissance that covered the entire Project Site. The site 
primarily extends from the intersection of Mountain View and Beaumont avenues, east 
along Beaumont Avenue before meandering south, generally along the alignment of a 
well-defined hiking path, to the top of a hill and just west of electrical towers. Ground 
visibility ranged throughout the property and at times was hindered by hardscape, small 
pockets of sage and non-native grasses found throughout the property, and eucalyptus 
trees primarily situated at the base of the slope. According to aerial imagery, the 
property has been largely disturbed by use as a citrus grove from at least the 1930s 
through the 1970s. Other noted disturbances include an asphalt-paved path along 
Beaumont Avenue, terracing of the slope, the creation of dirt ramps for jumping bikes, 
hiking trails, and a concrete paved access road extending from Beaumont Avenue 
northwest and terminating within the Project Site. The survey did not identify any new 
cultural resources, and the level of noted disturbance appears to have affected the 
potential to discover any surface scatters of artifacts. 


 
Although no new prehistoric or historic resources were identified during the survey, 
previously recorded Site SBR-29,458H, consisting of a brick and concrete irrigation box, 
was located and appeared in the same condition as when originally recorded in 2016 
(Perez and Fink 2016). BFSA concludes that the identification of this concrete feature as 
an irrigation box is incorrect, and the concrete feature is actually a septic tank. 
 
Although the septic tank was the only intact feature identified by Perez and Fink (2016), 
it was noted in their study that fragments of brick and irrigation pipe were also 
discovered in proximity to the feature. Perez and Fink (2016) determined it was likely 
associated with a circa 1920s-era irrigation complex possibly tied to SBR-6352 (Historic 
Craftsman Citrus Ranch). Regardless, Perez and Fink (2016) evaluated the resource as 
not eligible for listing on the NRHP. Further, based upon the previous evaluation, it is 
clear the resource is also not eligible for listing on the California Register of Historic 
Resources and, therefore, not a significant resource under State and federal criteria. No 
new elements or information were identified in the current survey that would counter the 
previous evaluation of Site SBR-29,458H (Historic irrigation complex remains). Rather, 
improvements in the surrounding area, such as the paving of the adjacent dirt access 
road, have further diminished the integrity of the resource. 
 
The Cultural Resources Study concluded that the Project Site was negative for the 
presence of significant cultural resources. While a septic tank recorded as Site SBR-







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 26 
 


29,458H was present within the Project Site boundary, the resource has already been 
evaluated as not eligible for listing on the NRHP (Perez and Fink 2016). As stated 
previously, visibility on-site was moderate; however, the Project Site has been impacted 
by previous land modifications and improvements and, it is unclear if any additional 
cultural resources have ever existed on-site. The current state of the Project Site 
appears to have affected the potential to discover any surface scatters of artifacts. Given 
that the prior agricultural use and impacts to the site might have masked archaeological 
deposits and based upon the presence of a historic resource and somewhat limited 
visibility during the survey, there is a potential that buried archaeological deposits are 
present within the project boundaries. Construction of the water tank, pipeline and other 
related water system improvements may uncover unrecorded cultural deposits or 
features. Therefore, the following mitigation shall be required:  
 
Mitigation Measure CR-1: 
 
An archeological monitor shall be present during all soil-disturbing and 
grading/excavation/trenching activities that could result in impacts to 
archaeological resources. In the event of an archaeological discovery, either 
historic or prehistoric, the archaeological monitor shall direct the contractor to 
temporarily divert all soil- disturbing activities, including but not limited to, 
digging, trenching, excavating, or grading activities in the area of discovery and in 
the area reasonably suspected to overlay adjacent resources, and immediately 
notify the Native American monitor and client, as appropriate. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-2: 
 
In the event resources are discovered, the monitor shall immediately notify the 
Principal Investigator (PI) of the discovery. The PI shall evaluate the significance 
of the resource and notify the City to discuss significance and shall also submit a 
letter indicating whether additional mitigation is required.  
 
Mitigation Measure CR-3: 
 
If the resource is significant, the PI shall submit an Archaeological Data Recovery 
Program (ADRP) that has also been reviewed by the Native American 
consultant/monitor and obtain written approval from the City to implement that 
program. Impacts to significant resources must be mitigated before ground- 
disturbing activities in the area of discovery will be allowed to resume. If the 
resource is not significant, the PI shall submit a letter to the City indicating that 
artifacts will be collected, curated, and documented in the final monitoring report. 
The letter shall also indicate that no further work is required. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-4: 
 
In the event field conditions such as modern disturbance post-dating previous 
grading/trenching activities, presence of fossil formations, or native soils are 
encountered that may reduce or increase the potential for resources to be 
present, the PI shall submit a detailed letter to the lead agency requesting a 
modification to the monitoring program. 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 27 
 


Mitigation Measure CR-5: 
 
The PI shall submit to the City a draft monitoring report (even if negative) 
prepared in accordance with the agency guidelines, which describes the results, 
analysis, and conclusions of all phases of the archaeological monitoring program.  
For significant archaeological resources encountered during monitoring, the 
Archaeological Data Recovery Program (ADRP) shall be included in the draft 
monitoring report. Recording sites with the State of California Department of 
Parks and Recreation (DPR) shall be the responsibility of the PI, including 
recording (on the appropriate forms-DPR 523 A/B) any significant or potentially 
significant resources encountered during the archaeological monitoring program. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-6: 
 
In the event artifacts are collected, the PI shall be responsible for handling and 
ensuring that all artifacts are analyzed to identify function and chronology as they 
relate to the history of the area; that faunal material is identified as to species; and 
that specialty studies are completed, as appropriate. The PI shall submit the 
approved final monitoring report to the City and any interested parties. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-7: 
 
In the event artifacts are collected, the cost for curation shall be the responsibility 
of the property owner. 


 
c) Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. Construction activities, 


particularly grading, could potentially disturb human remains interred outside of a formal 
cemetery. Therefore, possible significant adverse impacts have been identified or 
anticipated and the following mitigation measure is required as a condition of project 
approval to reduce these impacts to a level below significant: The required mitigation 
measure is: 


 
Mitigation Measure CR-8: 
 
If human remains are discovered, work shall halt in that area until a determination 
can be made regarding the provenance of the human remains, and the following 
procedures as set forth in CEQA Section 15064.5(e), the California PRC 
(Sec. 5097.98), and the State Health and Safety Code (Sec. 7050.5) shall be 
undertaken including notifying the PI, whom shall notify the medical examiner 
after consultation with the City, either in person or via telephone. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-9: 
 
In the event human remains are discovered, the site shall be isolated, and work 
shall be directed away from the location of the discovery and any nearby area 
reasonably suspected to overlay adjacent human remains until a determination 
can be made by the medical examiner in consultation with the PI concerning the 
provenance of the remains. The medical examiner, in consultation with the PI, will 
determine the need for a field examination to determine the provenance. If a field 
examination is not warranted, the medical examiner will determine, with input 
from the PI, if the remains are or are most likely to be of Native American origin. If 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 28 
 


human remains are not Native American, the PI shall contact the medical examiner 
and notify them of the historic- era context of the burial. The medical examiner will 
determine the appropriate course of action with the PI and city staff (PRC 
5097.98). If the remains are of historic origin, they shall be appropriately removed 
and conveyed to the City. The decision for internment of the human remains shall 
be made in consultation with the City, the applicant/landowner, and any known 
descendant group. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-10: 
 
If human remains are determined to be Native American, the medical examiner will 
notify the NAHC within 24 hours. By law, only the medical examiner can make this 
call. The NAHC will immediately identify the person or persons determined to be 
the Most Likely Descendent (MLD) and provide contact information. The MLD will 
contact the PI within 24 hours or sooner after the medical examiner has completed 
coordination to begin the consultation process in accordance with CEQA Section 
15064.5(e), the California PRC, and the State Health and Safety Code. The MLD will 
have 48 hours to make recommendations to the property owner or representative 
for the treatment or disposition with proper dignity of the human remains and 
associated grave goods. 
 
Disposition of Native American human remains will be determined between the 
MLD and the PI, and, if the NAHC is unable to identify the MLD, or the MLD failed 
to make a recommendation within 48 hours after being notified by the NAHC or 
the landowner or authorized representative rejects the recommendation of the 
MLD and mediation in accordance with PRC 5097.94 (k) by the NAHC fails to 
provide measures acceptable to the landowner; then upon the discovery of 
multiple Native American human remains during a ground-disturbing land 
development activity, the landowner may agree that additional conferral with 
descendants is necessary to consider culturally appropriate treatment of multiple 
Native American human remains. Culturally appropriate treatment of such a 
discovery may be ascertained from review of the site utilizing cultural and 
archaeological standards. Where the parties are unable to agree upon the 
appropriate treatment measures, the human remains and grave goods buried with 
the Native American human remains, shall be reinterred with appropriate dignity. 


 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 29 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 VI. ENERGY. Would the project: 


a) Result in potentially significant environment 
impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or 
unnecessary consumption of energy resources, 
during project construction or operation? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for 
renewable energy or energy efficiency? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


 
a) Less than Significant Impact. 


 
Electricity:  
 
Southern California Edison (SCE) provides electrical service within the City and 
surrounding area. According to the California Energy Commission: Electricity 
Consumption by Planning Area, SCE under the category of “Agricultural/Water Pump” 
consumed 5,077-million gigawatt hours (GWh) in the year 2020.6 Between the years 
2015 and 2026, total electricity demand in SCE’s service area is estimated to increase 
by approximately 12,000 million GWh. Currently, the Project Site is vacant and does not 
receive electrical service. Implementation of the Proposed Project would require the 
extension of service for the operation of the SCADA system and security lighting. No 
significant increase in electrical service is anticipated. Electrical demand of the Proposed 
Project is expected to be sufficiently served by SCE’s current system. The electricity 
demand from the Proposed Project would represent an insignificant percentage of the 
overall demand in SCE’s service area. No significant impacts would result. 


 
Natural Gas:  
 
The Proposed Project is a water storage tank that would not require natural gas; 
therefore, no significant impacts due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption 
of energy resources, during project construction or operation are anticipated and no 
mitigation measures are recommended.  


  
Fuel Consumption: 
 
During construction of the Proposed Project, the use of fuel would be required during 
construction for operation of heavy equipment, and by employees occasionally traveling 
to and from the Project Site for maintenance. The Proposed Project is not expected to 
result in a substantial demand for fuel that would require expanded supplies or require 
the construction of other infrastructure or expansion of existing facilities. Fuel use during 
construction would not be considered inefficient, wasteful, or unnecessary. The 
Proposed Project would not result in wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of 
energy resources. Impacts are less than significant, and no mitigation is recommended. 
 


                                                 
6 https://ecdms.energy.ca.gov/gasbyplan.aspx. Accessed 3/29//2020. 



https://ecdms.energy.ca.gov/gasbyplan.aspx





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 30 
 


b) Less than Significant Impact. Project design and operation would comply with the 
County of San Bernardino Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Reduction Plan, and the 
State Building Energy Efficiency Standards related to appliance efficiency regulations, 
and standards. Project development would not cause inefficient, wasteful and 
unnecessary energy consumption, and no adverse impact would occur. 


 
The Proposed Project would not conflict with any applicable plan, policy or regulation of 
an agency adopted to reduce GHG emissions, including Title 24, AB 32, and SB 32; 
therefore, the Project is consistent with AB 32, which aims to decrease emissions 
statewide to 1990 levels by 2020 as discussed in Sections III and VIII of this Initial Study. 
The Proposed Project would not conflict with or obstruct a State or local plan for 
renewable energy or energy efficiency. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are 
identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:  


a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial 
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, 
or death involving:  


    


i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the 
State Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a known 
fault? Refer to Division of Mines and 
Geology Special Publication 42. 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ( ) ( ) () ( ) 


iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


iv) Landslides? ( ) ( ) () ( ) 


b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 
topsoil? 


( ) ( ) ()  ( ) 


c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in on- 
or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 
18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), 
creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life 
or property? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 31 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting 
the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater 
disposal systems where sewers are not available 
for the disposal of wastewater? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 


( ) () ( ) ( ) 


Impact Discussion: 


a)  
i, ii)  Less Than Significant Impact. A Geotechnical Investigation Report dated June 


17, 2021, was prepared by Converse Consultants for the Proposed Project. The 
report is available for review at the City of Loma Linda Community Development 
Department and is summarized herein.  


 
  As shown on Figure 10.1 of the City’s General Plan, the Project Site is not 


located within an Alquist-Priolo Fault Zone. As concluded in the Geotechnical 
Investigation, the Project Site is not located within a currently mapped State or 
local (i.e., San Bernardino County) Earthquake Fault Zone for surface fault 
rupture. The nearest fault is the San Jacinto Fault located approximately one-
mile southwest of the Project Site. The tank and related improvements are 
considered essential to the City's water system and would be excluded from 
typical development standards for seismic protection. The Proposed Project 
would however be constructed in accordance with recommendations provided in 
the Geotechnical Investigation to ensure the tank would withstand strong ground 
shaking in the event of an earthquake. No significant adverse impacts are 
identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required.  


 
iii) No Impact. Liquefaction is defined as the phenomenon in which a cohesion-less 


soil mass suffers a substantial reduction in its shear strength due to the 
development of excess pore pressures. During earthquakes, excess pore 
pressures in saturated soil deposits may develop as a result of induced cyclic 
shear stresses, resulting in liquefaction. As concluded in the Geotechnical 
Investigation, the Project Site is not located within an area designated as a 
liquefaction risk by the State. Based on the absence of shallow groundwater, 
dense soil and shallow bedrock conditions, the potential of liquefaction induced 
settlement is anticipated to be negligible. Therefore, no impacts are identified or 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
iv) Less than Significant Impact. The southern portion of the City (commonly 


known as the South Hills) has steep natural slopes, which are susceptible to 
instability in certain areas. The type of instability anticipated in this area includes 
deep-seated landslides, surficial soil slips, wet debris flows, and surficial creep. 
As discussed in the Geotechnical Investigation prepared for the Proposed 
Project, landslides and other slope failures are common occurrences during or 
soon after earthquakes. The Project Site is not located within a designated State 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 32 
 


or local landslide hazard zone. The slopes within and surrounding the Project 
Site were observed for slumps, scarps, fissures, deformation or seepage. No 
visible indications of potential slope movement or instability were observed 
during our geologic mapping or subsurface exploration. Therefore, no significant 
impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
b) Less than Significant Impact. During the development of the Proposed Project, 


project-related dust may be generated due to the operation of machinery on-site or due 
to high winds. Additionally, erosion of soils could occur due to a storm event. 
Development of the Proposed Project would disturb more than one acre of soil; 
therefore, the Proposed Project is subject to the requirements of the State Water 
Resources Control Board General Permit for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with 
Construction Activity (Construction General Permit Order 2009-2009-DWQ). 
Construction activity subject to this permit includes clearing, grading, and disturbances 
to the ground such as stockpiling or excavation. The Construction General Permit 
requires the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution and Prevention 
Plan (SWPPP). The SWPPP must list Best Management Practices (BMPs) to avoid and 
minimize soil erosion. Adherence to BMPs would ensure that the Proposed Project does 
not result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil. No significant adverse impacts 
are identified or are anticipated, and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
c) Less than Significant Impact. The Project Site was reviewed for the potential 


occurrence of being located on a geologic unit and/or soil that could possibly become 
unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the Proposed Project. As 
discussed in the Geotechnical Investigation prepared for the Proposed Project, 
landslides and other slope failures are common occurrences during or soon after 
earthquakes. The Project Site is not located within a designated Ste or local landslide 
hazard zone. The slopes within and surrounding the site were observed for slumps, 
scarps, fissures, deformation or seepage. No visible indications of potential slope 
movement or instability were observed during our geologic mapping or subsurface 
exploration. 
 
Liquefaction is defined as the phenomenon in which a cohesion-less soil mass suffers a 
substantial reduction in its shear strength due to the development of excess pore 
pressures. During earthquakes, excess pore pressures in saturated soil deposits may 
develop as a result of induced cyclic shear stresses, resulting in liquefaction. As 
concluded in the Geotechnical Investigation, Project Site is not located within an area 
designated as a liquefaction risk by the State. Based on the absence of shallow 
groundwater, dense soil and shallow bedrock conditions, the potential of liquefaction 
induced settlement is anticipated to be negligible. 
 
Seismically induced settlement occurs in loose, granular sediments during ground 
shaking associated with earthquakes. Based on the dense soil and shallow bedrock 
conditions at the Project Site, the potential of seismic settlement is anticipated to be 
negligible. 
 
Seismically induced lateral spreading involves primarily lateral movement of earth 
materials over deeper layers which have liquefied due to ground shaking. It differs from 
slope failure in that complete ground failure involving large movement does not occur 
due to the relatively smaller gradient of the initial ground surface. Lateral spreading is 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 33 
 


characterized by near-vertical cracks with predominantly horizontal movement of the soil 
mass involved. Due to the low risk of liquefaction.  
 
In accordance with American Water Works Association (AWWA) D-100 Standards, 
structural calculations were prepared for the tank to ensure the design would withstand 
static/vertical forces, seismic and lateral forces in the event of a major earthquake. 
Recommendations presented in the Geotechnical Investigation shall become conditions 
of approval for the Project. No significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated 
and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
d) No Impact. Expansive soils are composed of fine-grained silts and clays which are 


subject to swelling and contracting. The amount of swelling and contracting is subject to 
the amount of fine-grained clay materials present in the soils and the amount of moisture 
either introduced or extracted from the soils. The Project Site consists of Saugus sandy 
loan as determined by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural 
Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey;7 which is considered well-draining 
and has minimal clay materials. Based on the exploratory borings, test pits, and 
laboratory test results performed as part of the Geotechnical Investigation, the 
subsurface soils at the site consist primarily of a mixture of sand; silt and gravel; roots 
and rootlets; some desiccation; some porosity; loose to dense; and dry to moist. The 
alluvium is underlain at varying depths by bedrock that consists of the San Timoteo 
Formation from the surface and below the topsoil or alluvium at depths from surface to 
18.0 feet below ground surface (bgs). Where observed, the material was generally 
comprised of sandstone, silty sandstone and some sandy siltstone with some scattered 
gravel up to 3 inches and a few cobbles up to 5 inches. Due to the absence of significant 
amounts of clay, the potential for expansion of soils on-site is considered to be very low. 
No impacts are identified or are anticipated, and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
e) No Impact. The Proposed Project would not require the use of septic tanks or 


alternative wastewater disposal. Therefore, no impacts are identified or anticipated and 
no mitigation measures are required. 


f) Less Than Significant with Mitigation Implemented. Paleontological resources are 
recognized as nonrenewable resources significant to our culture, and are afforded 
protection by federal, State, and local environmental guidelines. Geologic formations are 
ranked by their potential to contain significant, nonrenewable palaeontologic resources 
(SNPR). The Loma Linda Planning Area is in the southern San Bernardino Basin, a 
structural basin that filled with sediments as a result of activity on the San Andreas and 
San Jacinto Fault systems. Sedimentary deposition has been taking place in this basin 
since late Miocene time. 


 
Although the Project Site does not visibly contain a unique paleontological resource or 
site or unique geologic feature, grading could expose resources that may exist below the 
surface. Therefore, possible significant adverse impacts have been identified or 
anticipated and the following mitigation measures are required as a condition of project 
approval to reduce these impacts to a level below significant. The required mitigation 
measure is: 
 


                                                 
7 https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.us-da.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx. Accessed 3/1/22. 



https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.us-da.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 34 
 


Mitigation Measure GEO-1: 
 
Excavations into any areas of exposed Miocene (and earlier) deposits of the San 
Timoteo Formation will be monitored by a qualified paleontologist consistent with 
the policies and protocols of the San Bernardino County Museum. The 
Paleontologist shall determine the extent and duration of monitoring required and 
provide a report to the City. 


 


 


 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project: 


a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of greenhouse gases? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


 
Impact Discussion: 
 
Certain gases in the earth’s atmosphere, classified as greenhouse gases (GHGs), play a critical 
role in determining the earth’s surface temperature. A portion of the solar radiation that enters 
the atmosphere is absorbed by the surface of the earth and a portion of this energy is reflected 
back toward space as infrared radiation. This infrared radiation released from the earth that 
otherwise would escape back into space is instead absorbed or “trapped” by GHGs, resulting in 
a warming of the atmosphere.  
 
GHGs occur in the atmosphere naturally and are also emitted by human sources or are formed 
by secondary reactions in the atmosphere. The following are GHGs that are widely seen as the 
principal contributors to human-induced global climate change: carbon dioxide (CO2), methane, 
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluoride. Global warming 
potential (GWP) is a concept developed to compare the ability of each GHG to trap heat in the 
atmosphere relative to CO2. The GWP of a GHG is based on several factors, including the 
relative effectiveness of a gas to absorb infrared radiation and length of time (i.e., lifetime) that 
the gas remains in the atmosphere (“atmospheric lifetime”). The concept of CO2-equivalents 
(CO2e) is used to account for the different GWP potentials of GHGs to absorb infrared radiation. 
 
The quantity of GHGs that it takes to ultimately result in climate change is not precisely known; 
however, no single project alone is expected to measurably contribute to a noticeable 
incremental change in the global average temperature, or to a global, local, or microclimate. 
Given the nature of environmental consequences from GHGs and global climate change, CEQA 
requires that lead agencies evaluate the cumulative impacts of GHGs, even relatively small 
additions, on a global basis. 
 
a) Less than Significant Impact. The Project was screened for emission generation using 


SCAQMD “Air Quality Handbook” guidelines and Emission Factors for On-Road Heavy-
Heavy Duty Diesel Trucks (2022). Operational emissions were not screened as they are 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 35 
 


considered negligible. However, heavy-duty off-road equipment associated with 
construction would result in exhaust related GHG emissions.  


 
 There are no adopted GHG emission thresholds that are directly applicable to the 


Project. The SCAQMD has adopted an CEQA significance threshold of 10,000 MT per 
year of CO2e for industrial projects and 3,000 MT per year for residential and 
commercial uses where SCAQMD is the lead agency (SCAQMD, 2008b). The City of 
Loma Linda uses the County of San Bernardino GHG Reduction Plan (Plan) that 
includes measures developed in order to reduce GHG emissions. The Plan included a 
threshold level above 3,000 MT CO2e per year used to identify residential and 
commercial projects that require the use of screening tables or a project-specific 
technical analysis to quantify and mitigate project emissions. Consistent with SCAQMD 
and County of San Bernardino recommendations, construction emissions for the Project 
were amortized over the average lifetime of a project’s operations. 


 
 As shown in Table 5, GHG emissions associated with construction of the Project were 


estimated at 417.9 MTCO2e over a 30-year period. When the total is amortized over the 
30-year life of the Project, annual construction emissions would be approximately 
13.9 MT CO2e per year.  


 
 


Table 5 
Construction-Related GHG Emissions 


Source/Description 
CO2e 
(MT) 


Road/Pipeline  269.0 


Water Tank 148.9 


Total 417.9 


Amortized Construction Emissions (per year) 13.9 


County of San Bernardino GHG Threshold 3,000 


Exceed GHG Threshold? No 


Source: SCAQMD Off-Road Mobile Source Emissions 
Factors (2022) 


 
The Project would not generate GHG emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may 
have a significant impact on the environment. No significant adverse impacts are 
identified or are anticipated, and no mitigation measures are required 


 
b)  Less than Significant Impact. The applicable plan for the reduction of emissions of 


GHGs is the San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA) formerly San 
Bernardino Associated Governments (SANBAG) San Bernardino County Regional GHG 
Reduction Plan. The City of Loma Linda is addressed in the Loma Linda Chapter of the 
San Bernardino County Regional GHG Reduction Plan, released March 5, 2014. The 
Plan has been prepared to assist the City in conforming to the GHG emissions 
reductions as mandated under AB 32. The SCAQMD’s Tier 3 thresholds used Executive 
Order S-3-05 goal as the basis for deriving the screening level. The California Governor 
issued Executive Order S-3-05, GHG Emission, in June 2005, which established the 
following reduction targets: 


   


 2010: Reduce greenhouse gas emissions to 2000 levels. 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 36 
 


 


 2020: Reduce greenhouse gas emissions to 1990 levels. 
 


 2050: Reduce greenhouse gas emissions to 80 percent below 1990 levels. 
   
  In 2006, the California State Legislature adopted AB 32 the California Global Warming 


Solutions Act of 2006. AB 32 requires CARB to adopt rules and regulations that would 
achieve GHG emissions equivalent to statewide levels in 1990 by 2020 through and 
enforceable statewide emission cap, which was phased in starting in 2012. Therefore, as 
the Project’s emissions meet the threshold for compliance with Executive Order S-3-05, 
the Project’s emissions would also comply with the goals of AB 32. Additionally, as the 
Project meets the current interim emissions targets/thresholds established by SCAQMD, 
the Project would also be on track to meet the reduction target of 40 percent below 1990 
levels by 2030 mandated by EO-B-30-15 and SB 32. Furthermore, all the post-2020 
reductions in GHG emissions are addressed via regulatory requirements at the State 
level and the Project would be required to comply with these regulations as they come 
into effect. 


 
  At a level of 13.9 MTCO2e per year, as demonstrated in Table 5, the Proposed Project’s 


emissions fall below the SCAQMD and San Bernardino County GHG Reduction Plan 
screening threshold of 3,000 MTCO2e for all land use types and is in compliance with the 
reduction goals of the San Bernardino County GHG Reduction Plan, AB 32, and SB 32. 
The Proposed Project will comply with applicable Green Building Standards and the City 
of Loma Linda’s policies regarding sustainability (as dictated by the City’s General Plan). 
No significant adverse impacts are identified or are anticipated, and no mitigation 
measures are required.  


 
 


 


 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 IX. HAZARDS AND WASTE MATERIALS. Would the 
project: 


a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, use, 
or disposal of hazardous materials? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous 
or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 
waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or 
proposed school? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 37 
 


 


 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of 
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 
result, would it create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project result in a 
safety hazard or excessive noise for people 
residing or working in the project area? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere 
with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


g) Expose people or structures, either directly or 
indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or 
death involving wildland fires? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


Impact Discussion: 


a, b) Less than Significant Impact. Operation of the Proposed Project would not pose a 
significant hazard to the public or environment through the routine transport, use or 
disposal of hazardous materials or through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident 
conditions. However, construction of the Proposed Project has the potential to create a 
temporary hazard to the public or environment through the transportation, use and 
disposal of construction-related hazardous materials such as fuels, oils, solvents, paint, 
and other materials. These materials are typical of materials delivered to construction 
sites.  


 
The future use of the site for water storage and distribution would not require the storage 
of hazardous materials (i.e., fuels, oils, solvents, pesticides, electronic waste, and other 
materials) at the site. No significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no 
mitigation measures are required. 
 


c) No Impact. The nearest school to the Project Site is Bryn Mawr Elementary School, 
located approximately 0.6 miles northeast of the Project Site at 11680 Whitter Avenue. 
No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
d) No Impact. The Project Site is not on a list of hazardous materials sites per the 


EnviroStor interactive database map.8 No significant hazard to the public or the 
environment is anticipated. Therefore, no impacts are identified or anticipated and no 
mitigation measures are required. 


 
e) No Impact. There are no airports in the City of Loma Linda and the nearest airport to the 


Project Site is the San Bernardino International Airport located approximately 3.5 miles 


                                                 
8 https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?assembly=42 Accessed March 1, 2022. 



https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?assembly=42





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 38 
 


to the north. The 1.6 MG water tank would be constructed on the south slope of a hill 
with a ridgeline elevation of 1,505 feet. The tank would be constructed within a cut slope 
at a finished elevation of 1,480 feet, and would extend approximately 10 feet above the 
ridgeline (1,480 feet plus 35-foot high water tank minus 1,505 foot ridgeline). Impacts to 
aircraft are not anticipated. No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 


 
f) No Impact. During disasters, the City of Loma Linda is required to coordinate 


emergency operations with the San Bernardino County Operational Area and, in some 
instances, other local governments. Local agencies are a part of a broader Emergency 
Management System, overseen by the State of California’s Southern Region Emergency 
Operations Center. The City of Loma Linda is required to coordinate emergency 
operations with the San Bernardino County Operational Area and, in some instances, 
other local governments.  


 
The Project Site does not contain any emergency facilities, nor do streets adjacent to the 
site serve as emergency evacuation routes.9 During construction and long-term 
operation, the City would be required to maintain adequate emergency access for 
emergency vehicles. The Proposed Project would not interfere with an adopted 
emergency response or evacuation plan; therefore, no impacts are identified or are 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


  
g) Less than Significant Impact. The Project Site occurs within a Very High Wildfire Risk 


Exposure area, as shown on Figure 10.4 of the City of Loma Linda General Plan.10 The 
Proposed Project however does not include any combustible materials. To minimize the 
threat to persons, property, and the environment resulting from wildfires, the Proposed 
Project shall implement Goal 10.3 and Policies 10-3.1 through 10-3.9 of the City’s 
General Plan, stated in Chapter 10 Safety Element, Section C Fire Hazards. The 
Proposed Project would comply with CBC and California Fire Code. Therefore, no 
significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are 
required.  
 


 


                                                 
9 http://readydl.com/landing/eoc06071/index.html. Accessed 3/1/22. 
10 City of Loma Linda General Plan. Figure 10.3/Page 10-11. 


 



http://readydl.com/landing/eoc06071/index.html





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 39 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the 
project: 


a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or ground water 
quality? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that the project may impede sustainable 
groundwater management of the basin? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of 
the site or area, including through the alteration 
of the course of a stream or river or through the 
addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner 
which would:  


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


(i) result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-
site; 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


(ii) substantially increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner which would result in 
flooding on- or offsite; 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


(iii) create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; 
or 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk 
release of pollutants due to project inundation? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a 
water quality control plan or sustainable 
groundwater management plan? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


Impact Discussion: 


 
a, e) Less than Significant Impact. Preparation and grading of the Project Site for the tank, 


pipeline, access road, and drain line would disturb approximately 2.85 acres and 
therefore is subject to the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit requirements. Construction activities covered under the State of California’s 
General Construction permit include removal of vegetation, grading, excavating, or any 
other activities that causes the disturbance of one acre or more. The General 
Construction permit requires recipients to reduce or eliminate non-storm water 
discharges into stormwater systems, and to develop and implement a Storm Water 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). The purpose of the SWPPP is to: 1) identify 
pollutant sources that may affect the quality of discharges of stormwater associated with 
construction activities; and 2) identify, construct, and implement stormwater pollution 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 40 
 


control measures to reduce pollutants in stormwater discharges from the construction 
site during and after construction.  


 
The NPDES also requires a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) prior to the 
issuance of building permits. Mandatory compliance with the Proposed Project’s WQMP, 
in addition to compliance with NPDES Permit requirements, would ensure that all 
potential pollutants of concern are minimized or otherwise appropriately treated prior to 
being discharged from the Project Site. Therefore, implementation of the Proposed 
Project would not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements. 
No significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated, and no mitigation measures 


are required.  
 
b)  Less than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project is not anticipated to substantially 


impact groundwater supplies or to substantially interfere with groundwater recharge as 
the Project Site is not designated for such use. The Proposed Project does not include 
groundwater wells that would impact the production rate of any nearby pre-existing 
wells. The Project would provide additional water storage capacity for fire protection, 
emergency and residential use and includes the construction of a new steel water 
storage tank with approximately 1.6 MG of storage capacity. No adverse significant 
impacts are anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
c, i-iii ) Less than Significant Impact. Water quality objectives would be addressed by 


implementing several Best Management Practices (BMP’s). The Project was designed to 
closely mimic the natural drainage pattern of the existing hillside and to connect to the 
existing catch basin southwest of the Project Site. As designed, flows would be 
dispersed from impervious areas into the proposed spillway located southwest of the 
new water tank. The proposed access road was intentionally designed without curb or 
gutter, thus preventing flows from concentrating. The design of the access road is 
intended to allow all run-off to sheet flow across the roadway and into the adjacent 
natural areas where it would be allowed to infiltrate. The Proposed Project’s water 
quality objectives would be achieved through a combination of site design, impervious 
area dispersion, and increased infiltration capacity. 
 
The Proposed Project is subject to the requirements of the State Water Resources 
Control Board General Permit for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with 
Construction Activity. Construction activity subject to this permit includes clearing, 
grading, and disturbances to the ground such as stockpiling or excavation. The 
Construction General Permit requires that the development and implementation of a 
SWPPP. The SWPPP must list BMPs to avoid and minimize soil erosion. Adherence to 
BMPs would ensure that the Proposed Project does not result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site. 


 
 The City Engineer has designed the drainage plan to ensure the Project would not result 


in substantial erosion, siltation, or flooding on- or off-site. Therefore, no significant 
impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
d) Less than Significant Impact. The Project Site occurs outside of any FEMA flood risk 


exposure11 and does not occur within an identified tsunami or seiche zone due to its 


                                                 
11 City of Loma Linda General Plan, Figure 10.3. Page 10-25 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 41 
 


inland location; therefore, the risk of release of pollutants from the Project Site in these 
events is not anticipated. With implementation of drainage improvements and connection 
to the existing catch basin south of the Project Site, potential hazards would be 
considered a less than significant impact. No significant adverse impacts are identified or 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required.  


Impact Discussion:  
  


a, b) Less than Significant Impact. The physical division of an established community is 
typically associated with construction of a linear feature, such as a major highway or 
railroad tracks, or removal of a means of access, such as a local road or bridge, which 
would impair mobility in an existing community or between a community and an outlying 
area. The Proposed Project is the construction and operation of a 1.6 MG water tank and 
related water system improvements. The Proposed Project does not necessitate 
construction of any new public roadways, flood control channels, or other structures that 
would physically divide an established community. The Project Site and surrounding 
area are largely vacant. The site of the proposed water tank occurs approximately 
800 feet south of the nearest residence to the north (north side of Beaumont Avenue). 
The Project Site occurs in the Open Space District and the water system improvement 
project is a permitted use. The Proposed Project would comply with the City’s Open 
Space policies 9.2.81, 9.2.8.2 and 9.2.8.3 of the City’s General Plan,12 which shows a 
majority of the Project Site as “Targeted Open Space” and does not conflict with any 
other policies or regulations. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
 


                                                 
12 City of Loma Linda General Plan. Page 9-10 – 9-11. 


 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project: 


a) Physically divide an established community? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to 
a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 42 
 


 


 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XII. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 


a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the State? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan 
or other land use plan? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


Impact Discussion: 


 


a, b) No Impact. The Project Site is within the Aggregate Resources Mineral Resource Zone 
(MRZ) 3, as shown on the San Bernardino Countywide Plan, Figure 5.11-1-Mineral 
Resource Zones 2 & 3 in the Southwest Quadrant of County.13 Aggregate MRZ 3 is 
defined as having moderate potential or possible location of aggregate resources, 
however, the significance of the deposit is undetermined. Nearly the entire Valley Region 
of San Bernardino County is designated either MRZ-2 or MRZ-3. The Project Site could 
not feasibly be permitted as a viable aggregate mine site and construction of the water 
tank, access road, pipeline and drainage spillway would not create a substantial demand 
of aggregate resources. Implementation of the Proposed Project would not result in the 
loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and 
the residents of the state. No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 


 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XIII. NOISE. Would the project result in: 


a) Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise levels in 
the vicinity of the project in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other 
agencies? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


                                                 
13 San Bernardino Countywide Plan. Figure 5.11-1/Page 5.11-5. 


 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 43 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


c) For a project located within the vicinity of a 
private airstrip or-an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the project expose people residing or 
working in the project area to excessive noise 
levels? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


Impact Discussion: 


 
a) Less than Significant Impact. Development of the Project would require site 


preparation (i.e., grading and excavation), and construction. These activities require the 
use of heavy equipment such as graders, backhoes, and cranes. This equipment would 
generate noise that would be heard both on and off the Project Site. 


 
Noise can be measured in the form of a decibel (dB), which is a unit for describing the 
amplitude of sound. The predominant rating scales for noise in the State of California are 
the Equivalent-Continuous Sound Level (Leq), and the Community Noise Equivalent 
Level (CNEL), which are both based on the A-weighted decibel (dBA). Leq is defined as 
the total sound energy of time-varying noise over a sample period. CNEL is defined as 
the time-varying noise over a 24-hour period, with a weighting factor of 5 dBA applied to 
the hourly Leq for noises occurring from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. (defined as relaxation 
hours) and 10 dBA applied to events occurring between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 
defined as sleeping hours). The State of California’s Office of Noise Control has 
established standards and guidelines for acceptable community noise levels based on 
the CNEL and Ldn rating scales Low-density residential uses are most sensitive to 
community noise with noise levels of 60 dBA CNEL/Ldn and below considered “normally 
acceptable” (65 dBA CNEL/Ldn for multifamily uses). For schools, churches hospitals, 
and business and commercial areas, noise levels up to 70 dBA CNEL/Ldn are “normally 
acceptable.” For industrial, manufacturing, and utility uses, noise levels up to 75 dBA 
CNEL/Ldn may be considered “normally acceptable.” 


 
Adjacent uses to the Project Site include vacant land to the south and east, a dog park 
to the west, and a dog park to the north followed by Beaumont Avenue and residential 
development. Sensitive receivers near the Project Site include residential development 
north of Beaumont Avenue. Construction noise would be temporary, intermittent and of 
short duration. Operation of the 1.6 MG water tank would not result in any significant 
long-term noise impacts and operational traffic noise generated by the Proposed Project 
would be limited to visits by public works staff for maintenance and inspection. 
Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 


 
b) Less than Significant Impact. Construction activities can produce vibration that may be 


felt by adjacent uses. The primary sources of vibration during construction would be from 
bulldozers, other vibratory equipment could be used during construction of the access 
road. Sensitive receivers near the Project Site include residential development north of 
Beaumont Avenue. Groundborne vibration is measured in terms of the velocity of the 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 44 
 


vibration oscillations. As with noise, a logarithmic decibel scale (VdB) is used to quantify 
vibration intensity. When groundborne vibration exceeds 75 to 80 VdB, it is usually 
perceived as annoying to building occupants. The degree of annoyance is dependent 
upon type of land use, individual sensitivity to vibration and the frequency of the vibration 
events. Typically, vibration levels must exceed 100 VdB before building damage occurs. 


 
It is not anticipated that construction of the Proposed Project would involve pile-driving 
activities. The use of rollers and dozers, equipment expected to have contribute to 
vibration impacts, associated with construction would be brief and would not affect a 
given location for more than a few days. In addition, the use of such equipment would be 
limited to daytime hours. As a result, although construction of the Proposed Project 
would include heavy equipment, it is unlikely that construction would result in perceptible 
groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels.  
 
Based on reference vibration levels provided by the Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA), unmitigated Project construction vibration levels are expected to approach 
0.124 in/sec PPV. Based on Caltrans vibration thresholds, the Proposed Project 
construction activities will remain below the 0.3 in/sec PPV building damage for older 
residential structures close to the Project Site.  


 
Operation of the Proposed Project would not generate groundborne vibration. Therefore, 
no adverse significant impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures 
are required. 


 
c) No Impact. There are no airports in Loma Linda and the nearest airport is the San 


Bernardino International Airport (SBIA). The airport currently serves small aircraft and 
cargo flights; it does not offer commercial flights. The City is outside the 60 dBA CNEL 
airport noise contours of the SBIA. Therefore, aircraft noise is not considered a concern 
at the Project Site. No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures 
are required. 


 
  


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project: 


a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth 
in an area, either directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, through extension of 
roads or other infrastructure)? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people 
or housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


Impact Discussion: 


 
a, b) No Impact. The Proposed Project includes the construction and operation of a 1.6 MG 


water tank and related improvements to meet current and projected City demands for 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 45 
 


service. The Project is a permitted use within the Open Space District. The Project would 
service the existing community and would not directly induce the need for new homes or 
businesses or indirectly result in population growth by extending infrastructure  


 
 The Project would not result in the displacement of existing people or housing as the 


Project Site is currently vacant. No housing is proposed as part of the Project and no 
replacement housing would be necessary.  


 


 


 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XV. PUBLIC SERVICES. 
    


a) Would the project result in substantial adverse 
physical impacts associated with the provision of 
new or physically altered governmental facilities, 
need for new or physically altered governmental 
facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in order to 
maintain acceptable service ratios, response 
times or other performance objectives for any of 
the public services: 


    


 Fire protection? ( ) ( ) ( ) () 


 Police protection? ( ) ( ) ( ) () 


 Schools? ( ) ( ) ( ) () 


 Parks? ( ) ( ) ( ) () 


 Other public facilities?  ( ) ( ) ( ) () 


Impact Discussion: 


 
Fire Protection 


No Impact. The Fire and Rescue Division of the Department of Public Safety provide fire 
protection for the City of Loma Linda.14 Fire Station 251, located at 11325 Loma Linda Drive, 
and Fire Station 252, located at 10520 Ohio Street, services the City of Loma Linda. To ensure 
adequate fire protection services in an emergency, the City of Loma Linda maintains a joint 
response/automatic aid agreement with the fire departments in neighboring cities including 
Colton, Redlands, and San Bernardino. The Department also participates in the California 
Master Mutual Aid Agreement. Implementation of the Proposed Project would not result in a 
change to existing employment or cause an increase in the population of the City and would not 
result in the need for additional fire protection. No adverse impacts have been identified or are 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


                                                 
14 City of Loma Linda General Plan. Page 8-2. 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 46 
 


Police Protection  
 


No Impact. Police protection for the City is provided by and contracted through the San 
Bernardino Sheriff‘s Department, located at 655 East Third Street in San Bernardino, at Sheriff’s 
Headquarters, Central Station.15 Implementation of the Proposed Project would not cause an 
increase in the population of the City and would not result in the need for additional police 
protection. No adverse impacts related to police protection are expected and no mitigation 
measures are required. 
 
Schools 
 
No Impact. Public education in the City of Loma Linda is provided by Redlands Unified School 
District (RUSD) except for the western portion of the City, which is served by Colton Joint 
Unified School District (CJUSD).16 In addition to these school districts, one community day 
school, overseen by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Office, is located in the 
City of Loma Linda. Loma Linda Academy, a private Seventh-day Adventist school, also 
provides schooling for kindergarten through high school grades. The nearest school is Bryn 
Mawr Elementary School located approximately 0.56 miles northeast of the Project Site at 
11680 Whitter Avenue. The Proposed Project would not generate any new students and would 
not generate the need for new facilities. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified 
or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 
  
Parks 
 
No Impact. Loma Linda currently has existing parkland, and total proposed park land of 
approximately 40 acres.17 The Proposed Project would not result in an increase in population. 
Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation 
measures are required. 
 


 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XVI. RECREATION. 


a) Would the project increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional parks or other 
recreational facilities such that substantial 
physical deterioration of the facility would occur 
or be accelerated? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


b) Does the project include recreational facilities or 
require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an 
adverse physical effect on the environment? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


                                                 
15 City of Loma Linda General Plan. Page 8-4. 
16 City of Loma Linda General Plan. Page 8-6. 
17 City of Loma Linda General Plan. Page 8-12. 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 47 
 


Impact Discussion: 


 
a, b) No Impact. The Proposed Project includes the construction and operation of a 1.6 MG 


water tank and related improvements and would not result in new permanent jobs that 
would directly impact a neighborhood or regional park or other recreational facility. The 
Proposed Project does not include recreational facilities and would not require the 
expansion of existing facilities or require the construction of new recreation facilities. 
Therefore, no impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are 
required. 


 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XVII. TRANSPORTATION. Would the project: 


a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy 
addressing the circulation system, including 
transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities?  


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


( ) 


b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with 
CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision 
(b)?  


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


c) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses 
(e.g., farm equipment)? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


d) Result in inadequate emergency access? ( ) ( ) () ( ) 


 


Impact Discussion: 


Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) measures how much actual auto travel (additional miles driven) a 
proposed project would create on California roads. If the project adds excessive car travel onto 
our roads, the project may cause a significant transportation impact.  


 
a) Less than Significant Impact. The City of Loma Linda Measure V requires that long-


term traffic Levels of Service be maintained at Level of Service C (or better), except 
where the current level is lower than Level of Service C. At locations where the Level of 
Service is below Level of Service C, the Project shall be required to provide 
improvements that maintain Levels of Service that are no worse than those existing at 
the time an application for development is filed. Measure V does not specify criteria for 
determining the need to prepare a transportation impact analysis for Level of Service 
evaluations; however, based on the relatively low Project trip generation, as 
demonstrated by exemption under the County of San Bernardino criteria, the Proposed 
Project is not anticipated to appreciably contribute Level of Service degradation. 
Therefore, the Proposed Project is anticipated to have a negligible effect on Levels of 
Service and would not conflict with Measure V requirements. 


 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 48 
 


 An existing Class II bike lane occurs approximately 0.5 miles north of the Project Site 
along Barton Road18. The Project Site does not intersect or connect to any bike facilities. 
Omnitrans is the primary provider of public transportation within the western portion of 
San Bernardino County, including the City of Loma Linda. Omnitrans operates five 
routes that traverse Loma Linda. The Riverside Transit Authority also operates one route 
that connects Loma Linda to downtown Riverside. There are about 60 bus stops within 
City limits. The City facilitates pedestrian travel through the design of pedestrian-oriented 
neighborhoods with well-connected streets and sidewalks. The City also provides 
convenient and safe sidewalk routes to shopping, schools and recreation areas. One 
such route connects Hulda Crooks Park to Beaumont Avenue thus encouraging 
pedestrian travel. In addition, the City provides an off-road trail system designed for 
walking and hiking activities.  
 
The Proposed Project would not require additional bike facilities, public transportation, 
pedestrian facilities, or any additional circulation except the proposed access road which 
would strictly be used for maintenance purposes. Therefore, the Proposed Project can 
be presumed to result in a less than significant VMT impact. No significant impacts are 
identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 
 


b) Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project’s VMT impact has been 
assessed in accordance with guidance from the County of San Bernardino TIS 
Guidelines for CEQA. The County of San Bernardino TIS Guidelines identify screening 
criteria for certain types of projects that typically reduce VMT and may be presumed to 
result in a less than significant VMT impact.  


 
Since the City of Loma Linda does not have City-specific criteria for the preparation of 
transportation impact studies, the VMT refers to the County of San Bernardino criteria. 
The criteria for assessing the need to prepare a transportation impact study is specified 
in the County of San Bernardino Transportation Impact Study Guidelines (July 2019) 
[“TIS Guidelines”]. As specified in the County of San Bernardino TIS Guidelines, the 
requirement to prepare a transportation impact study (with Level of Service analysis) 
should be based upon one or more of the following criteria: 
 


 If a project generates 100 or more trips without consideration of pass-by trips 
during any peak hour. 


 


 If a project is located within 300 feet of: 
o The intersection of two streets designated as Collector or higher in the 


County’s General Plan or the Department’s Master Plan; or,  
o An impacted intersection as determined by the Traffic Division.  


 


 If this project creates safety or operational concerns.  
 


 The project has the potential to generate VMT that could result in a transportation 
impact as noted in the significance criteria presented later in this memorandum.  


 


 If a project generates less than 100 trips without consideration of pass-by trips 
during any peak hour, a study maybe required if there are special concerns.  


                                                 
18 City of Loma Linda General Plan Figure 6.3, Existing Bicycle Facilities Map, Page 6-7.  







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 49 
 


The construction activities associated with the Project would be temporary and would 
utilize existing public works equipment and staff. Construction of the Proposed Project is 
estimated to require two months for the water tank and four months for the access road, 
pipeline and drainage improvements. Construction traffic would be limited to delivery of 
equipment and associated employee trips during the six-month period, which is 
anticipated to be below the 100 AM and PM peak hour trips thresholds established by the 
County of San Bernardino criteria.  
 
Similarly, post-construction activities would involve inspection and general monthly 
maintenance and generating fewer than 100 peak hour trips. The Proposed Project is 
exempt from preparation of a transportation impact analysis for Level of Service based on 
the County of San Bernardino criteria as adopted for use by the City of Loma Linda. The 
Proposed Project is anticipated to have a negligible effect on Levels of Service and would 
not conflict with Measure V requirements. As such, the Proposed Project shall not conflict 
with or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3 Subdivision (b)(1). 
Therefore, no impacts are identified or anticipated, and no mitigation measures are 
required. 


 
c, d) Less than Significant Impact. Site plans were reviewed by the City Manager to ensure 


that the Proposed Project would not create substantial hazards due to a design feature 
or incompatible use. Primary access to the site would be provided via an access road 
from Beaumont Avenue. The Proposed Project location (i.e., set back south of 
Beaumont Avenue, and south and east of the Large Dog Park and Small Dog Park, 
respectively), would not cause a substantial increase in hazards or provide inadequate 
emergency access. Plans will be subject to review and approval by the City Fire and 
Police Departments. No significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no 
mitigation measures are required. 


 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES. 


Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in 
the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in 
Public Resources Code section 21704 as either a site, 
feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically 
defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, 
sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California 
Native American tribe, and that is: 


    


 a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 
register of historical resources as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 


( ) () ( ) ( ) 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 50 
 


 b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its 
discretion and supported by substantial evidence, 
to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in 
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 
5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in 
subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 
5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a California Native 
American tribe. 


( ) () ( ) ( ) 


 
Impact Discussion:  
 
a,b)  Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. As discussed in Section V of this 


document, a Cultural Resources Study, dated January 14, 2022, was completed by 
BFSA for the Project Site and is available for review at the City of Loma Linda 
Community Development Department. The report was prepared to determine impacts to 
historical resources that may occur on the Project Site, including Native American 
cultural resources.  


 
City staff contacted Native American representatives identified as having interest in 
projects via email on January 27, 2022. Each entity was informed of the Proposed 
Project and asked to comment. Representatives of groups from the following Tribes 
were notified: San Manuel Band of Mission Indians, Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians, 
Morongo Band of Mission Indians, Serrano Nation of Mission Indians, Cabazon Band of 
Mission Indians, Pala Band of Mission Indians, Pechanga Band of Mission Indians, 
Ramona Band of Cahuilla, Santa Rosa Band of Cahuilla Indians, Agua Caliente Band of 
Cahuilla Indians, Cahuilla Band of Indians, Augustine Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians, 
Gabrieleno Tongva Nation. 
  
Responses were received from three Tribes. Ryan Nordness of the San Manuel Band of 
Mission Indians responded on February 16, 2022 via email. Nordness indicated that the 
proposed project area exists within Serrano ancestral territory and, therefore, is of 
interest to the Tribe. He further indicated that due to the nature and location of the 
proposed project, SMBMI does not have any concerns with the project’s implementation 
at this time. SMBMI did request conditions for the project.  
 
Arysa Gonzalez Romero, representing the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians, 
responded via email on February 25, 2022. Ms. Romero noted the project area is 
outside the Cahuilla traditional territory, however it is within the Tribe’s Traditional Use 
Area and the Tribe is requesting the presence of a monitor.  
 
On March 1, 2022, Joseph Ontiveros, representing the Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians,  
responded with a letter noting the project area is within the traditional territory use areas. 
On behalf of the Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians, Mr. Ontiveros requested formal 
consultation with the City.  
 
The following mitigation measures were provided by San Manuel Band of Mission 
Indians and Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians and shall be made a part of 
Conditions of Approval for the Project. The mitigation measures are: 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 51 
 


 
Mitigation Measure TCR-1: 
 
In the event that cultural resources are discovered during project activities, all 
work in the immediate vicinity of the find (within a 60-foot buffer) shall cease and a 
qualified archaeologist meeting Secretary of Interior standards shall be hired to 
assess the find. Work on the other portions of the project outside of the buffered 
area may continue during this assessment period. Additionally, the San Manuel 
Band of Mission Indians Cultural Resources Department (SMBMI) shall be 
contacted, as detailed within TCR-1, regarding any pre-contact and/or historic-era 
finds and be provided information after the archaeologist makes his/her initial 
assessment of the nature of the find, so as to provide Tribal input with regards to 
significance and treatment.  


  
Mitigation Measure TCR-2: 
 
If significant pre-contact and/or historic-era cultural resources, as defined by 
CEQA (as amended, 2015), are discovered and avoidance cannot be ensured, the 
archaeologist shall develop a Monitoring and Treatment Plan, the drafts of which 
shall be provided to SMBMI for review and comment, as detailed within TCR-1. 
The archaeologist shall monitor the remainder of the project and implement the 
Plan accordingly. 


  
 Mitigation Measure TCR-3: 


 
If human remains or funerary objects are encountered during any activities 
associated with the project, work in the immediate vicinity (within a 100-foot buffer 
of the find) shall cease and the County Coroner shall be contacted pursuant to 
State Health and Safety Code §7050.5 and that code enforced for the duration of 
the project.  
 
Mitigation Measure TCR-4: 
 
The San Manuel Band of Mission Indians Cultural Resources Department (SMBMI) 
shall be contacted, as detailed in CR-1, of any pre-contact and/or historic-era 
cultural resources discovered during project implementation and be provided 
information regarding the nature of the find, so as to provide Tribal input with 
regards to significance and treatment. Should the find be deemed significant, as 
defined by CEQA (as amended, 2015), a cultural resources Monitoring and 
Treatment Plan shall be created by the archaeologist, in coordination with SMBMI, 
and all subsequent finds shall be subject to this Plan. This Plan shall allow for a 
monitor to be present that represents SMBMI for the remainder of the project, 
should SMBMI elect to place a monitor on-site. 


  
Mitigation Measure TCR-5: 
 
Any and all archaeological/cultural documents created as a part of the project 
(isolate records, site records, survey reports, testing reports, etc.) shall be 
supplied to the applicant and Lead Agency for dissemination to SMBMI. The Lead 
Agency and/or applicant shall, in good faith, consult with SMBMI throughout the 
life of the project.  







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 52 
 


 
Mitigation Measure TCR-6: 
 
The City shall allow for the presence of an approved Agua Caliente Native 
American Cultural Resource Monitor(s) during any ground disturbing activities 
(including archaeological testing and surveys). Should buried cultural deposits be 
encountered, the Monitor may request that destructive construction halt and the 
Monitor shall notify a Qualified Archaeologist (Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards and Guidelines) to investigate and, if necessary, prepare a mitigation 
plan for submission to the State Historic Preservation Officer and the Agua 
Caliente Tribal Historic Preservation Office. 


 
 


Based on completion of consultation under AB 52 with interested tribes, additional 
recommendations may be incorporated into the Project’s Conditions of Approval. 
Implementation of the above mitigation measures and the addition of recommendations 
from interested tribes as Conditions of Approval, would ensure that potential impacts to 
tribal cultural resources are reduced to a less than significant level. 
 


 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the 
project: 


 


    


a) Require or result in the relocation or construction 
of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment 
or storm water drainage, electric power, natural 
gas, or telecommunications facilities, the 
construction or relocation of which could cause 
significant environmental effects? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve 
the project and reasonably foreseeable future 
development during normal, dry and multiple dry 
years? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


c) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the 
project's projected demand in addition to the 
provider's existing commitments? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local 
standards, or in excess of the capacity of local 
infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment 
of solid waste reduction goals? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 53 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


e) Comply with Federal, State, and local 
management and reduction statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


 
Impact Discussion: 
 
a,c) No Impact. The Project Site and surrounding area is within the service area of the City 


of Loma Linda. The Proposed Project will provide necessary expansion of the City's 
existing water system. Any potential environmental impacts associated with the 
expansion have been addressed herein. N0 significant adverse impacts have been 
identified or anticipated and mitigation measures required for potential impacts are 
provided in the Cultural, Geology/Soils, and Tribal Cultural Resources sections. 


 
b) Less than Significant impact. The Project is the construction and operation of a 


1.6 MG water tank and related improvements to provide additional storage to meet 
customer demands. The use of additional groundwater would not result. Additionally, the 
Proposed Project does not include any uses that would increase water demand. 
Construction of the water tank is proposed to serve the existing needs of the City and 
would not directly and indirectly result in additional demands on the system. Therefore, 
no significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures 
are required. 


 
d, e) Less than Significant Impact. Solid waste collection in the City of Loma Linda is 


primarily disposed of at the San Timoteo Sanitary Landfill which is operated by the 
County of San Bernardino.19 The San Timoteo Sanitary Landfill has been designed by 
the County of San Bernardino to accommodate growth for the next 20 years and 
beyond. (San Timoteo: permitted until January 203920). Implementation of the Proposed 
Project would not generate additional solid waste beyond initial construction 
(i.e., clearing) activities. No additional employees or office space would be required or 
constructed. The solid waste collection system would not be affected by the 
development of the Project Site. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified 
or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 
 


  


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XX. Wildfire – If located in or near state responsibility areas 
or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity 
zones, would the project: 


    


a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


                                                 
19 City of Loma Linda General Plan. Page 8-20. 
20 https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity/Details/1906?siteID=2688 (accessed 1-5-21). 



https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity/Details/1906?siteID=2688





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 54 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, 
exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose 
project occupants to, pollutant concentrations 
from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a 
wildfire? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


c) Require the installation or maintenance of 
associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel 
breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or 
other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that 
may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the 
environment? 


( ) ( ) ( ) () 


d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, 
including downslope or downstream flooding or 
landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope 
instability, or drainage changes? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


 
Impact Discussion: 
 
a) No Impact. The Project Site does not contain any emergency facilities, nor do streets 


adjacent to the site serve as emergency evacuation routes.21 During construction and 
long-term operation, the City would be required to maintain adequate emergency access 
for emergency vehicles. The Proposed Project would not interfere with an adopted 
emergency response or evacuation plan; therefore, no impacts are identified or are 
anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 


 
b, d) Less than Significant impact. As shown on Figure 10.4 of the City’s General Plan, the 


Project Site occurs in a very high fire hazard severity zone. Prolonged droughts coupled 
with high winds and dry vegetation during summer months creates the highest fire risk in 
the South Hills. Loma Linda is subject to Santa Ana winds, which are defined by the 
National Weather Service as "strong down slope winds that blow through the mountain 
passes in southern California. These winds, which can easily exceed 40 miles per hour, 
are warm and dry and can severely exacerbate brush or forest fires, especially under 
drought conditions." These winds, which typically occur several times per year between 
September and December, have been known to topple power lines, trees, and 
streetlights and can also spread uncontrolled wildfire and hinder firefighters from 
reaching fires. Final plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire Chief to ensure a 
less than significant impact. 


 
 The Project Site occurs outside of any FEMA flood risk exposure22. The Project Site is 


vacant and is adjacent to the South Hills. Although the Project Site is located in an area 
with very high fire hazard and landslide susceptibility, operation of the water tank would 
only require general maintenance and scheduled inspections. Therefore, the Proposed 
Project would not risk the loss, injury, or death involving pollutant concentrations from a 


                                                 
21 http://readydl.com/landing/eoc06071/index.html. Accessed 3/1/22. 
22 City of Loma Linda General Plan, Figure 10.3. Page 10-25 



http://readydl.com/landing/eoc06071/index.html





Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 55 
 


wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire, or expose people or structures to 
significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of 
runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes. No significant adverse impacts 
are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are required. 
 


c) No Impact. The Proposed Project includes the construction and operation of a 1.6 MG 
water tank, pipeline, access road and drainage improvements, all of which would require 
long term maintenance. However, the risk of fire from maintenance activities is not 
anticipated. No impacts are identified or anticipated and no mitigation measures are 
required. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


Potentially 
Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 
Significant 


With Mitigation 
Incorporated 


 
 


Less 
Than 


Significant 
Impact 


 
 
 
 


No 
Impact 


 XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE 


a) Does the project have the potential to 
substantially degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a 
fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-sustaining levels, 
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, substantially reduce the number or 
restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or 
animal, or eliminate important examples of the 
major periods of California history or prehistory? 


 


( ) 


 


( ) 


 


() 


 


() 


b) Does the project have impacts that are 
individually limited, but cumulatively 
considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" 
means that the incremental effects of a project 
are considerable when viewed in connection with 
the effects of past projects, the effects of other 
current projects, and the effects of probable 
future projects)? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


c) Does the project have environmental effects 
which will cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly? 


( ) ( ) () ( ) 


 
Impact Discussion: 
 
a) Less than Significant Impact. A Biological Resources Assessment (BRA), dated May 


2021, was completed by Jennings Environmental, LLC., to determine significant impacts 
to the quality of the environment of the Project Site including impacts on habitats and 
threatened or endangered species. The report concluded that no sensitive habitat, 
including USFWS designated critical habitat, occurs within or adjacent to the Project 
Site. The Project Site and immediate surrounding areas contains habitat suitable for 
nesting birds and thus, Mitigation Measure BIO-1 as provided in this Initial Study is 
required to reduce impacts to a less than significant level.  







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 56 
 


A Cultural Resources Study, dated January 14, 2022, was completed by Brian F. Smith 
and Associates, Inc. to determine potential significant impacts to the major periods of 
California history and prehistory at the Project Site. The Cultural Resources Study 
concluded that the Project Site was negative for the presence of significant cultural 
resources. While a septic tank recorded as Site SBR-29,458H was present within the 
Project Site boundary, the resource has already been evaluated as not eligible for listing 
on the NRHP (Perez and Fink 2016). As stated previously, visibility on-site was 
moderate; however, the Project alignment has been impacted by previous land 
modifications and improvements and, it is unclear if any additional cultural resources 
have ever existed on-site. The current state of the Project Site appears to have affected 
the potential to discover any surface scatters of artifacts. Given that the prior agricultural 
use and impacts to the site might have masked archaeological deposits and based upon 
the presence of a historic resource and somewhat limited visibility during the survey, 
there is a potential that buried archaeological deposits are present within the project 
boundaries. Implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1 through CR-10, GEO-1, and 
TCR-1 through TCR-6 as provided in this Initial Study would ensure impacts to cultural 
resources including tribal cultural resources are less than significant. No additional 
mitigation measures are warranted. 
 


b) Less than Significant Impact. Cumulative impacts are defined as two or more 
individual affects that, when considered together, are considerable or that compound or 
increase other environmental impacts. The cumulative impact from several projects is 
the change in the environment that results from the incremental impact of the 
development when added to the impacts of other closely related past, present, and 
reasonably foreseeable or probable future developments. Cumulative impacts can result 
from individually minor, but collectively significant, developments taking place over a 
period. The CEQA Guidelines, Sections 15130 (a) and (b), states: 


   
(a)  Cumulative impacts shall be discussed when the project’s incremental 


effect is cumulatively considerable. 
 


(b)  The discussion of cumulative impacts shall reflect the severity of the 
impacts and their likelihood of occurrence, but the discussion need not 
provide as great detail as is provided of the effects attributable to the 
project. The discussion should be guided by the standards of practicality 
and reasonableness.  


 
Impacts associated with the Proposed Project would not be considered individually or 
cumulatively adverse or considerable. No major development projects were identified 
within the vicinity of the Proposed Project. Public works projects are a permitted within 
the Open Space District and would be consistent with the City of Loma Linda General 
Plan. Impacts identified in this Initial Study can be reduced to a less than significant 
impact. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or are anticipated and no 
mitigation measures are required. 


 
c) Less than Significant Impact. The incorporation of design measures, City of Loma 


Linda policies, standards, and guidelines and proposed Mitigation Measures as identified 
within this Initial Study would ensure that the Proposed Project would have no significant 
adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly on an individual or 
cumulative basis. Therefore, no significant adverse impacts are identified or anticipated 
and no mitigation measures are required.  







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 57 
 


 
 







Draft Initial Study for the City of Loma Linda 
1.6 MG Water Tank Page 58 
 


REFERENCES 
 
California Important Farmland Finder, California Department of Conservation.  
 
City of Loma Linda General Plan, May 2009 
 
ELMT Consulting. Biological Resources Assessment for a 1.6 Million Gallon Water Tank and 


Supporting Infrastructure. March 11, 2022. 
 
Lilburn Corporation. Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Summary Tables. March 2022. 
 
Brian F. Smith and Associates, Inc. Cultural Resources Study for the Beaumont Avenue 1.6 MG 
Tank Project. January 14, 2022. 
 
San Bernardino County Williamson Act FY 2015/2016 Sheet 2 of 2. 
 
San Bernardino County Hazards Overlay Map No. FH31C. 
 
United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. Web Soil 
Survey Interactive Map Accessed 11/23/2020 from https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.us-
da.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx  
 


LIST OF PREPARERS 


Lilburn Corporation 
1905 Business Center Drive,  
San Bernardino, CA 92408 
Tel: (909) 890-1818 
 Natalie Patty, Project Manager 
 Cheryl Tubbs, Vice President 


 



https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.us-da.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx

https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.us-da.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx





MITIGATION MONITORING and REPORTING PROGRAM    


Project Case No:   


Project Name:  1.6 MG Tank 


Lead Agency:  City of Loma Linda   Date:     January 2023    
 
   


Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


Biological Resources      


Mitigation Measure BIO-1: If construction occurs 
between February 1


st
 and August 31


st
, a pre-


construction clearance survey for nesting birds shall be 
conducted by a qualified biologist within three (3) days of 
the start of any vegetation removal or ground disturbing 
activities. In general, impacts to all bird species 
(common and special status) can be avoided by 
conducting work outside of the nesting season 
(generally March 15


th
 to September 15


th
) and conducting 


worker awareness training.  
 


City of Loma 
Linda Public 
Works 
Department 


No more 
than three 
days prior to 
ground 
disturbance 


Review of survey 
results 


Document 
verification  


 


   
Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


Cultural Resources      


Mitigation Measure CR-1: An archeological monitor shall 
be present during all soil-disturbing and 
grading/excavation/trenching activities that could result 
in impacts to archaeological resources. In the event of 
an archaeological discovery, either historic or 
prehistoric, the archaeological monitor shall direct the 
contractor to temporarily divert all soil- disturbing 
activities, including but not limited to, digging, trenching, 
excavating, or grading activities in the area of discovery 
and in the area reasonably suspected to overlay 
adjacent resources, and immediately notify the Native 
American monitor and client, as appropriate. 
 


City of Loma 
Linda Public 
Works 
Department and 
Qualified 
Archaeologist 


In the event 
cultural 
resources 
are 
discovered 


Review of finds On-site inspection   


Mitigation Measure CR-2: In the event resources are 
discovered, the monitor shall immediately notify the 
Principal Investigator (PI) of the discovery. The PI shall 
evaluate the significance of the resource and notify the 
City to discuss significance and shall also submit a letter 
indicating whether additional mitigation is required.  
 


Qualified 
Archaeologist 


In the event 
resources 
are 
discovered 


Receipt of letter Review of letter  







   
Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


Mitigation Measure CR-3: If the resource is significant, 
the PI shall submit an Archaeological Data Recovery 
Program (ADRP) that has also been reviewed by the 
Native American consultant/monitor and obtain written 
approval from the City to implement that program. 
Impacts to significant resources must be mitigated 
before ground- disturbing activities in the area of 
discovery will be allowed to resume. If the resource is 
not significant, the PI shall submit a letter to the City 
indicating that artifacts will be collected, curated, and 
documented in the final monitoring report. The letter 
shall also indicate that no further work is required. 
 


Principle 
Investigator 


If resource is 
found to be 
significant 


Receipt of 
program or letter 


Review of 
program or letter 


 


Mitigation Measure CR-4: In the event field conditions 
such as modern disturbance post-dating previous 
grading/trenching activities, presence of fossil 
formations, or native soils are encountered that may 
reduce or increase the potential for resources to be 
present, the PI shall submit a detailed letter to the lead 
agency requesting a modification to the monitoring 
program. 
 


Principle 
Investigator 


In the event 
field 
conditions 
require 
modification 
to program 


Receipt of program 
or letter 


Review of program 
or letter 


 


Mitigation Measure CR-5: The PI shall submit to the City 
a draft monitoring report (even if negative) prepared in 
accordance with the agency guidelines, which describes 
the results, analysis, and conclusions of all phases of 
the archaeological monitoring program.  For significant 
archaeological resources encountered during 
monitoring, the Archaeological Data Recovery Program 
(ADRP) shall be included in the draft monitoring report. 
Recording sites with the State of California Department 
of Parks and Recreation (DPR) shall be the 
responsibility of the PI, including recording (on the 
appropriate forms-DPR 523 A/B) any significant or 
potentially significant resources encountered during the 
archaeological monitoring program. 
 


Principle 
Investigator 


During 
monitoring of 
the site. 


Receipt of Draft 
Monitoring Report 


Review of Draft 
Monitoring Report 


 







 
   


Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


Mitigation Measure CR-6: In the event artifacts are 
collected, the PI shall be responsible for handling and 
ensuring that all artifacts are analyzed to identify 
function and chronology as they relate to the history of 
the area; that faunal material is identified as to species; 
and that specialty studies are completed, as appropriate. 
The PI shall submit the approved final monitoring report 
to the City and any interested parties. 
 


Principle 
Investigator 


In the event 
artifacts are 
collected 


Receipt of Final 
monitoring report 


Review of Final 
monitoring report 


 


Mitigation Measure CR-7: In the event artifacts are 
collected, the cost for curation shall be the responsibility 
of the property owner. 
 


City of Loma 
Linda Public 
Works 
Department 


In the event 
artifacts are 
collected 


Receipt of payment  Review of payment  


Mitigation Measure CR-8: If human remains are 
discovered, work shall halt in that area until a 
determination can be made regarding the provenance of 
the human remains, and the following procedures as set 
forth in CEQA Section 15064.5(e), the California PRC 
(Sec. 5097.98), and the State Health and Safety Code 
(Sec. 7050.5) shall be undertaken including notifying the 
PI, whom shall notify the medical examiner after 
consultation with the City, either in person or via 
telephone. 
 


City of Loma 
Linda Public 
Works 
Department, and 
County Coroner 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


Following 
inspection by the 
County Coroner 


On-site inspection   


Mitigation Measure CR-9: In the event human remains 
are discovered, the site shall be isolated, and work shall 
be directed away from the location of the discovery and 
any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlay 
adjacent human remains until a determination can be 
made by the medical examiner in consultation with the 
PI concerning the provenance of the remains. The 
medical examiner, in consultation with the PI, will 
determine the need for a field examination to determine 
the provenance. If a field examination is not warranted, 
the medical examiner will determine, with input from the 
PI, if the remains are or are most likely to be of Native 
American origin. If human remains are not Native 
American, the PI shall contact the medical examiner and 
notify them of the historic- era context of the burial. The 
medical examiner will determine the appropriate course 
of action with the PI and city staff (PRC 5097.98). If the 
remains are of historic origin, they shall be appropriately 
removed and conveyed to the City. The decision for 
internment of the human remains shall be made in 


Principle 
Investigator and 
Medical Examiner 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project  


In the event human 
remains are found. 


On-site inspection   







   
Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


consultation with the City, the applicant/landowner, and 
any known descendant group. 
 


Mitigation Measure CR-10: 
If human remains are determined to be Native 
American, the medical examiner will notify the NAHC 
within 24 hours. By law, only the medical examiner can 
make this call. The NAHC will immediately identify the 
person or persons determined to be the Most Likely 
Descendent (MLD) and provide contact information. The 
MLD will contact the PI within 24 hours or sooner after 
the medical examiner has completed coordination to 
begin the consultation process in accordance with 
CEQA Section 15064.5(e), the California PRC, and the 
State Health and Safety Code. The MLD will have 48 
hours to make recommendations to the property owner 
or representative for the treatment or disposition with 
proper dignity of the human remains and associated 
grave goods. 
 
Disposition of Native American human remains will be 
determined between the MLD and the PI, and, if the 
NAHC is unable to identify the MLD, or the MLD failed to 
make a recommendation within 48 hours after being 
notified by the NAHC or the landowner or authorized 
representative rejects the recommendation of the MLD 
and mediation in accordance with PRC 5097.94 (k) by 
the NAHC fails to provide measures acceptable to the 
landowner; then upon the discovery of multiple Native 
American human remains during a ground-disturbing 
land development activity, the landowner may agree that 
additional conferral with descendants is necessary to 
consider culturally appropriate treatment of multiple 
Native American human remains. Culturally appropriate 
treatment of such a discovery may be ascertained from 
review of the site utilizing cultural and archaeological 
standards. Where the parties are unable to agree upon 
the appropriate treatment measures, the human 
remains and grave goods buried with the Native 
American human remains, shall be reinterred with 
appropriate dignity. 
 
 


Principle 
Investigator, 
Medical Examiner 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


If human remains 
are determined to 
be of Native 
American decent 


On-site inspection   







   
Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


Geology and Soils      


Mitigation Measure GEO-1: Excavations into any areas 
of exposed Miocene (and earlier) deposits of the San 
Timoteo Formation will be monitored by a qualified 
paleontologist consistent with the policies and protocols 
of the San Bernardino County Museum. The 
Paleontologist shall determine the extent and duration of 
monitoring required and provide a report to the City. 
 


Paleontologist/ City 
of Loma Linda 
Community 
Development 
Department 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


Throughout 
grading activities 


Review of report  


   
Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


Tribal Cultural Resources      


Mitigation Measure TCR-1: In the event that cultural 
resources are discovered during project activities, all 
work in the immediate vicinity of the find (within a 60-foot 
buffer) shall cease and a qualified archaeologist meeting 
Secretary of Interior standards shall be hired to assess 
the find. Work on the other portions of the project 
outside of the buffered area may continue during this 
assessment period. Additionally, the San Manuel Band 
of Mission Indians Cultural Resources Department 
(SMBMI) shall be contacted, as detailed within TCR-1, 
regarding any pre-contact and/or historic-era finds and 
be provided information after the archaeologist makes 
his/her initial assessment of the nature of the find, so as 
to provide Tribal input with regards to significance and 
treatment.  


Tribal Monitor Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


In the event pre-
contact and/or 
historic-era 
resources are 
discovered 


On-site inspection  


Mitigation Measure TCR-2: If significant pre-contact 
and/or historic-era cultural resources, as defined by 
CEQA (as amended, 2015), are discovered and 
avoidance cannot be ensured, the archaeologist shall 
develop a Monitoring and Treatment Plan, the drafts of 
which shall be provided to SMBMI for review and 
comment, as detailed within TCR-1. The archaeologist 
shall monitor the remainder of the project and implement 
the Plan accordingly. 


Tribal Resource 
Monitor 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


In the event 
cultural 
documents are 
prepared 


On-site inspection  


Mitigation Measure TCR-3: If human remains or funerary 
objects are encountered during any activities associated 
with the project, work in the immediate vicinity (within a 
100-foot buffer of the find) shall cease and the County 
Coroner shall be contacted pursuant to State Health and 


Tribal Resource 
Monitor 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


In the event 
human remains 
are found 


On-site inspection  







   
Mitigation Measures No. / 


Implementing Action 


 
Responsible for 


Monitoring 


 
Monitoring 


Frequency 


 
Timing of 


Verification 


 
Method of 


Verification 


 
Verified Date 


/Initials 


Safety Code §7050.5 and that code enforced for the 
duration of the project.  


Mitigation Measure TCR-4: The San Manuel Band of 
Mission Indians Cultural Resources Department 
(SMBMI) shall be contacted, as detailed in CR-1, of any 
pre-contact and/or historic-era cultural resources 
discovered during project implementation and be 
provided information regarding the nature of the find, so 
as to provide Tribal input with regards to significance and 
treatment. Should the find be deemed significant, as 
defined by CEQA (as amended, 2015), a cultural 
resources Monitoring and Treatment Plan shall be 
created by the archaeologist, in coordination with 
SMBMI, and all subsequent finds shall be subject to this 
Plan. This Plan shall allow for a monitor to be present 
that represents SMBMI for the remainder of the project, 
should SMBMI elect to place a monitor on-site. 


Tribal Resource 
Monitor 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


In the event pre-
contact and/or 
historic era 
cultural resources 
are discovered 


On-site inspection  


Mitigation Measure TCR-5: Any and all archaeological/ 
cultural documents created as a part of the project 
(isolate records, site records, survey reports, testing 
reports, etc.) shall be supplied to the applicant and Lead 
Agency for dissemination to SMBMI. The Lead Agency 
and/or applicant shall, in good faith, consult with SMBMI 
throughout the life of the project.   


Tribal Resource 
Monitor 


Throughout 
construction 
of the project 


In the event 
cultural 
documents are 
created 


Review of 
documents 


 


Mitigation Measure TCR-6: The City shall allow for the 
presence of an approved Agua Caliente Native American 
Cultural Resource Monitor(s) during any ground 
disturbing activities (including archaeological testing and 
surveys). Should buried cultural deposits be 
encountered, the Monitor may request that destructive 
construction halt and the Monitor shall notify a Qualified 
Archaeologist (Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and 
Guidelines) to investigate and, if necessary, prepare a 
mitigation plan for submission to the State Historic 
Preservation Officer and the Agua Caliente Tribal 
Historic Preservation Office. 


Tribal Resource 
Monitor 


Throughout 
ground 
disturbing 
activities 


In the event buried 
cultural deposits 
are encounted 


On-site 
inspections 


 


 
 







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 5 
  



























CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 6 
  







City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


Phill Dupper, Mayor 
Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 
Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 
John Lenart, Councilman  
Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


 


  


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2023 


 


TO: City Council 


 


SUBJECT:  Demands Register 


 


 


RECOMMENDATION 
 


It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached list of demands for payment. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                             


Approved/Continued/Denied 


By City Council 


Date _________________ 



















































































































CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 7  
  







City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


Phill Dupper, Mayor 
Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 
Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 
John Lenart, Councilman  
Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


 


  


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2023 


 


TO: City Council 


 


SUBJECT:  Minutes of December 13, 2022, and January 10, 2023 


 


 


RECOMMENDATION 
 


It is recommended that the City Council approve the minutes as submitted. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Approved/Continued/Denied 


By City Council 


Date _________________ 







 


 


 
 


 


 


City of Loma Linda 
City Council Minutes 


Regular Meeting of December 13, 2022 
 


A regular meeting of the City Council was called to order by Mayor Dupper at 7:07pm Tuesday, 


December 13, 2022.   


 


Councilmen Present: Mayor Phill Dupper 


   Mayor pro tempore Ron Dailey 


Bhavin Jindal 


   John Lenart 


   Rhodes Rigsby 


    


Councilman Absent: None 


 


Others Present: City Manager T. Jarb Thaipejr 


City Attorney Diane Robbins  


 


Mayor Dupper noted that Councilman Lenart was present, but was in the Council Board room on a 


business call.   


 


The Pledge of Allegiance and invocation were led by Councilman Rigsby. 


 


Items To Be Added Or Deleted 


 


No items were added or deleted.    


 


Oral Reports/Public Participation - Non-Agenda Items (Limited to 30 minutes; 3 minutes allotted for 


each speaker) 


 


Milford Harrison thanked the citizens of Loma Linda for the privileges he has had representing the citizens 


of Loma Linda.  On November 8, he was elected for another four-year term as a San Bernardino 


Valley Water District Board member.  He noted that the Board is committed to ensure there is 


sufficient water for the communities within the region.  He thanked his supporters.   


 


Scheduled and Related Items 


 


CC-2022-96 – Public Hearing –Ratification of Certificate of Appropriateness for Precise Plan of Design 


Application No. P22-004 for the elevations of “The Groves” 51 single-family residential homes 


located in Planning Area 3-6 of the Groves Specific Plan  


a. DETERMINE the project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 


pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15182, which provides an exemption for residential 


projects located in a specific plan area where a public agency has already prepared an EIR on a 


specific plan and that residential project is undertaken pursuant to and in conformity with that 


specific plan, and;  


b. RATIFY Certificate of Appropriateness for Precise Plan of Design No. P22-004, and;  


c. APPROVE Precise Plan of Design No. P22-004, which includes the architectural styles and 


configuration of 51 single-family, estate-style homes on 10,000 sq. ft. minimum lots. The 


4 architectural styles, consistent with the Specific Plan, will be: Craftsman, Prairie, California 


Ranch, and Modern Farmhouse. The 22.58 acre vacant site is located in Planning Area 3-6 of The 







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 2 


December 13, 2022 


 


 


 


Groves Specific Plan, south of Park Ave, north of Mission Rd, and intersected by Bryn Mawr 


Ave. It’s designated as Special Planning Area “D” within the Historic Mission Overlay District, 


Zoned Planned Community and Very Low Density Residential. The recommended approvals 


listed above are based on the Findings contained in the Staff Report and subject to the Conditions 


of Approval and the original Mitigation Measures adopted on June 12, 2018. 


 


Councilman Lenart entered the Council Chambers at 7:11pm. 


 


Community Development Director Matarrita presented the report into evidence, reviewing the 


architectural elevations, floor plans, fencing and landscape designs of the project.  She noted that the 


project was reviewed by Planning Commission on December 7, 2022 with the recommendation to add 


three conditions which are Conditions 118-120 to the Conditions of Approval. The following are a 


summary of the conditions:  


 


1. (Condition 118) Provide a minimum of 2 types of fast growing trees that will produce substantial 


shade along the Zanja Trail, park, perimeter, and parkways. On Mission Road, choose the same 


types of trees and similar plant palette.  


2. (Condition 119) Install natural shade structure with lighting for the mailbox clusters.   


3. (Condition 120) Revise the elevations so the siding, such as stone veneer, wraps and continues 


around the front and side portions of the structure.  


In regards to the condition pertaining to the locations of the mailbox clusters, the applicant requested to 


modify the condition allowing them to work with staff during the Plan Check phase for location that will 


be appropriately shaded and lighted by shade trees and street lighting. However, the ultimate locations are 


approved by the United States Postal Service (USPS).  She would allow the applicant to respond to the 


other two conditions recommended by the Planning Commission.  She concluded that the City is 


recommending approval of the project per the recommendations as stated on the staff report based on the 


Findings and subject to the Conditions of Approval.   


Councilman Jindal inquired to the definition of semi-custom; expressed concern to the exterior color 


tones; did not believe the development was unique enough for a semi-custom development; wanted to 


confirm that the parkways in this development will be installed; and received complaints from residents 


that there are not sufficient trees in this development.  


In response, Community Development Matarrita explained semi-custom defined as the majority of the 


development would be unique with minimal repeated elevations.  She stated that the Code requires two 


trees per property; one in front of the property and one in the parkway.   


 


Discussion ensued pertaining to solar panels and an explanation of the calculation to determine the size 


and power.   


 


Mayor pro tempore Dailey complemented the developer, stating that they do a good job and provide a 


good product.  He appreciates the decent size of the homes, the exterior colors and accent colors.  He 


asked if any homes have a double door entry and if the development would have an HOA.  


 


Matthew Gevergiz, Project Manager for Lennar Homes, stated that they did consider double doors, but 


stated there could be maintenance issues.  He noted that the single doors are three feet, a little wider and is 


a better option for the design of the homes.  He noted that the project will have an HOA, due to the fact 


there is no common area, but that there would be CC&R’s. He noted that when they started this project, 


semi-custom development was on the Specific Plan.  He noted that Lennar Homes does not do custom 


homes. He noted that this development has the largest variety of homes with four (4) different elevations, 


and, with each elevation, there are three (3) different color schemes. So the result is a more variety of 


homes to fulfill the custom language. He noted that the plotting of the homes is already set for each lot.   







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 3 


December 13, 2022 


 


 


 


He noted that they are not the owners of the development, but are in negotiations. Once that process is 


complete, they anticipate the models to be built by the summer of 2024 based on the market conditions.   


 


Discussion ensued how the development was initially envisioned as a fully custom development, but 


through the process, it was downgraded to semi-custom development.   


 


Discussion ensued pertaining to the project’s landscape plans.  Councilman Dailey stated that he would 


like the developer to install a simple landscape design in the rear yard.  He believes that would add to the 


quality of the project.  He inquired and was interested on the types of trees being installed.  He doesn’t 


support the idea of installing “fast growing” trees as noted in the condition. He noted fast growing does 


not mean appropriate trees. 


 


Mr. Gevergiz explained that they will provide landscape in the front yard, but, that they do not, generally, 


provide rear yard landscape package.  It would be up to the homeowners to custom design their rear yard.  


He noted that there would be a condition on the CC&R’s where the homeowners is given a timeframe to 


install the rear yard.  In regards to the trees, he noted that they are installing 24-inch box trees per code 


and that the Specific Plan provides a tree list.  They will comply with the proposed tree list within the 


Specific Plan.   


 


Community Development Director Matarrita explained that the applicant must submit their landscape 


plan for staff’s review during the plan check process per the Conditions of Approval,  


 


City Manager Thaipejr confirmed that City staff will review the proposed trees for the development, 


because the City will be maintaining the trees.  They will look for appropriate trees. 


 


Discussion ensued pertaining to the recommended condition by Planning Commission on the natural 


shade structure for the cluster mailboxes.   


 


Mr. Gevergiz stated that the US Post Office will approve the location of the cluster mailboxes.  He has a 


concern to the condition (Condition #119) by the Planning Commission for a shade structure for the 


cluster mailboxes. He noted that the cluster mailbox will be located on private property, on the side yard 


of the property.  He does not want to intrude on the property owners of the property.  He noted a shade 


structure will require maintenance.  With no HOA, he said there would be no one responsible for the 


maintenance.  He stated that they would provide shade and lighting with a tree and streetlight nearby.  


 


Councilman Dailey pointed out the mailboxes in his neighborhood got broken into three times in seven 


months.  They tried working with the Post Office, but the timeframe to replace the mailboxes was going 


to be long.  The owners of the neighborhood pitched in and installed an upgraded cluster mailbox. They 


had no problems.  He would like the developer to install a quality, secure mailbox.   


 


Mayor Dupper stated that he trusts staff to work with the applicant on the landscape plan and the selection 


of trees.  He doesn’t feel City Council needs to review the landscape plan. 


 


Mr. Gevergiz stated that he had a concern to the condition (Condition No. 120) recommended by the 


Planning Commission pertaining to the siding continuing around the side portions of the structure.  He 


explained the walls/fence is built after the homes are built and the locations of the walls are determined by 


the panels or the visual characteristics.  He stated that complying with this condition would be difficult 


based on the sequencing of how they build the property. He would prefer that there be a specific linear 


footage or to work with city staff. 


 


Mayor Dupper stated that he is uncomfortable with this condition (Condition No. 120).  He noted that the 


City has been happy with the product of Lennar homes.  He noted that the developer is in the business and 


know what sells.  He does not want to overly complicate it.  He would rather delete that condition. 







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 4 


December 13, 2022 


 


 


 


 


Following discussion, it was the consensus of the City Council to delete Condition No. 120 and allow the 


applicant work with staff. 


   


Mayor Dupper stated that in regards to Condition No. 118a, he recommended striking out “fast growing” 


on.  In regards to Condition 119, he recommended removing “structure” and the condition was revised to 


read, “During the Plan Check process, the applicant shall work with City staff to provide appropriate 


shade and lighting for the mailbox clusters. 


 


There was a consensus by the Council on the recommended changes.   


 


Councilman Lenart left the Council meeting at 8:34pm.  


 


Mayor pro tempore Dailey expressed concerned that there was no rear yard landscape. For these upgraded 


home development, he believed it should be included and add the cost to the cost of the homes.  


 


Mr. Gevergiz stated that in a similar development in a neighboring city, Lennar Homes offered that 


option.  He said that it was about $15,000 - $20,000 to install landscape for much smaller lots.  He 


pointed out that these are lots are larger, so the cost would be higher.  He stated that it is not typically 


what they offer.  In their experience, the owners are not usually adding that option.   


 


The public hearing was opened.   


 


Julie Stocker, 26234 Mission Rd., stated that they own the existing home adjacent to the adobe property.  


She read there would be a center median on Mission Rd. She does not support a median on Mission Rd. 


in front of their home.  She noted that she has not received the public notices for this project.  She asked 


how the sidewalks in the development will affect her property.   


 


City Manager Thaipejr stated that the City will install the sidewalks and all the street improvements, but 


the owners of the three existing properties would have to dedicate the right of way to the City.  He stated 


that without the sidewalk improvements, there will be some issues when it rains.  He noted that the 


median was installed on Mission Rd. to slow down the traffic.    


 


Ms. Stocker had a questions about the zoning of her property; whether the homes behind would be one or 


two story; and the drainage of water with the new development.   She read a condition that the existing 


property owners are responsible for their own drainage.  She is concerned about drainage.  She is trying to 


do the best to protect their property.  


  


City Manager Thaipejr explained the drainage would flow in the northwest direction and the rainfall 


drainage should remain within the subdivision.  He reiterated that he would like to work with the existing 


property owners to complete the street improvements.  


 


Pete Dangermond welcomed the idea of the street improvements.  He commented to Lot C and that they 


wanted to coordinate to the improvements around the adobe.  


 


Mayor Dupper commented that one of the streets in the development is named Frink Ranch Road 


 


Dick Wiley commented on the shading of the cluster mailboxes and appreciated the efforts made to cover 


the Adobe House for weather protection.  


 


The public hearing is closed. 


 







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 5 


December 13, 2022 


 


 


 


Motion by Rigsby to approve Precise Plan of Design Application No. P22-004 as submitted with 


the modifications to Condition No. 118 and 119 and to delete Condition No. 120.   


 


Motion failed due to lack of second. 


 


Mayor pro tempore Dailey stated that he would like the item to come back to the Council with the 


landscape plan.  


 


Councilman Rigsby stated that he supports staff to work with the applicant on the landscape plan based 


on the comments and concerns expressed by City Council. He added that bringing the landscape plan 


back to the City Council could delay the purchase of the property. 


 


Councilman Jindal could not second the motion because concerns he had with the designs of the homes. 


 


Motion by Rigsby, seconded by Jindal, to continue Precise Plan of Design Application No. P22-


004 to January 10, 2023; the City Clerk called roll and motion carried unanimously. Lenart 


absent.   


 


CC-2022-97 - Consent Calendar 


 


Motion by Rigsby, seconded by Jindal to approve the Consent Calendar items as presented; 


the City Clerk called roll and the Consent Calendar items were approved unanimously. 


Lenart absent.  


 


The demands registers dated: 


 November 22, 2022, with commercial demands totaling $1,550,985.15 and payroll demands 


dated November 10, 2022, in the amount of $390,153.93; and 


 December 13, 2022, with commercial demands totaling $2,253,777.43 and payroll demands 


dated November 23, 2022, $386,194.83 and December 8, 2022, $367,542.61; 


 


Approved the Minutes of October 25 and November 8, 2022, as presented;  


 


Accepted for filing the October and November, 2022, Treasurer’s Reports;  


 


Accepted for filing the October and November, 2022, Fire Department Reports; 


 


Appropriated $293,200.00 from Water Utility Operations Fund Balance and Awarded contracts to Best 


Drilling and Pump, Inc. of Colton, CA, $380,002.00 for rehabilitation work; to Tetra Tech, Inc. of 


Irvine, CA, $55,182.00 for inspection and project management services; and authorized a project 


contingency allocation of $38,000.00; 


 


Appropriated $160,700.00 from Measure I Fund Balance and Awarded contracts to Vance Corporation 


of Beaumont, CA, $527,780.78 for rehabilitation work on Mountain View Ave., Sun Ave., Rosewood 


Dr., and Spade Dr.; to Joseph E. Bonadiman & Associates, Inc. of San Bernardino, CA, $15,000.00 for 


survey monument preservation services; and authorized a project contingency allocation of $52,800.00;  


 


Approved a supplemental appropriation of $10,000 from General Fund Balance and Approved payment 


to Shenkman & Hughes, PC, of $30,000 pertaining to the City’s electoral system process change from 


at-large to by-district elections for City Council;   


 


Awarded contract to K.D. Acoustics of San Bernardino, CA, $22,500.00 for the replacement of acoustic 


tiles within the City Center and authorized a project contingency allocation of $2,300.00; and 


 







City Council Minutes  Page 6 


December 13, 2022 


Accepted as complete and authorized recordation of the Notice of Completion for sewer line repair 


between the south end of Lawton Ave. and Lawton Ave. intersection with Campus St.in an amount of 


$19,257.00, Contractor: Sancon Technologies, Inc., of Huntington Beach, CA. 


Old Business - None 


New Business  


CC-2022-98 - City Council 2023 Meeting Schedule


Informational item; no action required. 


Reports of Councilmen  


Mayor Dupper commended Councilman Jindal for his work on the school district boundaries matter.  He 


noted that they participated on a virtual public hearing.  He noted Councilman Jindal did a great job 


representing the City, but the request from the City was not approved.   


Councilman Jindal commended Mayor Dupper for his support of the project and participation in the virtual 


public hearings.  He restated that the City tried to put all of Loma Linda in one uniform school district, but it 


did not go in the City’s favor.   


Due to technical difficulties with the Zoom connection during the public participation section of the agenda, 


Dick Wiley commented commending the Fire Department for their Parade of Lights program.  He 


congratulated the Fire Department for a wonderful program.  He wished City Council and staff a Merry 


Christmas and Happy New Year.  


Reports of Officers  


The meeting adjourned at 9:18 pm. 


Approved at the meeting of February 14, 2023. 


City Clerk 







 
 


 


 


City of Loma Linda 
City Council Minutes 


Regular Meeting of January 10, 2023 
 


A regular meeting of the City Council was called to order by Mayor Dupper at 7:04 pm Tuesday, January 


10, 2023.   


 


Councilmen Present: Mayor Phill Dupper 


   Mayor pro tempore Ron Dailey 


Bhavin Jindal 


   John Lenart 


   Rhodes Rigsby 


    


Councilman Absent: None 


 


Others Present: City Manager T. Jarb Thaipejr 


City Attorney Diane Robbins  


 


 


The Pledge of Allegiance and invocation were led by Councilman Rigsby. 


 


Councilman Lenart entered the Council Chambers at 7:05 p.m. 


 


Items To Be Added Or Deleted 


 


City Manager Thaipejr requested approval to add an urgency item to the agenda. He explained the City 


received TDA Grant from SBCTA for the installation of two bus shelters.  The work was completed; 


however, the notice of completion was not filed being that the installation was installed by staff.  The 


deadline to submit for payment reimbursement was extended to complete this process.    


 


City Attorney Robbins explained that Council must determine the item requires an immediate action and 


that the need to take an action came to the attention of staff after the posting of the agenda, which is what 


occurred.  


 


Motion by Rigsby, seconded by Lenart and unanimously carried to add the Notice of 


Completion for the Bus Stop and Shelters Construction on Barton Rd at California 


Ave. on the Consent Calendar, Agenda Item No. 7a, for City Council action, based on 


the findings that the item required immediate action due to the grant deadline; and 


that the item came to the attention to staff after the posting of the agenda.  


 


Oral Reports/Public Participation - Non-Agenda Items (Limited to 30 minutes; 3 minutes allotted for 


each speaker) 


 


No public participation upon invitation by the Mayor.  


 


Scheduled and Related Items 


 


CC-2023-01 – Public Hearing –Ratification of Certificate of Appropriateness for Precise Plan of Design 


Application No. P22-004 for the elevations of “Gold Crest” 51 single-family residential homes 


located in Planning Area 3-6 of the Groves Specific Plan  







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 2 


January 10, 2023 


 


 


 


a. DETERMINE the project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 


pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15182, which provides an exemption for residential 


projects located in a specific plan area where a public agency has already prepared an EIR on a 


specific plan and that residential project is undertaken pursuant to and in conformity with that 


specific plan, and;  


b. RATIFY Certificate of Appropriateness for Precise Plan of Design No. P22-004, and;  


c. APPROVE Precise Plan of Design No. P22-004, which includes the architectural styles and 


configuration of 51 single-family, estate-style homes on 10,000 sq. ft. minimum lots. The 


4 architectural styles, consistent with the Specific Plan, will be: Craftsman, Prairie, California 


Ranch, and Modern Farmhouse. The 22.58 acre vacant site is located in Planning Area 3-6 of The 


Groves Specific Plan, south of Park Ave, north of Mission Rd, and intersected by Bryn Mawr 


Ave. It’s designated as Special Planning Area “D” within the Historic Mission Overlay District, 


Zoned Planned Community and Very Low Density Residential. The recommended approvals 


listed above are based on the Findings contained in the Staff Report and subject to the Conditions 


of Approval and the original Mitigation Measures adopted on June 12, 2018. 


 


Community Development Director Matarrita presented the report into evidence, noting Planning 


Commission approved the project adding three conditions, Conditions 118-120. On December 13, 2022, 


City Council reviewed the project, amended Conditions 118 & 119, deleted Condition 120, expressed 


several design concerns and continued the project to this meeting. She noted the applicant made feasible 


modifications to refine the project based on City Council’s discussion, but pointed out that it would not 


change the project description or proposed use. She noted the applicant agreed to plant 14 magnolia trees 


along Citrus Rd. to match the adjacent development; to add two shade producing trees (carrot wood and 


camphor) along the Zanja Trail; and to add carrot wood vs. pepper trees along Mission Rd., which will 


match the trees adjacent to the development. This tree selection was based on a recommendation by the 


Field Maintenance Technician who noted pepper trees are a nuisance and a maintenance liability. She 


went on to say the applicant also increased the number of trees in the development by reducing the tree 


spacing from 40 feet to 30 feet providing a denser tree canopy. Based on these modifications, staff 


recommended deleting Condition 118, which addresses the tree installation. In regards to the mailbox 


cluster, she noted the applicant upgraded the style and design where they will have a decorative pedestal 


and cover that is United States Postal Service (USPS) approved and that the USPS will make the final 


decision on their locations. She concluded noting that all plan modifications will be reviewed during the 


plan check process and the final grading and preliminary landscape plans will be reviewed by staff.    


 


Motion by Rigsby, seconded by Jindal, to approve Precise Plan of Design 


Application No. P22-004 to January 10, 2023 as revised;  


 


Mayor pro tempore Dailey appreciated the modifications to the mailboxes by the applicant. Community 


Development Director Matarrita noted that the mailbox design is identified in the USPS website as 


secured mailboxes.  


 


Councilman Jindal thanked staff and the applicant for taking the Council’s feedback and making the 


modifications.  He clarified that his concerns expressed at the previous meeting were based on resident 


complaints he has received on an adjacent development. However, he is confident that this development 


is a better design. He noted that the homes will be in the city long term, so their attention to detail is being 


viewed in that respect. They want a beautiful project. 


 


The City Clerk called roll and motion carried unanimously.  


  







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 3 


January 10, 2023 


 


 


 


 


CC-2023-02 - Consent Calendar 


 


Motion by Rigsby, seconded by Lenart to approve the Consent Calendar items as 


presented;  


 


In regards to Agenda No. 7, Councilman Jindal complimented staff for pursuing an educational 


opportunity for employees.  He hoped the program will expand with other universities.  


 


The City Clerk called roll and motion carried unanimously.  


 


Approved the demands registers dated: 


 December 27, 2022, with commercial demands totaling $1,214,993.14 and payroll demands 


dated December 22, 2022, in the amount of $374,114.89 and December 23, 2022, in the amount 


of $81,031.46; and 


 January 10, 2023, with commercial demands totaling $562,158.23 and payroll demands dated 


January 5, 2023, $390,840.03; 


 


Accepted for filing the December, 2022, Treasurer’s Reports;  


 


Accepted for filing the December, 2022, Fire Department Reports; 


 


Adopted Council Bill #R-2023-02 declaring the need for emergency contracting procedures for Barton 


Road waterline repair, appropriate $28,100 from Water Utility Operations Fund Balance into account 


no. 4657020-51300, then award contract for emergency waterline repair; 


 


RESOLUTION NO 3165 


 


RESOLUTION DECLARING THE NEED FOR EMERGENCY CONTRACTING 


PROCEDURES AND AUTHORIZING BARTON ROAD WATERLINE REPAIR. 


 


Adopted Council Bill #R-2023-01 establishing the new salary table for employees effective January 1, 


2023, for Fiscal Years 2021-2024;  


 


RESOLUTION NO 3166 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOMA 


LINDA, CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING THE NEW SALARY TABLE 


FOR EMPLOYEES EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2023. 
 


Approved a Memorandum of Understanding to enter into a three-year preferred partnership with 


California Baptist University (CBU); and  


 


Accepted as complete and authorized recordation of the Notice of Completion for Bus Stop and 


Shelter Construction on Barton Road at California Avenue in an amount of $20,634.13, 


Manufacturer: Tolar Manufacturing, of Corona, CA. 


 


Old Business - None 


  







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 4 


January 10, 2023 


 


 


 


 


New Business  
 


CC-2023-03 - Appropriate $48,500 from Citizens Options for Public Safety (COPS) Grant Fund Balance 


and Award a contract to Flock Group, Inc. for the installation and monitor of 17 License Plate Readers 


(LPR) cameras 


 


Motion by Rigsby, seconded by Lenart to appropriate $48,500 from the Citizens 


Options for Public Safety (COPS) Grant Fund Balance and Award a contract to 


Flock Group, Inc. for the installation and monitor of 17 License Plate Readers (LPR) 


cameras in amount of $48,450.00; 


 


City Manager Thaipejr presented the report into evidence, stating the City had been working with the 


Sheriff’s Department to look at options to address the increase in crimes in the city. The Sheriff’s 


Department recommended the License Plate Readers (LPR) cameras from the Flock Safety System. The 


City’s existing license plate camera system is outdated and not working properly.  He, the Mayor and Lt. 


Smith viewed a presentation from Flock Safety System.  He believed the technology of this camera system 


would be beneficial for law enforcement.  He added that City of Colton uses this camera system and will 


install cameras at Barton Rd. and Waterman Ave. Being from the same system, the City would have access 


to that data. The City is recommending approval of the installation of 17 LPR cameras at the intersections 


identified in the staff report, 


 


Discussion ensued noting that the north side of Barton Rd. and Waterman Ave. is within the City of San 


Bernardino.  


 


Mayor Dupper pointed out that the Flock Safety system uses different technology.  He stated that the system 


does not identify the license plate numbers, but uses AI software to identify the details of the vehicles, 


which offers more value and targets the specific crime and criminal for law enforcement. He noted the data 


is destroyed every 30 days, with some exceptions, which is sufficient time for the Sheriff’s Department to 


follow up.  He also noted the Sheriff’s Department would have direct access to the data.   


 


Jesse Mund, Flock Group, Inc., explained that their system does not connect to any third party database to 


collect personal information. However, he stated that their system is connected to the California Stolen 


Vehicle System registry which is published by the California DOJ and is updated every 6 hours. Their 


system will notify law enforcement if a felony, wanted vehicle, amber or silver alert vehicle passes their 


cameras. They provide the data, and law enforcement does their own database check.   With the number of 


government and law enforcement agencies who use their LPR camera system in California, he noted it will 


add value to Loma Linda and its law enforcement.   


 


City Manager explained that the equipment would be leased with year to year contract; that installation cost 


would be $350 per camera; and that the hardware and software maintenance for each camera would be 


$2,500 per year.  He pointed out that this program would be funded through the Citizens Options for Public 


Safety (COPS) Grant fund.   


 


Mayor Dupper asked the maker of the motion if he would be amenable to modify the motion allow the City 


Manager flexibility to modify the contract amount should additional camera be needed. Both the maker and 


the second of the motion concurred.   


 


Motion to amend by Rigsby, seconded by Lenart to add to the motion that the City 


Manager be given flexibility to modify the contract amount should additional cameras 


be needed.  The City Clerk called roll and motion carried unanimously.  


 


Mayor Dupper commended Lt. Kaysie Smith for her hard work and efforts spearheading this project.   







 
 


City Council Minutes             Page 5 


January 10, 2023 


 


 


 


CC-2023-04 - Accept with regret the resignation of Wesley James from the Historic Commission and 


declare vacancy and direct staff to post a Notice of Vacancy 


 


Motion by Rigsby, seconded by Lenart to accept the resignation by Wesley James, to declare 


vacancy and direct staff to post a Notice of Vacancy.  The City Clerk called roll and motion 


carried unanimously.  


 


CC-2023-04 - SCAG Delegate/Alternate for Annual General Assembly Business Meeting May 4-5, 2023, 


Palm Desert, CA – JW Marriott Desert Springs Resort & Spa 


 


Following discussion, Councilman Jindal volunteered to be the city’s SCAG Delegate. City Manager 


Thaipejr stated that he would fill in as the alternate if needed. Mayor Dupper stated he would check his 


availability.   


 


Reports of Councilmen - None 


 


Reports of Officers  
 


CC-2023-05 - Munis Utility Billing System PowerPoint Presentation 


 


Finance Director Fabela provided a presentation of the new Munis Utility Billing System that offers a 


customer portal for customers to view accounts, monthly bills, water usage and option to pay bills.  She 


explained that customers must go online to register to access the program. She demonstrated the steps to 


register.  She noted that a number of residents have already registered with the program.  She concluded by 


pointing out the new format of customer bills which provides more detail of fees. 


 


Public Participation on Non Agenda Items 


 


Dick Wiley pointed out a couple of upkeep matters pertaining to the Frink House. City Manager stated that 


Mr. Dangermond had been in contact with Highpointe Communities, who are the owners of the property. 


 


The meeting adjourned at 8:16 pm. 


 


Approved at the meeting of February 14, 2023. 


 


 


 


     


City Clerk 


 







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 8 
  







City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


 


Phill Dupper, Mayor 
Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 
Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 
John Lenart, Councilman  
Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2023 
 
TO: City Council 
 
FROM: Sonia Fabela, Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
VIA: T. Jarb Thaipejr, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: January 2023 Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council receive the report for filing. 
 
 


Approved/Continued/Denied 


By City Council 


Date _________________ 







 


DEMAND DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS  
                       


CITY - BANK OF AMERICA - MAIN CHECKING ACCOUNT 1,672,848.41$                 


Outstanding Checks as of month-end (291,191.78)                     


CITY - MAIN CHECKING ACCOUNT AVAILABLE BALANCE 1,381,656.63$                 


BANK OF AMERICA - PAYROLL 360,361.07$                    


HOUSING AUTHORITY - BANK OF AMERICA - CHECKING ACCOUNT 64,291.03                        


Outstanding Checks as of month-end -                                   


HOUSING AUTHORITY - CHECKING ACCOUNT AVAILABLE BALANCE 64,291.03$                      


SUCCESSOR AGENCY - BANK OF AMERICA - CHECKING ACCOUNT 112,038.19                      


Outstanding Checks as of month-end -                                   


SUCCESSOR AGENCY - CHECKING ACCOUNT AVAILABLE BALANCE 112,038.19$                    


DEMAND DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS - TOTAL 1,918,346.92$                 


YIELD


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF)  


CITY 2.425% 54,318,824.65$       
CITY - Former RDA Bond Proceeds 2.425% 1,193,362.58           


CITY -Total 55,512,187.23              


SUCCESSOR RDA 2.425% 1,351,854.23


HOUSING AUTHORITY 2.425% 1,318,895.57                


INVESTMENTS TOTALS 58,182,937.03$               


OTHER CASH
          


IMPREST ACCOUNT 500.00$                        


CASH ON HAND 1,350.00                       


OTHER CASH TOTAL 1,850.00$                        


                   


CASH AND INVESTMENTS - GRAND TOTAL 60,103,133.95                 


PREVIOUS MONTH 56,939,189.95                 


.


CHANGE +/(-) 3,163,944.00$                 


All investments are in accordance with the City Investment Policy,
and as such, sufficient funds are available to meet the cash flow
requirements of Loma Linda, including the next thirty days'
obligations. 


                              


Treasurer


January 2023


CITY OF LOMA LINDA


COMPOSITION OF CASH


INVESTMENTS







 -


 10,000,000.00


 20,000,000.00


 30,000,000.00


 40,000,000.00


 50,000,000.00


 60,000,000.00


 70,000,000.00


1/22 2/22 3/22 4/22 5/22 6/22 7/22 8/22 9/22 10/22 11/22 12/22 1/23


CITY OF LOMA LINDA
MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT  1/22-1/23


CITY, SUCCESSOR RDA & HA - TOTAL CASH AVAILABLE CITY- FORMER RDA BOND PROCEEDS BASELINE







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 9 
  











CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 10  
  







Phill Dupper, Mayor 


City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 


Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 


John Lenart, Councilman 


Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2023 


City Council 


Approved/Continued/Denied 
By City Council 


TO: Date 
--------


FROM: Kyle MacGavin, Information Systems Analyst Ill (Through Channels) /6( __ 


;y 
VIA: 


SUBJECT: 


RECOMMENDATION 


T. Jarb Thaipejr, City Manager


Request to award contract for the replacements of City's 
Storage Area Network (SAN) 


It is recommended that City Council award CDW-G the contract to replace the City's SAN 


(Storage Area Network) system. 


BACKGROUND 


The City's current SAN is nearing a decade old and is hitting its end of life later this year. The 


SAN is the backbone of our servers, and the current SAN is becoming increasingly unstable and 


will no longer be supported by the manufacturer later this year. The replacement device will 


provide stable hardware for city use, also for all citizens, customers, and vendors who interact 


with our servers. The replacement SAN is capable of the new and current industry standards, 


and will provide ample data storage for the city's needs for years to come. 


ANALYSIS: 


In lieu of an Request For Proposal, the competitive contract pricing service Sourcewell was 


used to get the best pricing for this device amongst hundreds of vendors. The best pricing was 


received from CDW-G, a company we have a long standing relationship with, for a device from 


the manufacturer "Netapp" at the price of $52,489,93. Based upon the competitive contract 


pricing and the capabilities of the proposed SAN, it is recommended that the contract be 


awarded to CDW-G. 


FINANCIAL IMPACT: 


Funding is available from city wide fund balance 58845 


ATTACHMENT 


A. Product Proposal



















CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 11 
  







City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2023 


City Council TO: 


FROM: T. Jarb Thaipejr, City Manager


Phillip Dupper, Mayor 
Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 
John Lenart, Councilman 
Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 
Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 


Approved/Continued/Denied 
By City Council 
Date 


SUBJECT: Surplus Vehicles, Equipment, and Miscellaneous Items 


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council declare the attached list of vehicles, equipment and 
miscellaneous items surplus and authorize the items be appropriately disposed and the remaining 
items auctioned off as surplus. 


BACKGROUND 


The attached list of vehicles, equipment and miscellaneous items are no longer used in the 
normal operations of the City. These items have become a maintenance liability rather than an 
asset due to the limited useful life and present worth of each item. 


ANALYSIS 


Staff has researched and will have the items auctioned through an auction company. 


FINANICIAL IMPACT 


Income from auctioned items not determined at this time. 


Attachment: Proposed Surplus List 


\\CLL�SV�FILE\Public Works\Public Works Admin\StaffReports\Declare Surplus Property and Dispose 2023.doc 







EQUIPMENT DISPOSITION FORM 
(This form is to be completed upon the disposition of fixed assets, with the exception of equipment for surplus) 


Date of Disposition: 


Department: Public Works and Fire I Division: Parks, Streets, Water, Facilities & Sr Ctr


Justification for Disposition: unworkable, no lonqer used in the normal operations of the 
City and/or have become a maintenance liability 


Authorized Siqnature 


Item Asset 
# Taa# 
1 None 
2 None 


3 2109 
4 None 


5 None 
6 None 


7 1659 
8 None 


9 None 
10 None 
11 None 
12 None 
13 None 
14 199 
15 None 
16 None 
17 1352 
18 2206 
19 1739 
20 1846 


21 None 


Check One: 
X Sold 


Serial #/City ID # 


1 FMFU 16589LA00424 
1FTRW14W75KB577 42 


1FTRW08L43KA21723 
S69311005230/E-706 


E04111003223/E-741 
CA722152 


None 
No Serial #/948564 


7416/E-250 
160/E-249 
A04385 


PO186-1074 
255294 
587034/E-320 
460694 
504542 


Description 


2009 Ford Expedition, Miles: 162,739 (Fire) 
2005 Ford F150, 4x4, Miles: 281,000 (PW -Water) 


2003 Ford F-150, 4x4, Miles: 98,270 (Fire) 
Echo HCA-265, long reach hedge trimmer (PW -
Parks) 
Echo PPT-266, Pole Saw Pruner (PW - Parks) 
Porta Potty Trailer, Towable Porta Potty (PW -
Streets) 
Biq Tex Trailer, 6x10 Stake Bed Trailer (PW) 
Valley EZ Dumper, 5x8 Utility Trailer, City ID: 
(PW-Water) 


Jack Hammer NO29321 (PW) 
Jack Hammer 7755711 (PW) 
Husqvarna, Weed Whip (PW) 
Federal Signal, Overhead Light Bar (Fire) 
Federal Sional, Overhead Lioht Bar (Fire) 
Landa RHW3-70021 D, Pressure Washer (PW)


Echo PB400E, Power Blower (PW) 
Echo PB46HT, Power Blower (PW) 
Gludak/UDSEC, Locator 5600 (PW) 
Atlas Copco 120, Vibratory Powder Puff (PW) 
OCE 7056, Large Toner/Printer 
Hewlett Packard DesignJet 3500CP, Large 
Toner/Printer 
Fleetwood Demo Cart w/buffet ranoe (Facilities) 


22      None       160 Chairs (stackable)  (Facilities & Senior Center) 







Other, Please explain 


Distribution: Original - Finance; Copy - Relinquishing Department 12/03 


CITY OF LOMA LINDA Attachment IV 


ASSET DISPOSITION FORM 


(This form to be completed upon the disposition of capital assets, with the exception of exception of equip, for surplus) 


by means of: 


Public Auction 
Sealed Bid 
Selling for Scrap 
Negotiated Sale 


Sold for: 


Traded for: 


Vendor Name: 


Traded for: 


Department: 


Transferred: 


Department: 


$0.00 
-------------------


Proceeds Returned to Fund: 
----


---------------


(Other Asset) 


_____________ (Other Dept. Asset)


_____________ (Asset) 







EQUIPMENT DISPOSITION FORM 
(This form is to be completed upon the disposition of fixed assets, with the exception of equipment for surplus) 


Date of Disposition: 2-14-23 


Department INFORMATION SYSTEMS Division_____________________________ 


Justification for Disposition:  Equipment is nonfunctioning or obsolete 


Authorized Signature ________________________________________________________ 


Item 
# 


Asset Tag 
# 


Serial # 
Description 


1 03118 GD1VQW1 Dell Precision T5600 (Desktop) 


2 - 8848047 Sony Audio/Video Control Center (Black) 


3 - G3CXKK1 Dell Precision T5400 (Desktop) 


4 - CN-OHC317-71618-55M-AAY1 Dell Flat Panel Monitor 


5 - - Dell Flat Panel Monitor 


6 02303 JZC4VC1 Dell OptiPlex 745 (SFF) 


7 02473 CNUOO44XLL HP Smart Board Laptop 


8 02280 CNF6270NH3 HP Compaq 


9 03329 F4GSP72 Dell Laptop 


10 03199 MXL3110Y88 HP Compaq Pro 6300 (SFF) 


11 03229 MXL4321HGQ HP EliteDesk 800 G1 (SFF) 


12 03295 MXL5322T65 HP EliteDesk 800 G1 (SFF) 


13 03128 JY53JQ1 Dell Optiplex 990 (SFF) 


14 03122 3W22QN1 Dell Optiplex 990 (SFF) 


15 - A1R025102239 ViewSonic VG700b 


16 03124 H9S1HQ1 Dell Optiplex 990 (SFF) 


17 - CN11020554 HP Digital Sender 9200c 


18 - MY1131802R HP DeskJet 952C 


19 - CNB0311069 HP Color Sphere 


20 - - Dell Flat Panel Monitor 


21 - - 13 tan phones 


22 - - 4 tan speakers 


23 - - 4 keyboards 


24 - - 1 Ethernet switch 


25 - - 2 HDDs 


26 - 77B92541 Dell PowerEdge 2650 


27 - - 1 Mouse 


28 S0234232Z AT-9812T Multi-Layer Gigabit Switch 


29 03141 A03630s061000008 Allied Telesyn x900-24XT-N QoS Switch 


30 - S0AN4145W Allied Telesyn Rapier 24i Layer 3 Fast Internet 







Switch 


31 S05V3052S Allied Telesyn Rapier 24i Layer 3 Fast Internet 
Switch 


32 - M04366803556088D02 PowerDsine 6024 


33 - I042666803005098d01 PowerDsine 6024 


34 - 3618GN00501 MGE UPS Systems Topaz S3 


35 - 018184 Galleon Systems LTD 


36 03263 5CG44030JX HP ProBook 650 G1 


37 - S0CE4389AB Allied Telesyn Rapier 24i Layer 3 Fast Internet 
Switch 


38 - A02408S060200006 C Allied Telesis AT-TN117-A Datasheet 


39 - A02408S060200030 iMAPTM GE8 (AT-TN-117) 8-Port GbE Service 
and Aggregation Channel Unit 


40 - 0056224040900065 A1 Allied Telesis AT-TN-301-A 


41 - A02408S060200020 C iMAPTM GE8 (AT-TN-117) 8-Port GbE Service 
and Aggregation Channel Unit 


42 - 0056224040900056 A1 Allied Telesis AT-TN-301-A 


43 - A01830S060200021 E Allied Telesis AT-TN-109-A 100BASE-FX SVR 
MOD VAUCAAYGTA 


44 - A01830S060200060 E Allied Telesis AT-TN-109-A 100BASE-FX SVR 
MOD VAUCAAYGTA 


45 - A01830S060100002 E Allied Telesis AT-TN-109-A 100BASE-FX SVR 
MOD VAUCAAYGTA 


46 - A01830S060200088 E Allied Telesis AT-TN-109-A 100BASE-FX SVR 
MOD VAUCAAYGTA 


47 - A01830S060200100 E Allied Telesis AT-TN-109-A 100BASE-FX SVR 
MOD VAUCAAYGTA 


48 - A02042S041200037 A7 ALLIED TELESYN - AT-TN-E001 - FAN & 
CONTROLLER MOD 


49 3189 BLKB23001323 InFocus IN2124 (Projector for EOC) 


50 3168 24JC072501FCA Shoretel SG-24 


51 3215 24CM0527007034 Shoretel SG-24 


52 3218 T1KF13112E8E33 Shoretel ST002 


53 3216 S90F13132E91E2 Shoretel SG-90 


54 3217 S90F13132E9196 Shoretel SG-90 


55 X4EQ163162 EPSON ET-3750 Printer 


56 356963035169343 Iphone 5s 


57 356963035384512 Iphone 5s 


58 356963034770349 Iphone 5s 


59 356963065169608 Iphone 5s 


60 356964060502579 Iphone 5s 


61 356963064770059 Iphone 5s 


62 352008068904207 Iphone 5s 


63 359483089051549 Iphone 6s 


64 359483087517467 Iphone 6s 


65 359487086162340 Iphone 6s 


66 350166284902413 Samsung 


67 353010098678958 Iphone 8 plus 


68 353220107749316 Iphone 8 







Check One: 
_____Sold  (Please attach supporting documentation.) 


_____Lost  (Please include complete description of circumstances surrounding loss.) 


_____Donated to outside organization  (Please attach supporting documentation.) 


_____Traded In (Please attach supporting documentation.) 


_____Reassigned for use as source of parts 


_____Stolen  (Please attach police report or complete description of circumstances.) 


_X___Destroyed  (Please include complete description of circumstances.) 


      Other, Please explain   E-WASTE 


Distribution:   Original - Finance;   Copy - Relinquishing Department         12/03 







CITY OF LOMA LINDA


Sold for: $0.00


by means of:


(X) box


Public Auction


Sealed Bid


Selling for Scrap


Negotiated Sale


Proceeds Returned to Fund:


Traded for:  (Other Asset)


Vendor Name: 


Traded for:  (Other Dept. Asset)


Department:  


Transferred:  (Asset)


Department:  


Attachment IV


ASSET DISPOSITION FORM


(This form to be completed upon the disposition of capital assets, with the exception of exception of equip. for surplus)







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 12 
  



















CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 13  
  























CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 14 
  











CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 15 
  



















CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 16  
  



















CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 17 
  







City of Loma Linda 


Official Report 


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: 


TO: 


FROM: 


VIA: 


SUBJECT: 


February 14, 2023 


City Council 


Lynette Arreola, City Cler�


T. Jarb Thaipejr, City Manager


Committee Appointments: 
a. Budget Committee


Phillip Dupper, Mayor 


Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 


Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 


John Lenart, Councilman 


Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


Approved/Continued/Denied 
By City Council 
Date _______ _ 


b. Parks, Recreation and Beautification Committee
c. Personnel Board


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council appoint members to the following committees and board 
per the noted member seats: 


• Budget Committee (5 member seats)
• Parks, Recreation and Beautification Committee (5 member seats)
• Personnel Board (3 member seats)


BACKGROUND 


The member terms for six Board, Commission and Committees expired between the periods of 2019-
2022. 


On August 9, 2022, the City Council declared the vacancies and directed the City Clerk to post vacancy 
notices for appointments that was scheduled November 8, 2022. 


On November 8, 2022, the City Council took several actions. They reduced membership size of four 
Boards and Committees to five (5) members, two of those being the Parks Recreation and Beautification 
Committee and the Budget Committee; directed City Clerk to re-post a vacancy notice for the Personnel 
Board since insufficient number of applications were received to fill the three vacant seats; and appointed 
members to two committees and one commission. 


The Chairman for the Parks, Recreation and Beautification Committee and the Personnel Board requested 
to review the member applications with City Staff and submit a recommendation to City Council. 
The City Council supported the request. 


ANALYSIS 


The City received five (5) member applications for the Budget Committee, six (6) member applications 
for the Parks, Recreation and Beautification Committee, and six (6) member applications for the 
Personnel Board. 


Reappointed members will continue their term from time term expired. New member appointments must 
be assigned a member term.  







ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 


None. 


FINANCIAL IMP ACT 


None. 







BUDGET COMMITTEE 


The Committee reviews the proposals of City staff and prepares recommendations to the City 
Council of how best to allocate the limited resources of the City to the various municipal services. 
The City Manager and Finance Director/Treasurer are the City's staff liaison members, although all 
Depaitment Heads participate. 


Member Size: 
Te1m: 
Meeting Schedule: 


Mary Lynn Cook 
Kevin Fischer 
Jay Gallant 
Verne Miller 
Gai·y Nelson 
Krnt Swigart 
Jim Walling 


Five (Reduced from seven by City Council on Nov. 8, 2022) 
Four yeai·s 
As needed basis, Frequent during the months of May and June 


Term Exp. June 2020 
Te1m Exp. June 2022 
Term Exp June 2020 
Te1m Exp. June 2019 
Term Exp. June 2019 
Te1m Exp. June 2019 
Term Exp. June 2019 


Reapplied 
Reapplied 


Reapplied 
Reapplied 


New Term Exp. June 30,  2026 
New Term Exp. June 30, 2024 


New Term Exp. June 30, 2023 
New Term Exp. June 30, 2023 


Received five applications: 


1. Craig Chernos
2. Kevin Fischer
3. Jay Gallant
4. Gary Nelson
5. Krnt Swigart







PARKS, RECREATION & BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 


The Committee reviews the City's present Parks and Recreation Element of the General Plan for 
recommending possible changes to the City Council; prepares recommendations pertaining to 
upgrading existing parks, acquiring additional park land, development of a trails system, the 
application of various grant moneys and establishing the parameters of a beautification program. The 
Director of Public Works is the City's liaison staff member. 


Member Size: 
Te1m: 


Five (Reduced from six by City Council on Nov. 8, 2022) 
Three yem·s 
Bi-monthly on the 2


nd 
Monday Meeting Schedule: 


Robert Alfaro 
Valerie Gallant 
Bernadine Irwin 
Janet Razzouk 
Kmt Swigmt 


Richard Wiley 


Term Exp. July 2021 
Term Exp. July 2021 
Term Exp. June 2021 
Te1m Exp. July 2021 
Term Exp. July 2021 
Term Exp. July 2020 


Received six applications/resume: 


I . Valerie Gallant 
2. Bernardine Irwin


3. Janet Razzouk
4. Kmt Swigmt
5. Richm·d Wiley
6. Xi Zhang


Reapplied 
Reapplied 
Reapplied 
Reapplied 


Reapplied 


New Term Exp. July 1, 2024 


Removed October 10, 2022
New Term Exp. July 1, 2024 
New Term Exp. June 30, 2024 
New Term Exp. July 1, 2026 











CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 
 


ADDED URGENCY ITEM 
 


NEW BUSINESS 
 


ITEM NO. 17A 







 


City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


Phill Dupper, Mayor 
Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 
Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 
John Lenart, Councilman  
Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


 


  


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2023 


 


TO: City Council 


 


FROM:  T Jarb Thaipejr, City Manager  


 


SUBJECT: Urgency Item - Approve Amendment No. 2 to the Inland Valley 


Development Agency Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement. 


  


 


RECOMMENDATION 


 


It is recommended that City Council:  


1) Make a finding that there is an immediate need to take action; and 


2) Determine that the need to take action came to the attention to the City after the posting of the 


agenda; and 


3) Approve Amendment No. 2 of the Inland Valley Development Agency Joint Exercise of Powers 


Agreement.  


 


BACKGROUND 


 


The Inland Valley Development Agency (IVDA) Joint Exercise of Powers agreement establishes certain 


officers which are elected by a majority vote of the board on a biennial basis. Presently, the leadership 


structure incudes two (2) IVDA Co-chairpersons and a Vice-Chairperson.  It has been noted that the Co-


Chairperson role is somewhat unique in special district organizations. Most special districts operate with a 


Chair/Vice Chair role or a President/Vice President role. 


 


Over the years, IVDA Board members inquired about changing the IVDA’s officer structure to a more 


typical Chair/Vice Chair position. The officer positions are contained in the Joint Exercise of Powers 


Agreement, and, therefore, require an amendment to the Agreement to change the officer positions, which 


prompted the delay. The current IVDA Board decided to make the change in the officer structure.  


 


There is currently a vacancy of the Vice-Chairperson position. Pursuant to the IVDA election procedures, 


when there is a vacancy of an officer position, the IVDA Board shall at the next regularly scheduled 


meeting conduct an election for a successor to such office for the unexpired term.  That is scheduled to 


occur at their March 2023 meeting.  


 


ANALYSIS 
 


Amendment No.2 will make the following changes to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement: 


  


1) Update the titles of Board officers from Two (2) Co-Chairpersons and a Vice-Chairperson to a 


Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and a Secretary; and  


2) Change the date for the biennial election of officers from the first regular meeting of the Board in the 


Fiscal Year commencing in an even numbered calendar year (typically July) to the first regular 


meeting of the Board held in an odd numbered calendar year (typically January). 


 


Approved/Continued/Denied 


By City Council 


Date      







In order for Amendment No.2 to be effective it will need to be approved by all of the IVDA Members 


consisting of the City of Loma Linda, City of San Bernardino, City of Colton and County of San 


Bernardino.     
 


ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 


None.  


 


FINANCIAL IMPACT 


 


None. 


 


Attachments: 


A. Agreement  







AMENDMENT NO. 2 


TO AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 


(INLAND VALLEY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 


This Amendment No. 2 ("Amendment No. 2") is to that certain Amended Joint Exercise 


of Powers Agreement ("Amended JPA") dated for convenience as of _________ _ 


("Approval Date"), by and among the City of San Bernardino, the City Colton, the City of Loma 


Linda, and the County of San Bernardino (the "Members"). The Members agree as follows: 


1. Purpose of Amendment.


A change has been deemed desirable to be made to certain provisions of the Amended JP A, 


which requires certain clarifications and a minor modifications in order to reflect the agreement of 


the Members as of the date of this Amendment No. 2. Except as specifically amended herein, the 


terms and conditions of the Amended JP A and the Amendment No. 1 to the Amended JP A 


("Amendment No. 1 ") remain in full force and effect, except as to the extent necessary to conform 


to the amendments contained herein. 


2. Terms.


The terms used herein, unless otherwise defined, shall have the same meanings as in the 


Amended JPA and Amendment No. 1. References herein to "Section" are to sections of the 


Amended JP A. 


3. Amendment to Section 3.01.


Section 3.01 of the Amended JPA is amended to read as follows: 


Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary and Additional Officers. The Board shall during 


the first regular meeting of the Board held in an odd numbered calendar year elect one person to 


be Chairperson, one person to be Vice-Chairperson, and one person to be Secretary from among 


the Board Members for a term of two (2) years commencing as of their election as officers at such 


Board meeting. The Board shall appoint such additional officers and shall employ such additional 


employees and assistants as may be appropriate, including but not limited to, a general manager 


and counsel. The officers shall perform the duties normal to said offices; and 


(a) The Chairperson, or such other official, officer or person as may be designated by


the Board, shall execute all contracts on behalf of the Agency, and shall perform such other duties 


as may be imposed by the Board; 


(b) the Vice-Chairperson shall act, execute contracts and perform all of the Chairman's


duties in absence of the Chairman; and 


- 1 -


February 14, 2023







( c) the Secretary shall attest to the execution of all contracts executed by Chairperson,


Vice-Chairperson or other such official, officer or person as may be designated by the Board, on 


behalf of the Agency, perform such other duties as may be imposed by the Board and cause a copy 


of this Agreement to be filed with the Secretary of State pursuant to the Act. 


4. Effective Date. This Amendment No. 2 shall be deemed effective and shall 


deemed effective and shall be dated as of the date latest in time when all Members have approved 


this Amendment No. 2 by official action of the respective legislative bodies. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to be 


executed and attested by their proper officials thereunder duly authorized and their official seal to 


be hereto affixed, on the day and year set opposite the name of each of the parties. 


(Signatures are on the following pages.) 


- 2 -







AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 


(INLAND VALLEY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 


(SEAL) 


ATTEST: 


City Clerk 


City Attorney 


CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO, CALIFORNIA 


By: _____________ _ 


Title: 
--------------


Dated: 
--------------


- 3 -







AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 


(INLAND VALLEY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 


(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 


City Clerk 


City Attorney 


CITY OF COLTON, CALIFORNIA 


By: _____________ _ 


Title: 
--------------


Dated: 
--------------


- 4 -







AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 


(INLAND VALLEY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 


(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 


City Clerk 


City Attorney 


CITY OF LOMA LINDA, CALIFORNIA 


By: _____________ _ 


Title: 
--------------


Dated: 
--------------


- 5 -


Mayor







AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 


(INLAND VALLEY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 


(SEAL) 


ATTEST: 


County Clerk 


County Counsel 


COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 


By: _____________ _ 


Title: 
--------------


Dated: 
--------------


- 6 -







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PACKET 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM NO 18  
  







City of Loma Linda 
Official Report 


Phill Dupper, Mayor 
Ronald Dailey, Mayor pro tempore 
Rhodes Rigsby, Councilman 
John Lenart, Councilman  
Bhavin Jindal, Councilman 


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: February 14, 2022 


TO: City Council  


FROM: 


SUBJECT: 


Lorena Matarrita, Community Development Department
Tom Ingalls, Fire Department


Digital Video and Social Media Discussion (PowerPoint Presentation) 


RECOMMENDATION 


No action required. 


Approved/Continued/Denied 


By City Council 


Date  





		City Council Agenda - February 14, 2023

		CC 1 - CDBG Project Prioritization for FY 23-24

		CC 2 -Presentation of the Audit Report

		CC 2 - Independent Auditor's Report

		CC 2 - Independent Accountant's Report

		CC 2 - Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

		CC 3 - Fall Weed Abatement Program

		CC 4 - Mitigated Negative Declaration & Monitoring Reporting Program for 1.6 MG Water Tank Project

		CC 5 - Revised Adopt Resolution 3160 of editorial Corrections for relating to 2022 California Fire Code

		CC 6 - Demands Register

		CC 7 - Minutes of Dec. 13, 2022 and Jan. 10m, 2023

		CC 8 - January 2023 Treasurer's Report

		CC 9 - January 2023 Fire Department Activity Report

		CC 10 - Contract to replace City's Storage Area Network (SAN)

		CC 11 - Surplus Vehicles, Equipment and Misc Items

		CC 12 - Amend Agreement with Romo Planning Group

		CC 13 - Amend Agreement with Lilburn Corporation

		CC 14 - Supplemental Appropriation of $50,000 from General Fund Blance into Facilities Maintenence Acct.

		CC 15 - NOC of Sidewalk Constructin at Various Locations

		CC 16 - NOC of Acousitic Tile Installation at City Hall and appropriation of $5,100 from General Fund Balance into Facilities account

		CC 17 - Committee Appointments 

		CC17A - Added Item IVDA Agreement Amendment

		CC 18 - Digital Video and Social Media Discussion

		Blank Page








